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Sunshine Ordinance Tasl< Force 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
Room 244 
San Francisco, CA 94102-4689 

::; f :-- _::_ ~ '' r;. [I 
GOAj-:D Cf SU~'~RVISD/-i:,· 

~i~I·-! fi'{:\1-;r:r~;co 

Re Complaint regarding Green Benefit District (GBD) 

Dear Slrs and Mesdames: 

May 29, 2019 

I am filing this complaint because I have not received documents requested in my 
attached PRA request dated February 1i;2019. I renewed this request today in 
another PRA request to the same parties which l have also attached. 

The City is required to release al! documents and information prepared using public 
funding, whether these materials are the work of City employees directly or the work 
product of City grantees or other groups benefitting from public funding. As described 
in my letter at February t t, 2019, the Clty-through OEWO-- has_ provided extensive 
funding to San Francisco Parks Alliance (and its predecessor organizations Place Lab 
and Build Public) to promote the formation of Green Benefit Districts in several San 
Francisco neighborhoods. Public funding has also flowed to the benefit of the Mi~$on 
Dolores Green Benefit District formation committee in the form of, among other things, 
paying for neighborhood mailings, Mission Dolores GB-D website development, 
organizing and holding publ.ic meetings and promoting petition drives related to the 
formation of GBDs. 

The core mission of the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force will be subverted if City 
agencies are allowed to avoid public scrutiny by working through grantees and 
proxies such as the San Francisco Parks Alllance and the Mission Dolores Green 
Benefit District Formation Committee, both of which entities have benefitted from 
significant public funding. 

This matter was discussed at the May 21 SOTF Committee meeting and refered to the 
fu!! Task Force for its consideration. 

Thank you for your attention to this compliant 

Sincerely, 

cj~-, 
201 Buena Vista Ave East 
SF, CA 94117-4103 
415-626-8880 
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May 29, 2019 by email and certified mail 

Director, Office of Economic and Workforce Development 
Director, San Francisco Public Works 
Board of Directors and CEO, San Francisco Parks Alliance 
Formation Committee, Mission Dolores GBD 

Re Renewed Public Records Act request !or additional documents 
pertaining to formation of a Greater Buena Vista Green Benefit District 
and a Mission Dolores Green Benefit District. 

Dear Sirs and Mesdames: 

The purpose of this letter is to request that you provide additional 
documents and materials originally listed in nine numbered 
paragraphs as set forth in my earlier PRA request dated February 11, 
2019. Many of the documents requested at that time have not been. 
provided. 

The City and County of San Francisco must provide documents and 
information funded by the City as described in my earlier PRA request 
dated February 11, 2019. 

Rather than restate the contents of that earlier letter, I am highlighting 
those materials which have not been provided as they were set forth 
in my earlier letter. 

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

John Hooper 
201 Buena Vista Ave east 
San Francisco, CA94117-4103 
415-626-8880 
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Fcbruaryll,2019 Sent by e1nail and ce1ti:fied Mail 

Director, Office of Economic and Workforce J)evclopment (OEWD) 
Director, San l•'rancisco Department of Public Works 

General Mgr., Sm1 Francisco Recreation and Park Department 
Board of Directors and CEO, San Francisco Parks Alliance, including: 

Organizing Committee, Greater Buena Vista Green Benefit District (GBVGBD) 
Formation Conunittee, Mission Dolores GBD 

RE: Public Reco-rds Aet request for documents pertaining to- formation of a (ircatcr Buena 
Vista Green Be11efit District (GBVGilD) and a Mission Dolores Green Benefit District 
(MDGBD) 

Dear Sirs and Mesdames: 

l)ublic funding through DPW and ()EV{D has been provided to Sau :Francisco Parks Alliance 

("Parks Alliance") for efforts to for1n Green Benefit Districts for the Greater Buena Vista 
neighborhood (GBVGBD) and the ueigl1borhood around Mission Dolores Park (IVIDGBD). This 

public funding has paid for, inter alia, several direct mailings, the conduct and analysis of surveys, 
design and maintenance of websites, and the conduct of several public meetings. 

In July 2018, Parks Alliance merged with Place Lab, a dba of Build Public Inc. (Place Lab website, 

"Who We Axe" http://placclabsf.org/about/; and Parks Al1iance 2018 lmpact Report, p.1, ]:J.ttps:// 

\¥WW.sf parksallia11ce.org/siteS/default/f1les/2018 SFPA I111pac1_ report.pdf ). 

Pursuant to Arttcles 6.5, 6.6, 6.8, and 6.9 of a July 1, 201.8 Grant Agreement betvveen City & 

County of SF and the Alliance (Contract# 1000012901, captioned "'fo determine the level of 
support for the formation of a tvvo new Green Benefit Districts") (GBV and Ivfission Dolores), all of 

the books and record<; of SF Parks Alliance (including Place Lab and Euiid Public Jnc.), connected 

vrith or relating to the project- including, hut not limited to rcpo1is, notes, meeting minutes, 
documents, videotapes, audiotapes, correspondence, and attendance records - are property of the 

City & County of SF and the contracting Agency (OECD). 

Untlerthe law of the State of Califonria, such public records are '\mdcr the ownership and control" 
of the public agency, and Bie therefore subject to Public Records Act reque::its. Some or all o.f the 
following documents have been denied to the public through other means. The requested public 
records must be made available to the requesting-public, wherever tbe records: may be physically 

located. -whether in City offices or computers or files, or in the offices, files, and/or computers of 

the city's contractors, subcontractors, agents, or their respective individual employees and/or agents. 

Accord-ingly, and pursuant to the California Public Records Act, California Government Code 
Section 6250ff, and the San Fruncisco Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San l•rancisco 

Administrative Code, this is to req_uest ihat the San Francisco Ofiice of Economic and Workforce 

Development (OEWD), Department of P11blic Works, Recreation and Parle Department, San 
Francisca- Parks Alliance, Place J~ab, Build l'ublic, In.c, Organizing Committee for the Greater 

1 
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Buena Vista Green Bc11cfit District (GBVCJBD) and Forn1ation Com1nittce for the Mission Dolores 
GllD, and all of their respective employees, agents, contractors, illld/or subco11tractors (collectively, 
"Y(lU") and each of YOU produce, on or before close of b11sincss February 28, 2019 the following 
specific records, documents, ru_1d things wherever they 1nay be located: 

1. Grant applications to OEWD, OE\VD contract~, verbatim transcripts, photographs, videos, tape 
reeordi11gs, sig11-in sl1eets, atte1tdance records, notes, memorar1da, reports, and any other records i11 
a11y form of public meetings to discuss, orgmiize, and/or pro1note a Gl3V GBJ) held 011 May 7, 

2018, June 11, 2018, !:i'ncl/or Jattuary 8, 2019. 

2. All c111ails, text messages, and other correspondence, inclnding minutes of all G·BD organization 
con1111ittec meetings and corresponde11ce, between YOlJ and m1y other person or entity, relating to 
1he _plan11ing, execution, and/or follow-up related to pl1blic meetings to discuss, organize, and/or 
protnote a GBV GBD held 011 May 7, 2018, Ju11e 11, 2018, and/or Janua1y 8, 2019. 

3. All raw survey data collected in connection with GBVGBD s11rveys. 

4. All p11blic records, as defined in Gov. Code Section 6252 (c) and (e), it1cluding correspondence 
(including but not li1nited to letters, e-mails, m1d text. messages), ·contracts, agreeme11ts, mailing 
lists, surveys and online surveys., responses to surveys a11d online surveys, budgets, expenditures, 
and memoranda (including all n1ethods of transcription) memorializing, <lescribi11g, or otherwise 
relating to the planning for, p11blic interest and/or opinion surveying for, expendilul"c of p11blic funds 
for, organizatio11, and/or formation of a possible GBVGBl), 

5. Verbatim transcripts, photographs, videos, tape recordings, sign-in sheets, atte11dance records, 
notes, memoranda, repo11s, and any.other records in any ±Orm of public meetings to discuss, 
organize, and/or promote a Mission Dolores GBD heltl on September 17, 2018, October 10, 2018, 
and/or November 15, 2018. 

6. All emails, text messages, and other correspondence, including min11tes of all MDGBD fo1mation 
committee meetings, relating to tl.1c planni11g, execution, and/or follow-up related to _public meetings 
to discuss, organize, and/or promote a Mission I)o!ores CJBD held on September 17, 2018, October 
10, 2018, a11U./or ·November 15, 2018. 

7. All raw survey data collected.i.n connection with Mission Dolores GBD s1rrveys. 

8. All docume11ts, recordi;, and/or correspondence relating to the fu11ding and initiation ofa 
n1anage1nent plan/engit1eer's report in connection with a Missio11 Dolores GBD. 

9. All public records, as <lefined in Gov_ Code Section 6252 (c) and (e), including correspondence 
(including but not limited to l e1lers, e-mails, illld text messages), contracts, agreements, mailing 
lists, surveys rn1d online surveys, responses to surveys and 01tline surveys, b11dgets, expi::nditurcs, 
and memoranda (including all 1netl1ods of transcription) n1emorializing, describll1g, or otl1crwise 
relating to the planning ±Or, public interest m1d/or opinio11 surveying for, expenditure of public funds 
for, organi7..alion. and/or formatio11 of a possible Mission Dolores Gl3D. 
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The California Public Records Act declares that "access to info:rmation concerning the co11duct of 
!he people's husiness is a fundamental and necessary right of every pcrso11 in this state" (Section 
6250), and for that reason is to be construed liberally in favor of disclosure of public records. Cal. 
Const., arl. I, § 3, subd. (b )(2). The Califor11ia Supreme Court has recently held that this liberal 
construction of fuc Public Records Act reaches records in a public agency's constructive posse,.ssion 
or cont.'ol, including docutn.ents in an employee's personal computer Ci!)r of San Jose vs. S-Qperior 
Court of Santa Clara County (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608, 389 P.3rd 848, 214 Cal.Rptr.3d 274, and those 
held by a public agency's contractor or co1J.Sultant Community Yo11th Athletic Cen.icr v. City 
ofNatim)il] City (4th Dist., 2013) 220 Cal.App.4th 1385, 1426, 1428-1429. 
In tllls case, the San 1'Tancisco Departments of Public Works, Recreation and Park, OE"WD, ct al. 
have obligations to produce documents fitting the foregoing descriptions - even if iliey might have a 

diifere11t caption, antl even if-the documents are being held by Build Public/Place Lab, San 
Fra11cisco Parks Alliance, the Gteater Buena Vista Green Benefit District (GBVGBD, Jvfission 
Dolores GI3D, Urban Resource Systems, or another of the Departments' contractors, consultant!'>, or 
ageuts. As the Court of Appeal found in the Community Youth Athletic Center case, the pl1b1ic 
agencies -- i11 this case, the Sm1 Francisco Public Worl(s, Recreation anLl Park DepartmeUl'i, OEWD 
et al.- have an obligation to obtain the requested documents :from their contractors and/or 
consultants, and make the documents available to the requesting party. 

On this point, the Public Records Act provides that "A state or local agency may not allow another 
party to control the disclosure of iuformatio.n that is otherwise subject to disclosure pm·slli!Ilt to this 
chapter." (CJovt.C'.. 6253.3). 

Accordingly, this is to request that the above-described documents -wherever they may physically 
be located, whether in a city office or computer or in the hands of employees of Place Lab, San 
Francisco Parks.Alliance, GBVGBD, Mission Dolores GBD or auotlmrof t11e City's consultants, 
agents or contractors -- be made available by close of business on Fehruary 28. 2019 

Sincerely, 

John C. Hooper 
201 Buena VistaAve Eilst 
San Francisco, CA 94117-4103 
415-626-8880 
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cc: standard distribuli()TI 

Address list: 

San FrMcisco Public Works 
att:J.1: Moham1nec1 Nl11i_1, dircc.:tor 
1 Dr Carlt()Il D Goodlett Place #348 
SF, CA 94102 
mohammed.nuru@sfdpw.org 
j onatha n. go! db~rg@.sf dJ)W. org 

Office of P.conotnic and Workforce Dcvelop1ncnt (OEWD) 
at111: Cl1ris Corgas, Settlor Program Mai1ager, Commltnity Benefit Districts 
CUy Hail, roo 448 
1 Dr Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
SF, CA94102-4653 
cl1ristopher.corgas@sfgov.org 

Sa1111ra11cisco Recrcatio11 ~md JJark Dept 
attn: Phil Ginsburg, (Jeneral Manager 
McI~aren I_,odge 
501 Stanya11 St. 
SF, CA94117 
p 11il. gi11s b11rg@sf gov. o rg 

Sa11 Fra11cisco Parks Alliance 
attn: Executive Director and Board of Directors 
1663 Mission St #320 
S}~ CA 94103 
drc>v@sfparlcsalliance.org 
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: 

RE: 

DENNIS J. HERRERA 
City Attorney 

PEDER J. V. THOREEN 

Deputy City Attorney 

Direct Dial: 
Email: 

l-',15] 554-3846 
Peder.Thorecn@sfcityatty.org 

MEMORANDUM 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL 

Sunshii1e Ordinance Tas]( Force 

Peder J. V. ·rhoreen 
Deputy City Attorney 

June 28, 2019 

l-:omplaint No. 19062: John !-looper v. Department of Pub\ic Work_s 1 

COMPLAINT 

Complainant John Hooper ("Complainant") alleges that the l)epa1imcnt of Public Works 
("Respondent") violalcd the Sunshine ()rdinance, the California Public Records Act ("CPI{A"), 
or the Brow11 Act by failing to provide documents related to 1nectings regardir1g llreen Benefit 
Districts for the Greater Buena Vista and Dolores Park neighborhoods. 

COMPLAINANT FILES COMPLAINT 

011 May 29, 2019, Con1plainant filed this complaint with the l"asl< f1orce. 

JURISDICTION 

Respondent is a department subject to the provisions of the Sunshine Ordinance, the 
CPRA, and the Brown Act regarding records requests. l.Zespondent does not contest jurisdiction. 

After 1"ask Force staff sought a response to the complaint from Respondent, Complainant 
sent a11 emciil to Task Force staff to "verify tl1at [the Office of Eco11omic Worl<.place 
Development ('OEWD')] is required to respond to the complaint as well as fRcspondent]." 
While ()EWD is a dr:partn1ent subject public records requests, it is unclear whether OEWD was 
notified of the complaint with the 'Task Force or is a proper respondent at this stage. In any 
event, it docs not appear thal OEWD provided a response. 

The underlying records request renewed a prior document request that, in addition lo 
being directed to City departments, was also directed to the San Francisco Parks Alliance and 
co1nmittees associated with the Greater Buena Vista Green Benefit District ("Gl3VGBD") and 
the Mission Dolores Green Benefit District ("MDGBl)"). When lhe Task 1''orce considered 
Complaint No. 18086 on March 6, 2019, which was directed at .MIJGBD, a motion to find 
jurisdiction over that entity failed. l-!owevcr, it does not appear that Complainant's present 
complaint seeks enforcement directly against the San Francisco Parks Alliance, (JBVGVD or 
MDGDD. This question of jurisdiction appears to be irrelevant to the present complaint. 

1 See discussion below regarding the proper respondents to this complai11t. 

··------ ---

Fox Pt.AlA . 1390 MARKl:T STRFFI, 7n-t FLOOR . SAN FkANCISCO, CAUfORNIA 94102-5408 
R[CEPTION: (415) 554-3800 · FACSIMILE: {415) 437-4644 

n.\codenf\as2019\96C0241 \01371717.docx 
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

MEMORANDUM 
PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL 

·ro: Sunshine Ordii1ance 'l'ask_ Force 
DA TE: June 28, 2019 
PAGE: 2 
RE: --~_on1plaint No. 19062: Jo.hn t-Toopcr v. l)cpart1ne11t ofl)ublic Wo!·~k~s _______ _ 

APPLICABLE STATliTORY SECTIONS 

Section 67 of the San :Francisco Adn1inisirativc Code: 

• Section 67.5 provides that atl 1ncctings of any policy body shall be oren and public, 
pursuant to the Brown Act or the Sunshine Ordinance, \Vl1ichcver provides greater public 
access. 

• Section 67.21 governs responses to a public records request in general. 
• Section 67.32 provides, inter alia, that the n1cctings of agencies or institutions attended 

by c:ity officers, agents, or representatives in their official capacities shall be open. It also 
provides that co1n1nunications behvec11 such agencies or institutions and City employees, 
officers, agc11ts, or representatives shall be accessible as public records. 

Sections 6252-53 of the Cal. (;ovt. Code ("Cl) RA") 

• Section 6252 sets forth definitions used in the CPR_t\ . 

., Section 6253(c) governs the timefra1ne in \Vhich general requc'.:.ts for public documents 
must be honored. 

Section 54957.5 of the Cal. G()vt. Code ("Brown Act") 

• Section 54957.5 provides generally that agendas and related 1natcrials co11sidercd at an 
open incc.cting of a legislative body of a local agency are public records. 

Al'PLICABI"E CASE LAW 

• None 

BACKGROUND 

()11 l:ebruary 11, 2019, Co1nplainant requested fron1 Respondent (among others) a variety 
of materials related to GBVGVD and MDGBD. Respondent contends that on l~'ebruary 20, 
2019, it provided Con1plainant v·,rith 43 documents, comprising 240 pages of materials. 
JZcspondcnt contends that it also referred Complainant to responses to two prior public reconJs 
act requests, which contained 30 documents containii1g approxirnately 600 pages. 1\ccording to 
Respondent, Complainant subsequently requested additional docu1nents responsive to his 
February 11 request, and Respondent informed him that it had already provided all of the 
responsive documents in its possession or control. 

Co1nplainant contends that Respondent has an obligation to obtain additional records 
fro111 third parties. As to the San Francisco Park8 Alliance, Respondent contends that it has no 
obligation to obtain and provide docu1nent fro1n that entity because that party "has not received a 
grant fro1n Public Works.'' 2 It is unclear whether Respondent has contractual relations v..1ith any 
otl1er relevant tl1ird party or has a right or obligation to seek docun1cnts from them. 

2 In Con1plainant's May 29, 2019, sub1nissio11 to the '!'as\( Force, he asserts that "the City
through (JEWD- has prr1vidcd extensive funding to San I,'rancisco Parks Alliance (and its 
predecessor organizations Place l,ab and Build Public) to pron1ote the for1nation of(irec11 

n \codcnr.>rn20 ! 9\96G024 l \0 i 3 71 71 7 .docx 
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

TQ, 
DATE' 
PAGE' 
RE 

MEMORANDUM 
PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL 

Sunshine Ordinance 1'ask Force 
June 28, 2019 
3 
Co1nplaint No. 19062: John J-Ioo.l?er v. J)epartme:.'.t of Public Works 

QUESTIONS THAT MIGHT ASSIST IN DETERMINING FACTS 

• Does Co1nplaioant contend that Respondent 1)ossesscs aJditional responsive ducu1nents? 
If so, on what basis? If11ot, what is the legal basis for Complainant's co11tcntion that 
Respondent had an obligation to seek additional documents fron1 third parties? 

• From whiclt third parties does Complainant seek additional <locun1er1ts? ls it 011ly the Sao 
Francisco Parks Alliance, or it is also Lhe co1nn1ittees associated with GBVG13J) and 
MDGBD? 

• ls OEWD a proper respondent? Did it receive notice of the pending complaint? If 
O_EWD is a properly named res11ondenl, should it be afforded additional time lo provide a 
written response and/or present oral argument? 

LEGAL ISSUES/LEGAL DETERMINATIONS 

• Did Respondent violate the Sunshine Ordinance sections 67.21or67.32, CPRA section 
6253(c), or Brown Act section 54957.5 by allegedly failing to satisfy Com1)lainant's 
request for public records in a complete manner? 

CONCLUSION 

THE TASK FORCE FINDS THE FOLLOWING FACTS TO BE TRUE' 

THE TASK !'ORCE FINDS THE ALLEGED VIOLA TlONS TO DE TRUE OR NOT TRUE . 

. ' . 

Benefit Districts i11 several San l~rancisco neighborhoods." (E1nphasis added.) As noted above 
under Jurisdiction, it is unclear whether C)EWD is a proper respondent in this matler and, if so, it 
was provided an opportu11ity to respond to the complaint. Complainar1t goes on to assert that 
"rp]ublic fun<ling has also flowed to the benefit of the Mission Dolores Green Benefit District 
fo1mation co1nmittee in the form of, an1ong other things, paying for neighborhood mailings, 
Mission Dolores GBD website dcvelopme11t, orga11izing and holding public meetings and 
J)romoting petition drives related to the formation of CJDBs." It is unclear >vhether tl1at, if true, 
any of this funding was provided by Respondent or whether, in any event, it triggered an 
obligation for Itespondcnt to seek additional documents from third parties. 

n \codenf\as20 19\960024 I ID l 37171 7 docx 
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

TO: 
DATE: 
PACi-E: 
RE: 

MEMORANDUM 
PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL 

Sunshin.c Ordinance Task Force 
June 28, 2019 
4 
(,'on1plaint_No. 19062: J()hn }looper v. D~rttn~nt_of !'uhlic \\1orl<_, __ _ 

CHAPTF.R 67, SA:-1 FRANCISCO All:YllNISTRATIVE CODE (SUNSHINE 
ORDINANCE) 

Sl!:C. 67.1. FINl)JNGS AND l'UllP()SE. 

The IJoard of Supervisors and the People of the City and County of San Francisco find 
and declare: 

(a) (iovern111ent's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in fi.111 view of the 
public. 

(b) l~\ected officials, commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and 
County exist to conduct the people's business. 'fhe people do not cede to these entities the right 
to decide what the people should know about the operations of local government 

(c) Allhough California has a long tradition of laws designed to protect the public's 
access to the workings of gove1111nent, every generation of gove1ntnenlal leaders includes 
officials \Vho feel more con1fo1table conducting public business away fron1 the scrutiny of those 
who elect and crnploy then1. New approaches to govcrrunent constantly offer public officials 
additional \vays to hide the making of public policy from the j)Ub!ic. As government cvoJ-ves, so 
n1ust the laws designed to ensure that the process re1nains visible. 

(d) ·rhe right of the people to know what their govemn1ent and those acting on behalf 
of their govcrnn1ent arc doing is fundan1ental to democracy, and \Vitl1 very few exceptions, that 
right supersedes any other policy iI1terest government officials may use to prevent public access 
to inforination. Only in rare and unusual circumslanees docs the public benefit fro1n allowing tl1e 
business of government to be conducted in secret, and those circumstances should be carefully 
and narrov..rly defined to prevent public officials fro1n abusing their authority. 

(e) Public officials who atlempt to conduct the public's business in secret should be 
held accountable for their actions. Only a strong Open CJ-o\lcrnment and Sunshine Ordinance, 
enforced by a stro11g Sunshine Ordinance 'fask Force, can protecl the public's interest in open 
government. 

(f) The people of San Francisco enact these amendments to assure that the people of 
tl1e C.~ity remain in control of the governn1ent they have created. 

(g) Private entities and individuals and en1ployees and officials of the City and County 
of San Francisco have rights to privacy that rnust be respected. I-Iowcver, when a person or entity 
is before a policy body or passive meeting body, that person, and the public, has the right to an 
open and public process. 

SEC. 67.5. MEETINGS TO BJ<~ OPEN AND P11BLIC'.; APPLICA'fJON ()l~' BROWN 
ACT. 

All meetings of any policy body shall ·be open and public, and governed by the provisions of 
the Ralph M. Brown Act (Governn1ent Code Sections 54950 et. seq.) and of this Article. In case 
of inconsistent require1nents under the Bro\YD Act and this Article, the requirement v..1hich \vould 
t·esult in greater or 111ore expedited public access shall apply. 

n·\coJenf\a>20 l 9\9600241 \U l 3' 1171' i .docx 
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CITY AND COUNTY Of SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

TO; 
DATE; 
PAGE; 
RE; 

MEMORANDUM 
PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL 

Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
June 28, 2019 
5 
Complai_nt No. 19062: Joh11 Hooper"._· Department of Public Works 

------~-

SEC. 67.21. PROCESS FOR GAINING ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS; 
ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS 

(a) Every person having custody of any public record or public information, as Jef1ned 
herein, (hereinafter referred to as a custodian of a public record) shall, al norrr1al times and 
during nor1nal and reasonahle hours of operation, without unreasonable delay, and without 
requiring a11 appointment, permit the public record, or any segregable portion of a record, to be 
inspected and examined by any person and shall furnish one copy thereof upon payment of a 
reaso11ahle copying charge, not to exceed the lesser of the actual cost or ten cents per page. 

(b) A custodian of a public record shall, as soon as possible and within ten days 
following receipt of a request for inspection or copy of a public record, co1nply with such 
request. S11ch request may be delivered to the office oftl1e custodian by the requester orally or in 
writing by fax, postal delivery, or e-mail. If the custodian believes the record or info1mation 
requested is not a public record or is exempt, the custodian shall justify withholding any record 
by demonstrating, in writing as soon as possible and within ten days following receipt of a 
req11est, that the record in question is exempt under express provisions of this ordinance. 

(c) A custodian of a public record shall assist a requester in identifying the existence, 
fo1m, and nature of any records or information 1naintained by, available to, or in the custody of 
the custodian, whether or 11ot the contents of those records arc exempt from disclosure and shall, 
when requested to do so, provide in writing within scve11 days following receipt of a request, a 
statement as to the existc11ce, quantity, form and nature of records relating to a particular subject 
or questions with enough specificity to enable a requester to identify reeords in order to inakc a 
request under (b). A custodian of any public record, when not in possession of the record 
requested, shall assist a requester in directing a request to the proper office or staff person. 

(d) If the custodian refuses, fails to comply, or incompletely complies with a request 
described in (b), the person making tl1e request may petition the supervisor of records for a 
determination whether the record requested is public. 'I'he supervisor of records shall inform the 
petitioner, as soon as possible and within 10 days, of its determination whether the record 
requested, or any part of the record requested, is public. Where requested by the petition, and 
where otherwise desirable, this determination shall be in writing. Upon the deterrnination by the 
supervisor of records that t11e record is public, the supervisor of records shall immediately order 
tl1e custodian of the public record to comply with the person's request. Jfthc custodian refuses or 
fails to cornply with any such order within 5 days, the supervisor of records shall notify the 
district attorney or the attorney general who shall take whatever 1neasures she or he deems 
necessary and appropriate to insure compliance with the provisions of this ordinance. 

(e) If the custodian refuses, fails to co1nply, or incompletely complies with a request 
described in (b) above or if a petition is denied or not acted 011 by the supervisor of p11blic 
records, the person making the request may petition the Sunshine 1'ask ·Force for a determination 
whether the record requested is public. 'fhe Sunshine 'l'ask Force shall infonn lhc petitioner, as 
soon as possible and vvithin 2 days after its next meeti11g but in no case later than 45 days from 
when a petition in writing is received, of its determination whether the record requested, or any 
pait of the record requested, is public. Where requested by the petition, and wh.ere otl1erwise 
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desirable, this detc11r1ination shall be in writing. lJ1)011 the detennination that the record is public, 
the Sunshine 'fask Force shall i1nmediatcly order the custodian of the public record to con1ply 
with the person's request. lfthe custodian refuses or fails to comply with any such order \Vithin 5 
days, the Sunshine l'ask l~orce sltall notify the district attorney or the attorney general who n1ay 
take whatever measures she or he dccn1s necessary to insure compliance with the provisions of 
this ordinance. 'fhe Board of Supervisors and the City Attorney's office shall provide suftlcient 
staff and resources to allow the Sunshine 'rask Force to fulfill its duties unde1· this provision. 
Where requested by the petition, the Sunshine ·rask Force n1ay conduct a public hearing 
concerning the records request denial. An authorized representative of the custodian of the public 
rc:cords requested shall attend any hearing and explain the basis for its dccisio11 lo withhold ll1c 
records requested. 

(I) fhe adtninistrative rc111edy provided under this article shall in no way lin1it the 
availability of other ad111inistrative remedies provided to any person with respect to any officer or 
e1nployee of any agency, executive office, dcp[lrtrnent or board; nor .shall the adtninistrative 
rc1nedy provided by this section in any ;.vay limit the availability of judicial re1nedies otherwise 
available to any person requesting a public record. If a custodian of a public record refuses or 
fails to cotnply with the request of any person for inspection or copy of a public record or with 
an adn1inistrativc order under this sectio11, the superior court shall have jurisdiction to order 
co111pliance. 

(g) In any court proceeding pursuant to this article there shall be a presumption that 
the record sougl1t is public, and the burden shall be upon the custodian to prove ;.vith specificity 
the exemption which applies. 

(h) On at least an annual basis, and as otherwise requested by the Sunshine Ordinance 
Task I-'orce, the supervisor of public records shall prepare a tally and report of every petition 
brought before it for access to records since the time of its last tally and rcpo1i. 1'he report shall 
at least identify for each petition the record or records sought, the custodian of those records, the 
ruling of the supervisor of public records, ;.vhether any ruling was overlu1ned by a court and 
whether orders given to custodians of public records were follo;.ved. 'I"hc report shall also 
summarize any court actions during that period regarding petitions the S11pervisor has decided. 
At the request of the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, the report shall also include copies of all 
rulings nlade by the superviso1· of pub lie records and all opinions issued. 

(i) 'l'he San ],'rancisco City Attorney's ofiice shall act to protect and secure the rights 
of the people of San Francisco to access public information and public meetings and shall not act 
as legal counsel for any city employee or any person havi11g custody of any public record for 
purposes of denying access to the public. llle C:ity Atto1ney n1ay publish legal opinio11s in 
response to a request from any person as to whether a record or information is public. All 
co1n1nu11ications ;.vith the City Attorney's Office with regard to this ordinance, including 
petitions, requests for opinion, and opinions shall be public records. 

(j) Not1A1ithstandi11g the provisions of this section, the City Attorney may defend the 
City or a City F,n1ploycc in litigation under this ordinance tl1at is actually filed in coun to any 
extent required by the City Charter or C~alifornia T ,aw. 
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(le) Release of documentary public information, whether for inspection of the origi11al 
or by providing a copy, shall be governed by the California Public Records Act (Govcrn1nent 
Code Scctio116250 et seq.) in particulars 11ot addressed by this ordinance and in accordancc wlth 
the enhanced disclosure requirements provided in this ordinance. 

(1) Inspection a11d copying of documentary public information stored in electronic 
form shall be made available to the person requesting the information i11 any form requested 
which is available to or easily generated by the department, its officers or employees, including 
disk, tape, printout or monitor at a charge no greater than the cost of the media on which it is 
dl1plica1ed. Inspection of documentary public information on a co1nputer monitor need not be 
allowed where the information sought is necessarily and unscparably intertwined with 
information i1ot subject to disclosl1re under this ordi.Oance. Notl1ing in this section shall require a 
department to program or rcprogran1 a computer to respond to a request for information or to 
release infonnation where the release of that information would violate a licensing agreement or 
copyrigl1t law. 

SEC. 67.32. PROVISION OF SERVICES TO OTHER AGENCTES; SUNSHINE 
REQUIRED. 

It is the policy of the City and County of San Francisco to ensure opportunities for 
i11for1ned civic pa1ticipation embodied in this Ordinance to all local, state, regional and federal 
agencies and institutions with which it maintains continuing legal and political relationships. 
Officers, age11ts and other representatives of the City shall continually, consistently and 
assertively v.1ork to seek co1nmitments to enact open meetings, public information and citizen 
comment policies by these agencies and institutions, including but not limited to the Presidio 
Trust, the San Francisco Unified School District, the San Francisco Com1nunitY College District, 
the San Francisco 1·ransportation Authority, the San Francisco l-lousi11g Alttl1ority, the 1'rcasure 
Island Development Authority, the San Francisco Redevelopment Authority and the University 
of California. 'fo the extent not expressly prohibited by law, copies of all written 
communications with the above identified entities and any City c1nployee, officer, agents, or and 
representative, shall be accessible as public records. To t11e extent not expressly prohibited by 
law, any meeting of the gove1ning body of any such agency and institution at which City 
officers, agc11ts or representatives are present in their official capacities shall be open to the 
public, a11d this provision cannot be waived by any City officer, agent or representative. The City 
shall give no subsidy in money, tax abatcn1ent..';, land, or services to any private entity unless that 
private entity agrees in writing to provide the City with financial projections (including profit 
and loss figures), and annual audited financial statements for the project thereafter, for the 
project llpon which the subsidy is based and all such projections and financial statements shall be 
public records that 1nust be disclosed. 

GOVERNMENT CODE S:li~CTION 6250, et .\'eq. (CPRA) 

SEC. 6252 

As used in this chapter: 

(a) "Local agency" incl11des a county; city, whether general law or chartered; city and 
county; school district; municipal corporation; district; political subdivisio11; or any board, 
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commission or agency thereof; otl1er local public agency; or entities that are legislative bodies of 
a local agency pursuant to subdivisions (c) and (d) of Section 54952. 

(h) "Mcn1ber of the public" means any person, except a rnc111ber, agc11t, officer, or 
c1nployee of a federal, Stfl.tc, or local agency acti11g \Vithin the sco1)e of his or her membership, 
agency, office, or employment. 

(c) "Person" includes any natural person, corporation, partnership, li1nitL:d liability 
con1pany, firn1, or association. 

(d) "Public agency" 1neans any state or local agency. 

(e) "Public records" includes any \vriting containing inl'Orn1ation relating to the co11duct 
of the public's business prepared, owned, useci, or retained by any state or local agency 
regardl css of physical f orn1 or characteristics. "Public rccor<ls" in the custody oi"~ or 1naintained 
by, the Governor's office menns any \Vriting prepared on or after January 6, 1975. 

(f) (I) "State agency" means every state office, officer, depa1tn1ent, division, burr:au, 
board, and co1nrnission or other slate body· or agency, except those agencies provided for in 
Article lV (except Section 20 thereof) or Article VI of the California Constitution. 

(2) Not\vithstanding paragra1)h (1) or any other law, "state agency" shall also 1ncan the 
State Bar of California, as described in Section 6001 of the Business and Professions Code. 

(g) "\1./riting" n1cans any hm1dwriting, typewriting, printing, photostating, photographi11g, 
photocopying, transmitting by electronic 1nail or facsimile, and every other means of recording 
upon any tangible thing any form of communication or representation, including letters, words, 
pictures, sounds, or symbols, or combinations thereof, and any record Lhcrcby created, regardless 
of the manner in which the recorcl has been stored. 

SEC. 6253 

(a) Public records are 011en to inspection at all ti1nes during the office hours of the state or 
local agency and every person has a right to inspect any public record, except as hereafter 
provided. Any reasonably segregable portion of a record shall be available for inspection by any 
person requesting the record after deletion of the portions that are exempted by law. 

(b) Except with respect to public records exempt from disclosure by express provisions of 
lav;, each state or local agency, upon a request for a copy of records tl1at reasonably describes an 
identifiable record or records, shall make the recor<ls promptly available to any person upon 
pay1nent of fees covering direct costs of duplication, or a statutory fee if applicable. l.Jpon 
request, an exact copy shall be provided unless iinpracticable lo do so. 

(c) Each agency, upon a request for a copy of records, shall, within 10 days from receipt 
of the request, determine whether the request, in \.vholt or in part, seeks copies of disclosable 
public records in the possession of lhc agency anci shall protnptly notify the person making the 
request of the dctcr1ninalion and the reasons therefor. In unusual circumstances, the tin1e limit 
prescribed in this section 1nay be extended by written notice by the head of the agency or his or 
her dcsignee to the person 1naking the request, setting forth the reasons for the extension and the 
date on which a determination is expected to be dispatched. No notice shall specily a date that 
would result in an cxtc11sion for more than 14 days. When lhc agency dispatches the 
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determination, and if the agency dete1mines that the request seel(s disclosable public records, the 
agency shall state the estimated date and time when the records will be made available. As used 
in this section, "unusual circun1stances" rneans the following, but only to t11e extent reasonably 
necessary to the proper processing of the particular request: 

(1) The need to search for and collect the requested records from field facilities or other 
establishments that are separate fro1n the office processing the request. 

(2) 'l'hc need to search for, collect, and appropriately exa1ninc a voluminous amount of 
separate and distinct records that are den1anded in a single request 

(3) 'fhe need for consultation, which shall be conducted with all practicable speed, witl1 
anothCr agency having substantial interest in the dctcnnination of the request or among two or 
more compo11ents of the agency l1aving substantial subject matter interest therein. 

(4) The need to compile data, to write programming language or a con1pt1ter progra1n, or 
to construct a computer report to extract data. 

(d) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to permit an agency to delay or obstruct the 
inspection or copying of public records. 'fl1e 11otification of denial of any request for records 
required by Section 6255 shall set fortl1 the naines and titles or positions of each person 
responsible for the denial. 

(e) Except as otherwise prohibited by law, a state or local agency may adopt require1ncnts 
for itself that allow for faster, more efficient, or greater access to records than prescribed by the 
minirnum standards set forth in this chapter. 

(f) In addition to maintaining public records for public inspection during the office hours 
of the public agency, a public agency may con1ply with subdivision (a) by posting any public 
record on its Internet Web site and, in response to a request for a public record posted on t11c 
Internet Web site, directing a member of the public to the location on the Internet Web site where 
the public record is posted. However, if after tl1e public agency directs a member of the public to 
the Internet Web site, the member of the public requesting the public record requests a copy of 
the public record due to an inability to access or reproduce the public record from the Jntemet 
Web site, the public agency shall promptly provide a copy of the public record pursuant to 
subdivision (b). 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTJ()N 54950, et seq. (Brown Act) 

SEC. 54952 

As used in this chapter, "legislative body" means: 

(a) The governing body of a local agency or any other local body created by state or 
federal statute. 

(h) A comn1ission, committee, board, or other body of a local agency, whctl1er permanent 
or temporary, decision1naking or advisory, created by charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal 
action of a legislative body. I-Iowever, advisory comn1ittecs, composed solely of the n1embcrs of 
the legislative body that are less than a quorun1 of the legislative body are not legislative bodies, 
except that standing committees ofa legislative body, irrespective ofthcir composition, which 
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have a conti11uing subject 1natter jurisdit.tion, or a 1neeting schedule fixed by chatier, ordinance, 
resolution, or formal action of a legislative body are legislative bodies for purposes of this 
ehapter. 

(c) (1) A board, co1nn1ission, comn1ittec, or other 1nultimc1nber body that governs a 
private corporation, limited liability co1npany, or other entity that either: 

(i\) ls created by the elected legislative body in order to exercise authority that may 
lawfully be delegated by the elected governing body to a private corporation, limited liability 
co1npany, or other entity. 

(B) Receives funds from a local agency and the ine1nbership of\vhose governing body 
includes a 111en1ber of lhc legislative body of the local agency appointed to that governing body 
as a full voting 1ncmber by the legislative body of the local agency. 

(2) Notwithstanding subparagrapl1 (B) of paragraph (I), no board, com1nission, 
co111mittce, or other 1nultin1ember body that governs a private corporation, limited liability 
co1npany, or other entity that receives funds fron1 a local agency and, as of February 9, 1996, has 
a me1nber of the legislative body of the local agency as a full voting 1ne1nber of the governing 
body of that private corporation, limited liability co1n1)any, or other entity shall be relieved fron1 
the public meeting requiremc11ts of this chapter by vi11ue of a change in status of the full votii1g 
me1nbcr to a nonvoting inernber. 

(d) 1'he lessee of any hospital the whole or part of which is first leased pursuant to 
subdivision (p) of Section 32121 of the Health and Safety Code afler January J, 1994, where the 
lessee exercises any n1aterial authority of a legislative body of a local agency delegated to it by 
that legislative body vvhctl1er the lessee is organized and operated by the local agency or by a 
delegated authority. 

SEC. 54957.5 

(a) Notwithstanding Section 6255 or any other law, agendas of public 1ncetings and any 
other \Vritings, \'r'hen distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the membero. of a legislative body 
of a local agency by any person in connection with a matter subject to discussion or 
consideration at an open meeting of the body, are disclosable public records under the California 
Public Records Act (Cl1apter 3.5 (comn1encing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of 1"itle 1), and 
shall be n1ade available upon request witl1out delay. However, this section shall not include any 
writing exe1npt from public disclosure under Section 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 
6254.16. 6254.22, or 6254.26. 

(b) (1) If a writing lhat is a J)Ublic record under subdivision (a), and that relates to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the legislative body of a local agency, is 
distributed less than 72 hours prior to that meeting, the \Vriting shall be n1ade available for public 
inspection pursuant to paragraph (2) at lhc time the writing is distributed to all, or a majority of 
all, of the 1nembers of the body. 

(2) A local agency shall 1nake any writing described in paragraph (1) available for public 
inspection at a public office or location that the agency shall designate for this purpose. l~ach 
local agency shall list the address of this office or location on the agendas for all n1eetings of the 
legislative body o[that agency. The local agency also n1ay post the writing on the local agency's 
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Internet Web site in a position an<l manner that makes it clear that the writing relates to an 
agenda item for an upcoming 1neeting. 

(3) This subdivision shall beco1ne operative on July 1, 2008. 

(c) Writings that are puhlic records under subdivision (a) an<l that are distributed during a 
public meeting shall be made available for public inspection at ti1e meeting if prepared by tl1e 
local agency or a member of its legislative body, or after the meeting if prepared by some other 
person. 1·hese v,1ritings shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by 
a person witl1 a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation 
thereof. 

(d) This chapter shall not be construed to prevent the legislative body of a local agency 
from cl1arging a fee or deposit for a copy of a public record pursuant to Section 6253, except that 
a surcharge shall not be imposed on persons with disabilities in violation of Section 202 of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and 
regulations adopted i11 implc1ncntation thereof. 

(e) l'his section shall not be construed to limit or delay the public's right to inspect or 
obtain a copy of any record required to be disclosed under the requirements of the California 
Public Records Act (Clrapler 3.5 (com1nencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title !).This 
chapter shall not be construed to require a legislative body of a local agency to place any paid 
advertisement or any other paid notice in any publication. 
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File No. 19062 

John l-loo11er v. Public \"\Torks 

Date filed vv'ith S01'F: 6/1/19 

Sunshine Ordinance 1'ask Force 
Co111plai11t Summary 

Contacts info11natio11 (Co1nplairlant inforn1atio11 listed first): 
John I-looper (hooparb({Daol.con1); 201 Bue11a \'ista Ave., East, SI<', (~A 941l7-4103 
(Complainant) Mohammed Nuru (1noha1111ned.nuru(fV,sfdp\v.org) David Steinberg 
CQ.ayi~j_.steinberg@sfdpv,1.org); .Tonaihan Goldberg (jonatha11.goldberg@sfdpw.orcr) l)ublic \Vorks 
(Respo11dc11t) 

File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper against Public Works for allegedly violating 
Ad1ninistrative Co<le (Sunshi11c Ordi11ance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public 
records request in a timely ai1d/or complete maru1L'.r. 

Ad1ninistrative Suinmary if applicable: 

c:omplaiut Attached. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: John C.Hooper<hooparb@aol.com> 
Monday, November 23, 2020 10:52 AM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Sent: 
To: 
Subject: Revised 12/2/20 SOTF statement re #19062 with SOTF file page numbers 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Revised Statement for the SOTF on December 2, 2020 re Complaint #19062 (PUBLIC WORKS) 
to include SOTF file page numbers for ease of reference 

Thank you. My name is John Hooper. 

I have explained on previous occasions the reasons for which I have included Public Works in my 
attempts to understand the City's role in promoting and funding Green Benefit Districts. See my April 
3, 2019 letter to the City Attorney (SOTF pages 1079-1084) and my statement to the SOTF 
Complaints Committee dated August 20, 2019 at which the Committee found that the records I seek 
are public and there is jurisdiction. The SOTF has, at times, considered combining my two complaints 
and many references cited in complaint 19061 apply to 19062 as well, though not cited again. 

Mr Steinberg has unflappably told the Task Force on several occasions that Public Works (PW) has 
provided all the relevant documents it has in its posession and that Public Works has no further 
responsibility for obtaining documents that may reside at San Francisco Parks Alliance because the 
City contract is between OEWD and Parks Alliance. See PW letter to SOTF dated 1/8/20: "Parks 
Alliance has not recieved a grant from PW." (see page 491 and 495)) 

Although it is true that OEWD contracted with Parks Alliance to promote GBDs, should Public Works 
be absolved of any responsibility to help provide complete information requested by a member of the 
public simply because a contractual arrangement was handled to another City Department. 

Consider the following as evidence of PW's intimate involvement with this GBD program: 

1. Public Works pays (or did pay during the relevant period) a full time employee with the job title 
"Green Benefit District Program Manager''. His name is Jonathan Goldberg. 

2. Former PW General Manager Mohammed Nuru personally promoted GBDs. (As, incidentally, 
did former Supervisor and now Mayor London Breed (see footnote 3 in my 4/3/19 letter to the 
City Attorney (Page 856) 

3. At least some of the funding to promote GBDs originated with Public Works. (page 800) All the 
funding for the failed Inner Sunset GBD campaign was provided by PW and much of the 
funding for the Mission Dolores effort was a "pass-through" from PW to OEWD. This is a 
critical piece of missing information. 

4. Public Works was formally represented on the 3 member "City's Team" overseeing and 
approving core tasks and deliverables carried out by Parks Alliance (see Appendix B to 7/1/18 
OEWD-Parks Alliance contract (page 359) 

5. In the failed Inner Sunset GBD promotion effort, PW was the lead agency involved. Mr 
Steinberg explained at your January 21, 2020 meeting that OEWD "took over" the GBD 
program in the Mission Dolores effort. (audio tape) 
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6. All deliverables under GBD-related contracts with OEWD must be submitted to the GBD 
Program Manager, housed at Public Works, for approval. (page 361) 

7. According to correspondence between PW's GBD Program Manager and members of the 
defunct Greater Buena Vista GBD formation committee, OEWD does not fund GBDs. (pages 
853-863 and 1079-1089). So where did the money come from? Clearly from Public Works 
(page 800 and 831) 

In short, Public Works is not "off the hook" in its responsibility to provide requested information and the 
SOTF is fully justified in finding a violation and ordering PW to produce relevant information. At the 
very least, the public has a right to understand the manner and degree by which public funding flowed 
from, or through, Public Works to pay for any aspect of GBD promotion and development, including 
how much the Green Benefit District Manager was paid - and for how long - for carrying out the 
duties described by his job title. A clear violation has occured and I hope you will confirm this fact and 
order production of the requested documents, wherever they may reside 

Thank you. · 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Friday, November 20, 2020 8:02 AM 
SOTF, (BOS) 
Please add to complaint files 19061 and 19062 for 12/2/20 SOTF meeting 
Funding page oewd_parksal_grant_01july18.pdf 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Please add this funding chart to both the above agenda items in preparation for the 12/2/20 meeting. It appears that 
both OEWD and PW provided funding for the MDGBD campaign. 

John Hooper 
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Please allocate the following way: 

Grantee: San Francisco Parks Alliance Blanket: Contract ID# 1000012901 

Purpose/ 
Modules: Buena Vista and Dolores Park GBDs 

Amount to be encumbered: $156,984.00 Workforce o~one) 

Grant Byron M Lam 
Coordinator: 

General Fund Other (Specify) 

llN 18th St. Merchant Capacity Building (ACT DPW 

0093) Dept: 2207767 

Dept: 207767 Fund:10020 

Fund: 10010 Authority: 17355 

Authority: 16652 Project: 10022531 

Project: 10022531 Activity: 0072 

Activity: 0093 Budget: FY 19 

$25,000 $33,000.00 
$33,000 from DPW work order in FY 17-18 

Public Works work order in FY 18-19 
Dept: 207767 
Fund:10010 
Authority: 16652 
Project: 10022531 
Activity: 0136 
$98,984.00 Public Works Order FY18-19 
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April 3, 2019 

The Honorable Dennis Herrera, 
City Attorney for San Francisco 
Office of the City Attorney 
City Hall Room 234 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

by email and Certified Mail 

Re: Does City involvement in formation of Green Benefit Districts (GBDs) violate 
prohibitions against public employees engaging in political activities? 

Dear Mr Herrera: 

The City of San Francisco has invested hundreds of thousands of dollars in public 
funds, grant moneys and staff time to promote the formation of Green Benefit Districts 
(GBDs), a form of local residential property assessment. {footnote 1} Only one GBD·has 
been formed as a result of this effort (Dogpatch/Portrero); two other GBDs have failed 
in the face of strong neighborhood opposition (Inner Sunset and Haight). Another GBD 
effort in the Dolores Park area, also funded by the City and promoted by City 
employees and grantee San Francisco Parks Alliance.is proving to be contentious and 
divisive there. (footnote 2) 

The City actively promotes the GBO program in several ways. It funds a full-time Green 
Benefit program manager at Public Works {Jonathan Goldberg) and grant coordinators 
at the Mayor's Office of Economic and Workforce Development {OEWD) (Chris Gorgas 
and others) to advance the formation of GBDs. City employees steer neighbors toward 
the GBD concept {footnote 3) write grant proposals (footnote 4); help establish ad hoc 
GBD formation committees (footnote 5); and routinely schedule and attend GBD 
formation committee meetings (footnote 6). 

In addition, City employees provide funding to consultants (Build Public, AKA place 
LB.b AKA SF Parks Alliance) who further promote GBDs through mass mailings, 
dedicated websites, biased surveys and tightly-choreographed public meetings which 
fail to provide a balanced presentation of facts to help voters intelligently decide how 
to vote on this issue. 

After providing grant funding to launch GBO efforts, the City exerts virtually no 
oversight over the conduct of the GBD process once under way, allowing questionable 
practices to go unsupervised. Most conspicuously, GBD promoters themselves write 
and interpret the results of highly biased surveys which serve as their principle 
evidence of neighborhood interest in a GBD. This lack of supervision al\ows GBD 
efforts to advance with alarmingly low survey participation rates among property 
owners in affected neighborhoods (footnote 7). 
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In the Dolores Park area, where GBD proponents only achieved a 9.7% participation 
rate among local property owners in a fall 2018 survey, the local GBD formation 
committee has declared itself "encouraged" to move ahead quickly to fund a 
management plan and engineer's report in the absence of public involvement. 

Both the management plan and engineer's report must be reviewed by the City 
Attorney's office for adequacy before the process can move to the petition phase, Yet 
neighbors have not been provided any opportunity to participate in the creation of 
these documents: 

Ultimately, at a point when local property owners vote in a ballot measure to decide 
whether to impose a special assessment on themselves, government agencies owning 
properties in a proposed GBD area (RPO, DPW, SFUSD, SFPD, SFFD etc) vote in the 
ballot process, often strongly influencing the outcome of the ballot by virtue of their 
large holdings. Not surprisingly, City agencies routinely vote in favor of forming a GBD. 

Thus, from beginning to end, City funding, City employees and grantees and City 
voting power exert a decisive "thumb on the scale" of the entire GBD process in what 
amounts to overt advocacy for, distortion of information given to the public (footnote 8) 
and endorsement of the GBD program. 

With the above description of how the the City is conducting GBD campaigns in mind, 
legitimate questions occur about the propriety of the City's role in these GBD 
campaigns. 

SF Administrative code and state law prohibit use of City funds for "political activity". 

Political activity !s defined as "participating in, supporting, or attempting to influence a 
political campaign for any candidate or ballot measure." 

Your office issues a standard memo to City employees called "Political Activity by City 
Officers and Employees". It states in part: "No one - including City officers and 
employees - may use City resources to advocate for or against candidates or ballot 
measures." 

The City's financial backing and staff support of activities intended to lead to the 
establishment of Green Benefit Districts, as well as the prominent role of City grantees 
(Place Lab aka SF Parks Alliance) appear to represent prohibited actions because the 
City is funding and using staff, grantees and funding to participate in, support, or 
attempt to influence a "ballot measure" in the establishment of GBDs. 

Thus, The City may have been improperly funding political efforts behind formation of 
the Dogpatch, Inner Sunset, Buena Vista Park neighborhood, and Dolores Park GBDs. 
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We request that the City Attorney take immediate action to determine the propriety and 
legality of the City's pivotal role in promoting GBDs and consider as remedies: 

(1) the termination of the City-funded Dolores Park formation effort 
(2) an accounting of all City funds expended or committed 
in all its GBD formation efforts, directly or through Place Lab, SF Parks Alliance or 

other intermediaries; 
(3) a return to the City Treasury of all public funds spent or allocated; 
(4) a prohibition on the use of City Funds for any future effort to fund GBDs. 

Thank you for your consideration of this important issue. ! look forward to hearing from 
you. 

Sincerely, 

John C. Hooper 
201 Buena Vista Ave. East 
San Francisco, CA 94117 
415-626-8880 
Hooparb@aol.com 

cc: Mayor London Breed 
Board of Supervisors 
Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
General Manager, RPO 
General Manager, DPW 
Office Of Economic and Workforce Development 



Footnotes: 

The following "tip of the iceberg" information was only made available through -numerous 
Public Records Act requests. We can provide additional information unearthed through PRA 
requests as requested: 

1) Public Funding To Set up GBDs 
-$330,000 to fund establishment of Portrero GBD 
-$150,000 to fund formation of failed Inner sunset GBD 
-$221,000 projected for establishment of failed GBV GBD (Haight) of which an estimated 

$33,000 was spent 
-$157 ,000 allocated by the City to fund the Dolores GBD through grants to SF Parks 

Alliance and others 
- Full-time salary of DPW employee from 2015 to the present:::: $325,000 
- Part-time salary of OEWD employees, RPO employees: estimated $100,000 

2) See February 18, 2019 letter from Mission Dolores Neighborhood Association opposing 
Dolores GBD at NoGBDtax.orn fhttps://sites.gooqle.com/view/nogbdtax/home) 

3) Examples of City Officials promoting GBDs: DPW's Mohammed Nuru and former 
Supervisor London Breed: 

From: Breed, London (BOS) 
To: Andrea Jadwin 
Cc: Nuru, Mohammed (DPW); Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW); Al Minvie!le; Brooke Ray Rivera; Ike 
Kwon - -

Subject: Re: Thank You for Your Good Idea 
Date: Wedne.<>day, September 13, 2017 5:59:24 PM 
Thanks Mohammed! You're the best! 
Sent from my iPhone 

On Sep 13, 2017, at 2:50 PM, Andrea Jadwin <wrote: 
Hi Mohammed, 
BaCk in 2015, we had a meeting at Mclaren Lodge to talk about fmprovements to 
the Inner Sunset neighborhood and GGPark connections. You kindly suggested 
we look into a Green Benefit District, to which we say 'what's that?' 
Thanks to help from Public Works, Supervisor Breed and the folks at Build 
Public, it looks like we have a good shot at forming the Inner Sunset Green 
Benefit District. Our neighborhood support is broad and enthusiastic, we've got 
lots of positive energy about a raft of projects and we're committed to making it 
happen. 
THANK YOU for suggesting the GBD in the first place and for your continued 
support for the Inner Sunset neighborhood! 
Best, 
Andrea Jadwin 
Inner Sunset Park Neighbors 

RPD's Sarah Madlandl urges steering Dolores neighbors toward GBD 
From: Madland, Sarah (REC) Sent: Thursday, March 29, 201 B 11 :05 AM 
To: Corgas, Christopher-(ECN} Cc: Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) 
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Subject: RE: Dolores park GBD 

Thanks. I feel like we should steer them to GBD so the park can be included. 

Sarah 

Sarah Mad!and Director of Policy and Public Affairs 
San Francisco Recreation and Park Department I 
City & County of San Francisco McLaren Lodge in Golden Gate Park I 
501 Stanyan Street j San Francisco, CA I 94117 

4. Goldberg and GBV GBD Chair rewrite grant proposal to meet OEWD guidelines: 

From: Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) 
To: "Isabel Wade"; Brooke Ray Rivera 
Subject: RE; proposal 
Date: Thursday, February 22, 201 B 11 :26:00 AM 
Attachments: BVGBD Proposal draft OEWD proposal - PW Edits.docx 

Hi Isabel & Brooke Ray --
Here are my revisions to Isabel's OEWD grant proposal (see attached). One item to note: per 
instruction from my 
colleague at OEWD, I have omitted "green" from "green benefit district" and associated 
acronyms in the grant 
proposal. For the purpose of this submittal, the titled of the group is "Greater Buena Vista 
Benefit District Formation 
Committee." (side note for Isabel: "Formation Committee" is the colloquialism used for GBDs, 
whereas "Steering 
Committee" is used for CBDs/BIDs). 

l also wanted to follow-up to confirm the Formation Committee's role vis a vis Place Lab. It ls 
my understanding 
that Isabel will be the primary manager of the Greater Buena Vista GBD formation effort, with 
support and 
professional guidance from Place Lab. 
Regarding the specific components of the OEWD grant proposal, here is what's outstanding 
vs. already completed. 
PART I: LEAD APPLICANT PROFILE 
Lead Applicant (i.e., fiscal agent, per instruction on RFP) -- to be filled-out by Place Lab 
Program Lead -- to be tilled out by Isabel 
PART II: OEWD GRANT NARRATIVE 
Applicant Qualifications and Staff Assignments -- 90% complete, just need a few sentences 
about Place Lab. 
Approach, Activities and Outcoines -- complete 
Performance Measurement and Reporting -- complete 
Financial Management & Budget -- copy from Inner Sunse1 grant proposal? Isabel & PW to 
modify after proposal 
budget template has been drafted {Appendix B, below). 
APPLICATION PACKAGE CHECKLIST: OEWD SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 
Appendix B: Proposal Budget Template -- Place Lab to draft, submit to Isabel for review/ 
comment/edit 
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Appendix C: Proposal Application for RFP 208 {these are the "grant narrative" materials listed 
above) 
Appendix D: Staffing & Composition Chart -- Re-use modified version from Inner Sunset grant 
proposal to 
incorporate Greater Buena Vista Benefit District Formation Committee a lead organization, 
supported by Place Lab. 
Appendix E: Submission Authorization from E.D. -- PIEice Lab to draft letter OK'ing grant 
proposal · 
Org Budget -- Place Lab to re-use from Inner Sunset grant proposal 
Org Chart -- Place Lab to re-use from Inner Sunset grant proposal, sans Street Plans Collab. 
Letters of Support -- Isabel working on 
Please feel tree to let me know if there are any outstanding questions. 
Cheers, 
Jonathan 
Jonathan Goldberg 
Green Benefit D'strict 
Program Manager 
Operations I San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 
2323 Cesar Chavez Street I San Francisco, CA 94124 I {o) 415.695.2015 I (c) 415.304.0749 
sfpublicworks.org · twitter.com/sfpublicworks 
-----Original Message-----

From: Isabel Wade [mai!to: 
Sent: Wednesday, February 21, 2018 2:11 PM 
To: Brooke Ray Rivera <brookeray@buildpublic.org> 
Cc: Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) <jonathan.goldberg@sfdpw.org> 
Subject: proposal 
Here is a copy of the proposal as far as 1 took it. Also the SC list (have to check on owner 
status, but that's my 
recollection for now) I changed some of the language from what I sent to Jonathan based 
on not wanting to identify 
the project as a Green Benefit District since OEWD doesn't seem to fund those! 
As indicated to you, but restated here for Jonathan, my reservation about you submitting the 
proPosal instead of 
URS (Urban Resource Systems) relates to expenditures needed to ensure the database is 
robust. I don't want URS to be out on the tail end of 
insufficient funds for the project; we have already advanced Ken Cook funds to date that I 
believe Jonathan 
indicated could be reimbursed if and when the district is established. 
Also, Phil wants to hire CMG for the/a vlsion process related to BV; he was going to ask my 
neighbor to pay for it. 
l sent him the Capital Plan from our process, which he had not seen, and it certainly has 
enough vision for capital 
improvements. 1 don't know where that is going to go but just to give you a heads up. 
I will ask Bill Barnes to get us a letter from Sheehy. 
Jonathan, you need to give me a cal\. Isabel 
Steering Committee: 
Isabel Wade, Convenyor, property owner 
Jan Chernoff, property owner 
Bonnie Fisher, Co-convenyor, property owner Boris Dramov, property owner Sue Rugtiv, 
property owner Tiffany 
Friedman, renter Janice Nicol, renter Pat Dusenbury, renter Craig Latker, Property Owner Dan 
Slaughter, Property 
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owner Jill Allen, Property Owner Michelle Leighton, Property Owner 

Isabel Wade 

5) Chris Gorgas contacts Jim Chappell, former SPUR director, askin-g him to participate 
in Dolores GBD formation committee; Jim Chappell accepts 

From: 
Sent: To: 
Cc: Subject: 
Great! Welcome to our group, Jiml Thank you, Chris. 
Hans Kolbe Ce\antra Systems 
From: Gorgas, Christopher (ECN) [mailto:christopher.corgas@sfgov.org] 
Sent: Friday, June 01, 2018 10:45 AM 
To: Brooke Ray Rivera <brookeray@place\absf.org>; Sam@biritemarket.com; Hans Kolbe 
<hanskolbe@ce!antrasystems.com>; Carolyn Thomas <carolynjO@yahoo.com>; Tora! Patel 
<toral@placelabsf.org>; Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) <ionathan.goldberg@sfdpw.org>; 
bruce.r.bowen@gmail.com; Robert Brust <rkbrust@gmai!.com>; Jim Chappell 
<jimchappe!lsf@gmail.com> 
Subject: New SC member - Dolores Park GBD 
HiA\1, 
I am sure I am missing a bunch of my emails in my haste to get this out. I ran into Jim Chappell 
last evening, who lives in the vicinity we are looking at for the Dolores Park GBD and is 
interested in becoming involved. 
For those of you who do not know, he specializes in providing strategic assistance to the 
development community and public agencies on private-public initiatives. From 1994 to 2009, 
he led the San Francisco Planning and Urban Research Association (SPUR), bringing a 
balanced and informed perspective to San Francisco Bay Area urban issues through research, 
education, and advocacy. Prior to that he began his career as a planning and development 
consultant, working for some of the country's top planning firms, on a wide variety of projects 
tor developers, public agencies, and community groups. 
He is skilled in strategic planning, positioning, zoning and land use planning, project siting, 
entitlements, public/private partnerships, historic preservation, park and recreation planning, 
community relations and government relations. 
Jim is highly regarded in the field and I have had the pleasure of working with him on various 
CBD formations. I trust his wisdom will be most beneficial to steering committee. 
Please loop him in, he is included in this email. 
Regards, 
Chris Gorgas, MPA 
Senior Program Manager 

Hans Kolbe <hanskolbe@celantrasystems.com> 
Friday, June 01, 2018 11 :38 AM 
Gorgas, Christopher (ECN); 'Brooke Ray Rivera'; Sam@biritemarket.com; 'Carolyn Thomas'; 
'Toral Patel'; Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW'); bruce.r.bowen@gmail.com; 'Robert Brust'; 'Jim 
Chappe!l' 
'Dana De Laura'; Carolyn Kenady; 'Conan McHugh' 
RE: New SC member - Dolores Park GBD 

Office of Economic and Workforce Development 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 448 
San Francisco, CA94102 
O: 415-554-6661 
christopher.corgas@sfgov.org 
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6) Goldberg and Corgas helping set up, schedule and participate in formation committee 
meetings: 
From: "Gorgas, Christopher (ECN)" Date: Tuesday, February 13, 2018 at 4:28 PM 

To: "Fatooh, Martin (BOS)" , "Sheehy, Jeff (BOS)" 

Subject: Dolores Park Steering Committee Up.date 

Hi Supe'rvisor Sheehy and Marty, 

Below are the names that we have received thus far for the Dolores Park GBD Steering 
Committee: Gideon Kramer, formerly Mission Dolores Neighborhood Association, Mission 
history collector Kevin O'Shea, NAG Neighborhood Action Group I Hancock Street 
Neighborhood Group Robert Brust, Dolores Works and Dolores Ambassadors Peter Gabel, 
24th.Street Noe Valley Market Square Carolyn Kenady, Dolores Heights Improvement Club Eric 
Guthertz, Principal of Mission High Sam Mogannam, Birite Hans Kolbe 

l believe this is a solid start to get started. Ideally, I would like to see at least 2 to 4 more 
people join, not including Rec and Park which will be as well. Do you have any concerns with 
this list or anyone you would like to see added? I will try to convene a meeting next week and 
will inform you of date, time, and location. Thank you! 

Regards, Chris Gorgas, MPA Senior Program Manager 
Office of Economic and Workforce Development 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 448 San Francisco, CA 94102 
0: 415-554-6661 christopher.cor_gas@sfgov.org 

Good afternoon all - Please use this conference call number for tonight's check-in call: 
PHONE: + 1 (866) 921-5445 PIN: 7402584# 

I also want to congratulate you all on the successful outreach to date - as of today, you've 
netted 455 survey responses. · 

We_'ll be diving a bit more into these details later tonight. Looking for.vard to chatting with you 
at 6 PM! 

Cheers, Jonathan 

Jonathan Goldberg 
Green Benefit District Program Manager 

From: Brooke Ray Rivera Sent: Thursday, June 07, 2018 2:34 PM 

To: Isabel Wade; Gorgas, Christopher (ECN); Toral Patel; Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) 

Subject: Meeting to finalize GBV GBD grant scope Hi Isabel, Please e-meet Chris Gorgas from 
OEWD who is our grant administrator for the $33K GBV GBD grant. As I've discussed with 
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both of you, l think it's important that we all sit down together to revise and finalize the scope 
and al!ocations of this $33K. Jonathan you should attend as well if possible. 

Toral and I want to make sure that the services we at Place Lab are providing are the best use 
of the City's money for the most benefit to the neighborhood. Chris has confirmed that we can 
incorporate a revision to the scope via a grant contract amendment, which we'll be doing 
anyway for other reasons related to the Dolores Park GBD component of the contracts. Isabel, 
when is best for you within the following times, for a meeting at our office {315 Linden in Hayes 
Valley}: (Z] Thursday June 14th 9am-4:30pm (1] Monday June 1 Bth 1-4:30pm ill Tuesday June 
19th 2-6pm An of these work for Chris, Toral and L Jonathan please weigh in as well. 

Thanks, Brooke Ray 

econdevintern, (ECN) 
From: 
Sent: To: 
Cc: Subject: 
My apologies for the mix up. Thank you Hans for clarifying! 
Since we have enough folks who can attend the proposed June 26th meeting date, l will be 
following-up with a calendar invite shortly. 
Cheers, Jonathan 
Jonathan Goldberg Green Benefit District Program Manager 
Operations \ San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 2323 Cesar 
Chavez Street j San Francisco, CA 94124 I (o) 415.695.2015 \ 
sfpub!icworks.org · twitter.com/sfpublicworks 

From: Hans Kolbe [mailto:hanskolbe@celantrasystems.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 19, 2018 9:42 AM 
To: Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) <jonathan.goldberg@sfdpw.org>; 'Tora! Patel' 
<toral@placelabsf.org>; 'Brett LJder' <blider@gmail.com>; bruce.r.bowen@gmail.com; 'Carolyn 
Thomas' <carolynjO@yahoo.com>; ckerby@sbcglobal.net; 'Dana De Lara' 
<danade\ara@gmail.com>; 'Eric Guthertz' <guthertze@sfusd.edu>; 'Gideon Kramer' 
<gykramer@earthlink.net>; 'Jim Chappell' <jimchappellsf@gmail.com>; lioremg@gmail.com; 
nori.yatsunami.tong@gmail.com; rebecca@cds-sf.org; 'Robert Brust' <rkbrust@gmail.com>; 
'Sam Mogannam' <sam@biritemarket.com>; toddsdavid@gmail.com 
Cc: Corgas, Christopher (ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; 'Brooke Ray Rivera' 
<brookeray@buildpublic.org> Subject: Clarifying action item assignments and volunteers RE: 
REMINDER: Doodle Poll +Notes from 6/12 Dolores Park GBD Meeting 
Jonathan, 
Thanks a lot for the detail minutes of our meeting, greatJ My recollection of the two groups 
preparing for the next meeting is different than you wrote down. I believe Dana, Carolyn, and 
Robert volunteered for the communication plan, and Uore and I volunteered for the survey 
questionnaire draft. 1 asked Conan whether he volunteered. He offered to review any 
intermediary work product - but did not want to be part of the assignment. 
Please let me know if l am remembering incorrectly. ln the meantime, l will start working with 
Uore on the survey. 

Goldberg, Jonathan {DPW) 
Thursday, June 21, 2018 6:03 PM 
Hans Kolbe; 'Tora\ Patel'; 'Brett Lider'; bruce.r.bowen@gmail.com; 'Carolyn Thomas'; 
ckerby@sbcglobal.net; 'Dana De Lara'; 'Eric Guthertz'; 'Gideon Kramer'; 'Jim Chappell'; 
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lioremg@gmail.com; nori.yatsunami.tong@gmail.com; rebecca@cds-sf.org; 'Robert Brust'; 
'Sam Mogannam'; toddsdavid@gmail.com 
Corgas, Christopher (ECN); 'Brooke Ray Rivera' 
RE: Clarifying action item assignments and volunteers RE: REMINDER: Doodle Poll + Notes 
from 6/12 Dolores Park GBD Meeting 
1 
Thank you 
Hans Kolbe Celantra Systems 
From: Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW} [mailto:jonathan.go\dberg@sfdpw.org] 
Sent: Monday, June 18, 2018 5:32 PM 
To: Tora! Patel <tora!@placelabsf.org>; Hans Kolbe <hanskolbe@celantrasystems.com>; Brett 
Lider <blider@gmail.Com>; bruce.r.bowen@gmail.com; Carolyn Thomas 
<carolynjO@yahoo.com>; ckerby@sbcglobal.net; Dana De Lara <danade\ara@gmail.com>; Eric 
Guthertz <guthertze@sfusd.edu>; Gideon Kramer <gykramer@earthlink.net>; Jim Chappell 
<jimchappellsf@gmail.com>; lioremg@gmail.com; nori.yatsunami.tong@gmai\.com; 
rebecca@cds-sf.org; Robert Brust <rkbrust@gmail.com>; Sam Mogannam 
<sam@biritemarket.com>; toddsdavid@gmail.com 
Cc: Gorgas, Christopher (ECN) <Christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; Brooke Ray Rivera 
<brookeray@buildpublic.org> Subject: REMINDER: Doodle Poll+ Notes from 6/12 Dolores 
Park GBO Meeting 
Hi a\\! 
Just a reminder to respond to this Doodle poll to confirm our next meeting date. 
At our June 12th meeting, we tentatively set our next meeting date to be Tuesday, June 26th at 
6 PM, pending the availability of our greater group. If this date doesn't work for most, we'll 
reschedule this meeting for another date in June or July. 
Cheers, Jonathan 
Jonathan Goldberg Green Benefit District Program Manager 
Operations I San Francisco Public Works! City and County of San Francisco 2323 Cesar 
Chavez Street I Sari Francisco, CA 94124 I (o) 415.695.2015 I (c) 415,304.0749 
sfpublicworks.org · twitter.com/sfpub!icworks 

----Original Appointment----
From: Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) 
Sent: Wednesday, October 24, 2018 7:40 PM 
To: Goldberg, Jonathan (OPW}; Brett Uder (blider@gmail.com); Bruce Bowen; Carolyn; Gorgas, 
Christopher (ECN); Claude lmbault; conan mchugh; Ned Moran; Eric Guthertz; Hans Kolbe; 
'Jim Chappell'; Liore Milgrom-Gartner; nori yatsunami tong; 
David; Brooke Ray Rivera; 
Cc: brookeray@buildpublic.org; juliaayeni@sfparksalliance.org; Conan McHugh Subject: 
Outreach Check-in: Mission Dolores GBD Feasibility Survey 
When: Monday, October 29, 2018 6:00 PM-7:30 PM (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time {US & Canada). 
Where: Conference Call -

.Hi all-
This conference call will be to check-in regarding survey and outreach efforts to date. 
Conference call details will be forthcoming. 
Cheers, Jonathan 



7} Property owner participation in Inner Sunset survey:12.8°/o 

in Greater Buena Vista (Haight) survey:14.6% 

In Dolores area survey; property owner response 9.7% 

8} GBV GBD committee chair encourages RPO to omit reference to significant work done 
in BV Park which might give impression a GBD is not necessary. 

From: Isabel Wade < 
Date: April 16, 2018 at 2:49:56 PM EDT To: Phil Ginsburg <pginsburg@me.com> Subject: GBD 
Meeting 
Hi Phil, 
You mentioned you were working on something for us to help promote the need for ex:tra 
resources for BV and Corona - If so, can you please send? Also, would you please mention to 
Carol that her presentation at the BVNA meeting on Wed night should not be too glowing 
related to what has been accomplished lately (tree removal etc) and the prospect of upcoming 
bond funds, other.vise people will think there is no need for extra resources with the GBO! She 
can point out that any bond funds that BV might get will fall far short of the $30 million 
estimated in our Capital Planning process of 3 years ago (and that is without any cost increase 
factor for now!) unless we are able to get a much bigger 
bond. And RPO does not have {as far as l know) enough staff resources NOW to provide the 
level of service needed/desired and Is very unlikely to get more given the seemingly endless 
(and increasing) other priorities of the city that always seem to come first (Le. health, homeless, 
housing, etc). Hopefully this latter point will be covered in data you are sending? 
Looking forNard to seeing you all on Thursday for our discussion about GBD management 
concepts. 1 really hope we wfll need them) Best, Isabel 

Isabel Wade 
Just One Tree, Chief Lemon Ambassador 415-
Phil Ginsburg <pginsburg@me.coffi> Monday, l\pril 16, 201811:56 AM Pawlowsky, Eric (REC) 
Fwd: GBD Meeting 



Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Wednesday, May 29, 2019 8:10 AM 
Thompson, Marianne (ECN); Corgas, Christopher (ECN); Nuru, Mohammed (DPW); 
Goldberg, JonathC!n (DPW); drew@sfparksalliance.org 
Renewed PRA request for documents related to GBDs and not yet provided 
PRA request 2_ 11_ 19 re GBVGBD and MDGBD -highlighted.pages 

: , This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

May 29, 2019 by email and certified mail 

Director, Office of Economic and Workforce Development 
Director, San Francisco Public Works 
Board of Directors and CEO, San Francisco Parks Alliance 
Formation Committee, Mission Dolores GBD 

Re Renewed Public Records Act request for additional documents pertaining to formation of a 
Greater Buena Vista Green Benefit District and a Mission Dolores Green Benefit District. 

Dear Sirs and Mesdames: 

The purpose of this letter is to request that you provide additional documents and materials originally 
requested in nine numbered paragraphs as set forth in my earlier PRA request dated February 11, 
2019. Many of the documents requested at that time have not been provided. 

The City and County of San Francisco must provide all documents and information funded by the City 
as described in my earlier PRA request dated February 11, 2019. I enclose a copy of that letter for 
your ease of reference. 

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

John Hooper 
201 Buena Vista Ave east 
San Francisco, CA 94117-4103 
415-626-8880 

cc: standard distribution 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To; 

Subject: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Tuesday, June 11, 2019 10:33 AM 

SOTF, (BOS) 

Re: SOTF complaint- OEWD, Public Works, SF Parks Alliance, DPW 

Hi Cheryl: 

The documents guy at OPW told me he had nothing more than what they sent in February. 

As far as Parks Alliance goes, that's news to me that I've been working with the Director. Have sent them the same PRA 
requests with no response. I have never spoken with the Director a bout getting documents directly from him, though I 

would not object. 

Anyway, lt's the City's responsibility to provide information from grants they funded. 

Thanks I 

John Hooper 

On Jun 11, 2019, at 10:14 AM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

I spoke with Marianne and she sent via email their response. What about the requests to Public Works 

and Parks Alliance? Did you get anything from either dept.? I spoke with someone from Parks Alliance 
who said that you had been working with the Director to get your documents. Please advise. Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<imageOOl .png> Clickh_ere to complete a Board of Supervisors Cu;tomer Service Satislactron form. 

Tile .~ive Re>earch Ce~ter provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and arc!iived matters since 
August 1998. 

Disclosvres: Personal infarmatlo11 thot 15 provided in corr.munkations to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure 
under the California Public Records Act and the Son Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided wi/J not 
be redacted. 1-.Aembers of the public ore no! required to provide persono/ ldentifyrng information v;hen they communicate 
with the Boord of Supervisors and its committres. Ali written or oral communications that members of the public submit 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or heonngs wiil be made ovoi/obie to al! members of the public for 
irispection ond copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means !hot 
person of informotion-inc!oding names, phone numbPrs, addresses and slm1Jor information that a member of the public 
elecls ta submit to the Board and its co,,-,mlttees·-moy appear on the Boord of Supervisors website or in other public 
doc~ments t/iot members of the public may inspect or copy. 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2019 4;10 PM 



To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF complaint- OEWD, Public Works, SF Parks Alliance, DPW 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi again Cheryl: 

I received over 40 emails from 
OEWD - each with numerous attachments- on March 5 responding to my Feb 11 PRA request. 

Although voluminous, they were only partially responsive to my request. 

In particular, OEWD failed to produce any of the requested materials produced by Parks Alliance, Place 
Lab and/or the Dolores GBD formation committee which were paid for by the OEWD grant in question 
(such as mailings, website development, survey materials, agendas, petition, invoices for contractor 
work and so forth ) 

The public has a right to see these materials - paid for with public funds - even though the work may_ 
have been carried out by a third party. 

The OEWD contract with Parks Alliance makes it clear that all products paid for by the grant are the 
property of the City and therefore subject to SOTF' s jurisdiction. 

I will not have access to the materials OEWD sent me til I get back to my office. 

It might be quicker to ask Marianne Thompson at OEWD to send the same batch of emails to you. 

Hope this helps! 

John Hooper 

On Jun 7, 2019, at 2:18 PM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

Please see attached your May 29 complaint for your requested records. I write to ask if 
you have received anything from these departments and if you have, please forward 
them to me for processing of your complaint. Thank you and call me if you have 
questions. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image001.png> Click~i:_f'. to complet~ a Board of Supe1visors Customer Service Sot1sfaction 

form. 

The _lqg!tlat1ve:.~garch Cen_\~ provides 24-hour occess to ~oard of Supervtsors legislation, ;md 
o rcli ived rna tters since Au~ust 1998. 

Disclosures; Personal information tho1 is provrded in cammun1cotions to the 13aard of Supervisors is 
subject to disclosure under the (aliforn10 Public Records Act and the Son Fronci.<co Suns/1ine 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Tuesday, June 11, 2019 11 :43 AM 

SOTF, (BOS) 

More re SOTF complaint re GBDs 

Yes, Cheryl. I was referring to David Steinberg. 

I am in Arizona on a family emergency and don't have access to the most recent exchange I had with him. 

Will get you that info ASAP. 

It does seem strange that the City Department which houses and funds the GBD program manager - Jonathan Goldberg
has repeatedly claimed it does not have basic information about the GBD program. 

Most recently, Jonathan was asked how long a petition drive involving the DOLORES GBO, which has been extended, 
would run and he did not know the answer to this basic question. He said he would ask the local GBD committee. That's 
the last anyone has heard. 

This means, in effect, that informal local groups, funded by the City, are now dictating important aspects of an official 
process to approve a new property tax\ 

The public is caught in a shell game involving DPW, OEWD, Parks Alliance and the Dolores GBD formation committee: 
whatever information is being requested is generally somebody else's responsibility. 

l hope SOTF will view this matter as the assault on the public's ability to understand what its government is doing that it 
represents. 

Thanks and I'll get any additional info you need as soon as I get home. 

Sincerely, 

John Hooper 

On Jun 11, 2019, at 11:13 AM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

Are you referring to David Steinberg 1.1,Jhen you say "guy at DPW"?. Can you please provide their 
response to this request? Thank you. 
Also, I just saw Marianne Thompson from OEWD and she provided four thumb drives holding all the 
documents that they produced to you. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<imageOOl.png> Click 1'.~.!.e. \o complete a Bo~rd of Superv.sors Customer Scrvi~e Sathf~ction form. 
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The Legisl_ativ_g_R~e~rch J;enter P' ovtdes 24·hou r access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since 
/\ugust 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in cammunica!ions ta the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure 
under the Californ10 Public Records Act and the San Francisca Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will no! 

be redacted. Members of the public ore not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate 
with the Boord of Supervisors and its committees. Ail written oraral communica!ion.s that members of the public submit 
to the Clerk's Office regard mg pending legislation or hearings will be mode available to all members of the public for 

inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact any infarmatianfrom these submissions. T/1is means thot 
per,onal information-including names, phone numbers, addres.ses and -0imi!ar mformat1on that o men1ber of tile public 

elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may oppear on the Boord ofSupef'J1Sors website or in other public 
document!; that members of the public may inspect or copy. 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2019 10:33 AM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF complaint- DEWD, Public Works, SF Parks Alliance, DPW 

Hi Cheryl: 

The documents guy at DPW told me he had nothing more than what they sent.in February. 

As far as Parks Alllance goes, that's news to me that I've been working with the Director. Have sent them 
the same PRA requests with no response. I have never spoken with the Director about getting 
documents directly from him, though l would not object. 

Anyway, It's the City's responsibility to provide information from grants they funded. 

Thanks! 

John Hooper 

On Jun 11, 2019, at 10:14 AM, SOTF, {BOS} <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

I spoke with Marianne and she sent via email their response. What about the requests 
to Public Works and Parks Alliance? Did you get anything from either dept.? l spoke 
with someone from Parks Alliance who said that you had been working with the 
Director to get your documents. Please advise. Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<imageOOl.png> Click he.r~ to complete a Bo<Hd of S~pervisors Customer s.,rvice Solisfoction 

form. 

The _legislative Research Center provides 24-hour occess to Boa rd of Supervisors I ~gislat1on, and 
archived m otters since AuEu;t 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information thot is pravrded in communico!ions to the Board of Supervisor" is 
subject to disc/05ure under llw Ca!Jforn1a Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine 
Ordinance. Personal information provided wiil not be redacted Memb~r5 of the public are not 

r~quired to provide personal 1'JS'lfti1g~formation when they con1municate with the Board of 
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Supervisors and Its committees. /ill wri!len or oral coma1unirotio11s that n1en1bers of the public 
subn1it to the Clerk's Office regarding pending /egis/at1on or /Jearings wiil be made available 1o all 
members of the public for inspection and copying. Tile Clerk's Office do el not redact any 
rnformation from these submissions This means that personal 1i1formation-including names, 
phone numbers, addresses and similar information tho! a mernber of llw public elects to submit to 
the Board and its comn1i(t~es- may appear on the Bua rd of Supervisors websire or in other public 
documents that nwa1bers of the public rnay inspect or copy. 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2019 4:10 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF complaint- OEWD, Publlc Works, SF Parks Alliance, DPW 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or <ittachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi again Cheryl: 

I received over 40 emails from 
OEWD - each with numerous attachments - on March S responding to my Feb 11 PRA 
request. 

Although voluminous, they were only partially responsive to my request. 

In particular, OEWD failed to produce any of the requested materials produced by Parks 
Alliance, Place Lab and/or the Dolores GBD formation committee which were paid for by 
the OEWD grant in question (such as mailings, website development, sur\ley materials, 
agendas, petition, invoices for contractor work and so forth) 

The public has a right to see these materials - paid for with public funds - even though 
the work may have been carried out by a third party. 

The OEWD contract with Parks Alliance makes it clear that all products paid for by the 
grant are the property of the City and therefore subject to SOTF's jurisdiction. 

I will not have access to the materials OEWD sent me til I i::et back to my office. 

It might be quicker to ask Marianne Thompson at OEWD to send the same batch of 
emails to you. 

Hope this helps! 

John Hooper 

On Jun 7, 2019, at 2:18 PM, SOTF, (1305) <~otf@filgQy.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

Please see attached your May 29 complaint for your requested 

records. l write to ask if you ~1v6 f'eived anything from these 



departments and if you have, please forward them to me for processing 
of your complaint. Thank you and call me if you have questions. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image001.png> Click h~ to complete a Board of Superv;sors 

Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislotive Research Cent~.! provides 24-hour occess to Board of 
Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 1998. 

<Hooper.pdf> 

Dis closures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the 
Board a/Supervisors is subject' to disclosure under the California Public 
Records Act and the Son Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information 
provided will not be redacted. Members of the public ore not required to 
provide personal !den t1fylng informdUon when they communicate with the 
Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or oral communication, 
that members of the public submit ro the Clerk's Office regarding pending 
leg/slab"on or hearings will be made ovrnlobie to all members of the public for 
inspection and copving. The C/erl<'s Office does not redact any information 
from these submissions. Thi5 means that personal information-including 
names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that o member of 
the public elects ro submJt ta the Board and its committees-may appear on 
the Boord of Supe,,,15ors website or 1n other public documents that member:; 
of the public may inspect or copy. 
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Le er, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Hi Cheryl: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Monday, August 12, 2019 3:58 PM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Re: SOTF - Complaint Committee; August 20, 2019 5:30 p.m: submitting index for the 
record 

Thanks for your note explaining the 8/13 deadline for submitting materials for the SOTF Complaint 
Committee 8/20 hearing. l will be working out in the field Tuesday 8/13 so am going to try to send you 
all pertinent info today. I spoke at SOTF hearings related to the Green Benefit District issue on 3/5/19 
and again on 5/21/19 at which\ submitted materials and I have also written the SOTF on several 
occasions. 

Therefore, in the lndex that follows, I wi\\ make a note ("by reference") after materials l believe you 
already have so you don't have to wade through a bunch of stuff second tinie. 

At the 8/20 hearing, can you tell me how much time I am given to testify and may I 
combine my remarks concerning the two items, since the issues I would like to raise are 
virtually identical. 

Best, John Hooper 

INDEX of materials for SOTF reading file 

A. Basic documents 

1. Complaint to SOTF dated 5/29/19 enclosing letters described in (2) below (by rel) 

2. Renewed PRA requests dated 5/29/19 to DPW, OEWD, Parks Alliance and Formation Committee 
_ of MD GBD attaching original 2/11/19 PRA request to the same _recipients (by ref) 

3. My written and oral testimony before SOTF on 3/6/19, submitted for the record with 2/11/19 PRA 
request (by rel) 

4. My written and oral testimony before SOTF on 5/21/19 submitted for the record along with my 
4/3/19 letter_ to City Attorney (public employees are engaging In illegal political activities by promoting 
GBD elections) and my 4/17/19 letter to City attorney (irregularities in conduct of MD GBD Petiton 
process) (by rel) 

8. Correspondence with OEWD, illustrating ongoing difficulties obtaining information 
requested in 2/11/19 PRA request 

1. My certified 2/11 /19 PRA request to OEWD returned as undeliverable on 2/17 /19 (can send photo 
if useful) 

2. 3/5/19 email from me to OEWD stating l have received no response to mY 2/11/19 PRA request 
(by ref) 

P1621 
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3. 3/5/19 a series of 44 emails from OEWD purporting to respond to my 2/11/19 PRA request. Last 
one says "this concludes your Sunshine reque::;t" (by ref) 

4. 5/7/19 email from me to OEWD sending list of items still not receive·d as requested ~n 2/11/19 (by 
ref) 

5. 5/7 /19 response from OEWD: does not have any more docs and is closing this request _(by ref) 

6. 6/11/19 exchange of emails between me and SOTF (by ref) 

7. 6/12-13/19 and 7/3/19 exchanges of.emails between me, SOTF. and Parks Alliance (by ref) 

8. 6/14/19 OEWD sends more info relating to MD GBD, most of it right on GBD website (by ref) 

9. 6/21/19 OEWD reiterates it has sent me everything (by ref) 

C. Miscellaneous/background 

1. SF Chronicle front page 5/14/19: "Extra Cleanup Fee for Dolores Park neighbors?" By Dominic 
Fracassa (by ref) 

2. 6/11/19 email to Marianne Thompson and Jonathan Goldberg (by ref): 

" I am sorry we got off to a less than optimal start after the recent SOTF hearing at which 1 

attempted to introduce myself. My intent, wth both you and Jonathan Goldberg, was to 
make it clear that, though we may disagree on a given policy matter, I have nothing but 
high regard for City employees and the important work you do. 

Howeve, 1 consider it inappropriate for public employees to refuse to speak to a member 
of the public as both you and Jonathan did on the occasion in question." 

I look forward to working cordially with you in the future. 

Sincerely, John Hooper 

-----Original Message-----
From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
To: SOTF, {BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Sent Wed, Aug 7, 2019 9:55 am 
Subject: Re: SOTF -·Complaint Committee; August 20, 2019 5:30 p.m: submitting info for the record? 

Good to know; thank you! 

John Hooper 

On Aug 7, 2019, at 8:21 AM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 
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Dear Mr. Hooper: 

Yes, you can submit materials as long as you do so on or before August 13. Everything else that I have been giVen will 
be included in the packet. Once the Agenda packet has been uploaded, you will be able to see everything that I have 
received in your file. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

1998. 

<image001.png> Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The _b,eqislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications fo the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the 
California Public Records Act and lhe San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will no! be 
redacted. Member.> of the public aw not required fo provide personal identi7ying information when they communicate with lhe Board 
of SupeNisors and rts committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Clerl\'s Office 
regarding pending /egisliition or hearings vii/I be made avai!ab!a to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's 
Office does nof redact any information from these submissions. This means thaf persona/ information-including names, phone 
numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to sub mil to fhe Board and its commitfees---may 
appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in other public documents that members of the public moy inspect or copy. 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2019 8:19 AM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Cc: Juan De Anda <deanda sophia@comcast.net>; Rudakov, Vladimir (HSA) <Vladimir.Rudakov@sfgov.Qig>; Pang, 
Ken (HSA) <Ken.Panq@sfgov.org>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne 
(ECN) <marianne.thomQson@sfgov.org>; Nuru, Mohammed (DPW) <mohammed.nuru@sfdpw.cirq>; Steinberg, David 
(DPW) <david.steinberg(W,sfdpw.org>; Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) <jonathan.goldberg@sfdpw.org>: 72056-
97339218@requests.rnuckrock.com; COTE, JOHN (CAT) <John.Cote@sfcityatty.org>; 72902- · 
46637773@reguests.muckrock.com; Heckel, Hank (MYR) <ha'nk.heckel@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF - Complaint Committee: August 20, 2019 5:30 p.m: submitting info for the record? 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Re: Files: 19061and19062 

Hi Cheryl: May I submit written materials ahead of time for SOTF to· read? If so, when would you like to receive materials? 

May I assume information previously submitted by myself or others is already part. of the SOTF record and may be 
referenced without resubmitting? 

Thank you. 

John Hooper 

On Jul 29, 2019, at 2:05 PM. SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfaov.org> wrote: 

Good Afternoon: 
You are receiving this notice because you are named as a Complainant or Respondent 
in one of the following complaints scheduled before the Complaint Committee to: 1) 
hear the merits of the complaint; 2) issue a determination; and/or 3) consider referrals 
from a Task Force Committee. 
Date August 20, 2019 
Location: City Hall, Room 408 
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Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Complainants: Your attendance is required for this meeting/hearing. 
Respcindents/Departments: Pursuant to Section 67.21 (e) of the Ordinance, the 
custodian of records bra representative of your department, who can speak to the 
matter, is required at the meeting/hearing. · 
Complaints: 
file No. 19068: Complaint filed by Sophia De And.a against the Human Services 
AQency for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section -
67.21, by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or complete 
manner. 

File No. 19061: Complaint filed by John Hooper against the Office of E:conomic and 
Workforce Deve\opment for allegedly violating Adminlstrative Code (Sunshine 
Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public records request in a tirnely 
and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper 8.galnst Public Works for allegedly 
violating Admini_strative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67 .21, by failing to 
respond to a public records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19044: Complaint filed by Anonymous against Dennis· Herrera and the Office of 
the City Attorney for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), 
Sections 67 .21, by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or 
complete manner. 

. File No. 1~047: Complaint filed by Anonymous against Mayor London Breed, Hank 
Hecke\ and the Offi"ce of the Mayor for al!eged\y violating Administrative Code, 
(Sunshine Ordinance) Sections 67.25 and 67 .29-5, by failing to respond to a request for 
public records in· a. timely and/or complete manner. 
Documentation (evidence supporting/disputing complaint) 
For a document to be considered, it must be received at !east.five (5) working days 
before the hearing (see attached Public Complaint P.rocedure). For inclusion into. the 
agenda packet, supplemental/supporting documents must be received by 5:QO 
pm, August 13, 2019. 

· Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image001.pnq> Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors 
Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of 
Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to 
the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California 
Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance .. Personal 

. information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not 
required to provide personal identifying information when they 
communicate with the B9ff% ~~Supe!Visors and its committees. Aff written 
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or oral con1munications that n1embers of the public submit to the Cferk1s 
Office regarding pending legislation or hearings wilt be made available to 
all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office 
does not redact any information from these submissions. This ineans that 
perso11a! i11formation-inc/uding names, p/1one numbers, addresses and 
similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the 
Board and its committees-may appear on the Board of Supervisors 
website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Attachments: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Wednesday, August 21, 201910:49 AM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Legal memo re Public Records Act application to obtaining information held outside 
City offices 

SFPGA.Legal Rsch.Cal Pub Records Act, GC 6250 ff (00003647x9CE40) (1).DOCX 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: I was glad to have a chance to meet you in person yesterday at the Complaints 
Committee hearing. May I ask you to please add this email and the attachment to the files 
pertaining to complaints# 19061 and #19062 (now combined). Please make sure SOTF 
members are made aware of this information. Thanks, as always, John Hooper 

This memo speaks to the ability of City agencies to compel production of information held by Parks 
Alliance. 

Attached is a legal research memo describing the reach of the Public Records Act into the offices and 
computers of government employees and contractors who are holding public documents (including 
documents which are, by contract, the property of the government, even when not located on 
governmental P.remises). 

Thes·e are the relevant provisions from the City of SF (OEWD) July 1, 2018 grant to Parks Alliance, 
which give City ownership of the Parks Alliance documents, records (including invoices, surveys, 
etc) Cal Government Code 6252(e} and 6253.3 (governmental entity may not allow a third party to 
control whether or not a public record will be produced). The controlling cases are the 2017 City of 
San Jose case and the 2013 Community Youth Activity Center vs. National City cases, analyzed 
in above~attached memo. 
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California Public Records Act 
https ://\ e gi nf o .I eg is la tu re. ca.gov/faces/cod es d isp lay Te xt.xhtm I? division:: 7 
.&chapter::3.5.&lawCode::GOV& titJe::1.&artic le::1. 

In enacting this chapter, the Legislature, mindful of the right of individuals to 
privacy, finds and declares that access to information concerning the conduct 
of the people's business is a fundamental and necessary right of every 
person in this state. 

As used in this chapter: 

(e) "Public records" includes any writing containing information relating to 
the conduct of the public's business prepared, owned, used, or retained by 
any state or local agency regardless of physical form or characteristics. 
"Public records" in the custody of, or maintained by, the Governor's office 
means any writing prepared on or after January 6, 1975. 

6253.3. 

A state or local agency may not allow another party to control the disclosure 
of information that is otherwise subject to disclosure pursuant to this 

. chapter. 

City of San Jose vs. Superior Court of Santa Clara County (2017), 
2 Ca1.51h 608, 389 P.3rd 848, 214 Cal.Rptr.3d 274 

l!olding that \Vritings contained in a public employee's personal e-mail account are 
"public records" subject to disclosure and production by the public entity under the 
California Public Records Act ( Govt. Code Section 6250, ff). 

(1) meets the "11repared by'' the agency test, even if it is solely on the e1nployee's own 
computer or phone 
(2) meets the "owned, used, or rctai11cd by" tl1e agency test. 
" ... fundamental question whether a document located outside an agency's walls, or 
servers, is sufficiently "owned, used, or retained" by tl1e agency so as to constitute a 
public record" Concl11ding the documents "do t101. lose t11is status because they are 
located in an employee's personal account." 

Proposition 59 amended the Constitution to provide "A statute, court rule, or other 
authority, i11cluding those in effect on the effecti\1e date of this subdivisio11, shall be 
broadly co11strucc1 if :it furthers the peo11le's right of access, and narrowly construed if it 
limits the right of access." (Cal. Const., art. 1, § 3, subd. (b)(2), italics added.) '"Given the 
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strong public policy of the people's right to information concerning the people's business 
(Gov. Code,§ 6250), and the constitutional niandate to construe statutes limiting the right 
of access narrowly (Cal. Const., art. I,§ 3, subd. (b)(2)), "all public records arc subject to 
disclosure uu!ess the Legislature has expressly provided to the contrary."'" (Sierra Club, 
alp. 166.) 

3. Prepared by Any State or Local Agency 

The City focuses its challenge on the final portion of the "public records" definition, 
which requires that writings be "prepared, owned, used, or retained by any state or local 
agency."(§ 6252, subd. (e).) The City argues this language does not encompass 
communications agency employees make through their personal accounts. llowcver, the 
broad construction mandated by the Constitution supports disclosure. 

The City's narrow reading of CPRA's local agency definition is inconsistent with the 
constitutional directi-ve of broad interpretation. (Cal. Const., art. I,§ 3, subd. (b)(2); see 
Sierra Club v. Superior Court, supra, 57 Cal.4th at p. 175.) Broadly co11strued, the term 
"local agency" logically includes not just the discrete governmental entities listed in 
sectio11 6252, subdivision (a) but also the individual officials and staff members who 
conduct the age11cies' affairs. It is well established that a govenunental entity, like a 
corporation, can act only through its individual officers and employees. (Suezaki v. 
Superior Court (1962) 58 Cal.2d 166, 174 [23 Cal. Rptr. 368, 373 P.2d 432]; Alvarez v. 
Felker Mfg. Co. (1964) 230 Cal.App.2d 987, 998 [41 Cal. Rptr. 514]; see United States v. 
Dotterweich (1943) 320 U.S. 277, 281 [88 L. Ed. 48, 64 S. Ct. 134]; Reno v. Baird 
(1998) 18 Cal.4th 640, 656 [76 Cal. Rptr. 2d 499, 957 P.2d 1333].) A disembodied 
governmental agency cannot prepare, o"WJ.1, tisc, or retain any record. Only the human 
beings who serve in agencies can do these tl1ings. When employees are conducting 
agency business, they are working for the agency and on its behalf. 

4. Owned, Used, 9r Retained by Any State or Local Agency 

CPRA encompasses writings prepared by an agency but also writings it owns, uses, or 
retains, regardless of authorship. Obviously, an agency engaged in the conduct of public 
business will use and retain a variety of writings related to that business, including those 
prepared by people outside the agency. 'fhese final two factors oftl1e "public records" 
definition, use and retentio11, thus reflect the variety of ways an agency can possess 
writings used to co11duct pt1blic b11sincss. 

Appellate courts have generally concluded records related to public business are subject 
to disclosure if they are in an agency's actual or constructive possession. (See, e.g., Board 
of Pilot Commissioners v. Superior Court (2013) 218 Cal.App.4th 577, 598 [160 Cal. 
Rptr. 3d 285]; Consolidated Irrigation Dist. v. Superior Court (2012) 205 Cal.App.4th 
697, 710 [140 Cal. Rptr. 3d 622 J (Consolidated Irrigatio11).) "LA ]n agency has 
constructive posses.'.lion of records if it has the rigl1t to co111rol the records, either directly 
or tlu:ough another person." (Consolidated Irrigatio11, at p. 710.) For example, in 
Consolidated Irrigation, a city did not have co11s1ructi\1e possession of documents in files 
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maintained by subconsultants \vho 11repared portions of an e11viro11mental in1pact report 
because the city had no co11tractual right to co11trol the subco11sulta1Jts or tl1eir files. (Id. at 
pp. 703, 710--711.) By contrast, a city had a CPRA duty to disclose a co11sultant's field 
survey records because tl1e city had a contractual owi1ersl1ip interest and right to possess 
this 1naterial. (See Community Youth Athletic Ce11ter v. City of National City (2013) 220 
Cal.App.4th 1385, 1426, 1428-1429 [164 Cal. Rptr. Jd 644] (Community Youth).) 

It is a separate and more fundamental question whether a document located outside a11 
agency's \Valls, or servers, is sufficiently "ow11ed, used, or retai11cd'' by the agency so as 
to constitute a public record. (See§ 6252, subd. (c).) In construing FOTA, federal courts 
have ren1arked that at1 agency's public records "do not Jose their agency character just 
l1ccausc the official who possesses the1n take.<> them out t11c door." (Cotnpetitive 
F,ntcrprise lnstitute v. Office ofScie11ce and Teclmology Policy, supra, 827 F.3d at p. 
149.) We likewise hold that docun1ents otherwise meeting CPRA's definition of"public 
records" do not lose this status because they are located in an employee's personal 
account. A writing retained b)' a public employee conducting agency business has been 
"retained by" the age11cy within the 1nea11ing of section 6252, subdivision (e), eve11 if the 
writing is retained in the employee's personal account. 

1'11e City argues various CPRA provisio11s run counter to this conclusion. First, the City 
cites section 6270, which provides that a state or local agency 1na,y not tra11sfer a public 
record to a private entity in a manner that prevc11ts the agency "from providing the record 
directly pursuai1t to this chapter." (Italics added.) Taking the italicized language 011t of 
context, the City argues that public records arc only those an agency is able to access 
"directly." But tl1is strained interpretation sets legislative intent on its !1ead. The statute's 
clear purpose is to preve11t an agency from evading its disclosure duty by transferring 
custody of a record to a private holder and then arguing the record falls outside CPRA 
because it is no longer i11 the agency's possession. F'urthermore, section 6270 does not 
purport to excuse agencies fron1 obtaining public records in the possession of their ·own 
employees. It simply prohibits agencies fro1n attempting to evade CPRA by transferring 
public records to an intermediary not bound by the Act's disclosure requirements. 

we have previously stressed that a document's status as public or confidential does not 
t11111 on the ai·bitrary circumstance of where the docume11t is located. 

D. Conclusio11 
Consistent witl1 the J~egislature's purpose in enacting CPR.A, and our constitutional 
mandate to interpret the Act broadly in favor of public access (Cal. Const., art. I, § 3, 
subd. (b)(2)), we hold that a city employee's writings about p11blic business are not 
excluded from CPRA simply because they have bee11 sent, received, or stored in a 
personal account. 
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Statement of John Hooper to SOTF 
January 21, 2020 

Re file # 19061 (OEWD) and File # 19062 (DPW) 
Failure of agencies to provide comprehensive documents related to a proposed 

Mission Dolores Green Benefit District (MD GBD) 

Good afternoon Chairman and Task Force members: 

Thank you for t~is opportunity. My name is John Hooper. I am a resident of the 
Haight. 

The public's right to obtain information about government activities through the 
use of Public Record Act Requests has been central to deciphering the City's 
campaign to promote Green Benefit Districts (GBDs). 

On June 12, 2018, during a City-orchestrated effort to start a GBD in the Haight 
(the now defeated so-called Greater Buena Vista GBD), I filed a Public Records 
Act request to obtain basic information about the budget to form that GBD, the 
role of City employees and the role of a non-profit called, variously, Build Public 
or Place Lab which conducted the actual outreach for the scheme. The results 
of this PRA request proved immensely helpful in educating neighbors about that 
local GBD effort. Once neighbors came to understand that the City had 
budgeted $221,000 merely to promote this campaign, was using City staff from 
both DPW and OEWD to support the effort and we understood that the City 
intended, ultimately, to use the voting power of City-owned properties to ram 
the idea through, the GBD was discredited. 

After neighbors defeated that GBD in the Haight and another in the Inner· 
Sunset, the City next targeted the Dolores Park neighborhood in an attempt to 
set up a GBD there - an effort which is still dragging on. The Mission Dolores 
GBD Petition drive has now languished for 280 days while proponents continue 
to contact local property owners to reach the number of signatures they need. 
Compare this timeframe to the maximum 180 days a citizen is allowed to qualify 
a ballot initiative. This petition drive and the whole GBD formation process is 
unregulated. No one at the City level is paying attention to it. That is why is so 
important for concerried citizens to be able to understand what is really going 
on. 

In the Mission Dolores area, neighbors. have witnessed the same approach 
which had been tried in the Inner Sunset and Haight close involvement of City 
employees setting up a "steering committee", helping select its membership and 



schedule meetings, setting up a glossy website, conducting a petition drive and 
sending out mailings. Build Public/Place Lab has now merged with San 
Francisco Parks Alliance and the Parks Alliance had become the foot soldier and 
recipient of City funding (at least $160,000) to push through a GBD there. 

I filed another PRA request on February 11, 2019 asking for much the same 
information that we had been able to obtain in the Haight. But, by then, OEWD 
and DPW seemed to be waking up to the fact that this program was universally 
unpopular, and it might be best if the City's role - and that of its proxy, San 
Francisco Parks Alliance - were kept in the shadows. Since then, I have 
addressed the SOTF on March 5, 2019, May 21, 2019 and August 20, 2019, all 
trying to get complete answers to that original February 11, 2019 PRA request. 

As the City Attorney's July 15, 2019 confidential memo to SOTF states, the 
agencies provided "voluminous" paperwork, but failed to produce many of the. 
requested materials produced by Parks Alliance, Place Lab and/or the Dolores 
GBD formation committee which were paid for by the OEWD grant in question 
(such as mailings, website development, survey materials, agendas, petition, 
invoices for contractor work and mailings). 

For example, at your August 20, 2019 SOTF Complaints Committee hearing, a 
representative of OEWD handed me printouts of all the materials the agency 
allegedly had in its possession. Yet, when I went through these documents, they 
were more than a year old, most of the information was printed off old websites 
and most related to the abandoned Greater Buena Vista GBD effort. I can 
provide that packet for the record if you so request. 

The reason the public knows that there are additional materials that have never 
been disclosed can be seen plainly by looking at a portion of the July 1, 2018 
Contract between OEWD and Parks Alliance in an appendix entitled "IV. Tasks 
and Deliverables for Project Area B: Dolores Park Neighborhood." I submit 
pages 6 through 14 of those 31 tasks and deliverables attached to this 
statement for the record. Those tasks and deliverables are remarkably similar to 
the information I requested in my February 11, 2019 PRA request. 

The public has a right to see these materials- paid for with public funds- even 
though the work may have been carried out by a third party. 

Without being exhaustive, you can readily see that Parks Alliance was hired by 
the City to form the steering committee, organize and run its meetings and help 
develop its mission. You can see that the City's grantee was paid to develop a 
website and fact sheets, that -with the active participation of City employees - it 



ran all community meetings, kept attendance records and produced minutes; 
developed a data base for mailings to property owners. 

In addition, the City's proxy, Parks Alliance, developed, distributed, collected 
and interpreted a survey of residents concerning their attitudes about a GBD. No 
one else. had access to this information which was ultimately presented in a 
highly distorted fashion, indicating broad community support where there was 
virtually none. 

Later, last April (2019) Parks Alliance initiated a Petition Drive to the Board of 
Supervisors in a rushed manner so that neighbors had no time to comment on 
either a Management Plan or Engineer's Report which are the legal 
underpinnings .of a GBD. The Engineer's Report has since been challenged 
before the State Engineer's Board for using statistics unrelated to the Mission 
Dolores area. 

DPW and OEWD are thumbing their noses at the SOTF. The only way that this 
kind of wasteful Clty-funded program can continue is for the City agencies 
involved to hide behind bogus arguments that they are exempt from your 
jurisdiction or that they have provided all relevant information when their own 
contracts make it clear we have only seen the tip of the iceberg. 

We members of the public need your help exposing this program for the 
wasteful and deceitful exercise it has been. On behalf of numerous concerned 
San Franciscans, I hope you will require that the information I have asked for 
since February 2019 be provided. 

Thank you. 



IV. TASKS AND DELIVERABLES FOR PROJEC1' AREA B: DOLORES PARK 
NEIGHBORHOOD 

1'ask 1. Monthly Steering Committee Meetings 

• Grantee sho-11 organize and facilitate monthly Project Area B steering committee meetings. 
Meetings shall develop the vision and mission for a potential GBD in Project Area B. 

" Grantee shall build steering committee capacity for Project Area B GBD feasibility and 
formation. 

• Grantee shall fmalize Project Area_ B boundaries with input from steering committee. 

Task 1 Deliverables 

A. Invoice(s) for time spent completing Task 1. 
B. An agenda and meeting minutes for each steering committee meeting 

Task 2. Develop and Manage Website 

• Grantee shall be responsiblr! for managing the Project Area B website. 
• Grantee shall be responsible for all domaiu hosting fees and volunteer coordination in relation to 

tbe website. 

Task 2 Deliverables 

C. Invoice(s) for website development and ongoing managen1ent, iucluding domaiu fees. 
D. A functional website url for Project_AJ:ea B GBD formation. 

Task 3. Develop Collateral 

• Grantee shall develop collateral for the formation of the Dolores Park GBD. 
• Collateral shall include, but is not limited to, the following: 

o Fact sheet 
o Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) 
o A map of the area 

Task 3 Deliverables 

E. lnvoice(s) for the dri!-fting of content, graphic design services, and the printing of collateral. 
F. A copy of the fact sheet 
G. A copy of the Frequently Asked Questions document. 
H. A copy of the map of the area. 

Task 4. Conduct Community Meeting #1 

" Grantee shall support a community meeting in Project Area B regarding the formation of a Green 
Benefit District. Grantee shall be responsible for: 

o Meeting preparation 
o Meeti_ng materials 
o Meeting facilitation 
o Meeting minutes/notes 
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o_ Meeting debrief with the Dolore& Park GBD steering conunittee. 

·Task 4 Deliverables 

I. Invoice for time spent completing Task 4. 
J. Copy of meeting minutes/notes 
K. Sign in sheets for community meeting showing attendance 

Task 5. Draft Property Owner and Business Databases 

• Grantee shall develop and maintain a property owner databases of all parcels within Project Area 
B. Property owner database shall contilln: 

o APN 
o OwnerName 
o SITUS 
o Mailing Address 
o Mailing City 
o Mailing State 
o Mailing Zip Code 

• Grantee shall develop and maintain a business database of all businesses with Project Area B. 
Business database shall include: 

o Business name 
o Business address 
o Owner name 
o Owner contact info 

Task 5 Deliverables 

L. Invoice(s) for time and fees related to the development of these databases. 
M. Final property owner database 
N. Final business database 

'fask 6. Develop Survey Questionnaire 

• Grantee shall develop and draft a FPS for the proposed Dolores Park GBD. The FPS will allow 
City's Team and the Dolores Park-GBD Steering Committee to determine if pursuing a GBD 
within the proposed district is feasible. Additionally, FPS results will serve as a guide for the 
development of the Dolores Park GBD management plan if the proposed GBD is determined to 
be feasible. Tbe FPS will provide property o-wners and stakeholders the opportunity to give 
valuable feedOOck on what they see as the proposed district's biggest concerns and if they are 
interested in pursuing a GBD. The survey will be reviewed by City's Team before it is 
disseminated. POtential questions must include one in which the participant is direC:tly asked if 
they are interested in pursuing a GBD in a yes or no format. 

Tasl~ 6 Deliverables 

0. lnvoice(s) for time and materials utilized on the development if a survey questionnaire. 
P. Eniail approval from City's Team indicating survey questionnaire meets City standards. 
Q. Finalized survey questionnaire. 
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Task 7. Disseminate Survey 

<> Grantee shall mail surveys to all property owners, merchants, and stakeholders by United States 
Postal Service (USPS). Grantee may also dislTibute surveys via email, in person, or via the 
internet. 

Task 7 Deliverables 

R. Invoice(s) for surveying printing and postage. 
S. Invoice(s) for any work related to in person or digital release of surveys. 
T. Receipts for printing and postage 

Task 8. Tabulate and Analyze Survey Results 

• Grantee shall tabulate, analyze, and synthesize all GBD survey results. 

Task 8 Deliverables 

U. lnvoice(s) for time spent tabulating, analyzLng, and synthesizing all survey result~ 
V. Draft survey result<> 

Tasl{ 9. Conduct Community Meeting #-2 

• Grantee shall support a community meeting in Project Area B regarding the formation of a Green 
Benefit District. Grantee shall be responsible for: 

o Meeting preparation 
o Meeting materials 
o Meeting facilitation 
o Meeting minotes/notes 
o Meeting debriefwith the Dolores Park GBD steering committee. 

Task 9. Deliverables 

W. Invoice for time spent completing Task 9. 
X. Copy of meeting minutes/notes 
Y. Sign in sheets for community meeting showing attendance 

Task 10. Draft and Final Survey SummaJ)' Report 

• Grantee shall draft a survey SlliIDilar)' report, which shall include the following work: 
o . Content 
o Layout and design 
o Any and all revisions 

• Survey summary report shall include 
o Results of community meetings 
o Finalized survey results 
o Recommendations and suggestions for the Project Area B GBD steering co1nrnittee 
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o An explanation of methodology on how report was constrllliied. 

Task 10. Deliverables 

Z. Invoice(s) for the content, layout and design, and any and all revisions related to Survey 
Summary Report 

AA. Final Survey Summary Report 

Task 11. Conduct Cominunity Meeting #3 

• Grantee shall support a co.mm.unity meeting in Project Area B regarding the formation of a Green 
Benefit District. Grdlltee shall be responsible for: 

o Meeting preparation 
o _ Meeting materials 
o Meeting facilitation 
o Meeting minutes/notes 
o Meeting debrief with the Dolores Park GBD steering committee. 

Task 11 Deliverables 

BB.Invoice for time spent completing Task l l. 
CC.Copy of meeting minutes/notes 
DD. Sign in sheets for community meeting showing attendance 

Task 12. Ongoing Community and Stakeholder Engagement 

• Grantee shall provide ongoing community .and stakeholder engagement support including, but not 
limited to, the following: 

o - Mailer productions 
o Promotional and milrketing materials 
o Setting up and hosting meetings 
a Making and setting up phone calls 
o Neighborhood events 

Tasl{ 12 Deliverables 

EE. Invoice:(s) for work related to Task 12, with sufficient detail to detennine what was accomplished. 
FF. A copy of each item produced-under Task 12. 
GG. Proof of mailing for any item that requires mailing under Task J 2. 

Task 13. Biweekly Public Meetings to Develop Management Plan and Engineer's Report f_or 
Project Area B GBD-

• Grantee shall organize and provide support fur no less than 8 public meetings to develop a Project 
AreaB GBD management plan and engineer's report. 

Task 13 Deliverables 

9 
P1636 



HH. lnvoice(s) for tin1e, labor, and materials. related to 1.he completion of task 13. 
II. Meeting agendas for each community meeting. 
JJ. Meeting notes for each conununity meeting. 

'fask 14. Draft and Final Management Plan 

• Grantee shall develop a management plan based off survey questionnaire input and public 
meetings. 

• Grantee's first version ofmanagcmentplan shall be known as the draft version. 
• Draft version of the management plan must be approved by a majority vote of the Project Area B 

steering committee. 
• Draft versi_on of the management plan shall be submitted to both City's Team and the City 

Attorney for review. 
• Crrantee shall not have a finalized manage1nent plan until an approval letter from both City's 

Team and the City Attorney has been received. 

Task 14. Deliverables 

KK. lnvoice(s) for time, materials, and labor spent on the development of draft and finalized 
management plan for Project Arca B. 

LL. All draft management plans for Project Arca B. 
MJv1. Final management plan for Project Area B. 

Task 15. Draft and Final Engineer's Report 

• Grantee shall develop an engineer's report based off survey questionnaire input and public 
meetings. 

• Grantee's _first version of engineer's report shall be known as the draft version. 
• Draft version of the engineer's report must be approved by a majority vote of the Project Area B 

steering committee. 
• Draft version of the engineer's repoit shall be submitted to both City's Team and the City 

Attorney for review. 
• Grantee! shall not have a finalized engineer's report until an approval letter from both City's Team 

and the City Attorney has been received. 

Ta.~k 15 Deliverables 

NN. Invoice(s) for time, materials, and labor spent on the development of draft and fmalized 
engineer's report for Project Area B, 

00. All draft engineer's report for Project Area B. 
PP. Final engineer's report for Project Arca B. 

Task 16. Assessment Database 

• Grantee shall develop an assessment database for Project Arc:a B. Assessment database shall 
contain: 

o APN. 
o Owner Nrune. 
o SITUS. 
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o Parcel characteristics used to calculate assessments 
o Total Assessment to be paid on that parcel. 
o o/o that parcel's payment would be of total(% of total assessment). 
o Care of. 
o Mailing Address. 
o Mailing City. 
o Mailing State. 

Task 16 Deliverables 

QQ. Invoice(s) for all time, labor, and related fees for the completion of an assessment 
database for Project Area B. 

RR. Final assessment database for Project Area B. 

Task 17. PW and City Attorney Review and Approval 

• Grantee shall obtain Public Works .and City Attorney approval on the Finalized Management Plan 
and Engineer's Report for Project Area B. 

• Grantee shall coJilIIlnnicate the contents of !he finalized Management Plan and Engineer's Report 
for Project Area B to the appropriate District Supervisor(s) 

Task 17 Deliverables 

SS. Approval emails from Public Works and City Attorney for the finalized Management Plan and 
Engineer's Report 

TT. Email indicating contents o[Management Plan and Engineer's Report have been shared with the 
appropriate District Snpervisor(s) 

Task 18. Property Owner Outreach 

• Grantee shall host between 5 .and 10 meetings with large stalcebolders in Project Area B. 
• Large stakeholders shall 1nean the top l 00 individual largest assessment holdcrs in Project /\Jea 

B. 

Task 18 Deliverables 

UV. lnvoicc:(s) for time, labor, and costs incurred in the completion of Task 18. 

Task 19. Ongoing Community and Stakeholder Engagement 

• Grantee shall provide ongoing community and stakeholder engage1nent support including, but not 
limited to, the following: 

o Mailer productions 
o Promotional and marketing materials 
o Setting up and hosting meetings 
o Making and setting up phone ca1ls 
o NeighbOrhood events 

Task 19 Deliverables 
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VV. Invoice(s) for work related to Task 19, \Vith sufficient detail to determine what was 
accomplished. 

WW. A copy ofeacli item produced under 'fask 19. 
XX. Proof of mailing for any item that requires mailing under Task 1_9. 

Task 20. Develop Petition campaign Outrfllch Materials and Strategy 

,. Grantee sha11 develop petition phase outreach materials and strategy. 

Task 20 Deliverables 

YY. Invoice(s) for all time, labor, and materials· used in the completion of Task 20. 

Task 21. Review of Petition Package by City Attorney and PW 

• Grantee shall secure approval of the City Attorney and PW prior to inailing the petition package 
to potential assessment payers. 

Task 21 Deliverables 

ZZ. Approval ernai1 from the City Attorney 
AAA. Approval email from PW 

Task 22. Develop and Mail Petition Package 

• Grantee sba!l develop and mail a petition package to all potential assessment payers within 
Project Area B. 

'l'ask 22 Deliverables 

BBB. Invoice(s) for the printing and 1nailing of petitions 

Task 23. Property Owner Outreach and Petition Tracl,ing 

• Grantee shall be responsible for property owner outreach through the petition phase. 
~ Grantee shall be responsible for tracking returned petitions throughout the petition phase. 
• Grantee shall conduct outreach to ensure 30% or more of the total weighted assessments of the 

district respond in favor of forming a GBD. 
• In the event the third bullet point ofTa..--;k 23 is not completed, Grantee cannot bill or invoice for 

Tasks24--31. 

Tasl' 23 Deliverables 

CCC. Invoice(s) for time, labor, and costs incurred in the completion of cf ask 23. 
DDD. Bi-weekly petition tracker updates to City's Team. 
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Task24. Communications and Engagement for Go.vernment Audit and Oversight Committee and 
Board of Supervisors Hearings 

• Gran:tee shall be responsible for all pertinent community communication and engagement related 
to Govemrnent Audit and Oversight Committee hearings and Board of Supervisors hearing. 

Task 24 Deliverables 

BEE. Invoice(s) for time, labor, and costs incurred in the completion of Task 24. 

Task 25. Ongoing Community and Stakeholder Engagement 
• Graniee shall provide ongoing community and stakeholder engagement support including, but not 

limited to, the following: 
o Mailer productions 
o Promotional and marketing materials 
o Setting up and hosting meetings 
o Making and setting up phone calls 
o Neighborhood events 

Taslt 25 Deliverables 

FFF. Invoice(s) for work related to Task 19, with sufficient detail to detennine what was 
accomplished. 

GGG. A copy of each item produced under Task 19. 
Hlffi. Proof of mailing for any item that requires mailing under 1'ask 19. 

Task 26. Develop Ballot Campaign Outreach Materials and Strategy 

• Grantee shall develop a ballot campaign strategy and develop outreach materials for the ballot 
phase. 

Task 26 Deliverables 

Ill. Invoice(s) for work related to 'fask 26. 

Task 27. Develop Ballot Cover Letter and Submit to the Department of Elections 

• Grantee shall develop a ballot package which shall include cover letter, fmal Management Plan, 
and final Engineer's Report and submit it to the Departrnent of Elections via PW. 

Task 27 Delivcrubles 

JJJ. Invoice(s) for work related to Task 27 along with final version of cover Jetter. 

Tasl( 28. Property Owner Ontrcach and Ilallot Tracking 
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e Grantee shall be responsible for property o\vner 01rtreach through the balloting period, ensuring 
that identified "YES" votes fill out their ballot(s) and tum them into the Department of Elections 
via mail, courier, or in person. 

'" Grantee shall receive a ballot report every Friday of the balloting period from PW. Grantee shall 
review balloting report and provide a best guess esti1nate to whether or not a vote is in fa..,, or of 
the GBD or not. Grantee shall provide City's Team an estimate of where the vote would land if 
election ended at that ballot period. 

Task 28 Deliverables 
KKK. Invoice(s) for any mailers sent out associated with property owner outreach during this 

period. 
LLL. Ballot reports returned to City's Team with updated hypotheses and vote projections. 

Task 29. Communication and Engagement for Board of Supervisors Hearing and Resolution of 
Establishment 

• Grantee shall be responsible for all pertinent community communication and engagement related 
to Government Audit and Ove~igbt Committee hearing(s) and Board of Supervisors hearing(s) 
related to balloting. 

Task 29 Deliverables 

MMM. Invoice(s) for all time, materials, labor, and costs incurred in the completion of Task 29. 

Task 30. Ongoing Community :ind Stake bolder Engagement 

• Grantee shall provide ongoing eo1nrnuuity and stakeholder e11gage1nent support including, but not 
limited to, the following: 

o Mailer productions 
o Promotional and marketi.ng materials 
o Setting up and hosting meetings 
o Making and setting up phone calls 
o Neighborhood events 

Task 30 Deliverables 

NNN. lnvoice(s) for work related to Task 30, with sufficient detail to detennine what was 
accomplished. 

000. A copy of each ite1n produced under Task 30. 
PPP. Proof of mailing for any item that requires mailing under Task 30. 

'fask 31. Resolution of Establishment Signed by the Mayor and Certified by the Clerk of the Board 
of Supervisors 

• Grantee shall provide City's Ternn with a certified copy, \Vith Mayor's signature, of the 
Resolution of Establishment indicating the GBD passed tl1e 'Vote and has beeu established. 

Task 31 Deliverables 
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Young, Victor (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Wednesday, February 12, 2020 4:26 PM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Please include as part of Sunshine Ordinance Task Force record: files #19061 and 19062 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or .attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Victor: 

Please include this information in the SOTF reading file for the Complaint Committee on 
2/18/20 as part of the official record of files #19061 and 19062 which I will present and 
also make this information available to the full Task Force. 

The linked article referenced below relates directly to public concerns about DPW and 
OEWD's involvement with San Francisco Parks Alliance and involves issues which have 
been brought before the SOTF for more than a year. 

SF corruption probe: PG&E, major 
construction firms, nonprofits hit with 
subpoenas 
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. is among the companies served with a subpoena Wednesday, a!ong with 
major construction firms Webcor, Pankow and Clark Construction. 

Waste management company Recology was also hit wlth a subpoena. 
Nonprofits the San Francisco Parks Alliance, the Lefty Lefty O'Doul's Foundation for Kids and 

the San Francisco Clean City Coalition were also served. 

h ttps :/ f WWIN. sf ch ro n i cl e. co m/b a ya rea/ artic\e/S F-co rru ptio n-p ro be-P G-E-major -cons tru ctio n-
15051179. p hp 
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Young, Victor (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Monday, February 10, 2020 10:08 AM 

SOTF1 (BOS) 
Fwd: Mission Dolores GBD Petition Drive has now run more than 300 days 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Please include this email and the 2!7/20 email below in the record of SOTF file 19062. Please note 
that, at the 1/21/20 SOTF hearing, the SOTF Chair asked DPW's David Steinberg the status of the 
Mission Dolores Green Benefit District. Mr Steinberg responded that he did not know. The DPW 
Green Benefit District Program Manager, who presumably would have been in a position to update 
the SOTF, was not in attendance. 

Thank you, John 

-----Original Message-----
From: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
To: jonathan.goldberg <jonathan.goldberg@sfdpw.org> 
Sent Fri, Feb 7, 2020 12:21 pm 
Subject: Mission Dolores GBD Petition Drive has now run more than 300 days 

To: Jonathan Goldberg, Green Benefit District Progam Manager, DPW. 

Hi Jonathan: 

Could you please let me know the status of the Mission Dolores GBD Petition Drive to the 
Board of Supervisors, initiated on or about April 12, 2019. 

ls the signature gathering effort still being pursued? If so, what percentage of the required 
signatures have been received and how much longer will the petition drive be allowed to 
continue? 

Appreciate your acknowledging receipt of this message. 

Thank you, 

John Hooper 
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Young, Victor (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Tuesday, February 11, 2020 11 :01 AM 

SOTF, {BOS) 

For SOTF Complaint Comm 2/18/20 files #19061 and 19062 
SOTF Complaint Comm 21820.pages 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Statement before the SOTF .Complaint Committee re City's failure to provide" full and complete responses to PRA 
requests regarding a pro_posed, publicly-funded Mission Dolores Green Benefit District. Files# 19061 and #19062 

February 18, 2020 

Thank you for this opportunity. My name is John Hooper. My appearance today originated with a PRA request filed with various 
agencies, on February 11, 2019, a little over a year ago. After several follow-up requests to OEWD and DPW to provide complete 
information, I filed a second similar PRA request on May 29, 2019 and a complaint to this body. 

This comn1ittee established SOTF jurisdiction over my complaints al a meeting on August 20, 2019 and forwarded the matters to the full 
Task Force. I appeared before the task force on January 21, 2020. However, because I had neglected to submit new information to the 
Task Force in a timely manner prior to that hearing, this matter was referred back to you. That was my oversight and 1 apologize. I 
submitted the statement I had intended to make that day in person, requesting that it be made part of the official record. 

The whole issue of Green Benefit Districts (GBD), of which you have hEiard testimony from numerous citizens over the past year, is 
particularly noteworthy now because the GBD program can be traced back directly to the desk of Mohammed Nuru, the disgraced head 
of DPW who is now being investigated on multiple charges of corruption. See my 413119 letter to the City Attorney at footnote 3, page 
F1. 

Prior to filing my SOTF complaint, 1 made numerous efforts to work with OEWD to obtain items that I still had not seen ((316). On 
several occasions, OEWD informed me that it had sent me everything it had available and closed the request; yet, when I insisted, the 
agency continued to send more information. This piecemeal release of information by OEWD is disconcerting and undermines the 
public's faith in City Government. 

This is a· serious issue for SOTF. Will this body allow an agency to state it has satisfied its obligations under the Sunshine Ordinance 
by inundating the public with irrelevant information or will you require substantive and complete responses provided by knowledgeable 
employees within a given agency? 

Attempts to obtain information 

2/17 - certified letter to OEWD returned as "Undeliverable" (photocopy and 286) 
2/25/19 I write to OEWD stating my letter was returned and sending 2/11/19 letter again.(318) 
2/25/19 OEWD replies that it is collecting documents 
3/5/19 - I write to OEWD saying I've had no response to ·my 2/11/1 9 request (305) 
3/5/19 I receive a series of 44 emails from OEWD - each with multiple attachments - purporting to respond to my 2/11/19 PRA request. 
(322-363) 
3/25/19 - more documents arrive from OEWD 
5/7/19 email from me to OEWD sending list of items still not received as requested on 2/11/19 (316 and 288) 
517/19 response from OEWD: does not have any more docs and is closing this request (319) 

6/7 /19 info still not received (296) 
6/11119 exchange of emails between me and SOTF (313) while 1 was out of town for an emergency. OEWD representative tells 

members of SOTF that "Mr Hooper was at the Bohemian Grove and lost documents." This is a complete fabrication; I was with my 
daughter who had brain surgery at the Barrow Brain Center in Phoenix on 6/13/1 9. In any case, I am not a member of the Bohemian 
Grove and would have had no reason for being there. I did not lose any documents. 
6/11/19 to DPW (19062 - 483 mentions a "thumb drive" (never received by me) and 484 
6/12-13/19 and 7/3/1 9 exchanges of emails between me, SOTF and Parks Alliance (310 -312) 
6/14/19 OEWD sends more info relating to MD GBD, most of it right on GBD website (308; 322. 363; 364 and 365 ·424) 
6/21/19 OEWD reiterates it has been fully responsive (305) 

713/19 same statement again (303) 
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8/20 - I appear before the SOTF Complaint Committee. OEWD representative hands me a packet of papers "as a courtesy" purporting 
to be all the information it has. Packet turns out to be obsolete information or pages copied from public websites. Jurisdiction is 
established and my file forwarded to the full SOTF for consideration. 

1121/20 SOTF Chair asked DPWs Custodian of Records David Steinberg the status of the Mission Dolores GBD effort. Steinberg 
replies he does not know and DPWs GBD program manager is absent 

217/20 I repeat a question to DPWs Green District Manager about status of MDGBD. No response. 

The first four questions in my original PRA request dated 2/11/19 pertained exclusively lo the now defeated Greater Buena Vista GBD. 
It appears from email correspondence that DPW, OEWD and the GBV GBD formation committee conspired to alter the original OEWD 
grant application so that it would appear to qualify for funding. See 4/3/19 letter to City Attorney at at Footnote 4 pages F2 and F3. 

However, questions 5 through 9 pertain lo the Mission Dolores GBD which the City is still promoting and funding through a July 2018 
contract with SF Parks Alliance which runs through June of this year. 

Information requested on February 11, 201 g and still not received 

5. Verbatim transcripts, photographs, videos, tape recordings, sign-in sheets, attendance records, notes, memoranda, reports, and any 
other records in any form of public meetings to discuss, organize, and/or promote a Mission Dolores GBD held on September 17, 201. 8, 
October 10, 2018, and/or November 15, 2018. NOT RECEIVED 

6. All emails, text messages, and other correspondence, including minutes of all MDGBD formation committee·meetings, relating to the 
planning, execution, and/or follow-up related to public meetings to discuss, organize, 8.nd/or promote a Mission Dolores GBD held on 
September 17, 2018, October 10, 2018, and/or November 15, 2018. NOT RECEIVED 

7. All raw survey data collected in connection with Mission Dolores GBD surveys. SOME DATA RECEIVED 

8. All documents, records, and/or correspondence relating to the funding and initiation of a management plan/engineer's report in 
connection with a Mission Dolores GBD. NOT RECEIVED 

9. All public records, as defined in Gov. Code Section 6252 (c) and (e), including correspondence (including but not limited to letters, e
mails, and text messages), contracts, agreements, mailing lists, surveys and online surveys, responses to surveys and online surveys, 
budgets, expenditures, and memoranda (including all methods of transcription) memorializing, describing, or otherwise relating to the 
planning for, public interest and/or opinion surveying for, expenditure of public funds for, organization, and/or formation of a possible 
Mission Dolores GBD. NOT RECEIVED, other than some information about the survey. 

In a nutshell, OEWD has blocked release of invoices or money spent under the current MDGBD contract. There is no accounting of any 
money spent under a $ 156,000 contract The "official" explanation is ii doesn't exist. 

But, the MDGBD engineering report exists, the MDGBD management Plan exists and the Boston Tech Survey was completed. 
Incidentally·. all of these documents have been officially questioned due to bias and inaccuracy. 

We also know the this information exists because much of it is required to be provided to OEWD under the terms of the July 1 , 2018 
contract between OEWD and Parks Alliance. See the attachment to my statement of January 21, 2020 entitled Tasks and Deliverables 
under Project Area B: Dolores Park Neighborhood. All the information required by OEWD under that contract is required to be made 
available to the public. 

Today, 1 request that you reaffirm your jurisdiction over this matter and send my files to the full SOTF. Thank you. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS} 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Tuesday, February 11, 2020 11 :13 AM 

SOTF, {BOS) 

Correction to SOTF submission for the record re #19061 and 09162 
SOTF Complaint Comm 2_18_20.pages 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Victor: 

Please excuse me. I just sent you an email with my proposed statement for the 2/18/20 Complaint 
Committee hearing. 

The content in the body of that earlier email is correct but the attachment I sent was an earlier draft. 

This attachment should be the current version. 

Please let me know if this is still confusing. 

John 415-990-9511 (cell) or 415-626-8880 (office) 
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, 

firms, nonprofits hit with subpoenas 

Dominic Fracassa 
Feb. 12, 2020 i Updated: Feb. 20, 2020 9:17a.m. 
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File - In this March 19, 2015, file photo, Mohammed Nuru, director of San Francisco Public Works, is 

interviewed at the Tenderloin Pit Stop mobile bathrooms in San Francisco, A top San Francisco official in 

charge of cleaning up the city's notoriously Althy streets and a champion of adding more portable toilets has 

been arrested, jail ... 

Photo: Jeff Chiu/ Associated Press 

The Sa11 Francisco city attor11ey's office issued subpoenas for eight co111panies and 

11onprofit orga11izations Wednesday as part of the ongoing govern1ne11t corn1ptio11 

scandal lat111ched i11 the walze of former P11blic Worlzs Director Moha1n111ed N11ru's 
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Construction. 

Waste manage111ent company Recology was also hit witl1 a s11bpoena. Nonprofits 

tl1e Sa11 Francisco Parl<::s Alliance, tl1e Lefty O'Do11l's Fo11ndatio11 for Kids - wl1ich 

has already been implicated in the scandal - and the San Francisco Clean City 

Coalition were also served. 

,-- ··-.. - -·-:-1 
All the stories~ all the time \ Unlock The chronicle for 95¢ i ·-~~~-1~1:u0rr~ __ J 

The city attorney's office issued the s11bpoe11as beca11se officials s11spected that the 

con1panies and 11onprofits improperly f1111neled donations to city programs and. 

events, incl11ding P11blic Works holiday parties. 

T~~ ~-o.~1~~-~-e.11t_~ City Attorney De1111is Herrera's office demanded would s11ggest the 

investigatio11 is lool<::ing into whether 1noney was sloshing between the con1panies 

and tl1e nonprofits for years, with so111e of it potentially ending up bacl;;: at P11blic 

Worl<::s or other city agencies. 

To print the doc111ne11t, clicl;;: the "Origi11al Dot11n1e11t" link to open 
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111 general, tl1e Sllbpoenas sent to the companies dernand docun1ents dati11g back 

to Janl1ary 2015 detailing a11y pay111e11ts made to tl1e various nonprofit groups. 

That i11clt1des paperwork showing any pay1nents 1nade specifically for city 11oliday 

parties a11d any evide11ce of city e1nployees soliciting "n1oney, goods or services" 

fron1 tl1e corporations. 
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BY DOMINIC FRACASSA BY DOMINIC FRACASSA 

SF corruption case: Nuru resigns 
in Wal{e of fraud charges, but ... 

Corruption case: Nuru, Bovis in 
court as etnployment probe ... 

A recent report in the San Fra11cisco Exa111iner detailed 11ow Webcor, Pa11l<:ow and 

Recology allegedly pumped money into the Lefty O'Dot1l's fot111dation, a children's 

baseball cl1arity n1n by restaurant owner Niel<: Bovis, whicl11nay have paid for a 

$30,000 holiday party for Public Works staff. 

Tl1e s11bpoena to t11e Parl<:s Allia11ce is comprel1ensive, demanding all banlc 

records, correspondence, emails at1d any docu111ents related to tl1e fiscal 

relationship betwee11 the organization and the city. Tl1e Clea11 City Coalition, 

oste11sibly a nonprofit focused on street-clea11i11g and bea11tification worl<, nlust 

disclose any pay1nents it received from Recology, the Parl<s Allia11ce, the Lefty 

O'Doul's fotmdatio11 and any clonations or pay1nents tl1at can1e fron1, or went to, a 

City age11cy or progra1n. 

"We're following the facts, a11d we're followi11g the i11oney," Herrera said in a 

stateme11t. "We are goi1ig to follow the evidence wl1erever it leads. We will get to 

the botton1 of this. San Franciscans deserve 110 less." 

Firms lil<e Webcor, Panlcow a11d Recology rely on city officials to approve their 

co11tracts a11d to gree11-light develop111e11t projects they're involved i11. 
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expecting t11e contribl1tio11 wol1ld be ltsed to ft1lfill tl1e organizatio11's 111issio11" a11d 

used for a l1oliday party toy drive, Si11ger said. The compa11y nlade do11atio11s to t11e 

charity fro1112014 to 2019, all at the req11est of Public Worl<::s officials, Si11ger said. 

A PG&E spokesma11, Matt Nauman, acknowledged that the con1pany received tl1e 

subpoe11a a11d is reviewing it a11d will respond. "PG&E a11d its e1nployees worl< 

hard every day to t1pl1old botl1 tl1e letter and spirit oftl1e law a11d the co111pa11y's 

ow11 etl1ical sta11dards," Nauma11 said. 

Clarl<:: Constn1ction said it wo11ld cooperate fully witl1 the city attor11ey's office, but 

declined to com111ent further. 

Recology said in a staten1e11t it launched its ow11 investigation i11to tl1e co1npany's 

contributions "to tl1e Lefty O'Do11l's Fo1111dation for I<ids, tl1e San Francisco Parks 

Alliance ru1d the San Fl:ancisco Clean City Coalition." Tl1e compa11y said it 

contacted the city attorney's office Monday and "pledged to cooperate with ai1y 

i11vestigation." 

N11rt1 resigned his post as the director of Public Works 011 Mo11day, nearly two 

weeks after he was arrested on fraud cl1arges linked to a widenir1g gover111nent 

corruptio11 scru1dal in San Fra11cisco. He 11ad bee11 on paid adn1inistrative leave. 

Nuru a11d Bovis, tl1e owner of tl1e now-closed Lefty O'Doul's resta11rants, are 

acc11sed of concocting several schemes, some ofwl1icl1 were allegedly i11te11ded to 

steer city contracts to Bovis. 

Nuru has also been accused of accepting ,gifts fr<? Ill a billionai~e Chi.11ese develop~r 

i11 exchange for 11elp with a developn1e11t deal, lyi11g; to tl1e FBI, a11d receiving free 

a11d discounted b11ildi11g nlaterials t11at l1e did not disclose. 

M11ltiple people witl1 l<nowledge of tl1e nlatter co11firn1ed tl1at N11r11 has bee11 
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corruption and need to be revol<ed. 

Herrera's office on Wed11esday indicated tl1at the investigation has already yielded 

so1ne results. I11 their criminal con1plaint, federal officials alleged that N11r11 gave 

Bovis i11side i11forn1atio11 to help 11im obtain a city co11tract to build portable toilets 

that wo11ld serve tl1e homeless. Tl1e city attorney and controller's i11vestigation 

. fo11nd tl1at Public Worlzs awarded the $171,000 co11tract to an e11tity tied to Bovis, 

SMTM Technology, in June. 

The company was supposed to deliver tl1e toilets by December, b11t tl1ey never 

arrived. For that reason alone, tl1e city was able to ter1ninate the contract, which it 

did last weel<, Herrera's office said. No city nloney was paid to SMTM ii1 connection 

with tl1at co11tract. 

Herrera ai1d City Controller Ben Rosenfield have provided glimpses into the scope 

and progress of their respective inquiries to the p11blic an1id widespread outcry at 

the corr11ption allegations. Last week, Herrera a11d Rose11field tool< tl1e t1n11s11al 

step of 011tli11i11g tl1e contours of tl1e investigation d11e in part to several 

supervisors s11ggesting that city officials could not be entrusted to produce a11 

independent investigation. 

S11pervisors Matt Haney, Dean Preston and Gordon Mar have said it's essential to 

11ave a separate inquiry cond11cted by a firm outside the orbit of city govern1nent. 

In his brief resignatio11 letter to City Ad1ni11istrator Naon1i I<elly, Nuru requested 

the paperworl< to apply for his full $91,000 annual pension. Under San Fraricisco 

law, individ11als convicted of crimes of moral turpitude can get their city pensions 

revolced. But Nuru's court case is still in its infa11cy. lie and Bovis are due back i11 

federal co11rt Th11rsday to finalize the terms of tl1eir bonds. 

While city officials search for Nuru's per111anent replacen1ent, Alaric Degrafinried 
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None of the other co111panies or 11011profits i11volved i11 tl1e investigation responded 

to reqt1ests for co1n111e11t. 

Sa11 F1-a11cisco Cl1ro11icle staff· writers Rola11d Li m1d A1111a Bai11na11 co11tribi1ted to 

tl1is 1·epo1t. 

Do1ni11ic Fracassa is a Sa11 Francisco Chro11icle staff writeL E1nail: 

dfracassa@sfcl1ronicle.co111 Twitter: @domi11icfracassa 

Sign up for Breaking News alerts 

Get critical updates on the biggest stories in the Bay Area. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS} 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

_ John C. Hooper -<hooparb@aol.com> 

Wednesday, February 12, 2020 4:26 PM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Please include as part of Sunshine Ordinance Task Force record: files #19061 and 19062 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Victor: 

Please include this information in the SOTF reading file for the Complaint Committee on 
2/18/20 as part of the official record of files #19061 and 19062 which I will present and 
also make this information available to the full Task Force. 

The linked article referenced below relates directly to public concerns about DPW a.nd 
OEWD's involvement with San Francisco Parks Alliance and involves issues which have 
been brought before the SOTF for more than a year. 

SF corruption probe: PG&E, major 
construction firms, nonprofits hit with 
subpoenas 
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. is among the companies served with a subpoena Wednesday, along with 
major construction firms Webcor, Pankow and Clark Construction. 

Waste management company Recology was also hit with a subpoena. 
Nonprofits the San Francisco Parks Alliance, the Lefty Lefty O'Doul's Foundation for Kids and 

the San Francisco Clean City Coalition were also served. 

http s ://www. sf chronic \e. com Iba vare a/ a rti cle/S F -co rrupti on-prob e-P G-E-m aj or -con stru cti on-
15051179. p hp 
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, 
firms, nonprofits hit with subpoenas 

Dominic Fracassa 
Feb.12, 2020 I Updated: Feb. 20, 2020 9:17a.m. 
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File - In this March 19, 2015, file photo, Mohammed Nuru, director of San Francisco Public Works, is 

interviewed at the Tenderloin Pit Stop mobile bathrooms in San Francisco. A top San Francisco official in 

charge of cleaning up the city's· notoriously filthy streets and a champion of adding more portable toilets has 

been arrested, jail ... 

Photo: Jeff Chiu/ Associated Press 

The Sa11 Francisco city attorney's office iss11ed subpoenas for eight co1npa11ies and 

i1onprofit organizations Wed11esday as part of the 011going gover11111e11t cormptio11 

scandal lau11ched in tl1e wal<::e of former P11blic Worl<::s Director Mol1a1111ned Nuru's 

P1656 

1'111'11'"1'1'"1'1 11°'1'1 h~K 



"corruption probe: PG&E, 1najor construction fi11ns, nonprofits h ... https://vi'W\.\'.sfchronicle.corn/bayarea/artic\e/SF-corruption-probe-... 

Wildfires Voter Gulde Virus Local Food Election Sporting Green Biz+ Tech Culture Dat 

Constructio11. 

Waste ma11age111ent co1npany Recology was also 11it with a subpoena. Nonprofits 

tl1e Sa11 Francisco Parlcs Alliance, the Lefty O'Dot1l's Fot111dation for Kids -wl1icl1 

has already been ii11plicated i11 tl1e scandal - and the Sa11 Francisco Clean City 

Coalition were also served. 

All the stories, all the time I Unlock The Chronicle for 95¢ 

Tl1e city attorney's office issued tl1e st1bpoe11as because officials sttspected that the 

compa11ies and nonprofits improperly fu11neled donatio11s to _city programs ai1d 

events, i11clt1di11g Pttblic Worlcs holiday parties. 

T_l~e dos:u111~nts City Attorney Den11is Herrera's office demanded wottld s11ggest the 

investigation is looking i11to whether 111011ey was sloshing between the con1panies 

a11d the no11profits for years, with some of it potentially ending t1p back at P11blic 

Worlcs or other city agencies. 

To print the docume11t, click t11e "Original Doc11111ent" li11lc to ope11 
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In general, the st1bpoenas sent to the compa11ies demand documents dating back 

to Ja11uary 2015 detaili11g any payments n1ade to the variot1s nonprofit grot1ps. 

Tl1at inclttdes paperwork showing any payments 111ade specifically for city 11oliday 

parties and any evidence of city employees soliciting "money, goods or services" 

fro1n the corporatio11s. 
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BY DOMINIC FRACASSA 

SF corruption case: Num resigns 
in wake of fraud charges, but ... 

BY DOMINIC FRACASSA 

Corruption case: Nuru, Bovis in 
court as employment probe ... 

A recent report i11 tl1e Sai1 Fra11cisco Exa111i11er detailed 11ow Webcor, Pa11l<::ow and 

Recology allegedly pt11nped money into the Lefty O'Dot1l's fou11dation, a children's 

baseball cl1arity run by restaurant ow11er Nick Bovis, whicl1 may have paid for a 

$30,000 holiday party for Public Works staff. 

Tl1e st1bpoe11a to tl1e Parl<::s Alliance is comprel1e11sive, dernanding all banl<:: 

records, correspondence, emails a11d a11y doct1111ents related to tl1e fiscal 

relatio11sl1ip between the orga11ization a11d the city. The Clea11 City Coalition, 

ostensibly a nonprofit focused 011 street-cleani11g a11d beautificatio11 work, n1t1st 

disclose any pay1nents it received from Recology, tl1e Parl<::s Allia11ce, tl1e Lefty 

O'Doul's fo11ndatio11 and any do11ations or pay111ents that came from, or weut to, a 

city agency or program. 

"We're following the facts, ai1d we're following the 111oney," Herrera said in a 

staten1e11t. "We are going to follow the evidence wl1erever it leads. We will get to 

the botto111 of this. San Franciscans deserve no less." 

Firn1s lil<::e Webcor, Panl<::ow and Recology rely on city officials to approve their 

contracts ai1d to green-light developn1e11t projects tl1ey're involved i11. 
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expecting the contrib11tio11 wo11ld be 11sed. to fulfill tl1e orga11izatio11's nlission" and 

used for a holiday party toy drive, Si11ger said. Tl1e co1npa11y n1ade do11ations to the 

charity fro1n 2014 to 2019, all at tl1e req11est of Public Works officials, Si11ger said. 

A PG&E spolcesn1an, Matt Nau1nan, acknowledged tl1at the con1pany received the 

subpoe11a and is reviewi11g it and will respond. "PG&E and its e1nployees worlc 

hard every day to upl1old both tl1e letter and spirit of tl1e law a11d tl1e co111pany's 

own ethicalsta11dards," Nauman said. 

Clark Co11stn1ction said it would cooperate fully witl1 the city attorney's office, b11t 

declined to com111ent further. 

Recology said in a staten1e11t it launched its ow11 i11vestigation into the company's 

contributio11s "to the Lefty O'Doul's Fo11ndation for I<ids, tl1e San Francisco Parks 

Alliance a11d the Sa11 Francisco Clean City Coalition." The company said it 

contacted the city attor11ey's office Monday and "pledged to cooperate with any 

investigation." 

Nur11 resigned his post as the director of Public Works on Mo11day, nearly two 

weeks after he was arrested 011 fraud charges linked to a wideni11g gover11ment 

corruption scandal in San Francisco. He had bee11 on paid adn1inistrative leave. 

N11r11 a11d Bevis, the owner oftl1e now-closed Lefty O'Doul's resta11rants, are 

acctlSed of concocting seVeral scl1emes, some ofwl1ich were allegedly i11tended to 

steer city contracts to Bevis. 

Nur11 has also been acc11sed of accepti,nis gifts f!otn a 1Jilli.011aire Cl~11e.~e .develo.per 

i11 exchange for 11elp with a develop111ent deal, ly.in~. t.? t11e _F~I, a11d receiving free 

a11d disco11nted building materials that 11e did not disclose. 

Multiple people with lc11owledge of the iuatter co11fir1ned t11at N11r11 l1as been 
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corr11ption a11d 11eed to be revoJ::::ed. 

Herrera's office on Wednesday i11dicated that the investigatio11 has already yielded 

so111e results. 111 tl1eir criminal con1plai11t, federal officials alleged t11at Nllrll gave 

Bovis i11side inforn1atio11to11elp him obtain a city co11tract to bl1ild portable toilets 

that wo11ld serve the 1101neless. Tl1e city attorlley and controller's investigation 

fo1111d tl1at Public Works awarded the $171,000 co11tract to an e11tity tied to Bovis, 

SMTM Tecl1nology, in Ju11e. 

The company was supposed to deliver tl1e toilets by Dece1nber, b11t tl1ey never 

arrived. For that reaso11 alo11e, the city was able to ter1ninate the contract, whicl1 it 

did last weelc, Herrera's office said. No city mo11ey was paid to SMTM in co1111ectio11 

witl1 tl1at contract. 

Herrera and City Controller Ben Rosenfield 11ave provided glimpses into tl1e scope 

and progress of their respective i11quiries to the public an1id widespread outcry at 

tl1e corr11ption allegations. Last week, Herrera a11d Rosenfield toolc the llnl1s11al 

step of Olttli11i11g t11e contours of the investigation due in part to several 

supervisors suggesting tl1at city officials could not be e11trusted to produce an 

i11dependent investigation. 

S11pervisors Matt Haney, Dean Presto11 and Gordo11Mar11ave said it's essential to 

11ave a separate inqniry condttcted by a firm outside the orbit of city govern11lent. 

In his brief resignation letter to City Ad111i11istrator Naomi I<elly, Nuru requested 

the paperworlz to apply for his full $91,000 annnal pe11sion. Under San Francisco 

law, i11divid11als convicted of crin1es of 111oral t11rpit11de ca11 get tl1eir city pensions 

revolzed. B11t N11ru's conrt case is still i11 its i11fancy. He and Bovis are d11e back i11 

federal court Tl1ursday to finalize tl1e terms of tl1eir bonds. 

While city officials searcl1 for Nl1ru's per111anent replacen1e11t, Alaric Degrafinried 
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None of the other co111panies or 11onprofits ii1volved in the i11vestigation responded 

to req11ests for comment. 

San F1-a11cisco Chro11icle staff writers Roland Li m1d An11a Bait1na11 co11tribirted to 

this report. 

Do1ni11ic Fracassa is a San Fra11cisco Chro11icle staff writer. E1nail: 

dtracassa@sfcl1ronicle.co111 Twitte1-: @dominicfracassa 
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Young, Victor (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

John C. Hoop.er <hooparb@aol.com> 
Thursday, February 13, 2020 10:57 AM 
Young, Victor (BOS) 
Calvillo, Angela {BOS) 
Another format: SOTF statement for the record re #19061 and 09162 

Hi Victor: Apologies for the inconvenience. Here is my statement below copied into the body of this 
email. Will this work? I'm out the door now to a meeting but will be back later today. Thanks John 

Statement before the SOTF Complaint Committee re City's failure to provide full and complete 
·responses to PRA requests regarding a proposed, publicly-funded Mission Dolores Green 

Benefit District. Files # 19061 and #19062 
February 1 B, 2020 

Thank you for this opportunity. My name is John Hooper. My appearance today originated with a PRA 
request filed with various agencies, on February 11, 2019, a little over a year ago. After several 
follOw-up requeSts to OEWD and DPW to provide complete information, I filed a second similar PRA 
request on May 29, 2019 and a complaint to this body. 

This committee established SOTF jurisdiction over my complaints at a meeting on August 20, 2019 
and forwarded the matters to the full Task Force. I appeared before the task force on January 21, 
2020. However, because I had neglected to submit new information to the Task Force in a timely 
manner prior to that hearing, this matter was referred back to you. That was my oversight and I 
apologize. I submitted the statement I had intended to make that day in person, requesting that it be 
made part of the official record. 

The whole issue of Green Benefit Districts (GBD) , of which you have heard testimony from numerous 
citizens over the past year, is particularly noteworthy now because the GBD program can be traced 
back directly to the desk of Mohammed Nuru, the disgraced head of DPW who is now being 
investigated on multiple charges of corruption. See my 4/3/19 letter to the City Attorney at footnote 3, 
page F1. 

Prior to filing my SOTF complaint, I made numerous efforts to work with OEWD to obtain items that I 
still had not seen ((316). On several occasions, OEWD informed me that it had sent me everything it 
had available and closed the request; yet, when I insisted, the agency continued to send more 
information. This piecemeal release of information by OEWD is disconcerting and undermines the 
pub!ic's faith in City Government. 

This is a serious issue for SOTF. Will this body allow an agency to state it has satisfied its obligations 
under the Sunshine Ordinance by inundating the public with irrelevant information or will you require 
substantive and complete responses provided by knowledgeable employees within a given agency? 

Attempts to obtain information 

2/17 - certified letter to OEWD returned as "Undeliverable" (photocopy and 286) 
2/25/19 I write to OEWD stating my letter was returned and sending 2111/19 letter again.(318) 
2/25/19 OEWD re·plies that it iS Collecting documents 
3/5/19 - I write to OEWD saying I've had no response to my 2/11/19 request (305) 
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3/5/19 \receive a series of 44 emails from OEWD - each with multiple attachments - purporting to 
respond to rny 2/11/19 PRA request. (322-363) 
3/25/19 - more documents arrive from OEWD 
5/7/19 email from me to OEWD sending list of items still not received as requested on 2/11/19 (316 

and 288) · 
5/7/19 response from OEWD: does not have any more docs and is closing this request (319) 

6/7 /19 info still not received (296) 
6/11/19 exchange of emails bet_ween me and SOTF (313) while I was out of town for an emergency. 

OEWD representative tells members of SOTF that "Mr Hooper was at the Bohemian Grove and lost 
documents." This is a complete fabrication; I was with my daughter who had brain surgery at the 
Barrow Brain Center in Phoenix on 6/13/19. In any case, I am not a member of the Bohemian Grove 
and would have had no reason for being there. 1 did not lose any documents. 
6/11/19 to DPW (19062. 483 mentions a "thumb drive" (never received by me) and 484 
6/12-13/19 and 7 /3/19 exchanges of emails between me, SOTF and Parks Alliance (310 -312) 
6/14/19 OEWD sends more info relating to MD GBD, most of it right on GBD website (308; 322. 

363; 364 and 365 -424) 
6/21/19 OEWD reiterates it has been fully responsive (305) 
7 /3/19 same statement again (303) 
8/20 - I appear before the SOTF Complaint Committee. OEWD representative hands me a packet of 
papers "as a courtesy" purporting to be all the information it has. Packet turns out to be obsolete 
information or pages copied from public websites. Jurisdiction is established and my file forwarded to 
the full SOTF for consideration. 

1/21/20 SOTF Chair asked DPW's Custodian of Rec.ords David Steinberg the status of the Mission 
Dolores GBD effort. Steinberg replies he does not know and DPW's GBD program manager is absent 

217120 l repeat a question to DPW's Green District Manager about status of MDGBD. No response. 

The first four questions in my original PRA request dated 2/11/19 pertained exclusively to the now 
defeated Greater Buena Vista GBD. lt appears from email correspondence that DPW, OEWD and 
the GBV GBD formation committee conspired to alter the original OEWD grant application so that it 
would appear to qualify for funding. See 4/3/19 letter to City Attorney at at Footnote 4 pages F2 and 
F3. 

However, questions 5 through 9 pertain to the Mission Dolores GBD which the City is still promoting 
and funding through a July 2018 contract with SF Parks Alliance which runs through June of this 
year. 

Information requested on February 11, 2019 and still not received 

5. Verbatim transcripts, photographs, videos, tape recordings, sign-in sheets, attendance records, 
notes, memoranda, reports, and any other records in any form of public meetings to discuss, 
organize, and/or promote a Mission Dolores GBD held on September 17, 2018, October 10, 2018, 
and/or November 15, 2018. NOT RECEIVED 

6. All emails, text messages, and other correspondence, including minutes of all MDGBD formation 
committee meetings, relating to the planning,· execution, and/or follow-up related to public meetings to 
discuss, organize, and/or promote a Mission Dolores GBD held on September 17, 2018, October 10, 
2018, and/or November 15, 2018. NOT RECEIVED 
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7. All raw survey data collected in connection with Mission Dolores GBD surveys. SOME DATA 
RECEIVED . 

8. All documents, records, and/or correspondence relating to the funding and initiation of a 
management plan/engineer's report in connection with a Mission Dolores GBD. NOT RECEIVED 

9. All public records, as defined in Gov. Code Section 6252 (c) and (e), including correspondence 
(including but not limited to letters, e-mails, and text messages), contracts, agreements, mailing lists, 
surveys and on line surveys, responses to surveys and online surveys, budgets, expenditures, and 
memoranda (including all methods of transcription) memorializing, describing, or otherwise relating to 
the planning for, public interest and/or opinion surveying for, expenditure of public funds for, 
·organization, and/or formation of a possible Mission Dolores GBD. NOT RECEIVED, other than some 
information about the survey. 

In a nutshell, OEWD has blocked release of invoices or money spent under the current MDGBD 
contract. There is no accounting of any money spent under a$ 156,000 contract. The "official" 
explanation is it doesn't exist. 

But, the MDGBD engineering report exists, the MDGBD manaQement Plan exists and the Boston 
Tech Survey was completed. Incidentally, all of these documents have been officially questioned due 
to bias and inaccuracy. 

We also know the this informatiOn exists because much of it is required to be provided to OEWD 
under the terms of the July 1, 2018 contract between OEWD and Parks Alliance. See the attachment 
to my statement of January 21 ~ 2020 entitled Tasks and Deliverables under Project Area B: Dolores 
Park Neighborhood. All the information required by OEWD under that contract is required to be made 
available to the public. 

Today, I request that you reaffirm your jurisdiction over this matter and send my files to the full SOTF. 
Thank you. 

-----Original Message-----
. From: Young, Victor (BOS) <victor.young@sfgov.org> 
To: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Cc: Calvillo, Mgela (BOS) <angela.calvillo@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thu, Feb 13, 2020 10:37 am 
Subject: RE: Correction to SOTF submiss.ion for the record r8 #19061 and 09162 

Mr. Hooper: 

I am unable to open the document you provided on 2/11/20. Please provide to me in a pdf or word format. 

Thank you. 

Victor Young 
Assistant Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 
phone 415-554-7723 I fax 415-554-5163 
victor.young@sfqov.orgIwww.sfbos.org 

From: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sen_t:_Tu_esday, FebrLIC!ty 11, 2020 11 :13 AM 
To: SOTF, {BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Correction to SOTF submission for the record re #19061 and 09162 
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Victor: 

Please excuse me. I just sent you an email with my proposed statement for the 2/18/20 Complaint 
Committee hearing. 

The content in the body of that earlier email is correct but the attachment I sent was an earlier draft. 

This attachment should be the current version. 

Please let me know if this is still confusing. 

John 415-990-9511 (cell) or 415-626-8880 (office) 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To; 

Cc: 
Subject; 

Follow Up Flag: 

Flag Status: 

Hi David: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Thursday, March 5, 2020 4:56 PM 
Steinberg, David (DPW) 

SOTF, (BOS); Thompson, Marianne (ECN); Corgas, Christopher (ECN) 
Re.: SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Comn1ittee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

Follow up 

Flagged 

The new info I submitted at the full SOTF on 1/21/20 should be available through SOTF. What I submitted was an 

addendum to a 7/1/18 contract between the City and Parks Alliance listing 31 tasks and deliverables, several of which 
are similar to information I asked for in my 2/11/19 PRA request. 

This new submission is intended to show that some of what I have been asking for must exist somewhere. 

If it's easier for me to send you the document, I'd be glad to. 

As you have heard me say before, the reason I have continued to name DPW in these proceedings is that DPW has a full

time GBD program administrator (Jonathan Goldberg) and has transferred DPW funds to OEWD to promote GBDs. So 

it's reasonable to expect DPW to know what's going on. 

It's simply not possible for a concerned member of the public to know whose responsibility It is to provide documents to 
the public when both DPW and OEWD deny such documents exist and Parks Alliance will not release this info. 

This is not intended to be any criticism of your work at alt. 
There is no reason you should be familiar with the duties of another DPW employee. So when you told the Chair of the 

SOTF that you did not know the status of the Mission Dolores GBD effort, that's completely understandable. Why should 

you? It's not your job. 

However, to get to the bottom of this mystery, SOTF needs to compel the appearance of the line officers involved at 
both agencies; in this case, Jonathan Goldberg From DPW and Chris Corgas at OEWD. 

Cheryl, may I please ask that this email be made part of the official record of 19061and19062. 

Thank you! 

John Hooper 

On ~ar 5, 2020, at 2:11 PM, Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> wrote: 

Mr. Hooper or Cheryl, 
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Can we see the documents that were submitted at the full SOTF hearing? The existence of these "new" 
documents are ostensibly the reason we are back at the Complaints Committee, though I don't know 

why they have any relevance to the complaint against Public \llJorks. 

Thank you, 

<image003.jpg> 
David A. Steinberg 

Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 
City Hall, Room 348-1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett PL I San Francisco, CA 94102 I (415) 554-6950 
sfpublicworks.or_g · twitt.er .com/sfpublicwo_rks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/records. 

From: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 

Sent: Thursday, March 5, 2020 12:43 PM 
To: SOTF, {BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Campbell, Thomas {FAM) <tcampbell@famsf.org>; 79999-
25916958@requests.muckrock.com; 80695-54486849@requests.muckrock.com; Cityattorney 

<Cityattorney@sfcityatty.org>; COTE, JOHN (CAT) <John.Cote@sfcityatty.org>; Thompson, Marianne 

(ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; 
Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; grovestand2012@gmail.com; McHale, Maggie 

(HRD} <maggie.rnchale@sfgov.org>; Voong, Henry (HRD} <henry.voong@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Re #19061 and #19062: 

I apologize, but l will not be able to atttend the 3/17 meeting. For the record, I was 
prepared to speak at the Feb 18 meeting which was cancelled for lack of a quorum. 
Please let me know when the next Complaint Commmittee meeting is expected. 
John Hooper 

-----Original Message-----
From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
To: Campbell, Thomas (FAM) <tcarnpbell@famsf.org>; 79999-25916958@requests.muckrock.com 
<79999-25916958@requests.muckrock.com>; 80695-54486849@requests.muckrock.com <80695-
54486849@requests.muckrock.com>: Cityattorney <Cityattorney@sfcityatty.org>; COTE, JOHN (CAT) 
<John.Cote@sfcityatty.org>; JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 
<marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Gorgas, Christopher (ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfqov.org>; 
Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>: Stephen <grovestand2012@gmail.com>: 
McHale, Maggie (HRD) <maggie.mchale@sfgov.org>; Voong, Henry (HRD) <henry.voong@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thu, Ma·r 5, 2020 10: 11 am 
Subject: SOTF - Notice of Appearance- Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.rn. 

Good Morning: 

You are receiving this notice because you are named as a Complainant or Respondent in one of 

the following complaints scheduled before the Complaint Committee of the Sunshine 
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Ordinance Task Force to: 1) hear the merits of the complaint; 2) issue a determination; and/or 
3) consider referrals from a Task Force Committee. 
Date: March 17, 2020 
Location: City Hall, Room 408 

5:30 p.m. Time: 
File No. 19113: Complaint filed by Anonymous against Jason Moment, Thomas Campbell and 
the Fine Arts Museum for allegedly violating Administrative Code {Sunshine Ordinance), 

Sections 67.21(b)(c)(k), 67.29-7{a)(c), 67.25, 67.26, 67.27, CPRA Government Code 6270.5_-5, by 
failing to respond to an Immediate Disclosure Request in a timely and/or complete manner, 
failing to assist, failure to retain records, failing to record third party transactions, withholding 
and failure to justify withholding, failure to respond to a public records request in a timely 

and/or complete manner. 
File No. 1912-0: Complaint filed by Anonymous against the Office of the City Attorney for 
allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.21{b)(c), 67.26, 
67.27, by failing to respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner; 
failing to justify withholding of records and failing to provide assistance. 
File No. 19061: Complaint filed by John Hooper against the Office of Economic and Workforce 
Development for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, 

by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 
File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper against Public Works for allegedly violating 
Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public 
records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 
File No. 19140: Complaint filed by Stephen Malloy against the Department of Human Resources 
for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.21and 67 .25, by 
failing to respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 
Documentation (evidence supporting/disputing complaint) 
For a document to be considered, it must be received at least five {5) working days before the 
hearing {see attached Public cOmplaint Procedure). 
For inclusion in the agenda packet, supplemental/supporting documents must be received by 

5:00 pm; February 12, 2020. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image004.png> 
Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors 

legislation, and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the 
Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records 
Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided 
wi!I not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide per':i.ona! 
identifying information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors 
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and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the 
public submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will 
be nJade available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The 
Clerk's Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information-including names, phone numbers, addresses 
and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Board 
and its committees-may appear an the Board of Supervisors website or in other 
public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Tuesday, May 5, 2020 11:01 AM 
Steinberg, David (DPW) 
SOTF, {BOS) 

Subject: Re: SOTF - Why Public Works is included in SbTF complaints regarding GBDs 

Hi David and Cheryl and hope you and yours are all safe and soundJ 

To respond to David's observation of 3/5/20 (below) asking why Public Works is involved before SOTF, In complaints 

involving GBDs, it is simply because concerned citizens assume that DPW is knowledgeable about all matters pertaining 
to Green Benefit Districts (GBD) because Public Works' staff includes a full time person working on GBDs. 

We have repeatedly requested of SOTF that the full-time Public Works staffer who is responsible for GBDs be required 
to appear before the SOTF to explain the program. We appreciate David Steinberg's several appearances before SOTF 
but his responsibilities as custodian of records are different than the line officer responsible for GBDs. 

We hereby renew our request that SOTF require the responsible official(s} at PW to come before the committee and 
respond to concerns. 

Cheryl, would you please include this exchange of emails as part of the official record of 19061and19062. 

Thank you t 

John Hooper 

On May 5, 2020, at 9:43 AM, Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> wrote: 

Thanks, Cheryl, 

Glad to hear you're back. Hope you're staying safe and healthy in this crazy time! 

Regards, 

<image004.jpg> 
David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisso Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 

City Hall, Room 348-1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Pl. I San Francisco, CA 94102 I {415) S54-6950 
sfpublic"!orks.org · twitter.corn/sfpublicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/records. 

From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 5, 2020 9:43 AM 
To: Steinberg,.D.avid (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdp:w.pfg> 
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Cc: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

Hello David!! As of last week I am back from medical leave. I have included a link to the January 21, 
2020, Agenda where you will find the records you are seeking. Let me know if you need anything else 
from me. 

https://sfgov .o rg/sunshine/sites/default/files/sotf 012120 age nda.pdf 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image005.png> 
Click here lo complete o Bo"rd of Supervisors Custo1ner Service Sotisfaction forni. 

The Legislotive Rese~rch Center provrdes 24-hour access to BoJrd of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since 
Aueust 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal infonnauon that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure 
under the Colifornio Public Records Act o!ld the San Fro1Kisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not 
be redacted. Member.I of the public are not required to provide personal ident•fving information v1hen they com1nvnicote 
wrth the Boo1d of Supervisors and•!> co1nm1ttees. Ail written or orol communications that members of the pvbiic submit 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or l!eorings w1// be mode avmloble to al! 1nembers of the public for 
inspection and copying_ The Clerk's Office does not redact any information fron1 these submissions. This means that 
pP.rsanol information-including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar inforn1ation that o member of rhe public 
elects to submit to the Boord and its committees-may appear on the Boord of Supervisors website or in other public 
documents that member.< of the public may inspect or copy. 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Sent; Thursday, March 5, 2020 2:12 PM 
To: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 
<marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

Mr. Hooper or Cheryl, 

Can we see the documents that were submitted at the full SDTF hearing? The existence of these "new" 
documents are ostensibly the reason we are back at the Complaints Committee, though I don't know 
why they have any relevance to the complaint against Public Works. 

Thank you, 

<image006.jpg> 
David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San ~rcincisco Public Works I City and County of San ~rancisco 
City Hal!, Room 343 -1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Pl. I San Francisco, CA 9~102 I (~15) 55"--6950 
;;f publicworks.org · ~l1tfr J~Q!I!/sfouti_licworks 

ro1· public records requests, please go to ~ublic\'.rorks.org/reco.-ds. 
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From: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 5, 2020 12:43 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS} <sotf@sfgov.org>; Campbell, Thomas (FAM) <tcampbell@famsf.org>; 79999-
2 59169 5 8@ reg ue sts. mu ckro ck. com; 8069 5-5448 6 849 @reg u ests. m uckro ck.com; Cityatto rn ey 
<Cityattorney@sfcityatty.org>; COTE, JOHN (CAT} <John.Cote@sfcityatty.org>; Thompson, Marianne 
(ECN) <mariaiine.thompson@sfgov.org>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; 
Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; grovestand2012@gmail.com; McHale, Maggie 
(HRD) <maggie.mchale@sfgov.org>; Voong, Henry (HRD) <henry.voong@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF- Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Re #19061 and #19062: 

I apologize, but l will not be able to atttend the 3/17 meeting. For the record, I was 
prepared to speak at the Feb 18 meeting which was cancelled for lack of a quorum. 
Please let me know when the next Complaint Commmittee meeting is expected. 
John Hooper 

-----Original Message-----
From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
To: Campbell, Thomas (FAM) <tcampbell@famsf.org>; 79999-25916958@requesls.muckrock.com 
<79999-25916958@requests.muckrock.com>; 80695-54486849@reguests.muckrock.com <80695-
54486849@requests.muckrock.com>; Cityattorney <Cityattorney@sfcityatty.org>; COTE, JOHN (CAT) 
<John.Cote@sfcityatty.org>; JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 
<marianne.thornpson@sfqov.org>; Gorgas, Christopher (ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfqov.org>; 
Steinberg. David (OPV\I) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; Stephen <grovestand2012@gmail.com>; 
McHale, Maggie (HRD) <maqgie.mchale@sfgov.org>: Voong, Henry (HRD) <henrv.voong@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thu, Mars, 202010:11 am 
Subject: SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

Good Morning: 

You are receiving this notice because you are named as a Complainant or Respondent in one of 

the following complaints scheduled before the Complaint Committee of the Sunshine 

Ordinance Task Force to: 1) hear the merits of the complaint; 2) issue a determination; and/or 

3) consider referrals from a Task Force Committee. 

Date: March 17, 2020 

location: City Hall, Room 408 

Time: 5:30 p.m. 

File No. 19113: Complaint filed by Anonymous against Jason Moment, Thomas Campbell and 

the Fine Arts Museum for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), 

Sections 67.21(b){c}(k), 67.29-7(a)(c), 67.25, 67.26, 67:27, CPRA Government Code 6270.5-5, by 

failing to respond to an Immediate Disclosure Request in a timely and/or complete manner, 

failing to assist, failure to retain records, failing to record third party transactions, withholding 

a.nd failure to justify withholding, failure to respond to a public records request in a timely 

and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19120: Complaint filed by Anonymous against the Office of the City Attorney for 

allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67 .21(b )(c), 67.26, 

67.27, by failing to respond to a request for. public records in a tirnely and/or complete manner; 
failing to justify withholding of records and failing to provide assistance. 
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File No. 19061: Complaint filed by John Hooper against the Office of Economic and Workforce 
Development for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, 
by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 
File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper against Public Works for allegedly violating 
Administrative Code {Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public 

records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 
File No. 19140: Complaint filed by Stephen Malloy against the Department of Human Resources 
for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance}, Sections 67.21and 67.25, by 
failing to respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 
Documentation {evidence supporting/disputing complaint) 
For a document to be considered, it must be received at least five (5) working days before the 
hearing {see attached Public Complaint Procedure). 

For inclusion in the agenda packet, supplemental/supporting documents must be received by 
5:00 pm, February 12, 2020. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<imageOOS.png> 

Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors 
legislation, and archived matters since August 1998. 

Discfosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the 
Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records 
Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided 
will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required ta provide personal 
identifying information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors 
and its committees. Alf written or oral communications that members of the 
public submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will 
be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The 
Clerk's Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information-including names, phone numbers, addresses 
and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Board 
and its committees-may appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in other 
public documents that members of the public may insp.ect or copy. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To:· 

Cc: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Tuesday, Mays, 202011:10AM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Steinberg, David {OPW) 
Subject: Re: SOTF -1/21/20 statement re 19061and19062? 

Hi again Cheryl: I can't find the testimony I submitted in person at the SOTF hearing on 1/21/20 in the link you provided 
to David. 

I'm working off a tiny phone screen and apologize if I missed something. 

John Hooper 

On May 5, 2020, at 11:02 AM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

John, Will do. 

Cheryl 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, May 5, 2020 11:01 AM 

To: Steinberg, David {DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Cc: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 

Subject: Re: SOTF- Why Public Works is included in SOTF complaints regarding GBDs 

Hi David and Cheryl and hope you and yours are all safe and sound! 

To respond to David's observation of 3/5/20 {below) asking why Public Works is involved before SOTF, In 

complaints involving GBDs, it is simply because concerned citizens assume that DPW is knowledgeable 
about all matters pertaining to Green Benefit Districts (GBD) because Public Works' staff includes a full 
time person working on GBDs. 

We have repeatedly requested of SOTF that the full-time Public Works staffer who is responsible for 

GBDs be required to appear before the SOTF to explain the program. We appreciate David Steinberg's 

several appearances before SOTF but his responsibilities as custodian of records are different than the 
line officer responsible for GBDs. 

We hereby renew our request that SOTF require the responsible official(s) at PW to come before the 
committee and respond to concerns. 

Cheiyl, would you please include this exchange of emails as part of the official record of 19061 and 

19062. 

Thank you! 

John Hooper 
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On May 5, 2020, at 9:43 AM, Steinberg, David {DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.or,g> 

wrote: 

Thanks, Cheryl, 

Glad to hear you're back. Hope you're staying safe and healthy in this crazy time! 

Regards, 

<image004.jpg> 

David A. Steinberg 

Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public \i\lorks I City and Coun1.y of San Francisco 

City Hall, Room 348-1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Pl. I San Francisco, CA 94102 I (415) 554-69SO 

~fpublic_y<orks.org · twitter.£QII!j"sfpu blicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/(ecords. 

From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 

Sent: Tuesday, May 5, 2020 9:43 AM 

To: Steinberg, David (DPW} <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Cc: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Subject: RE: SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; S:30 

p.m. 

Hello David!! As of last week I am back from medical leave. I have included a link to the 
January 21, 2020, Agenda where you will find the records you are seeking. Let me know 

if you need anything else from me. 

htt ps: // sfgov. o rg/ sunshine I sites/ de fault/files/ sotf O 12120 agenda . pd f 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Tel: 415-554-7724 

<imageOOS.png> 
Click here to complete o Boa rd of Su pervisor1 Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The ,Legislat;ve Research Ce!]t~r prov1 des 24-hour occess to Board or Supervisors legislation, and 

arch 1ved matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided 1h communicot1ons to the Boord ofSupen;i,ors 15 

subject to disclosure under the California Public Records /Let and rhe Son Francisco Sunsi11ne 
Ordinance Personal information provided will not be redacted. Memben of the public ore not 

required to provide personal identifying information when they communico!e with the Boord of 
Supervisor> and its committees. All wntten or oral communications that members of the public 

submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislotion or hearing> v11ll be mad,. avarlob!e ta all 
members of !he public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact ony 
information from these SL·bmiisions. Thi.s 1neo11s that penono! information· ·including nomPs, 

phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the p11blic elects to subrnit to 
the Boord and rts committees-may appear on the Boord of Supervisors web<ite or in other public 

docun1ents that me11•bers of the public may ins pert or copy. 
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From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 

Sent: Thursday, March S, 2020 2:12 PM 
To: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, 

Marianne (ECN} <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) 
<ch risto phe r. co rgas@sfgov. o rg> 

Subject: RE: SOTF- Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 

p.m. 

Mr. Hooper or Cheryl, 

Can we see the documents that were submitted at the full SOTF hearing? The existence 
of these "new" documents are ostensibly the reason we are back at the Complaints 

Committee, though I don't know why they have any relevance to the complaint against 
Public Works. 

Thank you, 

<image006.jpg> 

David A. Steinberg 

Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 
City Hall, Room 348-1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Pl. I San Francisco, CA 94102 I (415) 554-69SO 
~L!blicworks.org · tw1tter.com/sfpublicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/records. 

From: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 

Sent: Thursday, March 5, 2020 12:43 PM 

To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Campbell, Thomas (FAM) <tcampbell@famsf.org>; 
79999-259169 5 8@re q uests. m u ckro ck .corn; 80 69 5-54486 84 9@req ue sts. rn uckrock. corn; 

Cityattorney <Cityattorney@sfcityatty.org>; COTE, JOHN (CAT) 
<John.Cote@sfcityatty.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 

<marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) 

<christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; 

grovestand2012@gmail.com; McHale, Maggie (HRD) <maggie.mchale@sfgov.org>; 
Voong, Henry (HRD) <henry.voong@sfgov.org> 

Subject: Re: SOTF- Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 

p.m. 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do iiot open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Re #19061 and #19062: 

I apologize, but l will not be able to atttend the 3/17 meeting. For the 
record, I was prepa-rea to·spe·ak at th·e F·eb 18 meeting which was 
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cancelled for lack of a quorum. Please let me know when the next 
Complaint Commmittee meeting is expected: 
John Hooper 

-----Original Message-----
Frorn: SOTF, {BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
To: Campbell, Thomas {FAM) <tcampbell@famsf.org>; 79999-
25916958@req uests. muckrock. con1 < 79999-25916 95 B@req uests. mu ckrock. corn> ; 
80695-54486 849@requests. muckrock. com <80695-
54486849@req ues ts. muckrock. com>; City attorney <City attorney@sfcity atty. orq>; CO TE, 
JOHN (CAT) <John.Cote@sfcityatty.org>; JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com>; 
Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thornpson@sfqov.org>; Gorgas, Christopher 
{ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPVV) 
<david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; Stephen <qrovestand2012@qmail.com>; McHale, Maggie 
(HRD) <magqie.mchale@sfgov.org>; Voong, Henry (HRD) <henry.voong@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thu, Mar 5, 2020 10.11 am 
Subject: SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 
pm. 

Good Morning: 

You are receiving this notice because you are named as a Complainant or 

Respondent in one of the following complaints scheduled before the Complaint 

Committee of the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force to: 1) hear the merits of the 

complaint; 2) issue a determination; and/or 3) consider referrals from a Task 

Force Committee. 

Date: March 17, 2020 

Location: City Hall, Room 408 

Time: 5:30 p.m. 

File No. 19113: Complaint filed by Anonymous against Jason Moment, Thomas 

Campbell and the Fine Arts Museum for allegedly violating Administrative Code 

{Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.21(b)(c)(k), 67.29-7(a)(c), 67.25, 67.26, 67.27, 

CPRA Govern_ment Code 6270.5-5, by failing to respond to an Immediate 

Disclosure Request in a timely and/or complete manner, failing to assist, failure 

to retain records, failing to record third party transactions, withholding and 

failure to justify withholding, failure to respond to a public records request in a 

timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19120: Complaint filed by Anonymous against the Office of the City 

Attorney for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), 

Sections 67.21(b}(c), 67.26, 67.27, by failing to respond to a request for public 

records. in a timely and/or complete manner; failing to justify withholding of 

records and failing to provide assistance. 

File No. 19061: Complaint filed by John Hooper against the Office of Economic 

and Workforce Development for allegedly violating Administrative Code 

(Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public records 

request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper against Public Works for 

allegedly violating Administrative Code {Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by 

failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or complete 

manner. 

File No. 19140: Complaint filed by Stephen Malloy against the Department of 

Human Resources for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine 
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Ordinance), Sections 67.21and 67.25, by failing to respond to a request for public 
records in a timely and/or complete manner. 
Documentation (evidence supporting/disputing complaint) 
For a document to be considered, it must be received at least five {5) working 
days before the hearing (see attached Public Complaint Procedure). 
For inclusion in the agenda packet, supplemental/supporting documents must 
be received by 5:00 pm, February 12, 2020. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<imageOOS.png> 
Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service 

Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board 
of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in 
communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to 
disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San 
Francisco sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will 
not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to 
provide personal identifying information when they communicate 
with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written ar 
oral communications that members of the public submit to the 
Clerk 1s Office regarding pending legislation ar hearings will be 
made available to all members of the public for inspection and 
copying. The Clerk 1s Office does not redact any information from 
these submissions. This means that personal information
including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar 
information that a member of the public elects to submit to the 
Board and its committees-may appear on the Board of 
Supervisors website or in other public documents that members of 
the public may inspect or copy. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 

Monday, July 13, 2020 6:32 PM 
l-tsi@pacbell.net; Breed, Mayor London (MYR); Board of Supervisors, (BOS); Peskin, 
Aaron (BOS); Yee, Norrnan (BOS); Mandelrnan, Rafael (BOS); Haney, Matt (BOS); Preston, 

Dean (BOS); Walton, Shamann (BOS); Fewer, Sandra (BOS); Mar, Gordon {BOS) 

Cityattorney; Ethics Commission, (ETH); SOTF, (BOS) 
Re: NY Times - security cameras and Community Benefit Districts 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Thank you, Lilian, for writing the City Administration with an important message. 

Numerous Citizens have been asking the City (Mayor's Office, City Attorney, SOTF, BOS, OEWD, 
DPW etc) to look into CBDs and GBDs for several years. n There has been no (as in ZERO) interest 
at City Hall! 

Commercial Benefit Districts (CBDs) and Green Benefit Districts (GBDs) are major recipients and 
distributors of public funds which are then paid to various autonomous firms (private security, private 
street cleaning, private gardening etc) at the behest of a small group of "in" neighbors which is 
selected for its subservience to City policy. One such recipient of public funds - SF Parks Alliance - is 
currently being investigated by the feds. 

Is a genuine effort being made to clean up San Francisco government? Are you up to it, Mayor 
Breed? 

Best, John Hooper 

-----Original Message-----
From: Lilian Tsi <l-tsi@pacbell.net> 
To: Breed Mayor London (MYR) <mayorlondonbreed@sfgov.org>; Board of Supervisors (BOS) 
<board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; aaron.peskin@sfgov.org <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org >; Norman Yee 
<norman.yee@sfgov.org>; Mandelrnan Rafael (BOS) <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>; matt.haney@sfgov.org 
<matt. h aney@s fg ov. org>: dean. preston@sfg ov. org <dean. presto n@sfg ov. org > : shaman n. wa lton@sfg ov. org 
<shaman n. wa Ito n@sfg ov. org>: sand ra. fewer@sfg ov. org <sand ra. fewer@sfg ov. org> ; go rdo n. mar@sfgov.org 
<gordon.mar@sfgov.org> 
Cc: cityattorney@sfcityatty.org <cityattorney@sfcityatty org>; ethics.commission@sfgov.org 
<ethics. co mm ission@sfgov. o rg > 
Sent: Mon, Jul 13, 2020 5:30 pm 
Subject: NY Times - security cameras and Community Benefit Districts 

Dear Mayor and Board of Supervisors, 

First of all, thank you for your prompt actions regarding the pandemic sweeping through this country. The early actions to 
shut the city down was a good pre-emptive move against a virus which knows no limits. 

While in "shelter in place" mode, lots of reading and the article in the NY Times (link below) highlight issues with 
Community Benefit Districts that are disturbing. 
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1. Community Benefit Districts (CBDs) have to be approved by the Board of Supervisors ... a~er a petition and ballot 
process which is horrifying to say the least. (another rant another time) Proposed CBD's have to make known their 
management plans to the Board of Supervisors. How many of the CBDs included "spyware" in their management plans 
for approval? · 

2. In the article, the rich man on the hill says "it's whack-a-mole" with reference to how the criminals move away from 
Area A to Area B after cameras are installed in Area A. Area B then is forced to install cameras ... and criminals move to 
Area C ... and now ... what if Area C is not a CBD ... are residents/business owners in Area C then forced to set up a CBD so 
that they too can enjoy the largesse of the rich man on the hill? By the way ... the same applies to homeless individuals 
who have been "ushered" away from downtown are now camping in Golden Gate Park ... lovely isn't it when children go to 
the playgrounds or tourists walk in the park and find needles and assorted litter? 

3. CBDs are non-profit organizations and request for grants and additional support for funding beyond collecting 
assessments from property owners. As it is now publicly known ... the OPW and it's crony network of SF Parks Alliance 
nonprofits is rife with corruption. CB Os are potentially now another funnel for corruption for city contracts and 
services_ Or maybe they already are ... 

Cameras filming and documenting crimes are not necessarily an evil. Most honest people don't care and won't 
mind. However, the citizens affected need to consent and be aware of the cameras_ That means, if you are running for 
office, it should be a part of your platform and citizens vote you in to effect such policies. If indeed it is the city's policy to 
have cameras, the cameras need to be everywhere ... notjust in select areas, we can't have some neighborhoods more 
equal than others. CBDs and GBDs are dangerous entities which privatize what should be services provided by the city. 

https: f fwww. nytimes. co m/2 02 0/07 !1 Ofbusin es s/camera-s u rvei I Ian ce-san-franci sco. html 

Writing from home, 
Lilian Stielstra 
Inner Sunset long time resident 
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Leger. Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Good Morning Cheryl, 

Thornpson, Marianne (ECN) 

Monday, September 21, 2020 10:56 AM 
Steinberg, David {DPW); SOTF, (BOS) 

Heckel, Hank (MYR) 

RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061and19062 

hooper.pdf 

I read the document that was sent, and I sincerely do not understand it. I do not see the need to proceed forward. 

M. 

Marianne Ma?lu.cco Thompson 
Office of Econornic and \\lorkforce Development 

City Hall, Room 448 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA94102 

P: 415-554-6297 

E: f\.1arianne. Thorr1pson@sfgov.org 

: f1'j ~~SAN. FRA,~CIS(O 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:20 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS} <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne {ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 

Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Thanks, Cheryl. 

-d. 

David A. Steinberg 

Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1647 I San Francisco, CA 94103 ! (628) 271-2338 

;;_fpublicw.orks.of_g · twitter.com/sfpu blicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/records. 

Note: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: SOTF, (GOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 

Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 2:34 PM 

To: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 

<maria nne.thom pson@sfgov.org> 

Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 
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Hello Marianne and David: Attached are the materials submitted by Mr. Hooper at the January 21, 2020 SOTF 
hearing. let me know if you need anything further. I will be at the office tomorrow if you need me to get other records 
to you. 

Cheryl Leger 
415-425-6918 - my cell 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <davld.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 3:12 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne {ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Hi Cheryl, 

I don't see the additional records that Mr. Hooper provided at the in-person meeting as part of the minutes you 
provided. My notes from previous emails show that you said you had them in your office and you would send us copies 
when the stay-at-home order was li~ed. Do you have access to them? The whole reason to schedule the committee 
meeting was to consider these new records, so there isn't much point holding a meeting until we have copies. 

Thanks much and stay safe. 
-d. 

David A. Steinberg 

• 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San FranciSco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco. 

-• 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1647 I San Francisco, CA 94103 I (628) 271-2888 
sfpubl1cworks.org · twitter.com/sfpublicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/records. 

Note: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

Frorn: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 2:11 PM 
To: Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW} 
<david.stei nberg@sfd pw .org> 
Subject: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Hello Marianne and David: Attached are the minutes from the January 21, 2020, Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
hearing. Reflected in the minutes is the inclusion of records that were provided to Mr. Hooper. I would like to schedule 
these two matters to be heard next month before the Complaint Committee. Please review the minutes and let me 
know if you need anything further from me or if I need to do something. Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Cheryl .Leger@sfgov.org 
Tel: 415-554-7724 
Fax: 415-554-5163 
www.sfbos:org 
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" S::ti Click here to completed !Joo rd of Supervisors Customer Sorvice Satisfaction form. 

The ~gislative Rl;_sgarch Center provides 24-hou r access to Boa rd of Supervisors legi_,lation, and ardHVed molters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that i5 provid~d in communications ta the Boord of Supervisors 15 subject to disclosure under the Cof,jornia 
Public Records /\ct and the San Frondsco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information providEd wii/ not be redacted. Member.> of the public ore 

not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate wilh the Boord of Supervisors and its comrnitte~s- All wri!ten 
or oral communications that members of the pub ire submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending leg1s!ation or hearings wiil be made ovoiiob!e 

to all me1nbers of !he pub/icf"r inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact any information fro1n these subm1ssion5. This means 
that personal information-including names, phone numbers, addres,es and similar informotioo tliat a 1nember a/the pub/re elects to 5ribmit to 
the Boord and its com1nittees-may appfar on lhe Boord of Supervisors website or in other public documents that members of tile public may 

inspect or copy. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

JOHN HOOPER< hooparb@aol.co rn> 
Thursday, September 24, 2020 11 :54 AM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Subject: 
Thompson, Marianne (ECN); Steinberg, David (DPW) 
Re: SOTF - rescheduling GBD hearing 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: I'm now in my SF office with my files at hand. 

I was most recently scheduled to appear before the SOTF Complaint Committee on February 18, 2020 but SOTF 
cancelled that meeting. So you are now seeking to reschedule that meeting, as I understand it. 

I prepared and senrto SOTF the statement I had expected to make on February 18, so It looks like you've got what you 
need. Please let me know if I can provide more info. 

It would be helpful if the Committee would require City employees from 
Public Works and OEWD who are knowledgable about GBD programs to appear rather than custodians of records who 
are - by their own admissions - not familiar with the details of these programs. 

Please let me know when you plan to schedule the next hearing. 

Thanks, as always. 

John Hooper 

On Sep 21, 2020, at 12:18 PM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Mr. Hooper: Attached are the materials you submitted to me at the January Sunshine Ordinance Task 
Force hearing. Are these the only materials you wish to submit or do you have other documents? I 
would like to schedule your fi\e nos. 19061 and 19062 to be heard by the SOTF Complaint 
Committee. The decision of the SOTF is below. Please respond. Thank you. 

January 21, 2020 SOTF hearing, SOTF referred the matter back to the Complaint Committee and have 
new materials provided to SOTF be included in the file for review to determine which documents are 
applicable to which respondent and provide a recommendation to the SOTF. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Boa rd of Supervisors 
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Cheryl. Leger@sfgov.org 
Tel: 415-554-7724 
Fax: 415-554-5163 
www.sfbos.org 

<image009.png> 
Click Dill to complete a Boa rd of Su per.Ji>ors Customer Service Satisfoct•on form. 

The LeRislotive Rese<lrth Center provides 24-hour ~ccess to Boa rd of Supervisors legislation, c nd Jrchived motte1 s since 
August 1998 

Disclosures: Personal information thot is provided in commun1cotio11s to the Boord of SupenJisors is subject to disclosure 
under the Californio Public Records Act and the Son Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Persona! mformotion provided will not 
be redacted. Men1bprs of the public are not reqwred to provide personal identif;ing rnfonnation when they com1nunicate 
wi!ll the Board of Supervisors and its committees. Ail wrilten or oral communications tho! members of the public submit 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings wiil be mode avoilab!e to al! men1bers of the public for 
111spection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact any information from these .submission,, This means thot 
personal information-including no1nes, phone numbers, odd1esse5 and similar mformation that o member of the public 
elects to 5ubmit to the Board and its committees-may appear on the Boord of Supervisors website or in other public 
documents that members of the public may inspect or copy. 

From: Thompson, Marianne {ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, September 21, 2020 10:56 AM 
To: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Cc: Heckel, Hank (MYR) <hank.heckel@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Good Morning Cheryl, 

I read the document that was sent, and I sincerely do not understand it. I do not see the need to 

proceed forward. 
M. 

<image003.png> 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Sent; Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:20 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Thanks, Cheryl. 

-d. 

<imageOOS.jpg> 
David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & txecutive Assistant to the Direclor 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Frar.cisco 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 164/ I San Francisco~ CA 9'1103 I (628) 771-2888 
filf)ublicworks.org · twitter.:..i:;_om/sfpublicwor~~ 

For public rr:co:-ds req'Jcsts, please go to sfpublicworks.orp;/records. 
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Nate: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: SOTF, (BOS} <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 2:34 PM 
To: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; Thompson, Marianne {ECN} 
<maria nne.thom pson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Hello Marianne and David: Attached are the materials submitted by Mr. Hooper at the January 21, 2020 
SOTF hearing. Let me know if you need anything further. I will be at the office tomorrow if you need 
me to get other records to you. 

Cheryl Leger 
415-425-6918 - my cell 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 3:12 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Hi Cheryl, 

I don't see the additional records that Mr. Hooper provided at the in-person meeting as part of the 
minutes you provided. My notes from previous emails show that you said you had them in your office 
and you would send us copies when the stay-at-home order was lifted. Do you have access to them? The 
whole reason to schedule the committee meeting was to consider these new records, so there isn't 
much point holding a meeting until we have copies. 

Thanks much and stay safe. 
-d. 

<image006.jpg> 
David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 
49 South Van Ness Ave.nue, Suite 1647 I San Francisco, CA 94103 I (628) 271-2888 
sfpublicworks.org · twitter.com/sfpublicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/records. 

Note: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 2:11 PM 
To: Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) 
<david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Subject: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 
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Hello Marianne and David: Attached are the minutes from the January 21, 2020, Sunshine Ordinance 
Task Force hearing. Reflected in the minutes is the inclusion of records that were provided to Mr. 
Hooper. I would like to schedule these two matters to be heard next month before the Complaint 
Committee. Please review the minutes and let me know if you need anything further f1·om me or if I 
need to do something. Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Cheryl. Leger@sfgov.org 
Tel: 415-554-7724 
Fax: 415-554-5163 
www.sfbos.org 

<image009.png> 
Click hero; to complete a Boord of Supervtsors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The ~e Reseorch CCQ1&!: provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since 
August 1998. 

<hooper.pdf> 

Disclosures: Persona/ information that is provided in communications to the Boord of Supervisors is subject to disclosure 
urrder the Colijornio Public Records Act and the Son Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not 
be redocted. Member.< of the public are not required to provide persona/ identifying Jnformotion when they con1n1unicote 
with the Boord of Supenlisors and its comnll!tees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legis/at1on or hearings wili be mode avoiloble to al! members of the public for 
inspection and copyif!g. The Clerk's Office does nor redact any information from these sub1nis>1ons. This means that 
persona! 1nformotion-mcluding names, phone numbers, addresses and similar informotioll rhot a member of the public 
elects to submit to the Boord ond ifs committees-may appear on the Boord of Supervisors website or in other public 
docun1en!s that members of the pub/JC may inspect or copy. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: Steinberg, David {DPW) 
Sent: Thursday, September 24, 2020 12:14 PM 

SOTF, (BOS) To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Thompson, Marianne (ECN); JOHN HOOPER 

RE: SOTF - rescheduling GBD hearing 

Hi Cheryl, 

\n response to Mr. Hooper's request that a most knowledgeable employee appear at the hearing, please note the 
following: 

• Jonathan Goldberg is on a Disaster Service Worker assignment, is not reporting to Public Works and is 

unavailable for the foreseeable future. 

• The sole purpose of this committee meeting was to review the "new" materials that Mr. Hooper belatedly tried 
to present at the January 21, 2020, hearing. None of those materials has any bearing on his request to or the 
response from Publlc Works. Further, as I've said at several meetings now, we have provided all responsive 

records in our possession and having Mr. Goldberg on hand to confirm that isn't necessary. 

Regards, 

David A. Steinberg 

• 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 16'17 I San Francisco, CA 94103 I (528) 271-2888 
2foublicworks.org · twitter .com/sfpublicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpubl1cworks.org/records. 

Note: The new contact infarmation above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Sent: Thursday, September 24, 2020 11:54 AM 

To: SOTF, {BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Cc: Thompson, Marianne (ECN} <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) 

<david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> · 

Subject: Re: SOTF - rescheduling GBD hearing 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: l'm now in my SF office with my files at hand. 

I was most recently scheduled to appear before the SOTF Complaint Committee on February 18, 2020 but SOTF 

cancelled that meeting. So you are now seeking to reschedule that meeting, as I understand it. 
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I prepared and sent to SOTF the statement I had expected to make on February 18, so It looks like you've got what you 
need. Please let me know if I can provide more info. 

It would be helpful if the Committee would require City employees from 
Public Works and OEWD who are knowledgable about GBD programs to appear rather than custodians of records who 
are - by their own admissions - not familiar with the details of these programs. 

Please let me know when you plan to schedule the next hearing. 

Thanks, as always. 

John Hooper 

On Sep 21, 2020, at 12:18 PM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Mr. Hooper: Attached are the materials you submitted to me at the January Sunshine Ordinance Task 
Force hearing. Are these the only materials you wish to submit or do you have other documents? I 
would like to schedule your file nos. 19061and19062 to be heard by the SOTF Complaint 
Committee. The decision of the SOTF is below. Please respond. Thank you. 

January 21, 2020 SOTF hearing, SOTF referred the matter back to the Complaint Committee and have 
new materials provided to SOTF be included in the file for review to determine which documents are 
applicable to which respondent and provide a recommendation to the SOTF. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
CheryLLeger@sfgov.org 
Tel: 415-554-7724 
Fax: 415-554-5163 
www.sfbos.org 

<image009.png> 
Click here to complete a Bo~rd of Supervisors Customer Se Nice Satisfaction form. 

The ~egislative Re>ea rch Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legi;;lation, and archived matters since 
August 1998. 

Disclosure<: Personal information that is provided in com1nunications to th<' Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure 
under the California Public Records Act and the Son Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Persona/ information provided will not 
be redacted. Members of the public ore not reqwred to provide personal identifying information when they communicate 
w1!h the Board of Supervisors and its committees. /\II written or oral co1nn1unications that members of the public submit 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be mode ovoiloble to oil members of the public for 
inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact ony rnfocmotion from 1hese submissions. This means that 
personal informotian-inc/11dmg names, phone numbers, addresses and similar informotron that a mernber of the public 
elects to Submit to the Doard and its committ~es-may appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in other public 
documents that member> of the public may inspect or copy. 



From: Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, September 21, 2020 10:56 AM 
To: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; SOTF, {BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Cc: Heckel, Hank (MYR) <hank.heckel@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Good Morning Cheryl, 

I read the document that was sent, and I sincerely do not understand it. I do not see the need to 
proceed forward. 

M. 

<image003.png> 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:20 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF- file nos. 19061and19062 

Thanks, Cheryl. 

-d. 

<imageOOS.jpg> 
David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1647 I San Francisco, CA 94103 I (628) 271-2888 

sfpublii;:works.g__cg · twitter.com/sfpublicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/records. 

Note: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 2:34 PM 
To: Steinberg, David {DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 
<maria nne.thom pson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Hello Marianne and David: Attached are the materials submitted by Mr. Hooper at the January 21, 2020 
SOTF hearing. Let me know if you need anything further. I will be at the office tomorrow if you need 
me to get other records to you. 

Cheryl Leger 
415-425-6918- my cell 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpvv.QL_g> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 3:12 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 
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Hi Cheryl, 

I don't see the additional records that Mr. Hooper provided at the in-person meeting as part of the 
minutes you provided. My notes from previous emails show that you said you had them in your office 
and you would send us copies when the stay-at-home order was lifted. Do you have access to them? The 
whole reason to schedule the committee meeting was to consider these new records, so there isn't 
much point holding a meeting until we have copies. 

Thanks much and stay safe. 
·d. 

<image006.jpg> 
David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Di recto' 
San Francisco Public V..lorks I City and Cou;ity of San Francisco 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1647 I San Francisco, CA 94103 I (628) 271-2888 
?fpublicworks.org · :twitter.com/sfpublicwork_::;_ 

For public records rec;uests, please go to sfpublicworks.org/record::::. 

Note: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 2:11 PM 
To: Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) 
<david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Subje"ct: SDTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Hello Marianne and David: Attached are the minutes from the January 21, 2020, Sunshine Ordinance 
Task Force hearing. Reflected in the minutes is the inclusion of records that were provided to Mr. 
Hooper. I would like to schedule these two matters to be heard next month before the Complaint 
Committee. Please review the minutes and let me know if you need anything further from me or if I 
need to do something. Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Chervl. Lege r@sfgov.org 
Tel: 415-5S4-7724 
Fax: 415-S54-S163 
www.sfbos.org 

<image009.png> 
Click here. to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Sf'rvice Satisfaction form. 

The J&gl?.!fil:ive R~orth Center prov•des 24-hour occess to Boa rd of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since 
August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided In communications to the Boord of Supervisors rs subject to disclosure 
under the Colifornlo Public ,q~cords Act and t/1e San Franc15ca Sunshine Ordinance. Personal info1m0Uon provided will not 
be redacted. lv1embers of the public ore not required to provide personal ide11tifyirrg information wlien they communicate 
v11th the 13oord of Supervisors and iis coffiinittee.s. All wntten or oral communicot1ons that members of the public submit 
to the Clerk's OfjicE regarding pendJrig legislation or hearings will be mode available ro all members of the public for 

P1 6.113 



Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Saturday, September 26, 2020 8:18 AM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Subject: SF Parks Alliance: Report details alleged pay-to-play scheme - Mission Local 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Dear Cheryl: 

Please include the Mission L.ocal 
Article referenced below as part of the record of files# 19061 and 19062 so SOTF members will be able to read it prior 
to my next scheduled testimony. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this information. 

John Hooper 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: john osborn <peninsularoad@icloud.com> 

Date: September 26, 2020 at 7:52:00 AM PDT 
To: John Jock Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 

Subject: 'Friends of' Nuru: Report details alleged pay-to-play scheme - Mission Local 

Did you see this? The Parks Alliance is a crimlnai organization. xo John 

https: // m issio n lo ca I .o rg/2 02 0/09 /friend s-o f-m o hammed-nu ru- re po rt-d eta i Is-a 11 eged

pa y-to-play-sch em el 

'Friends of' Nuru: Report details 
alleged pay-to-play scheme 
The San Francisco Controller's Office on Thursday recommended a 

slew of measures to prevent city departments from engaging in "pay

to-play" schemes through "non-city" entities - schemes that 

Mohammed Nuru, the embattled former Public Works boss and 

accused federal criminal, allegedly mastered. 

In a detailed assessment released Thursday, the Controller homed in 

on the San Francisco Parl<s Alliance, a nonprofit that makes 
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improvements to parks and other public areas in the city, which 

allegedly became a conduit for N uru to fun11el payments to his col1orts. 

Nuru allegedly solicited donations frorn contractors ar1d per1nit

seekers for the Parks Alliance a11d that money went into accounts 

there, over wl1ich Nuru bad wide discretion. The money in the accounts 

totaled $990,830 over a four-and-a-half-year period. Nuru allegedly 

used it to direct the donated money to vendors. 

Those vendors include restaurateur Nick Bovis and permit expediter 

Walter Wong, both of whom have pleaded guilty to cl1arges of 

conspiracy and fraud. 

~·~~ .. - I 

- -·' ' .. , -. ,. ' 
- '• ' ' 

! '.: "~, 

A major recipient of the money was SDL Merchandising which, 

according to the Controller, was owned by a former Public Worl<s 

en1ployee, who worked for Nuru at the time, and who the Controller 

did not name. Other fu11ds from Nuru's account at.the Parks Alliance 

were used to reimburse Public Works employees for "staff 

appreciation" parties. 

"Mohammed Nuru and others would direct staff to procure goods a11d 

services for staff appreciation, volunteer programs, inerchandise, 

cornmu11ity support, and events frorn specific vendors, circumventing 

city purchasi11g controls," the Controller wrote in its report. "These 

purchases would then be reimbursed through Public Works 
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subaccounts held by the Parks Alliance, a 11on-city organization, again 

outside of city purchasing rules." 

"Mr. Nuru solicited funds for these purchases from interested parties, 

including businesses that had contracts with the department or city 

building permits," the report added. "The gifts, which were not 

accepted or disclosed by the City, create a perceived "pay-to-play" 

relationship." 

The review further found that the money directed to some of these 

vendors was not properly accounted for. In the case of SDI~ 

Merchandising, "multiple payments totali11g $164,885 were made to 

SOL Merchandising for varioUs shirts, caps, and merchandise" over 

roughly three years, the report says. "No quantities are documented." 

In other words, it's unclear ifthe shirts, caps and mercl1andise were 

ever received. 

Through its audit, the Controller zeroed in on so-called "friends of" 

organizations, non-profit entities that support city departments 

through charitable donations. The accounts are u11regulated by the city 

and can be "unscrupulously exploited by city officials," as in the case of 

the San Francisco Parks Alliance. 

In theory, any "interested party," such as someone holding a city 

contract, could make a donation to one of these organizations at the 

urging of a department head in exchange for prefereiltial treatment. 

Any unregulated account or "friends of' organization without formal 

agreements and oversigl1t by the city can create "the opportunity for 

unethical steering of purchases to occur," the report Says. 

The Controller noted that the Parks Alliance said it was not aware of 

Nuru's manipulation and had attempted to formalize its relationship 

with Public Worlcs in 2019 but was ignored. 

The Controller made 10 recommendations to create more 

transparency so they can't be exploited. These include formalizing a 

department's relationship with "friends of' organizations throligh 

written agreements, prohibiting anonymous donations, and prohibiting 

non-elected department heads from soliciting donations from 
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"i11terested parties," sucl1 as contractors and people seeking perrnits. 

The Controller recommends clearly defining what an "interested party" 

is. 

Following its release 011 'fhursday, city leaders seized on the report, 

denouncing the gaps that led to the alleged cor111ption and promised to 

take action. 

Mayor London Breed issued an "executive directive" requiri11g 

depart1nent heads to report any mo11ey directed to such i1onprofits and 

requiring for1nalized relationships betwee11 such organizations and 

departments. The directive also asked departments to "ensure 

compliance" with the city's rules for reporting gifts. 

"1'hese 'Frie11ds of organizations provide important philanthropic 

support for our parks, our libraries, and other important civic services, 

but we need to ensure that this support is not tainted with any 

perception or rislc of 'pay to play' politics," Breed said. 

Moreover, Supervisor Matt Haney said he would introduce legislation 

at Tuesday's Board of Supervisors meeting. Following the Controller's 

first recommendation, the legislation would "prohibit department 

heads, who are very close to control of contracting decisions, from 

asking any person or party doi11g business with or seeking to do 

business with tl1eir department for donations at the Department head's 

behest." 

I-ianey denou11ced wl1at could happen without the proper controls. 

"This loopl1ole creates a situation where contractors can access 

business 1/vith the city or receive preferential treatment because of 

donations given, rather than work that has been done," he said in a 

statement Thursday afternoon. "This is a massive disservice to tl1e 

residents of Sa11 Francisco and a blata11t violation of the public trust." 
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'Friends of' Nuru: Report 
details alleged pay-to
play scheme 
By Julian Mark I Sep 24, 2020 I Featured, Front 

. Page, Mobile, Newsletter, Topics, Trouble I 3 •.· 

Contractor and permit expediter Walter Wong, right, pictured here 

in 2018 with ex-Public Works boss Mohammed Nuru. Photo by 

Susana Bates for Drew Alitzer Photography. 

The San Francisco Controller's Office on 

Thursday recommended a slew of ineasures 

to prevent city departments from engaging 

in "pay-to-play" schemes through "non-city" 

entities - schemes that Mohammed Nuru, 

the embattled former Public Works boss 

and accused federal criminal, allegedly -
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the Controller homed in 011 the San 

~E~pcisco ~arks Alli_3:nc~, a nonprofit that 

m.3.kes improvements to parks and otl1er 

public areas in the city, which allegedly 

became a co11duit for Nuru to funnel 

payments to his cohorts. 

Nurt1 allegedly solicited donations from 

contractors and permit-seekers for the 

Parks Alliance and that money went i11to 

accou11ts tl1ere, over which Nuru had wide 

discretion. The money in the accounts 

totaled $990,830 over a four-and-a-half-year 

period. Nuru allegedly used it ta direct the 

donated n1aney to vendors. 

Those vendors include restaurateur Nick 
- .... - .. -------

_Bov~ and permit expediter Walter Wong, 

both of whom have pleaded guilty to 

charges of conspiracy and fraud. 
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Works employee, who worked for Nuru at 

the time, and who the Controller did not 

name. Other funds from Nuru's account at 

the Parks Alliance were used to reimburse 

Public Works employees for "staff 

appreciation" parties. 

"Mohammed Nuru and others would direct 

staff to procure goods and services for staff 

appreciation, volunteer programs, 

merchandise, community support, and 

events from specific vendors, 

circulnventing city purchasing controls," 

the controller wrote in its report. "These 

purchases would then be reimbursed 

through Public Works subaccounts held by 

the Parks Alliance, a non-city organization, 

again outside of city purchasing rules." 

"Mr. Nuru solicited funds for these 

purchases from interested parties, 

including businesses that had contracts 

with the department or city building 

permits," the report added. "The gifts, which 

were not accepted or disclosed by the City, 

create a perceived "pay-to-play" 

relationship." 

The review ft1rther found that the money 

directed to some of these vendors was not 

properly accounted for. In the case of SDL 
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ra ts ~ 

merchandise" over roughly three y·ears, the 

report says. "No quantities are 

documented." 

In other words, it's unclear if the shirts, 

caps and mercl1andise were ever received. 

Through its audit, the Controller zeroed in 

011 so-called "friends of" organizations, non

profit entities that support city departments 

through charitable donations. Tl1e accounts 

are unregulated by the city and can be 

"unscrupulously exploited by city officials," 

as in the case of the San Francisco Parks 

Alliance. 

In theory, any "interested party," such as 

someo11e holding a city contract, could 

make a donation to one of these 

organizations at the urging of a department 

head in exchange for preferential 

treat1nent. 

Any unregulated account or "friends of" 

organization without forn1al agreeme11ts 

and oversight by the city can create "the 

opportunity for unetl1ical steering of 

purchases to occur," the report says. 

The Controller noted tl1at the Parks Alliance 

said it was not aware of Nuru's 
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The Co11troller made 10 recommendations 

to create more tra11sparency so they can't be 

exploited. These include formalizing a 

department's relationship with "friends of" 

organizations through written agreements, 

prohibiting anonymous donatio11s, and 

prohibiting non-elected department heads 

from soliciting donations from "interested 

parties," sucl1 as contractors and people 

seeking permits. The Controller 

recommends clearly defining what an 

"interested party" is. 

Following its release on Thursday, city 

leaders seized on the report, denouncing the 

gaps that led to the alleged corruption and 

promised to take action. 

Mayor London Breed issued an "executive 

directive" requiring departn1ent heads to 

report any money directed to such 

nonprofits and requiring formalized 

relationships between such organizations 

and departments. The directive also asked 

departments to "ensure compliance" with 

the city's rules for reporting gifts. 

"These 'Friends of' organizations provide 

important philanthropic support for our 

parks, our libraries, and other important 

P1702 
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Breed said. 

htlps://rnissionlocal.org/2020/09/friends-of-n1oha1n1ned-nuru-reµor ... 

Moreover, Supervisor Matt Haney said he 

would introduce legislation at Tuesday's 

Board of Supervisors meeting. Following the 

Controller's first recon1mendation, the 

legislation would "prol1ibit department 

heads, who are very close to control of 

contracting decisions, fron1 asking any 

person or party doing business with or 

seeking to do business with their 

department for donations at the 

Depart1nent head's behest." 

Haney denou11ced what could 11appen 

without the proper controls. 

"This loophole creates a situatio11 where 

contractors can access business with the 

city or receive preferential treatment 

because of donations given, rather than 

work that has been done," he said in a 

statement Thursday afternoon. "This is a 

massive disservice to the residents of San 

Francisco and a blatant violation of the 

public trust." 
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and it has no records. 

Does anyone know who the owner is, or the company 

structure? 

REPLY 

aapi on September 25, 2020 at 4:27 pm 

And there's surely so much more than this. Mission 

Local, can you look into how Azul Works, the 

construction company owned by Nuru's crony and 

former DPW employee Balmore Hernandez, became 

a subcontractor on MEDA's affordable housing 

projects in the Mission? Unqualified but connected 

sub lands lucrative co11t1·act on publicly-financed 

project sure sounds like part of this whole scandal. 

REPLY 

Se bra Leaves on September 25, 2020 at 4:47 pm 

Bring some charges and remove the city officials who 

are taking advantage of the system. Drop the benefit 

districts. We don't need them. And write so1ne 

legislation to protect whistle-blowers so people can 

report suspicious activity when they see it. 

REPLY 

Leave a reply 
Your email address will not be published. Required fields are 1narked 
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Leger, Cheryl {BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com>

Sunday, September 27, 2020 8:06 AM 

SOTF, {BOS) 

Subject: Fwd: City Hall scandal: Nuru used 'unethical' practice to solicit funds for department, 
controller says - SFChronicle.com 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Please add this Chronicle article to SOTF files 19061and19062. 

Thanks. 

John Hooper 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Carol Glanville <cg2906@earthlink.net> 

Date: September 26, 2020 at 3:51:37 PM PDT 
To: hooparb@aol.com 
Subject: City Hall scandal: Nuru used 'unethical' practice to solicit funds for department, controller 
says - SFChronicle.com 

This is better! 
Carol 
h ttps :/ /www .sf chronic le. com/ po I it i cs/ article/City-Ha I I-sea n da I- N u ru- used- u neth ica 1-155 97 464. ph p 

Sent from my iPad 

1 
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solicit funds for department, controller says 

Trisha Thadani 
Sep. 25, 2020 I Updated: Sep. 25, 2020 3:45 p.m. 
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Disgraced former Public Works Director Mohammed Nuru allegedly solicited donations from private sources 

and directed them toward a nonprofit that financially supported his department, according to a new report 

by the City Controller. (AP Photo/Jeff Chiu, File) 

Pho·co: Jeff Chiu/ f,ssociated Press 

Disgraced former Public Works Director Mol1a1n1ned Nuru allegedly solicited 

donations fro1n private sot1rces and directed tl1en1 toward a nonprofit tl1at 

financially supported 11is department, ac~orcling to a_11e\V !eP.~rt by the cit)1 

co11troller. T11e concern is that the arrangement allowed Nuru to qt1ietlywork 
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community events. Since tl1ese arra11ge111ents 11ave little public oversight, 

Controller Be11 Rose11field said, it creates a11 opportunity for "u11etl1ical steeri11g of 

purchases to occur." 

St1cl1 is the latest revelation in a sweeping corruption investigation led by tl1e city 

attorney, whicl1 is largely focused on San Francisco City Hall. The investigation 

fi.rst caine t<? ligl1t in. Ja11~1ary, when Nt1n1 was charged over an alleged schen1e to 

bribe a11 airport com1nissio11er in exchange for approvi11g a lease at San Francisco 

I11ternational Airport. Sjnce the i11itial charge against Nuru, the i11vestigation 11as 

expa11ded to include others i11 City Hall a11d the private sector. 

The sweeping investigation has put a spotlight on a "pay-to-play" culture i11 San 

Francisco City Hall, where critics say personal relationships a11d loyalties are 

rewarded a11d help cover ttp political corruptio11. Critics of the long-standing 

c11lture of t_he SC?-C~~l~.d '~c.ity -~~~:1~.!Y" .say the scandal puts a 111assive stai11 on City 

Hall, and under1nines the public's confidence in their elected.officials. 
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fu11di11g. 

B11t the report foc11sed on 11ow Nuru allegedly used one s11cl1 nonprofit, the San 

Francisco Parl<::s Allia11ce, to circumve11t tl1e city's purcl1asi11g co11trols a11d then 

direct f1111ding to ve11dors of his cl1oice. Tl1eir relatio11ship with tl1e Departn1ent of 

Public Works was u11ique in tl1at there is no public oversigl1t 011 the account. 

Tl1e vendors wl10 be11efited fron1 tl1e donations, according to the report, incl11de 

restaurate11r Niel<:: Bovis a11d per1nit consultant Walter Wong, bothofwho1n 11ave 

also bee11 charged by the FBI for corruption and have pleaded guilty to conspiracy 

a11d fra11d. 

Tl1is is an issue, tl1e report says, because donatio11s that wo11ld end up be11efiting 

the Departme11t of Public Worl<::s were 11ever p11blicly disclosed. That created "a 

perceived 'pay-to-play' relationship" between N1u11 and tl1ose wl10 donated, tl1e 

report said. 

"While phila11thropic organizations provide tangible benefits to all of our 

residents, abuses in these relationships 11nder111ine the i111portant role they play," 

Rose11field said. "Whe11 gifts are solicited fron1 those tl1at do busi11ess with the City, 

it creates a risl<:: to fair aI1d transparent public processes." 

According to tl1e report, City Administrator Naon1i I<elly allegedly l<::new abo11t at 

least one insta11ce wl1en Nuru solicited funds from con1pa11ies with b11siness or 

regulatory decisio11s before the Departn1e11t of P11blic Worl<s. Tl1ose fu11ds were 

do11ated to tl1e Parl<::s Allia11ce a11d tl1en used to host a 2019 holiday party "a11d 

other e111ployee appreciation eve11ts that benefited those in the department." 
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According to tl1e report, tl1e Parlcs Alliance says it didn't lcnow it was being used 

"1111scrupulously" by city officials. 

"Lilce everyone, we were outraged to learn of tl1e public corn1ption in 011r local 

governme11t," Drew Becher, CEO of the San Fra11cisco Parlcs Allia11ce, said i11 a 

statement. "We're a tr11sted part11er to i11any comm11nity groups and city 

departn1ents and welcon1e any a11d all actio11s tl1at bring more transpare11cy a11d 

oversight to e11sure the public's trust." 

Related Stories 

BY MEGAN CASSIDY 

SF corruption scandal widens: 
Two business leaders charged ... 

BY MEGAN CASSIDY 

Ex-SF official accused of pushing 
contract that netted husband ... 

The Parks Allia11ce also said in the report that it did 11ot profit from the 

relationship with Public Worlcs. 

According to the report, the Parks Alliance made 960 pay1nents totaling 11early $1 

nlillio11 to support P11blic Worlcs activities betwee11J11ly1, 2015 tl1ro11gl1 Ja11.17, 

202_0. Those funds were largely spent at the direction of Nuru on events for his 

staff, niercl1andise and vol11nteer programs, accordi11g to the report. 
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Wl1ile tl1e city attor11ey's office is leadi11g the investigation, tl1e controller's office 

pla11s to release a series of reports tl1at lool< i11to tl1e policies a11d practices tl1at 

l1ave allowed corruption to exist. Th11rsday's release was tl1e second report_ 

Tl1e Parl<s Allia11ce worlcs with or provides money to 200 groups and city agencies 

to s11pport "citywide open space a11d par le infrastr11ct11re." 

The Parks Alliance said it reached out to Nur11 in 2019 to formalize its relationsl1ip 

tl1rougl1 a nie111ora11d11n1of11ndersta11di11g, "tl1ougl1 tl1is effort was ig11ored," 

according to the report. 

Im111ediately after tl1e report was released, Mayor Lo11don Breed issued at1 

executive order to "strengtl1en transpare11cy and accountability" betwee11 

departn1ents and sucl111011profits. 

Amo11g other 11ew rules, Breed's order requires all department heads follow rules 

around pay111ents 1nade for legislative, gover111nental or charitable purpose, at the 

req11est of the p11blic officials. Sucl1 rules do not currently apply to depart111ent 

11eads. 

"These 'frie11ds of' organizatio11s provide i1nportant philantl1ropic support for our 

parks, our libraries, a11d other i1nporta11t civic services, but we need to ens11re that 

this s11pport is 11ot tai11ted with a11y perce1)tio11 or risk of 'pay to play' politics," 

Breed said in a statement. 

Supervisor Matt Haney, \Vho has 1011g sparred witl1 tl1e Department of Public 

Worlcs over the city's filtl1y streets, said 11e will introduce legislatio11 next weel< that 

would go eve11 further tl1an Breed's order a11d prohibit departn1ent heads and 

some employees from soliciti11g do11atio11s for sucl1 orga11izations. 
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departn1ent to ha11dle engineeri11g, desig11, project nla11ageme11t a11d otl1er worlc 

tied to public infrastn1ctL1re. 

"Tl1is report detailing flagrantly inappropriate behavior by tl1e Depart1nent of 

Public Works also underscores tl1e need to pass Prop. Bin Nove111ber, and 

i1nple1nent effective oversight at a Depart1nent that is clearly out of control," he 

said. 

Trisha Thadani is a San Fra11cisco Chro11icle staff writer. En1ail: 

tthadani@sfchronicle.con1 Twitter: @TrishaTl1adan 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Friday, October 9, 2020 9:32 AM 
SOTF, {BOS) 

Subject: Please add to SOTF files #19061 and 19062 :Recology V•as the major donor to 
Mohammed Nuru's nonprofit slush fund 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: please make sure this information is available to the members of the SOTF prior to my next 
scheduled testimony. Thanks! John 

Subject: Garbage time: Recology was the major donor to Mohammed Nuru's nonprofit slush fund 

"But the real shocker- and a potential window into where investigators may well be going with all this 
- came three pages earlier. It's the breakdown of the sources of the money siphoned into the funds 
Nuru controlled at the Parks Alliance. And, wouldn't you know it, 88 percent of the money comes from 
just two sources: $131,948 from Recology and $721,250 from the San Francisco Clean City Coalition, a 
nonprofit. 

But wait: In the footnotes, it reveals that, during the five-year window of this probe, Recology - which 
has enjoyed a city charter-enshrined monopoly to haul San Francisco's waste since 1932 - gave 
$630,000 to Clean City. In fact, in 2019 alone, Recology donated $180,000 to Clean City, which then 
turned around and paid $171,000 to the Parks Alliance. 

So, Recology is a huge source of the money that trickled into Public Works' subaccounts with the Parks 
Alliance. And Public Works is pivotal in setting Recology's citywide rates. 

Because, coincidentally or not, during the five years analyzed in the controller's probe - during which 
Recology was funneling money into Nuru's preferred Subaccount - the amount you pay for Recology's 
services went up some 20 percent. 

With the staunch backing of Mohammed Nuru." 

https: /Im iss io n loca I .o rg/2 02 0/10 In u ru-reco lo gv-pa rks-a I Ii a n ce-c le a n-citv/ 
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MATT SMITH 

Supes Want to Rescind Law that Bans Com 
Trash Collection 
Matt Smith • 0212312011 4:00 am 

P1715 



upes Want to Rescind Law that Bans Con1petition in SF l'rash Co .. https://www.sfweekly.coni/news/supes-want-to-rescind-law-that-ba., 

, ....... ,,,, 
' 

• ~ i 

''1" ' ~5·' 

'~ ! 

~ l 
'i 



upes Want to Rescind I_,av,• that Bans Con1µetition in SF 1'rash Co ... https://w\vw.sf\l:eekly.con1/news/suµes-v,'ant-to-rcscind-law-that-ba ... 

Does Recology have a right to pick up San Francisco's trash forever? 
and David Campos don't think so. They plan to put a measure before 
a 1932 law that prevents the city from introducing competition to Sa1 

"I don't have anything against Recology,'' Campos says about the co 
from Norcal Waste Syste111s in 2009. "From a public policy standpoir 
service has not been subjected to a competitive bid for 78 years." 

But of course. Consumers would be stupid not to shop around. That s 
probably get squashed in this fall's campaign. 

With $206 million in annual trash pickup fees at stake, the election t 
Recology's city-sanctioned monopoly promises to become "a ding-c 
the city hasn't seen in a decade or more," says retired Judge Quentin 
the 1970s and a state senator during the 'Sos and '90s. "We'll see th< 
political consulting firms. They'll all be involved." 

If the past is any indicator, Recology will fight hard to preserve its m 
a long way to go in settling on a convincing message. I asked Recoloi: 
what would be wrong with putting the garbage contract out to bid. 

"We believe the current system in place provides the best option for 

I repeated the question. 

"It's a charter amendment, and it can't be put out to bid." 

What would be wrong with making it so it could be put out to bid? 

"The debate about whether the system works or not is a debate we'd 
"But we feel that debate is afield of the issue now at hand." 
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Shall I just write that you refuse to answer the question? What would 
contract out to bid? 

"Legally, the problem would be that the city and county would not h; 
Practically, we believe that the system in place, it would be the super 
and ultimately it's a board policy matter on how they would proceed, 
answer the question. 

In 1993, Kopp, with the San Francisco Taxpayers Association, backec 
city's trash service to competitive bidding, just like most cities with J 

During the three weeks leading up to the 1993 election, his Senate of 
anonymous, threatening calls. "One even said she would co1ne down 
passed," Kopp said in news reports. The Chinese American Democra 
initiative in a newspaper ad, was also deluged with calls. "You haver 
I hope to God we win, and if we don't, something's going to be done; 
reportedly said. 

Norcal's campaign manager disavowed the threats. The measure los1 
voters in 1994. In 1997, the Examiner's Lance Williams tallied $1.28 n 
the previous four years to persuade voters and politicians not to touc 

But this time around, Recology might have a more difficult time piec 
campaign. 

The company admittedly has history on its side. During the early 2ot 
haulers exclusive purview over 97 different garbage routes - a polic 
than allowing a route-poaching free-for-all. Over the years, smaller 
absorbed into bigger ones, until the business became dominated by t 
Italian-American trash haulers: Sunset Scavenger and Golden Gate I 
revision enshrined the monopoly and assigned a city board to regula 
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haulers were eventually merged into Norcal, even though trucks still 
Golden Gate. 

The question of what to do about the city's garbage-pickup monopol 
the Board of Supervisors held a hearing on a different matter: Where 
annual mountain of waste? The Department of the Environment rec< 
deal with Waste Management Inc. to haul San Francisco garbage to a 
instead enter a 10-year, $112 million deal to let Recology use a dump 

City budget analyst Harvey Rose produced a report saying the best cc 
hauling services into one giant contract. But, he explained, the city"' 
possible deal on combined pickup and disposal unless it handled it ir 
to bid. 

During the early 1990s, garbage haulers wishing to get a piece of Nor 
ones putting pro-competition measures on the ballot. In campaign i: 
them as self-interested interlopers. 

For this year's proposed initiative, however, Campos took his cue fro 
reported on SFWeekly.com ["Should City's Garbage Contract be Tras 
scathing 2002 budget analyst's report equating the Norcal monopoli 
service. 

"My understanding is they haven't changed," says Debra Newman, t 
who worked on both studies. Her boss, Rose, says, "It's a time-hono 
to evaluate who is the most qualified firm that will provide the best s 

Even if Recology scrapes together another million or so dollars to fig 
initiative, the company just might be crushed under the tonnage of ii 

Not long ago, Recology submitted the best bid to pick up trash in San 
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incumbent hauler Allied Waste there in January. But Recology's spot1 
deluge of complaints from skipped customers. Service there isn't mu 
Redwood City, halfway between San Francisco and San Jose, Recolog 
customers $ 321 per year, just $9 less than in San Francisco. 

If Campos and Mirkarimi's measure makes it to the ballot, Recology 
that competition is good for San Mateo County, where the company1 

. San Francisco, where it stands a risk of losing. 

proponents and the opponents." 

Let the trash -talking begin. 

I Copy Link I https://w\IVW.sfweekly.com/news/supes-want-to-rescind-law-that-bans-comp• 

Tags: Columns, David Cam ROS, Quentin Kor:i12. Ross Mirkarim\, San Francisco 
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June 14, 2017 

Refuse Collection and Disposal Rate Board 

Jennifer Johnston for Naomi Kelly, Chair, City Administrator 
Ted Egan for Ben Rosenfield, Controller, Member 

Michael Carlin for Harlan L. Kelly, General Manager, Public Utilities Commission, Member 

Re: Response to Objections to the Director's Report 

Dear Members of the Rate Board: 

This letter summarizes my responses to the objections that have been filed in connection 

with the Director's Report and Recommended Orders of May 12, 2017 {"Director's 

Report"}. Under the Refuse Collection and Disposal Ordinance ("Refuse Ordinance"), the 

Rate Board must rely on the evidence placed in the administrative record during the 

Director's 2017 hearings through testimony or documents. 

I have organized the objections into eighteen categories, building on a matrix created by 

the City Attorney's Office, which is included as Attachment A. In the sections below, I have 

cited those sections of the record that address each category of objection and that support 

the Director's Report. I wlll be available during the Rate Board hearings along with staff 

from Public Works and Department of the Environment (SFE) to address the objections and 

answer any questions from members of the Board. 

1. Rate Increase is Too High (Objections #1, 2, 3, 16, 17, 18) 
I agree that the proposed increase of 20% over four years (14.42% in Rate Year 2018, 5.45% 

in Rate Year 2019, -0.55% in Rate Year 2020, and 0.79% in Rate Year 2021) is considerable 

and may pose a hardship for some ratepayers. The City has not approved any rate 

adjustments other than cost-of-living increases since 2013. 

The rates are based on Recoiogy's actual costs for services necessary to collect and process 

residential and commercial refuse. As described in the Director's Report, the largest cOst 

drivers for the rate increases are costs related to business as usual (28%), increased public 

participation in current programs (24%), implementation of new programs (20%), the 

higher cost of the new landfill agreement (20%), higher costs related to composting 

operations (6%), and new capital investments (2%) (Director's Report pages 2-5; Exhibit 

86), 

The Refuse Ordinance states that rates be "just and reasonable," and requires the Director 

to review the application and·submit a report and recommended orders to the Rate Board. 

"Just and reasonable" is not a formula or test that the proposed· rate must meet to be 

approved. As noted in the Staff Report (Exhibit 78 pages 5-8), the Director followed a 

carefully constructed public process. Staff from Public Works, SFE, and consultants, 

conducted a thorough review of Recology's projected revenues and expenditures, verified 

detailed information and determined they were generally appropriate, and well 

_d_ocumented. The higher cost for expanded collection and processing operations is needed 
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to move toward the City's zero waste goal (Director's Report; Exhibits 78, 79, and 80). In a number of cases, staff 

recommended adjustments to cost and revenue projections (Exhibit 78 page 3). I recommended additional 

changes in the Director's Report (pages 5-8). I am confident that the rates in my Recommended Orders are 

based on solid evidence and reflect the actual costs for collecting and processing San Francisco's refuse. 

2. Rate Increase Is Higher for Apartment Owners with 2~5 Unit Buildings (Objections #52, 53) 
Recology's rate increase applies to all residential customers. The 16.4% average projected rate increase includes 

all residentia I accounts, not just single family homes (Exhibits 44, 45). Apartment buildings of 2-5 units represent 

15% of the accounts within the 1-5 unit category {Exhibit 88). Even \Vith the higher fixed charge, the total cost on 

a per-unit basis is less than the minimum service for a single family residence because multi-unit buildings can 

share bins (Director's Report page 10). 

A higher than average increase for some customers is the result of structural changes in the rates, Increasing the 

base dwelling unit charge and adjusting bin volumetric charges, toward a more accurate reflection of the cost of 

service. This rate structure also reflects the operational reality of this industry, in which roughly 60% of the costs 

of collecting and processing material from customers are fixed. Some differential impacts on customers are an 

inherent part of rate setting, especially when it is also moving from a focus on volumetric charges on trash bins 

to a structure that reflects the cost of collecting and processing all refuse streams (i.e., trash, recyclables, and 

compostables}. 

R3, a firm with solid waste management industry expertise that served as a financial consultant for Public 

Works, evaluated Recology's rate proposal as well as other rate structures with different values and ratios of 

fixed and volumetric charges (Exhibits 79, 87, 88, 89, 90). R3 concluded thatthe rate structure proposed by 

Recology produced one of the most consistent and even distributions of customer accounts, with 87% of 

accounts at or below the 16.4% average increase (Exhibit 68). Another rate option, which kept most customers 

close to the average increase, but moderated the increase for some customers by reducing the unit charge and 

increasing the volumetric charges, are the rates that I recommended in my report (Director's Report pages 9-

10). 

3. Base Service Charge is Too High (Objections #4, 5, 22, 24, 31, 38, 45} 
The base unit charge is only one component of a customer's refuse rate. The rates also include volumetric 

charges for trash {black bins), recyclables (blue bins) and compostables (green bins). A rate needs to be 

evaluated with all the charges together; it is misleading and inaccurate to assess a single rate component, such 

as the unit charge, in isolation. 

Recology presented an analysis of the fixed versus variable costs of its operations (Exhibit 43). The density and 

terrain of San Francisco creates a challenging operational environment, with collection costs affected by many 

variables. Recology's fixed collection and processing costs consist of more than the cost of a truck coming to an 

address to pick up bins. Recology has overhead and offers a variety of other programs to its customers (Exhibit 1 

pages 2-6). In addition to those 32 programs, Re co logy processes all refuse streams at Recycle Central or Tunnel 

Avenue before transporting the remainder to other facilities. 

By incrementally increasing the unit charge, the City is taking c:in additional step toward aligning the rates with 

the fixed cost components of residential and apc:irtment services. A rate structure with a higher unit charge also 

mitigates the impact of declining trash volumes on Recology's total revenues, as San Francisco increases 

recovery and moves closer to its goal of zero waste. While the cost of collecting and processing each of the three 
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streamS is comparable and the volumetric charges for recycling and composting service are being increased, 

these rates are still lower than the volumetric charges for trash service. These lower charges continue to provide 

an incentive for composting and recycling. Under my Recommended Orders, the volumetric charges for recycling 

and composting for residential customers are 50% of the cost of an equivalent-sized trash bin. 

In recognition of the differential impact of the rates on small quantity waste generators, l recommended a 
transition credit of $5 for the first two years for current 20-gallon trash customers (Director's Report page 6). 

4. Rate Increase is Unfair to Single Family Residences and 2-5 Unit Buildings (Objections #6, 7, 11, 19, 25, 
32, 39, 46) 

The increased cost of refuse collection and processing is borne by all customers, not just single family 

homeowners and 2-5 unit buildings (Exhibit lA RSS/RGG Schedules B.l-3, F.1). While the unit charge for 6-unit 

and larger apartment buildings is $51 the volumetric charges are computed differently-$24.03 per 32 gallons 

for trash, recyclables, and compostables, with diversion discounts (Exhibits 1A, 78 page 15; Director's Report 

pages 10-11). The distribution of the increase for apartment customers is tighter, so more of these customer 

accounts will experience a rate increase that is closer to the average, but some customers will experience 

increases that are above and below the average amount (Exhibits 68, 87). 

5. Cost-of-Living Adjustment Not Justified (Objections #8,20} 
Revising rates using a cost-of-living adjUstment (COLA) mechanism is a standard practice in utility rate-making 

and has been applied to refuse rates in San Francisco since 2001. The formula is tied to known cost increases 

and published indices, such as the Consumer Price Index, which also fluctuate with the economy. Several of the 

indices used in the COLA formula are capped. Since the last approved rate adjustment in 2013, the COLA 

formula has resulted in annual increases of less than 2% each year (Exhibits 46, 47, 61). The City and its financial 

consultant, R3, performed an extensive analysis of the inflation factors and the COLA formula (Exhibits 78 pages 

17-20; Exhibit 79 pages 57-60) and recommended changes to improve the methodology that would be applied in 

the annual rate adjustment process (Director's Report pages 12-13). 

I continue to believe that the COLA mechanism is a reasonable approach to adjusting rates between rate 

applications. I would also note that in addition to saving ratepayers the cost of more frequent, time-consuming 

and costly rate applications and proceedings, there is the potential for the COLA to result in a negative 

adjustment to rates when indices decline. The Proposition 218 notification properly noticed the inclusion of the 

COLA mechanism as part of the rate application {Exhibit 73). 

6. Abandoned Materials Program Should Not Be in the Rates {Objections #13, 30, 37, 44, 51} 
While all residences and commercial premises are required to have adequate refuse services, a survey of the 

abandoned materials collected from San Francisco's streets and public areas suggests that these materials 

(including mattresses, appliances, electronics, furniture, and other large items or bags of material) come from 

those same residences and businesses predominantly and are not being brought into the City from other 

locations. Recology offers many services for customers to discard their unwanted items, including bulky item 

recycling (bulkyitemrecycling.com) and district cleanup events, yet some customers continue to leave materials 

on the streets. 

The Rate Board affirmed the validity of including the costs of the Abandoned Materials Program in prior 

proceedings (Exhibits 8, 16). The effectiveness of Recology's management of the program was also 

demonstrated in a previous report to the Rate Board, including faster response time and greater diversion of 
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materials from landfill {Exhibit 9). This year, Recology proposes to combine the Abandoned Materials Collection 

Program with the Bulky Item Recycling Program, which will result in greater efficiencies and lower costs (Exhibit 

50). I approved this change, which reduced the number of additional drivers that Recology was requesting for 

the programs managed separately (Director's Report page 8 and pages 15-16). 

A portion of Public Works funding goes to support the Outreach and Enforcement Team {OnE Team), which 

focuses on reducing illegal dumping with outreach, education, and enforcement. The allocations to Public Works 

are fully enumerated in the record (Exhibit 55). Recology does not earn a profit on these costs. 

7. Zero Waste Incentive Fund Rebates Have Been Misapplied {Objections. #20, 30, 37, 44, 51) 
Several objectors appear to have misunderstood the issue of "rebates" as reflected in the rate adjustments. In 

its application, Recology proposed using surplus revenues from two accounts (Special Reserve Fund and Zero 

Waste Incentives) to offset a portion of rate increase (Exhibits lA, 49). These funds were collected from all 

customers (a 1.3% surcharge on volumetric billings for the Special Reserve Fund and an additional 2% operating 

ratio for Zero Waste Incentives). Recology proposed to apply these excess funds to reduce the rate increase, 

which would benefit all customers (Exhibits lA, 49). I concurred that Recology's proposal for the application of 

surplus revenues resulted in the most efficient and equitable way to use the funds for customers per the 

procedures governing those funds (Director's Report page 11-12). The gradual drawdown of the Special Reserve 

Fund mitigates the rate impact over three years (Exhibit 69), builds the new Reserve Fund to the target funding 

level in lieu of assessing a 1% surcharge to customers, and maintains a balance in the old Special Reserve Fund 

to protect against unanticipated claims (Exhibit 78 pages 11-13). 

8. More Information Needed on Recology's Costs {Objections #14, 21, 28, 35, 42, 49) 
Recology's costs are described in detail in the rate application (Exhibit 1A). City staff and an outside consultant 

reviewed and validated these costs (Exhibits 79, 80). 

9. Impact of Zero Waste Incentives on Trash Pickup (Objection #21) 
The Zero Waste Incentives do not impact the planning or health departments. The incentives are set as part of 

the rate process and designed to reward Recology if it reduces disposal tons. State and City laws dictate health 

department (DPH) and other agency roles in refuse collection and disposal. SFE, DPH, Public Works and Recology 

will be meeting again soon to discuss minimum service requirements and how to best handle customers that 

legitimately do not require one or more components of refuse collection (i.e., recycling, composting and/or 

trash). 

10. Blue and Green Bin Charges Generate Revenue to Cover Costs (Objections #28, 35, 42, 49). 
The value of recyclables and compostables recovered from the blue and green bins does not cover their cost of 

collection and processing (Exhibit lA). City staff reviewed facility costs and the prices for commodities to ensure 

Recology is maximizing projected revenues. The revenue that Recology collects from recyclables is enumerated 

in the application (Exhibit lA RSF Schedule F.3) and has been verified by City st::iff (Exhibit 78 page 4). Recycling 

revenue offsets Recology's processing costs (Exhibit lA RSF Schedule B; Exhibit 70). The revenue from compost 

is applied at the composting facilities and used to offset their tip charge. 

The City, through SFE, has worked to reallocate refuse collection, processing costs, and other externalities to the 

producers and consumers of products. This process is called producer and consumer responsibility, extended 

producer responsibility or product stewardship. It is a slow, complex, political process, primarily facilitated 

through state and, to some degree, local legislation. There have been some variants of success, such as aspects 
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of state bills on beverage containers (the bottle bill), electronics, mattresses, carpet and paint (Exhibit SS.page 

27), and San Francisco bans (e.g., expanded polystyrene), charges (e.g., checkout bags) and other ordinances 

(e.g., pharmaceuticals). These efforts have reduced San Francisco refuse rates. SFE is currently engaged in 

additional state bills and efforts (e.g., Sacramento workshops on printed paper and packaging, and plastics), as 

well as some more local policies under consideration and will continue to help reassign costs back on 

responsible parties to the benefit of ratepayers. 

11. Landfill Agreement Is Too Long (Objection #10} 
California law requires each county to have or provide a strategy for obtaining 15 years of disposal (i.e., landfill) 

capacity. San Franciscans continue to put material in black bins destined for landfill. This rate process provides 

additional resources to encourage San Franciscans put recyclables and compostables in the proper bins, process 

landflll bound material to extract recyclables and compostables, and develop markets for problem materials. 

Nevertheless, Recology projects that some material will continue to be sent to the landfill (Exhibit 2 page 6, 

Exhibits 64, 71). 

12. Recology's Use of Routing Equipment for Enforcement (Objection #15) 

In hearings, Recology described expanding its route management system (Transcript pages 175-194, 224-225). 

The routing software will improve Recology's operational efficiency and communication with its customers and 

is not intended to be punitive; rather, Recology will use the improved communication to educate customers and 

ensure compliance. 

San Francisco code requires everyone to keep recyclables, compostables and trash separate, and allows 

Recology and designated people to look in bins. Recology and SFE have audited bins and provided outreach to 

customers ln a wide variety of ways for many years, and additional outreach resources are funded in this rate 

and outlined in the record. Cameras are fairly common on refuse collection vehicles and their use is increasing 

as technology improves. Cameras will help identify major sources of bin contamination to enable Recology and 

SFE to educate customers, assist them in a targeted way, and provide any needed documentation. Customers 

causing egregious contamination have also received financial penalties for many years. Cleaning up this 

contamination increases operating costs at the various processing facilities. 

13. Lack of Outreach (Objection #23) 

Per the Rate Board's direction in the 2013 proceedings (Exhibit 16), Public Works engaged a Ratepayer Advocate 

to assist in outreach efforts to facilitate public participation in the process and present the public's views at the 

Director's hearings. Outreach efforts by the Ratepayer Advocate a_re documented in the record (Exhibits 22, 82, 

102) and included both traditional mechanisms {e.g., neighborhood newspaper ads, dedicated phone line, e

mail) as well as the use of new communication tools such as social media (e.g., Facebook, Twitter). This 

approach resulted in a broader and more inclusive process than in the past, as shown by the number of "hits" on 

the Ratepayer Advocate's web page and social media sites, phone calls and e-mails, as well as attendance and 

participation at more than 60 community meetings (Exhibit 102). Recology also sent the Proposition 218 

notification concerning the proposed rate increase to all its billed customers and residential service addresses 

(Exhibit 73; Transcript page 508). 

Public Works recognizes that it cannot guarantee that the Outreach efforts will reach everyone who might be 

interested in the rate increase, despite our best efforts to employ traditlonal and new outreach techniques and 

communication mechanisms (e.g., social media). I would note that while there were criticisms of our outreach 
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efforts again this year, nevertheless the seven Director's hearings were well-attended and public comment was 

robust at every hearing. In response to the Proposition 218 notice, I received more written protests than in prior 

proceedings, which indicates that the notification was effective. I would also observe that the objections filed 

with the Rate Board are coming from a broader cross-section of ratepayers than in prior years, which suggests 

that there is a greater awareness of the rate application and the Director's proceedings. 

14. Landlords Cannot Pass Through the Rate Increase (Objections #18, 26, 33, 40, 47) 
The ability of landlords to pass through costs as part of rent is not within the jurisdiction of the refuse rate 

setting process. 

15. Recology is a Monopoly (Objections #29, 36, 43, 50) 
Recology holds the City's permits under the Refuse Ordinance to collect and transport refuse within San 

Francisco. The City performed an extensive review, validating costs and revenues projections (see response #1). 

Recology's allowed profit is set in the rate process, like other regulated utilities. 

16. No Senior Discount {Objection #9) 
The low-income discount program is not age-related. The Director's Report recommended increasing the 

income eligibility threshold, potentially increasing the number of individuals who would be eligible for the 

discount and bringing them into alignment with the low-income programs provided by other local utilities, such 

as Pacific Gas and Electric and the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (Director's Report page 19). All 

customers have the opportunity to right-size their service, if they haven't already done so. Customers are still 

required to meet minimum service levels. Recology provides some services free of charge, helping customers 

with disabilities that need extra assistance. 

17. Variable Charges Too High (Objections #27, 34, 41, 48) 
Collection and processing costs are directly correlated with time and material weight. Recology and the City 

have performed due diligence and researched state of the art technology. Systems that weigh bin contents or 

determine fullness volume are not sufficiently developed to be used for charging customers. San Francisco is 

considered a leader in adopting new refuse collection and processing technology. See response tll. 

18. Minimum Service and Frequency of Collection (Objections #12, 27, 34, 41, 48} 
Weekly collection of putrescible material is required by state law (CCR Title 14, Div. 7, Ch 3, Art. 5, Sec. 17221). 

In San Francisco, refuse includes recyclables, com postables and trash. Per four interrelated San Francisco codes, 

dwelling owners are required to have and pay for adequate refuse service, with some exceptions. If after a 

thorough review process, owners are not in compliance with the minimum service, the City can attach a lien to 

their property. San Francisco's Mandatory Recycling and Composting Ordinance (Environment Code Section 291) 

requires everyone to keep recyclables, compostables and trash separate. Approved refuse rates help define 

minimum service levels. SFE and Recology tested every other week service, pay per set out and smaller trash 

bins. Smaller trash bins produced the best results with the least amount of contamination between the bins 

(Exhibit 18; Transcript pages 100-104). In my report, \ reduced the minimum trash service for a single family 

home from 20 gallons to 16 gallons, which will allow many customers to adjust their service and potentially 

reduce their rates. 
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Thank you for your consideration f these responses. l look forward to assisting the Rate Board with its 
deliberations. 

Sincerely, 

Mo mmed Nuru 
Director of Public Works 

cc: Julia Dawson, Public Works 
Deborah Raphael, Robert Haley, Jack Macy, Department of the Environment 
Ma nu Pradhan, Brad Russi, City Attorney's Office 
Dwayne Jones, Rosemary Dilger, Ratepayer Advocate, RDJ Associates 

Attachment A 
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Attachment A-Sun1mary of Rate 11oard Objections by Category 
~-----· - - -

Objection Nun1ber Unrair to Atrnndoned 
Base Service 

Increasf Too High SFJI and 2,5 COLA Material; More Info Necde 
Charge Too lligh 

Units Progr,1m 

: 1 .. Rate increase too blah· (Schlal:l) . x 
1 2 .. Rate increase too high (Lindebo0111) x 
! 3', Rate increase tcio·hiPh· fBassanl .. · x 
, 1'6,, ·.Rate increase is too hieh (Wonur x 
i· 17. Rat:C increase·is ·to_O I!igh. (Sinfil,· x 
• 18.' Rat\;. iii.crease iS. too hinh· (Da1nn1)' i x 
[ 52,.-53. Rate increas7 too· high, partiCiilarl:Y· 
· for 2-5 unlt buildi"'~ !K.ra1ner; Richen) 

x 
4. Base service charge 100 high (Bassan) x ·- . . 
5. Basic service charge for single family x 
homes excessive (_Bassanl .. 
22. Base charge discri1ninates against 
customers with small trash footprint x 
(Laffan) -+ ----
24, 31, 38, 45. Increase in base rate is too x 
high (Lemnion, et al.) 

6. Basic service charge for single family 
and 2-5 unit buildings unfairly shifts burden x 

. fiom bigger bu1l<l1ngs (ftassanl -- - ·-
7. Increase for blue and grioen bins too high 

L for single fa1nily homes and 2-5 nnit x 
buildings (_Bassanl ---
11. Homeowners cannot opt out of garbage 
service. Unfair to place burden On single x 
family homes and smaller buildings 
(Bassan) 

19. Increase to base charge is too high and x 
unfair to 2-5 unit buildin!:!s flaffan) - --·-
25, 32, 39, 46. Base ratio w1fairly 
discriminates against owners of2-5 unit x 
buildinvs (Lem1non et. all 

8, NO justification for COLA adjusnnents x I 
1; !Rassanl I 

~ 
: 20~ -·Customers being charged for.COLA · I 
. tWice; once with Zero· Waste 1niti'ative aiid. x I . once with rate increases (Latfan} --

1 
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Attacllme11t A - Summary of Rate Board Objections by (~ategory 

13. Rates should not include the cost of . 1-----
cleanin u ille al du1nping (BassanJ. -------1-
30, 37, 44, 51. Rate Board should demand 
information on what charges Recology 
included in the application to pay for costs 
b Ci departments (Le1n1!1on el al.) 

! 14.: ICUst0ffi:eyS.'1a_ck infomi.
0
•tt"· ,","."""g",,,-amc .. -g-. +~-----+-

: Rec0lbJiY'·s.Costs, · · · 
i.tBM'id~ '.: __ .::. ·'· 
'. 2 t~ . there· sh0UI'd.' bi· a i;eview· of the· Zero 
' ' . ' 

: Wf/s~·InitiB.ti,ve·· 1a an 
i 2·8,, 36, 42~ 49·. Inerease in.blile and· green· 
~ b:iiis despite feV.~nue genero.tlon·; shotild 
~-~~elt«iri e -ifiliation foF_this emmon et al. : 

_- ··'' . 

I 
' 
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iarbage time: Recology was the major donor to Mohammed Nuru' ... https://missionlocal.org/2020/10/nuTu-recology-parks-alliance-clea ... 

Garbage time: Recology 
was the major donor to 
Mohammed Nuru's 
nonprofit slush fund 
By Joe Eskenazi I Oct 9, 2020 I Featured, Front 

Page, lnstagram, Mobile, Newsletter, Today's 

Mission, Topics I 11 8..1 

The three: blue for recycling, black for trash, and green for 

compost. File photo, 2009 

City, customer payments to 
Recology waste collection 
company spiked during 
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rarbagc time: Rccology was the major donor to Moham1ned Nuru'._. https:/ /in issionlocaL org/2020/ 1 O/nuru-rcco logy-parks-all i ance-c lea ... 

Nuru's boss was aware of his 
dodgy fundraising activities, 
report states 

B efore they formed Monty Pytl1on, John 

Cleese and Graham Chapman had a 

program called At Last, the 1948 show. The 

joke: It was 1967. 

No joke: Sometimes covering news in San 

Francisco feels like that. 

There's a pa11demic, an economic 

catastrophe, multi-front investigations into 

long-running and far-reaching corruption 

launched following the January arrest of 

erstwhile Public Works boss Mohammed 

Nuru, and a sprawling election - with the 

presidential race obscuring all of the above. 
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Ir.. " 
n.el ing 

else. Perhaps the focus has already shifted 

several times; there's so much to pay 

attention to but it feels like our attention 

spans have never been shorter. 

So, some of you inay have 11eard about-~ 

la_!_e~~ptem~~r-~_~por~ from the city 

controller's office !J_U~lini~g_the syst~~ic 

breakdowns that allowed Nuru to solicit 

entities with business before him to donate 

funds into Public Works-controlled sub

accounts at the nonprofit San Francisco 

Parks Alliance. Nuru was then able to 

redistribute those dollars as he saw fit. 

But most of you probably didn't. The 

contents of an interstitial controller's report 

about nonprofits and sub-accounts just 

doesn't amount to a hill of beans in this 

crazy world. And the amount of money 

funneled into the sub-accounts between 

2015 and 2020 - $993,000 - doesn't 

amount to a hill of beans in this crazy city: 

As of 2017, th~overnrnent spent $1.2 

!Ilillion __ yearly ~n _!?~let p_~P~· 

But that doesn't mean what's in here isn't 

important. Far from it: The focus needs to 

be on the baked-in corruption and the 

debilitating effect it has on the city. That':,' 

the proble1n, even if one needn't pay all that 
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• 
ir ~r.:1 F 3.f :1s1 ). 

A s such, the controller's report is 

narrowly focused on outlining a flawed 

system and suggesting methods of 

repairing it. It notes, by the way, that, had 

the Board of Supervisors adopted a ~_g_o9 

S:h_Q_~_Qaly __ o_!:dii:ia.1:1~~ it spurned by a 6-5 

vote, unelected honchos like Nuru wol1ld've 

long ago been barred from soliciting 

donations to nonprofits to fund the city -

proving, once again, we all should've 

listened to Daly n1ore. And we probably 

would've, if he'd talked less. 

And yet, in the 

COl1rse of 50 pages of 

noting details such 

as "Mr. Nurl1 was 
Photo by Lydia ch<1vez. not required to file 

Form SFEC-3610(b)," 

the controller's report does drop a few 

bombs - albeit subtly. It notes, on_pag~_31, 
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before him to put money into nonprofit 

accounts he could tap. It does this witl1out 

acknowledging her by name. 

But the real shocker - and a potential 

window into where investigators may well 

be going with all this - can1e ~l~~~ pages 

earlier. It's the breakdown of the sources of 

the money siphoned into the fu11ds Nuru 

controlled at the Parks Alliance. And, 

wouldn't you know it, 88 percent of the 

1noney comes from just two sources: 

$131,948 from Recology and $721,250 from 

the San Francisco Clean City Coalition, a 

nonprofit. 

But wait: In the footnotes, it reveals that, 

during the five-year window of this probe, 

Recology ~which has enjoyed a ci:t_y 

ch~_rter-e_ns!~rined monop~}y_ __ t_12_paul Sa11 

_Francisco's _wa_~!~--~i_nce 1932 - gave 

$630,000 to Clean City. In fact, in 2019 alone, 

Recology donated $180,000 to Clean City, 

wl1ich then tur11ed around and paid 

$171,000 to the Parks Alliance. 

So, Recology is a huge source of the money 

that trickled into Public Works' subaccounts 

with the Parks Alliance. And Public Works is 

pivotal in setting Recology's citywide rates. 
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urn~ w. :o )§ 'w s 

money into Nuru's preferred subaccount -

the amou11t you pay for Recology's services 

went up some 20 perce11t. 

w~h the staupch_Qacking o!_~oha~me_~ 

Nuru. 

Donotions to the Public Work< Subaccounts at the Parks Alliance 
Below '" tho c1ly <on•.a"o" and 1>.,<.\o~ permit holders that donated to <he 
Pork< AIFance'• PubHc W0<'5 •ub>ernun\s du,,ng tOe re•·iew pe~od 
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Click for larger version. 

R ecology characterized its decade of 

donations to Clean City and the Par ks 

Alliance to Mission Local as being "in 

support of their efforts to clean, beautify, 

and expand access to the City's parks and 

public spaces." 

Tl1ese donations, the compa11y continued, 

are "only a s1nall part of Recology's record of 

giving to organizations throughout the 

City." 

Fair enough. But the lion's share of the 

money funneled into what amounted to a 

Nuru slush fund stems from Recology. 
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t11i c···y - c 'ir ev1 ry n 's c tlP JaL wa~ 

more transactional - has not yet been 

determined by an outside party. 

What has been detern1ined is that, during 

the period these donations were being 

made, Recology's customer fees spiked. They 

were hiked by ~~.4 percent in 2017, another? 

p~_!'C~t last year, and a 1 percent rise in 2021 

is anticipated. These prices were approved 

by a city rate board - which unanimously 

approved the rates suggested by Public 

Works and Nuru. 

So, we're no longer talkir1g about mere hills 

of beans here. Additionally, In 2019, !~~-~ity 

approved upping Recology's contract from 

$40 million to $48 million. In June of this 

year, the city p~opose~ raising it again, to 

$53.5 million. 

Clean City did not return our messages by 

press time. The Parks Alliance said, via 

statement, "We had no prior knowledge, did 

not benefit in any way, nor had any control 

over the donations that Nuru and Public 

Works solicited and directed to the sub

account, as t11e report states." 

Recology added that, after its leaders 

learned local and federal investigators were 

probing both these organizations, tl1ey 
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addresses applicable ethics rules." 

Well, good. Based upon what we already 

k11ow, it's hard to imagine that serious 

questions won't be asked and documents 

won't be de1na11ded - if tl1at hasn't 

happened already. 

For1ner Director of Public 

Works Mohammed 

Nuru. Photo by Lola M. 

Chavez. 

But, as the city 

continues to 

investigate, perhaps 

it ought to keep a 

closer eye on tl1e 

reflection ii1 the 

mirror. In the course 

of five years, 

Recology gave 

hundreds of thousa11ds of dollars to the 

Clean City Coalition, which acted as a 

conduit to the Nuru-controlled subaccount 

at the Parks Alliance. But, in that same 

timeframe, Public Works gave Clean City far 

nlore: $3.3 million. All told, between 2016 

and 2019, San Francisco gave CleaI2__City $5.2 

million. 

It seems Nuru was, in essence, siphoning 

city funds to his chosen recipients in a 

schen1e that resembles money-laundering. 

It's as if the bartender stepped out and Nuru 

began pouring everyone beers: Dri11k up1 
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n lO vn.:ir 

atrocities will capture and lose OLlr 

attention before we potentially receive 

definitive answers to all 011r questions here. 

But, God willing, that day will come - at 

last. 
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11 Comments 

Wi\\y N. on October 9, 2020 at 8:46 am 

Recology spreads their 1noney wide. In 2016, Recology 

donated $4,000 to The League of Pissed Off Voters. 

But why would @TheleagueSF even take their 0 ffi? 

REPLY 

CARLOS SPINOZA on October 9, 2020 a[ 10:25 am 

Ahh ... 

Was wondering when the Garbage Mafia would find 

itself in this story. 

There used to be a thing called the Colma Dump as a 

repository for our trash. 

Open to the public. 

One inched along behind a long line of refuse 

carrying vehicles up the slopes of San Bruno 

Mountain along a rutted road ending up at a little 

guard shack. 

Manning this position was a big Beluga with the most 

dour/serious expression possible. 

Hard to forget that face. 

He'd peek in and give everyone in the pickup cab a 

serious once over. 

Then take a quick look at the load and pronounce -

20. 

On a bad day vvith more or less an identical load - 40. 

Quickly cough up the requested cash - debating the 

price was not an option. 
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humongous roll of cash from his pocket and add your 

remittance to the bundle. 

Curiously, Mr. Beluga bore a striking facial 

resemblance to Michaelj. Sangiacomo - President 

and CEO of Recology since 1990. And before that

Chief Financial Officer right around the time of my 

story. 

Was that little sl1acl< on San Bruno Mountain his 

office? 

REPLY 

Anon on October 9, 2020at12:28 pm 

May want to investigate how money is spent on those 

SFPUC "green projects''. Holloway cost $7.4M to do 8 

blocks while Ocean Avenue continues to· flood every 

time there's moderate rain fall. 

REPLY 

Sf immigrant on October 12, 2020 at 3:09 pm 

A "regular" curb extension (bulb-out) with no 

landscaping, rain garden, or street furniture 

costs $150k per corner (maybe more now). 

Assuming two bulb-outs per 9 intersections, 

that's $2.7 mil just on bulb-outs. At San 

Francisco costs, it's easy to believe that 

replacing sewers, water lines, drainage, 

landscaping, street furniture, and paving 

would eat up the other $4.5 million. 
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'.Jn:._1rtu .. ately ... _Jn_. ___ 1s 

a lot rnore co1nplicated, pernicious, and 

difficult to solve than corruption. There are 

n1yriad answers to the question, but all 

generally relate to the San Francisco Way. 

Generous benefits and salaries for public 

employees, prevailing \l\/age require1nents for 

contractors, poor contracting processes, and a 

host of other random requirements that 

companies who want to work with tl1e city all 

have to 1neet (LGBT protections, paid leave 

requirements) that all drastically shrink the 

pool of companies that n1eet these 

requirements, and drive up their labors costs 

(and allow them to set highe1· costs). 

What you need to see are investigations into 

questions like: what's more important, that a 

tiny group of rent seeking construction 

contractors or SFPW employees get paid 

generous wages, or that the whole population 

of SF benefit from cheaper capital projects 

which would free up funding for more 

projects than the city could construct 

otherwise? Why do SF progressives demand 

that private companies fulfill the social 

obligations that governments should be 

responsible for, driving up costs for evetyone 

{including housing construction costs, vvhich 

raises housing prices, vvhich necessitates even 

more generous vvages- and continuing in a 

terrible, expensive negative feedback loop)? 

REPLY 
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'' itl, thf :i· '·Tl ~s d nat in we ~n't a _ ocret It's 

also a progressive, cutting edge, employee owned, 

union company that pays a living wage, with 

healthcare and pensions to thousands of blue collar 

people in San Francisco, and the Bay Area. 

Go ahead and tear the1n dovvn ... and replace the1n 

with Waste Management, or another publicly traded 

company? Goodbye living wages, benefits, 

progressive recycling and composting programs, etc. 

Oh ... and San Francisco's garbage rates are cheaper 

than Oakland, Berkeley, Ala1neda and Sanjose. 

REPLY 

Get Real on October 1 o, 2020 at 4:14 pm 

Not sure what you're saying, here. No reason 

we can't have both a corruption-free city and 

good companies with good wages. In fact the 

one should lend itself perfectly to the other. 

And I sincerely doubt Recology is going 

anywhere, anyway. So relax. 

REPLY 

Old Mission on October 9, 2020 at 2:44 pm 

What were the payments by Public Works & Other 

Departments to building contractors such as Webcor 

for? 

I can see why they would pay Recology & PG&E, but 

big commercial building contractors? 

I agree with Compost Kid. I have dealt with Recology 

for my workplace & my home; their decently paid 
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BigFriSCO on October 9, 2020 at 5:38 pm 

Joe, 

First time caller, long-time reader. I really appreciate 

your work and donate to both mission local and 

subscribe to your text service. Witl1 Joe Fitz moving to 

KQED, you are the last of a dying breed of hard hitting 

reporters. 

Unfortunately, I feel like this one misses the mark a 

bit If there was information about Recology 

knowingly making donations into these slush funds, I 

could see the headline deserving that story. If you 

read the controller's report, it sounds like the 1noney 

was donated to one non-profit, then transferred to a 

second non-profit, which was the Park's Alliance. 

From f'.IY POV, the story here is that Nuru had control 

of a Park's Alliance account. How does that happen? 

Look at the Park's Alliance board. Its got sorTie very 

well connected people and some very high level 

professionals (accountants, attorneys, etc.). If this is 

happening at the Parks Alliance, it begs the question 

about what is happening at the numerous other non

profits in the City. 

Ultimately, the controller report concludes that the 

real issue is the policies surrounding the "friends of" 

organizations and Nuru using this account to subvert 

city purchasing policies. It even sounds like the 

expenses went to their intended purpose. I am not 

sure how you connect these issues to Recology? I get 

that they are an easy target but I don't see enough 

here to justify the headline. 
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.REPLY 

Ginger on October 1 o, 2020 at 4:18 pm 

The headline and content are right, true, and 

fair. Nothing at all wrong with this very 

informative piece. 

REPLY 

Mike Black on October 12, 2020 at 11 :so am 

Excellent observation, BigFrisco. 

Thank you, Joe Eskenazi, for this very 

informative summary. You state, "the cost of 

doing corruption is, sadly, apparently one of 

the few bargains left in San Francisco." The 

purposefully circuitous nature of that bargain 

can be seen in the fact that the nonprofit San 

Francisco Clean City Coalition was getting a 

whole lot more out of the system ($5.2 

million) than it was putting into the system 

{$721,250) - with $630,000 of that "donation" 

to Mohammed Nuru's Park Alliance slush fund 

over five years actually coming from Recology. 

As you suggest, the real question here may 

eventually be to what extent the feds decide 

to hold City Administrator Naomi Kelly 

accountable for all of this as the "capo dei 

capi" in the racket that is city government. 

REPLY 
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Unlike when he lent Breed money to "fix" her car. 

REPLY 
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Leger, Cheryl {BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sunday, October 11, 2020 4:56 PM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Please include article re Parks Alliance corruption in SOTF files# 19061 and 19062 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open _links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: please make sure the article below "City Hall's web of corruption" from the Westside Observer is included in 

the SOTF reading file for files# 19061and19062 so task force members can read it before the next Complaint 
Committee hearing on these agenda items. 
Thank you. 

John Hooper 

PLEASE SUPPORT LOCAL NEWS REPORTING! 

Got an opposing view? We want to represent all sides 

of the discussion. Feedback Welcome 

San Francisco's legal, ethical and financial guardians: Ben Rosenfield, Lee Ann 

Pelham, and Dennis Herrera. 

City Hall's Web of Corruption 
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DPW's subaccounts at the Parks Alliance an1assed $990,000 and spent 

$980,000 ... $966,000 of that money was donated by 8 contractors who had 

received $572 million from DPW plus 7 companies that obtained 218 building 

permits from the Department of Building Inspection (DB\) 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 

Isolating Seniors on Northwest Parking Lot 

Laguna Honda: 

Inappropriate for Housing 

Yee's pitch to place housing on LHH's campus was a terribly misguided 

idea. There's actually very little land on LHH's campus that can be 

pressed into service for housing. Essentially, only two spots on the 

northwest side of the campus are viable, because the campus has largely 

been built out. 

by Patrick Monette-Shaw 
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The developments on Treasure Island and Hunter's Point are the worst known 

superfund developments in San Francisco 

Treacherous Toxics Haunt 

Treasure Island 
Contamination at Treasure lsland</span> is unsafe for housing. Despite 

this, the Budget and Finance Committee and now the Board of 

Supervisors, are continuing the planned development, surreptitiously 

misdirecting funds planned fcir Yerba Buena Island. 

by Glenn Rogers 

Vote for Kids! 
One question I always ask is "Does it help our children and our schools?" 

This year there are three significant measures.I want to bring to your 

attention ... 

by Carol Kocivar 
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10 ----- - Please subscribe! 

Subscription is Free 

But as a Sustaining Subscriber at $5 a 
month, we'll make your 16C a day go a 
long way! 

We count on you to keep us online -
thanks! 

The Westside is blessed with all kinds of opinions. We try to show all sides of a question. Got 
an opposing position? Let us know. We're here for you. 
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James Madison Freedom of Information Awar< 

1nsid.i0 clty'Kii•PiJWil)'· dfcc~rril 
by Dr. Derek Kerr 
~ elf-dealing, influence-peddling, cronyism and pay-to-play transactions have long-susta 

~ City F~mi\y. No~ that the FBI an.d US Attorney's Office are targe:ing s~ad~ City departr 
· financial guardians are scrambling to conduct damage-control 1nvest1gat1ons. 

Ben Rosenfield, Lee Ann Pelham, and Dennis Herrera, SF's legal, ethical and f 

· Early warnings from City whistleblowers and civic watchdogs were usually dismissed or inte 

;_. Bay~Guardian published Friends in the Shadows in 2013, sounding the alarm about conflictec 

into receptive City agencies. Even official efforts to tackle soft corruption were repeatedly th1 

2019 Westside ObS_erv:er's Struggle for Sunlight on Dark Money, Commissioners Daina Chiu a 
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BSEB 
James Madison Freedom of Information Aware 

_)oc:iety lJf f1r().rcssi<Jl?l11 Joc1rnrJfisls, f..J,1rCal C/10{J!cr 
The Controller's second Qolicy review focused on the relationship between the DPW and the 

Parks Alliance functions like the many "Friends of ... " outfits that financially support 33 out of 

these non-City entities are private-sector branches of City agencies. True, they raise philanth1 

projects that aren't funded by department budgets. But, they often lack the controls to prever 

schemes by private interests. The City can't impose its own stringent gift requirements on nc 

company solicited private donations for DPW accounts held by the Parks Alliance then direc1 
spent. It was a slush fund, unmoored from City controls.· 

In the 4.5 years between July 2015 and January 2020, DPW's subaccounts at the Parks Allia1 

$980,000 - about $18,000 per month. Interestingly, $966,000 of that money was donated by 

$572 million from DPW plus 7 companies that obtained 218 building permits from the Depar 

One hand washed the other. 

Of the $980,000 expended, $720,000 went to selected vendors who provided goods and serv 

appreciation events. One such vendor, SOL Merchandising - owned by a DPW employee - re 

and merchandise." There's no record of the quantiti.es provided for this phenomenal expense· 

Restaurateur Nick Bovis got $25,327 for catering while permit-expediter and contractor Walti 

event set ups. 

The other $260,000 of the $980,000 spent went to 164 individuals, mostly City employees. Tl 

Alliance for their out-of-pocket expenses at DPW events. For example, Sandra Zuniga, Nuru's 

Mayor's Office of Neighborhood Services, was reimbursed $10,464 for her employee apprec( 
Three other DPW employees received more than $10,000, one of whom collected almost $6( 

to City Administrator Naor:ni Kelly who oversees DPW, and downward to rank and file worker~ 

DPW and City Administrator staff cost $40,000, of which $33,000 was solicited from folks de 

Isn't it Illegal? 

The Administrative Code requires City departments to report gifts to the Controller, obtain B~ 

accept and spend gifts worth more than $10,000, and annually publish the donor names, the 

disposition. The Sunshine Ordinance requires disclosure of the true source of outside funds 

any financial interest the donor has with the City. DPW's Statement of Incompatible Activitie~ 

accepting gifts in exchange for doing their jobs. Trouble is, laws don't enforce themselves ar' 

violations. 

Unlike elected officials and commissioners, appointed department heads were not required t 
They could covertly ask contractors to donate to non-City organizations that supported their 

heads were not required to disclose when donors to their non-City affiliates had contracts or 

The Controller's report identified these loopholes and on 9/24/20 the Mayor issued an Execu 
"'. . - ~ ~ -- -· '-_, ----"~~----"'-~----;.---~<-~~.-~,,. ~~~· ,· ·•'--~·~-'~:-----~--°"---

© 2020 Westside San Francisco Media No portion of the articles or artwork may be without expressed consent _ 
. . 
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James Madison Freedom of Information Awar( 
adjudicate complaints, it cannot en<ferdlltxilffpi1€l?i~~~sfflB!t:fi~pb1fiSl8(fit~(iiJ~{~(t-tl1{~~;.I~Wil&sr 
dismisses Sunshine violations referred for enforcement by the Task Force. 

When did the City Guardians Know? 
Now that the Feds have pounced on the City Family, the Controller pleads for better rules anc 

Commission §.RJJeals for virtual Rublic inRut to find "ways to strengthen San Francisco's govE 

Attorney's Office vows to "lead when it comes to clean government" as it follows the course: 

$171,000 contract for portable toilets unfairly awarded to a Nick Bovis company, barring forr 

Hernandez's engineering firm AzulWorks, Inc. from City work for 5 years for bribery, releasin£ 

including DBI Director Tom Hui and DPW boss Mohammed Nuru, and issuing 24 subpoenas· 

schemes- uncovered by the FBI. Better late than never, some say. To be fair, this January De1 

Building lnsRection Commission President, Rodrigo Santos, for a $420,000 check fraud sche 

guidance. 

Still, the public needs to know why our own watchdog agencies missed the rot. Tips pertaini1 

the offices of the Controller and the City Attorney since the Feds announced their charges in 

tips submitted before the scandal broke? 

The Controller's Whistleb!ower Program, the Ethics Commission's Enforcement Division and 

Team should audit all the complaints they received over the past 5 years. Then, disclose ho\<\ 

that festered undisturbed until the FBI and the US Attorney led the clean-up. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserve 

October 2020 

More related ... 
Dead End for Whistleblowers 

Ethics Commission to Whistleblowers: "D.O.A." 

Whistleblowers 

More articles by Dr. Derek K 
Click to find more investigative articles by Dr. Kerr. 
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Ethics Executive Director LeeAnn Pelham 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 
xpectations ran high after voters approved Prop Kin 1993, launching the City's Ethics Camm 

agency ta counter corruption in government and political campaigns. But between intent anc 

human nature. So, the quest for good government has vied with the pursuit of self-interest. S 
repeatedly dashed public expectations. Civil Grand Juries pushed to strengthen Ethics in 20( 

prompted initiatives by the public, the Board of Supervisors, and the Commission itself to an; 

Governmental Conduct Code and redefine Ethics' responsibilities. 

Curiously Coincidental Timing 
One way that governments blunt the impact of scandals is to 

show that remedial measures were already underway. On 

11/5/19 Supervisor Norman Yee introduced a Motion (File No 
- - -- .. '' ,_- -' -.-. --;,•,·~ ·-·~~-·-- --~~-~-··-- _' __ , -

© 2020 Westside San Francisco Med111 No portion of the articles or artwork may be without expressed consent 

• • 



lr. J)erek Kerr https:/(weslsideobserver.con1/ncw~/\vatchdog.htinl#oct20 

James Madison Freedom of Information Av1arc 
claims have ever been -~q.1f t~tnl~{f 6V·1H~iirt\\ib~t1 cir r.n Ii~ i .~,.~.'{Jr <~(1 I {~/ 
Commission. That startling fact has been 
hidden by reporting only that cases are 
"dismissed" or "closed." The public is never 
told if a case was substantiated, partially
substantiated or not substantiated:' 

On 1/15/20, the FBI filed a sealed Criminal Com12laint in US 
District Court alleging that former DPW chief Mohammed 

Nuru had pursued 5 corrupt "schemes" since 2018. The 

following day, on 1 /16/20, the Board's Government Audits & 

Oversight Committee .aimroved Supervisor Yee's audit 

request. The rationale, as stated by Supervisor Gordon Mar, 

was to check if recent changes in campaign finance and 

lobbying laws were being addressed and to improve the 

timeliness of investigations and enforcements, given "a 

political landscape like the one we are in." He added that "it 

seems as though the lowest hanging fruit are the targets of 

investigation rather than the more sophisticated operations." 

Neither the "more sophisticated operations" nor the current "political landscape" were descri 

Supervisor Norman Yee 

On 1/21/20 the FBI arrested Nuru. After promising to keep 
probe, Nuru alerted his boss, City Administrator Naomi Kell~ 

FBI wire-tappers. On 1/28/20, the full Board unanimously a< 

without mentioning the explosive scandal then rattling City 

and anodyne reasons for the audit, plus the Board's policy t 

subject of a performance audit at feast once every eight yeat 

Aanal)!st last reviewed Ethics Commission practices in 201: 

timing makes one wonder if Supervisor Yee was clairvoyan1 

Audit Findings 

The BLA's 81-page "Performance Audit of the Ethics Comm 

contains 5 findings and 16 recommendations. The recomm 

Executive Director LeeAnn Pelham who introduced many u~ 

findings are summarized below; 

Assessing Effectiveness and Risks 
' ~- - - - -- -- -- - ~~ ~----'--,...-.-- . ---- - ----'-~--- -- _-:::_ -
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Doing so would promote complian~i?aill/YecLb'e<llie'Mi!ea<f6~0 . 

enforcement measures. 

Staffing 
Ethics "has never been fully staffed." Since 2016, it has 

struggled with a "high vacancy rate" -19% or about 4.5 

vacancies annually. Meanwhile, there have been 15 changes 

to the Campaign & Governmental Conduct Code that required 
additional administration and programming. Understatfing is 

largely due to slow hiring; it takes 6 months to hire a new 

Ethics employee. Ethics relies on the City's Department of 

Budget Analyst Harvey Rost 

Human Resources to conduct its hiring - at a cost of $90/hour. Because Ethics lacks the fur 

shortages persist and impede every program. 

Audits 
Audits of election campaign committees have taken almost 2 years to complete, thereby red 
hindering enforcement within the statute of limitations. Investigators lack audit training and: 

date. Also, Ethics has yet to conduct mandated lobbyist audits. 

Investigations 
Investigations of ethics violations take ''more than two years on average" - actually 29 month 

complaints takes 6 months. Then, just 1 /3 of complaints receive formal investigations. Beca 

opens more cases than it resolves, there's a mounting backlog. Long-lingering investigation; 

deterrent effect of enforcement. 

Whistleblower Protection 
The Enforcement Division is responsible for investigating whistleblower retaliation claims. 0 

32 months to resolve. Such delays impair the gathering of evidence and witness testimony a 

investigations. Further, Enforcement Division staff lack training in whistleblower retaliation ir 
employment law rather than ethics law. 

Ethics veils the outcomes of retaliation investigations. When the BLA reviewed 34 retaliation· 

2017 through 2019, it found that 20 were dismissed due to "insufficient evidence", 2 were wi1 

None were substantiated. Importantly, the BLA recommended that staff " ... report on whistleb: 
the Ethics Commission on an annual basis, including reasons for dismissals and case closure: 
investigations." 

Unmentionables 
- . -;; - ' ' ~-,,-- 7'7 -- "' ..., • . ·- -· ~- - - -""~- ..... , .:...~-- .'::!. - ~--=-· ~~ 
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se~tember and October of 2013. s:imiE'tlliG~ .r.frlfa1n'!i@riJe~d'~cff'f3!iriirst'l~atfu-a1i-ftifs1lellil:/, 
Ethics Commissioner Joe Lynn's 5/7 /09 Fog City Journal revelation that Ethics investigation~ 

complaints "uncover willful violations only if the respondent decides to confess." That also ex1 

DOA. This failure to enforce the City's Whistleblower Protection Ordinance renders it meanin1 

a trap for naive complainants. Non-enforcement g'ives reta\iators a green light to pursue whi; 

- consequences. Ultimately, taxpayers foot the bill when ineffective Ethics investigations forcE 

••• o •• ooo •••• oo oo• o oo o oo••o o o o o ;o oo o •<· oo o o o o o o o o o" ,, o o c, o O O '' o '' o e o' o o o o •' >' 

That also explains why retaliation claims are DOA. This failure to enforc 
Protection Ordinance renders it meaningless. It also makes it deceptive 
complainants. Non-enforcement gives retaliators a green light to pursu 
consequences." 

After the BLA's call for reporting whistleblower retaliation case outcomes, LeeAnn Pelham pr 

draft Annual Re12ort. lt lists some outcomes - but not how many cases were substantiated. 

a zero substantiation rate. Ethics hasn't explained this shady track record, apart from implyir 

unfounded. More likely, Ethics investigations are superficial and deficient. Toa, investigation~ 

and over-worked Ethics staff seek counsel or coaching from City Attorneys who are sent co~ 

Whistleblower claims are often denied after consulting with City Attorneys. This practice aro 

Attorneys strive to minimize the City's exposure to civil liability - no matter how damning the 

officials and employees accused of retaliation. They justify their work as protecting taxpayer 

Invariably, protecting City officials and the public purse takes priority over protecting whistlet 

relying on advice from City Attorneys favors respondents over complainants- and abets repr' 

Also absent from the audit is how Ethics must annually bow and scrape before the Mayor's C 

to fund its budget. Ethics is thus beholden to, if not controlled by, the very folks it supposed!) 

Instead of being ind-ependent, Ethics is captured. One solution is to fund Ethics the same wa: 

Auditor is financed - by a set portion of the City budget. For example, Ethics' operating budg 

by an automatic 0.04o/o cut of the City's _$13.7 billion budgfil, thereby reducing its fiscal deper 

September 2020 

' J • • ,__.. • > - - ' - '~- ~ "' , .,______~~ ~ " --· - ---
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A Subpoena for Sf PUC Skulldu 
by Dr. Derek Kerr 
n June 15th, 2020, US Attorney David Anderson delivered a Grand Jury subpoena to the Ci1 

(SFPUC). A copy was examined by the Westside Observer. The SFPUC's 2,500 employees r 

and power systems with a $1.4 billion budget. The federal subpoena demanded the resum 

performance evaluations for "any PUC employee who earned at \east $100,000" since 2011 

Statements of Economic Interests, proof of completing Ethics and Sunshine Ordinance tra 

reports and requests for reimbursement. Evidently, the feds are probing cronyism as well c 

Specifically named were Ge 

Assistant General Manager 

They had to provide all reco 

including expense reports a 

Their personnel files were s_ 

documents showing they re 

approved certain contracts 
Some of these contractors; 

corruption, alongside forme 

A notable in the "City Famili 

>'< "~ t r -< ;" ~.A • ,' - • • • __ • ,-_.•_ ----A·l~-~ -~ _ _! __ ~:!...•L!_: __ _ 
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fr: ·swh~le1 S'hg,~1;ioqr~fq.; 

US Attorney, David Anderson 

Acting Executive Dire 

State and City conf1ic 

Kelly stood by her. Sh 
plus $5,000 by Ethics 
earned at Green for /l 

SFPUC was canceled 

the City's ethics traini 

her violation was "no· 

"oblivious" ta her can 

25o/o of the maximum 

Neighborhoo 
Neighborhood watch 

Since July 2015, the I 
Lawrence has warne( 

contracting practices 
purely on price but 3t 

promises to help "un( 

social programs." Sin 

guidance from the SFPUC, Lawrence sees a form of "tribute" that invites favoritism and co 

pay for these extracted social benefits as well as fat salaries, perks and unchecked bond ci 
charges have soared beyond the rate of inf1ation. 

In a July 2020 Marina Times article Susan Dyer Reynolds critiqued Juliet Ellis and the Corr 

pioneered at SFPUC. Designed to help underserved communities, the Community Benefits 

contractors to disburse a percentage of their income to non-profits serving local communi 

beneficence is that the SFPUC informs contractors about non-profits that deserve their do1 

creeps in. The problem, as Reynolds details, is that; 'There's no oversight, no voting, no pub 

Ellis and her team run a shadowy show that makes it impossible for outsiders to find out ex< 

Similarly, in a 2/14/19 Resolution, the SF Labor Council criticized the opacity of SFPUC sta 

requested payments from Union signatory contractors to preferred non-profit agencies" and 

unilateral hiring." Oddly, SFPUC's 5 Commissioners and its 17-member Citizens' Advisory: ci. 
any of the shadowy practices now under federal scrutiny. 

Sf PUC Whistleblowers 
- - , - - '..:· - - ~ >- ::-::.. :' •-r__::_' ~~-~-•o •'·": -:' 'C _:_::2-. =-----•- -- "_ "";-:-:•' • _:_ (";)!,- ' •> -~ '' ~:.:·" " ,• • 
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Cronyism splits worki'o'i~ifli 1JfJ;r11isldlri.!°I lnurnali>t• N' « 
and outsiders, leading to mistrust in 1 , : ,', ', 
management. Worse, cronyism begets 
more cronies who protect each other by 
excusing poor performance and ethical 
lapses ... Workers who strive to obtain the 
required qualifications get demoralized. 
Those who are arbitrarily granted plum 
jobs, along with substantial salary and 
pension boosts, are beholden to their 
benefactors and unlikely to challenge 
managerial misconduct." 

Sources within the SFPUC (not named to avoid reprisals) 
tell us that cronyism and favoritism have pushed hiring and 

promotion decisions into predetermined outcomes. There's 

more. Among the allegations were; promoting unqualified 

workers, employment discrimination, filing false inspection 

reports, overlooking dumping violations, and helping 

politically connected restaurants to dodge penalties for 
SFPUC General ~ 

clogging sewers with illegally discharged grease. Such claims have reached the Whistleblc 

Commission, the City Attorney, the DA, the Environmental Protection Agency, Federal Cour 

.rumbl.ings, and articles in neighborhood newspapers, probably caught the eye of US Attorn 

analogous focus of his subpoena. 

Indignation arises when the SFPUC's own job requirements are not followed. For example, 

4 Su1;1ervising lnsRectors who ensure that wastewater treatment protects public health anc 

qualification for this job is a Grade 2 Environmental Compliance Inspector Certificate (aka· 

CertifiCate, Grade II) from the California Water Environment Association (CWEA). But the C 

the 4 Supervisors lack that required credential; Audie !lejay has a Grade 1 or "Entry Level" c 

appears for Mark Middleton. Apparently, their former and current bosses let these lapses ~ 

explain the missing credentials - "no responsive documents." According to Transparent Ca. 

$191,608 with benefits in 2019 and llejay earned $197,339. 

Part of the problem, sources say, is that some SFPUC higher-ups are themselves thinly qu< 

"loyal" rather than competent subordinates. Accordingly, compliant employees may get pn 
_,, _ .. "G ·o _·a·1. !~!~~n.-~~-·n1ee:.· -:._G,_,!'-~ft-~)!•.l!_:_,_·_:_,_:e.:..._!_ 
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.}1R"Jfi.:..~'~' ,f1/~11>C.1;t:/ £.°011._c'CJ,~· ,, .~r.,' ,-.,.,._, ' '' •r- ·• 

yielding a $103,794 pensior 
-.. California. 

Another way to slip under-q 

positions, sources say, is to 

capacity. Acting appointme 

Civil Service vetting require< 

There's no open application 

expert panel. "Acting" appoi 
that provides the qualificati, 

Meanwhile, already-qualifie1 

opportunities. Amazingly, t~ 

Enterprise Organizational C 

managers (40o/o) are "Actin~ 

Cronyism splits workforces 

Assistant General Manager for External Affairs, Juliet Ellls leading to mistrust in mana 
begets more cronies who p: 

poor performance and ethical \apses. For the SFPUC, there are costs beyond the public an 

promoting under-qualified employees. The professional time and effort expended to deve\1 

when minimum qualifications are disregarded. Workers who strive to obtain the required q 

Those who are arbitrarily granted plum jobs, along with substantial salary and pension boc 

benefactors and unlikely to challenge managerial misconduct. 

As the Westside Observer previously regorted, employee outrage over favoritism also erup· 

Agency as well as the Department of Public Health. This disquiet may be traced to the Ne~ 

"Civil Service Reform,'' whereby managers were empowered to use their "expertise" and "b1 

"most appropriate" candidates ratherthan relying on "rigid" test scores, minimum qua\ificc 
"flexible staffing" can undermine merit-based employment and trigger costly accusations< 

A ray of hope emerged from SFPUC's Wastewater Enteq~rise Business Plan that vowed to· 

training" and "certification standards." Similarly, a 7 /14/20 "Workforce Eg_lli!y Analysis" pie. 

that managers use judgment," as in hiring, performance evaluations and discipline. These. 

to materlalize now that federal prosecutors are targeting SFPUC's management. 

Acknowledgment: Thanks to the former and current SFPUC employees who provided tip~ 

' . -· - - "" 
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Clty Attorney Dennis Herrera Source- City Attorney's Office· 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 

T he City Attorney's calamitous war against Joanne Hoeper's Whistleblower Retaliat 

cost taxpayers $12,198,473. This whopping expense passed unnoticed due to ma1 

we'll describe a bit later. Here's the breakdown; -

Sewer-Gate: The Backstory 

The Westside Observer (WSO) has covered this saga since SeRtember 2014. Briefly, Jo Ho, 

Dennis Herrera's Chief Trial Deputy since 2000. In December 2011, the FB! notified her abd 

sewer repair claims submitted to the Claims Unit within the City Attorney's Office (CAO). Hi 

» , • ~-!! o .,_.: -~· ~ ·1·! !·P.~·~ •.• • ~-, ·· 1e -~·' 1. ·1 •1• 
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badge red th e!i1'r<i 'si 9~1!1 ~\ mf' M ifn\I \!{ ai ili sr VJ g/~ c,; ~ rt?a rtfy'!l 1 G-rilmn ~'o 
property owners, making them invalid. Sewers were usually replaced ra· 

And, sewer replacements charges were infiated by $3,000 above stand< 

allowed private plumbing companies to fix sewer lines that were the re~ 

Joanne Hoeper the required bidding process. Accordingly, taxpayers were funding priva 

plumbing company bonanzas. 

' ••••• ~ •••• ~ , •• 0 " 0 ••• 0 " 0 • 0 , • " • ' • , " ' • " " • ~ ' • <• 0 0 • ·' • ,, 0 " • ' ' " • ·' 0 •• 0 '• '· ' , , 0 < ,, 

... the lawsuit and jury verdict serve a significant benefit on the genera 
government officials from engaging in unlawful retaliation against a • 
of various statutes. - Court documents" 

Hoeper's warning about corrupt sewer claims caused a furor. Policies were revised. But in 

wrap up her investigation. She turned in a report recommending further investigation of pc 

Essentially, she faulted oversight within the Claims Unit- and the City Attorney's Office. On. 

a choice; unemployment or reassignment to the District Attorney's Office. Once Hoeper tra 

evaporated. In January 2014, Herrera fired her. 

Six Years of Costly Legal Wrangling 
Hoeper filed a whistleblower retaliation claim on July 1st, 2014. Two months later, 

Herrera issued an indignant rebuttal. Mediation failed as Hoeper asked for $1,895,000 

while Herrera countered with $355,000. Casting CAO lawyers aside, Herrera hired the 

powerhouse law firm of Keker & Van Nest at a dazzling S850/hour. Sometimes, hiring big

guns cows plaintiffs to capitulate. The opposite happened after a stunning blunder; CAO 

spokesperson Matt Dorsey was allowed to email Herrera's rebuttal to the Westside 

Observer stating: "/read with interest yoUr column on former Deputy City attorney Joanne 

Hoeper's claim against city taxpayers for monetary damages, and thought you might be 

interested in the city's formal response ... " 

This disclosure undermined Herrera's central argument; that Hoeper could not reveal 

similar infbrmation to prove her case because it was attorney-client privileged. 

Once Hoeper filed suit in January 2015, the City immediately sought dismissal arguing tha' 

She relied on protected attorney-client communications. On June 1st 2016 that claim was· 

rejected in Superior Court - because the City had already leaked its version of events to 

the Westside Observer and the SF Chronicle. Further, the Court objected because the City's 

would bar most retaliation claims by attorney employees." 

< 'fii - • ,o - ' - > ••• r • ~--·--=' "';- r-;:- -~-
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34.6 hour cut, thus saving a meal!"f$;1!¥,9efo"Ml§nvffill1'7ieb111'-rn€!1'iAf6uAi'e8(Sl~t.t>R&&\3< 
contingency basis, they were entitled to a "multiplier" to boost their fees. Courts grant mul· 

pursue public interest cases when clients can't pay up front. Hoeper requested a multiplier 
opposed any enhancement. The judge awarded a 1.35 multiplier because; " ... the lawsuit an 

benefit on the general public: to deter government officials from engaging in unlawful retafia 
violation of various statutes." 

On August 3rd, 2017, the Court awarded Hoeper's attorneys$ 2,408,468 in trial fees. To thi 

$226,046 in post-trial fees, $56,512 in interest to the original jury award, $68,141 in interes· 

costs, for a total Judgment of $5,471,138. The City's one-sided campaign to cut costs hai 

Herrera charged headlong down a blind alley. 

On September 25th, 2017, the City appealed the judgment. Then came an intriguing 

switch; the appeal was handled by City attorneys rather than the pricey losers at Keker & 
Van Nest. In an exhaustive 97-page brief, the City argued that the trial court wrongly let 

Hoeper introduce evidence that was attorney-client privileged, that the jury erred in its 

finding of whistleblower retaliation, that Hoeper failed to mitigate her damages, and that 

her award for emotional distress was excessive. After poring through 4,000 pages of cour1 

records, Hoeper's attorneys responded with a compelling 85-page rebuttal. The City then 

filed a 59-page reply brief. On February 13th, 2020 the Court of Appeal unanimously 
@iected the City's pleadings, stating; "None of these arguments is meritorious." 

Karl Olson Photo: 

Mountain Dernoc1·at 

Beyond the legal trouncing, the 29 months of appeal

wrangling would be costly. Looming was the 7% interest 
on Hoeper's unpaid $5,471,138 award - amounting to 

$1,049 per day. Another 1.35 multiplier hovered over her 

current attorney's fees. Surely, the City would negotiate a 

settlement. Instead, after spending a month pondering a 
last-ditch appeal to the California Supreme Court, the City, 

folded. On April 2nd, 2020, Deputy City Attorney Jonathan. 
Rolnick informed Hoeper's attorneys that he had been 

"asked to handle the resolution of the judgment." Still, nos 

DCA Roi nick reviewed - but did not contest - Hoeper's Ma~ 

reimbursement of appeal expenses. Records show no City 

and services detailed in laborious Declarations from her a1 

to an Amended Judgment that the Superior Court approve 

breakdown; 

.~ . . - ~ ' ,, ' , - ~~' ,., . . . . ' -- - . -- ' 
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Total 

Source: City Attorney's Office 

Dodging Public Scrutiny 

Records show that the CAO asked the Controller to pay $7.3 million to Canatta, O'Too\e, Fi( 

lawyers. The money came from the City's General Fund. In a 5/28/20 email, DCA Rolnick e 

way to get the$ out the door and given the other issues the Controller is dealing with did no: 

also the quietest, least embarrassing way. 

Saving face may explain the sudden ardor for the "quickest way" after dragging the case o 

post-trial settlements weren't proposed. Settlements require a hearing and approval by the 

accepting defeat without a settlement, the payout eluded public inquiries and media cover 

skirted by shelling out amid the COVID-19 tumult. 

Records show that Herrera spent open handedly to defend himself. The Westside Observer 

the CAO attempted to reduce the fees charged by Keker & Van Nest. No such records werE 

City attorneys to pursue the appeal, legal fees fell to one-thlrd of Keker & Van Nest rates. H 

attorneys from the outset, about $2.8 million could have been saved. Another $2.2 million 

without the appeal. We asked the CAO why it didn't attempt a post-trial settlement; no res~ 

The City Attorney's retaliatory sewer-gate debacle, alongside the FBl's recent arrest of DPV 

others for pub!ic corruption, jab at the City's anti-graft capabilities. As Hoeper wrote in "Bui 

in the Februa_ry 2020 Westside Observer, her case casts doubt that the CAO can "conduct .s 
investigation into the a/legations that led to the arrest of Mr. Nuru." 

In a June, 2003 Press Release, Dennis Herrera had praised Joanne Hoeper as ''a public wr( 

Back then, her efforts to "stamp out public corruption through aggressive legal action" wer 

found fraud-enabling practices within hls office, Herrera apparently contrived a pretext for' 
penchant for "knowing more than anyone else," resorting to a "scorched-earth approach" a 

frequent efforts to settle." In pot-versus-kettle irony, Herrera failed to follow his own couns, 

jury and judges, tempered his lawfare, and settled earlier, taxpayers and whistleblowers we 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideobser 

July 18, 2020 

< ' - ~ - ,,,. 1. - ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ~ '~ ' 0 ·- ' • - , • 

© 2020 wests1de San Francisco Medra No portion of the articles; o~ artwork may be , _ '~" without expressed consent _ • 
-- - - - - ,- = .":0..'_ -" - - - - . ~:__- - - -- _: __ , - --

• 



)r. Dctek Kerr https://wcstsideobserver.com/news/watchdog.htinllfoct20 

BSEB 
James Madison Freedom of Information Aware 

I ui: ' ~h~ 

Captain Nick Rainsford Photo: Ingleside Light 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 
n June 17, the SF Examiner re[!orted that Taraval Station's Captain Nicholas Rains 

"relieved of his command and placed under administrative investigation." Reporte 

Chief William Scott had "abruptly transferred" Ralnsford to SFPD's Homeland Sec\ 

Although an SFPD spokesperson declined to provide details, Examiner sources indicated t: 

removals were typically driven by "significant misconduct" or when an officer's ongoing prE 
a threat" to officers or the community . 

........................... 000•••••···································· 
Morale was sagging. Capt. Rainsford addressed the officers and appa 
the police had handled previous protests. His exact statement is not ~ 
thought it was wrong, felt offended anil filed a complaint. Internal Aff: 

The Westside Observer (WSO) sought comments from Captain Rainsford but received nor 

was appointed Acting Captain on June 12th, told the WSO that he would manage day-to-di 
t t · .. d h d" t ·d rfi d h t t r . . - . 

, • < • ; " ,_ - c - - - ' ~-' • _, --"-. -'~ - - -- --
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after the police shooting of Marici"<Wiiol:ls,''lfd?n·~bn\,liraB'i\1o~l~lVil<Wall'slil!e!V8/i(n~rt5~fEfc 
Lives Matter" on a bulletin board displaying officer assignments. Authored by conservativE 

Op-Ed cited data that challenged the "misrepresentation of police shootings." An affronted 

posting and sent it to the Examiner. In its reRort on the "Anti-Black Lives Matter article," thE 

about using City property for "political activity." MacDonald fired back in an Qginion Riece,. 

lose their First Amendments rights when they work for the government." She proposed tha 

questioned the legality of posting an Op-Ed arguing that policing suffers from systemic ra< 

determined that the Op-Ed was "not political in nature" and did not violate City rules again~ 

campaigns. 

The incident with Capt. Rainsford seems more serious than the 2016 Op-Ed controversy. T 

Unprecedented social reactions to violent police interventions are driving extraordinary pol 

COVID-19 intensifies frustrations, conflicts and the growing tendency to silence opposing' 

reactivity, the value and R.light of ROlice whistleblowers must be balanced with the record a 

Captain Rainsford's re-assignment may be temporary. As of 7 /1 /20 the SFPD still identifle( 

commanding officer. No other Captain has been assigned to Tarava\ Station. There has be 

his reassignment by the SFPD or the Police Commission. Neither Supervisor Norman Yee 1 

whose districts are partly covered by the Taraval Police Station, was notified. As Supervis< 

sudden and sub rosa reassignments "undermine trust and relationships with the communi 

A native son, Nick Rainsford was born and raised in the Parkside neighborhood of the Sun: 

Gabriel's Grammar School and Sacred Heart High School, he joined the USMC Reserves ar 

joined the SFPD in 1994, working at the Bayview, Central, Tenderloin, Richmond, lng\eside i 

promotions along the way. After serving as Captain of the Staff Services Division that over 

staffing, he became T araval Station's Captain in December 2018. ln that capacity, he focus 

ins and home burglaries as well as traffic safety. He wrote an informative column for the R 
and monthly editorials for Taraval Station's outstanding website. According to Q~enP-fillrol 

$222,786 in 2019. 

The Taraval Police District is the City's largest and most populous. It is bordered by Golder 

Beach to the west, Daly City to the south, and 7th Avenue down to Interstate 280 to the ea~ 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideobser 

July 3, 2020 
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Deadly Rip Currents at Ocean I 
cean Beach is notable for powerful swells that attract surfers, nature lovers and le 

confinement. Less visible are treacherous rip currents that can drag swimmers oL 

and frigid waters can quickly cause drowning. Prominent signs warning of the dar 
are easily overlooked amidst the captivating scenery. On a recent visit, signs wer! 

T-shirts relevantly stating "I Can't Breathe". 

After a record 7 people drowned in 1998, the National Park Service implemented a beach~ 

responds to emergencies. Since then, annual drowning deaths at Ocean Beach haven't ex( 

Beach is not a designated swimming area and because its 3.5 mile stretch would be prohil 

lifeguards are not routinely assigned there. Also, the presence of lifeguards could mislead 

swimming was endorsed. 

As reported by Hoodline on June 11, 5 East Bay teens were caught in a rip current at the a1 

Street. Fortunately, the boys' frantic struggles were noticed. Workers from the Park ServicE 

collaborated on the rescue. Ambulances rushed the boys to the hospital. All suffered from 

went to the ICU in critical condition. Three teens were hospitalized in serious or stable con 

was discharged home . 

......................................... ,, ... ~ .... , ................. . 
... annual drowning deaths at Ocean Beach haven't exceeded two. Beci 
a designated swimming area ... lifeguards are not routinely assigned 1 

-- ,, '~---• ::._,_:_~,,_, '"' ,_-_._, ___ . '-- ! -~ _t~•~-'..!.. _ _'_:_ -.:.J'_I~_}_~' _ _'._ 
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S ociet}F\\{,f/,'!iJ~1n\i:%'diiqaff e)6' ~1gh s~~(!di1 I ~• 
decided to lock arms and wade waist

deep into the surf. An unexpected wave 

knocked them apart.Two 16 year olds, 

Grisham Duran and Wayne Ausa, were 

swept out to sea and lost. Then

Supervlsor Eric Mar sponsored a 

5/12/16 bearing before the Public 

Safety and Neighborhood Services 

Committee where every agency 

involved in safety monitoring, as well as 

rescue and recovery efforts described 

their services. The SF Fire Department deemed Oc 

in the nation. In 2015 alone, the Park Service cond 
which 19 required hospital attention. 

Despite enhanced signage and rescue patrols, casualties among unwary swimmers have< 

deaths in 1998. Between 1998 and 2006, 7 deaths were reported. ln January 2006, the boc 

and novice surfer Sean Fahey washed up near Sloat Blvd. Then in May 2006, Marlin Coats, 

drowned while trying to save 2 boys who were struggling in the surf. The boys were hospit. 

recovered. ln April 2014, Abe\ Cornejo, his 14 year old son Marcos and a cousin were swe~ 

saved, the father ended up in a coma in the !CU at UCSF and young Marcos was lost at sec 

surfer who drowned in August 2016. A swimmer was lost in the surf near the Cliff Houser• 

December 2018, Jay Seideman, a 43 year old tech executive from Oakland, succumbed to· 

stricken surfer required CPR after being rescued then was hos_pitalized in critical condition 

drownings did not receive media attention. 

Navigating the Rips at Ocean Beach 

Rip currents or "rips" make Ocean Beach a perilous recreational area_ Nationwide, rip currE 

rescues. Three foot waves can strike with surprising force, tossing waders off their feet. E1 

water can pull the strongest swimmers out to sea. A UC Berkeley oceanograRher exRlains · 

incoming waves are deflected by the beach into an underwater channel that funnels thew; 

streams are deceptive. By flowing out through the surf zone, rips create a calm spot thats 

actually hazardous. Rips move at a rate of up to 8 feet per second, making it impossible tci 
who panic and fight the current are soon exhausted. They are further incapacitated becau~ 

stays at a bone-chilling 56 degrees even in the hottest months. Drowning can occur in a fe 
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water until the current dissipates, then swim back to ~-..e ·"¥,-,: ·. o..;ru~ · · , 

shore away from the rip zone. 

Ocean Beach experts advise that even wading at 

ankle depth is risky. Safer yet, stay out of the water. 

Dr: Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative 

reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserver.com 

June 15, 2020 
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to them without halting rep I icatidi'l''M'eu~r~1f ii'n\l faHt1boaie's!iil\!'lfe9 l~r6\eMar[~~ ~ikslmit1" 
but they emerge after infection or vaccination. 

Antibodies Do Not Ensure Immunity 

A recent study: from Shanghai showed that among 175 patients who recovered from COV\I 

undetectable neutralizing antibody levels. Similarly, researchers at Rockefeller University fc 

convalescent patients, 339'0 had no detectable neutralizing antibodies while 469'0 had low IE 

recovered, presumably the cellular component of the immune system fought off the virus. 

could also fail to generate protective antibodies in a sizeable sub-population. 

Even if neutralizing antibodies do develop, it's not yet known how long they last or the amo 

CoV-2. Some viral infections like the com man cold - often caused by different coronaviru~ 

transient antibody levels that do not bestow lasting immunity. As for the antibodies to the 

MERS and SARS, they declined after several months. Likewise for antibodies arising after i 
the case of A\DS, there's an abundance of antibodies to HIV but they are non-neutralizing c 

we still have no vaccine against AIDS or any coronavirus . 

•••• •• •••••• ·~··· ••••••• '" •• , 0 ••••••• "" ·' 0 •• " •• , •• , , ",. 0, •• 0 ., '. 0. '" ''," 

Contra these gloomy laboratory studies, clinical findings from South I 
the specter of re-infection. Among 263 patients who fully recovered f 
tested positive for SARS-CoV-2 weeks later, none harbored viable viri 
longer infectious:' 

Another reason why viral infections evade the immune system ls that viruses mutate so th 

Preliminary data from China indicates that SARS-CoV-2 mutates frequently and some strai 

than others. The deadlier mutations recovered from Chinese patients were also noted in P• 

New York State. The milder strains resembled those in Washington State. Thus, mutations 

variable mortality rates seen in different regions. A non-peer reviewed article by Korber et < 

SARS-CoV-2 mutation dubbed "D614G" that is replacing the original Wuhan virus across th 

New York. Though challenged by other scientists, such mutations, like those of the fiu viru. 

develop an effective vaccine or to prevent re-infection. 

Antlbodies, whether acquired by natural infection or vaccination, may not be protective. In 

the World Health Organization rejected antibody tests to grant "immunity passports" - cer 

circulate freely without fear of re-infection. WHO declared; "There is currently no evidence t 

from COVID-19 and have antibodies are protected from a second infection". Also, many anti 

Scientists warn that segregating society on the basis of dubious biologic data can threate1 

health 
·~ - 'if• -- r ~ 0 ~ -~""'5 -,..~ < ' •> "-

© 2020 Westside San Francisco Media No portion of the articles 9r artwork may be, • ·• , "w1tho~t express~d9ori'sei;it'._!-' ['.',,_. '.-4 
- . ~ - <;:~ :_.', "'. '"-,,,,. ·.·--:.'."_··;_'.;,:.~--~th 

P1773 



)r. Derek KetT https://westsideobscrver.co1n/news/walchdog.htmlfloct20 

James Madison Freedom of Information Av;an 
- .)ociety tJf f1ro.rl?s5.i(iJ?a1 lolJrr1afist.~, f·Jor(a/ {~hopter 
SARS-CoV-2 binds to ACE-2 receptors that are found throughout the body, notably the airw 

lining of blood vessels, the heart and kidneys. This explains the widespread organ involver 

Some patients succumb to an unruly inflammatory cascade called a "cytokine storm" whel 

cells attack organs infected by the virus. A related immune over-reaction called "multi-syst 

has affected some children weeks after being exposed to SARS-CoV-2. 

Conversely, SARS-CoV-2 weakens the immune system by binding to CD-147 receRtors on I_' 

virus. Thus, anti-viral immune cells get infected by the virus they are supposed to destroy. 

show markedly depressed lvmRhocY!e counts, but those who are severely ill show "functia 

lymphocytes. Sa SARS-CaV-2 acts like HIV by neutralizing a key component of the immunt 

Montagnier, winner of the 2008 Nobel Prize in Medicine for discovering the Human lmmun 

AIDS, asserted that SARS-CoV-2 is a lab-created virus containing HIV genetic sequences.~ 

Wuhan Institute of Virology after modifying a coronavirus to develop an AIDS vaccine. 

When normal cells are infected, they change in ways that are recognized by the body's imn 
CoV-2 camouflages the cells it infects, resulting in "immune evasion". By hiding its tracks,· 

recognition and elimination of virus-infected cells". This mechanism could allow SARS-Co' 

infection like Hepatitis-C or AIDS and may explain why some patients experience prolonge 

shedding. 

Contra these gloomy laboratory studies, clinical finding~ from South Korea bring optimism 

Among 263 patients who fully recovered from COVJD-19, then tested positive for SARS-Co' 

viable viruses. They were no longer infectious. The diagnostic test merely detected RNA fr 

can take several months to clear from convalescent patients. Unlike H\V, SARS-CoV-2 did 

cells, making it doubtful to result in chronic infection or recurrence. Although antibodies in 

protective, solid evidence of immunity from re-infection is lacking, coming from non-peer r 

monkey:s. Given COVID-19's uncertainties, safety means avoiding exposure and supportin~ 

adequate exercise. rest, nutrition plus vitamins D and C. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideobser 

June 2020 
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Mystique of COVID-19 Transmi 
by Dr. Derek Kerr 

o date, we have been told that SARS-CoV-2 (severe acute respirato 

the new coronavirus that causes the disease called COVID-19, is s 

infected persons cough or sneeze. These virus-laden droplets can 

mouth. Droplets also land on nearby surfaces. If we touch contaminated s 

noses, eyes and perhaps genitals, the virus can invade our bodies. That's t 
receptors on mucosa! cells but cannot penetrate intact skin. Accordingly,~ 

keeping 6 feet away from others, washing hands frequently, and avoiding touching our fac1 

Upon recognizing that infected people were transmitting the virus without or before feelin~ 
A survey_ of 3,000 people in Italy found that; "the great majority of people infected with cov· 
asymptomatic but represented a formidable source of contagion". By definition, asymptomc 

sneezing so they probably spread the virus by other means. 
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· members contracted COVI0-19 ft<tl!~<ll;H1<:fJlrpr-~c'.tr.il1f<ln'.\ .Wlifp1'Rfor1§, n·/JrslngltlofnO!i/Wi 
incubators. 

Features of Aerosols 

There is data indicating that the virus can spread by aerosol - not just droplets. In general, 

whi!e aerosols consist of micro-droplets measuring less than 5 microns. The SF fog is onE 

is the invisible mist we produce with every breath. It becomes visible by exhaling against a 

vapor condenses into water. Unlike larger droplets that quickly fall to the ground, aerosols 

hours - like clouds. Severa! studies show that aerosols, and some droplets, can travel wel 

Micro-droplets in aerosols also pose a danger because their small size allows them to rea1 

droplets deposit in the upper airway where they are typically trapped by mucus that is pust 

hair-like structures called cilia. Aerosols are largely blocked by face masks, especially N95 

particles above 0.3 microns. 

Aerosols Carry Viral Particles 

Aerodynamic research on air samples in COVID-19 hospitals in Wuhan, China found vlral R . 
toilets where flushing urine and feces can aerosolize the virus. Indeed, other researchers D 

fece.s of most COVID-19 patients. Viral RNA was also found where workers removed their I 

scattering viral particles into the air. However, well-ventilated patient care areas and open I 

of aerosolized viruses. Once contaminated areas were sanitized, the air within became vin 

at.the University of Nebraska Medical Center found viral RNA in air samples from rooms o: 

et al detected viral RNA in the air exhaust fan of Singapore hospital rooms, indicating airbc 

Since these studies only iso!ated viral RNA, they did not prove that the air contained viable' 

SARS-CoV-2 has a RNA core and a spiked protein coat). Further, viral concentrations in the 

know how many viruses are needed to cause infection. However, because SARS-CoV-2 is f 
because aerosols have spread tuberculosis, influenza, measles and the 2003 SARS coronc 

COVID-19 is likely, particularly in crowded, enclosed spaces with poor ventilation or re-cycl 

transmission is rare. Out of 1,245 COVID-19 cases documented in China, only-2. were contr 

circulates freely. 

Aerosols Transmit Infection 

A studv.. by Van Doremalen et al showed that when SARS-CoV-2 was introduced into aerOS\ 

capable of infecting cells - for at least 3 hours. A non-peer reviewed report by Sears et al f~ 
• • , • » ~ - o_~ - ,~ ""'· ~ •• ~ - ,,.,_, •• - •• c. '" ,- , , ; , · • ' ' · • 
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Better yet, wipe down contaminale\1 ~lll.ialfe~ra¥11v si@{p\ltikilYln' B~'frifod'r\i>i.'willf Jia\13\hl( 
solution. Chin et al used micro-droplets of virus solutions to test viral viability against varic 

and surfaces. Most household disinfectants neutralized SARS-CoV-19 - but acids like vinE 

virus, so dryers set at high, about 130 degrees F, would eliminate SARS-CoV-2 from clothin 

Alarmingly, they found that the virus remained viable for 14 days at 39 degrees F, so refrigE 

sanitized. Reassuringly, the virus lasted less than 3 hours on printing or tissue paper at roe 

contaminated banknotes harbored viable virus for 2 days and cleared on day 4. Cloth and' 

days while glass surfaces cleared within 4 days. Plastic and stainless steel held viable virL 

7. Hence, the need to wash hands often; at least 10 times daily: has proven ideal. 

The likelihood of airborne infection depends on the dose of virus transmitted and the dura1 

unmasked face-to-face chat could pass the virus. Accordingly, if unmasked, avoid crowdec 

places. As for conversations, keep them short, masked and distanced. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideobser 

May2020 
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Door-to-Door Imposters, Robocalls: Beware of Co 
.··~;1 T imes of crisis bring out the best in us - and the sleaze in scam 
·;. March newsletter alerted the public to a creepy COV!D-19 scar 

;.#! r · Department of Public Health (DPH) or Centers for Disease Car 
· going door-to-door, asking to enter homes to conduct lnspecti{ 

CDC sends personnel door-to-door to inspect private residences. 

Health Inspectors Although City Disaster Services workers do pl' 
in various neighborhoods, they do not ask to enter homes or establishments. DPH Environ 
checking sanitation in SRO hotels, but they notify building managers in advance and prese 

specific food safety inspections in restaurants and related facilities. Again, they show DPI-

..................................................................... 
The IRS reports a wave of calls and emails from fraudsters seeking 
fees to speed up delivery of the $1,200 "Stimulus Check." 

~· •1.1 !J. •• " I "I '_ • "" ~ - I , 
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Th FTC d 

. h .~OCf,.!i'l~1 er( fJfC),t/t?s~j()f/G/ }(J(Jf!JcJ{istS( f•/<"Jl(~af {~f1L?[)(('t[ 
e a vises to ang up on roboca s. Do no press any numuers o answer any ques 11 

more robocalls. Whether commercial solicitations come by phone, email or text message, 

wire money. Beware also of fake COVID-19 charitable solicitations. Check to see if the cha 
calls for donations. Report solicitation scams to the FTC at 1-877-382-4357. 

Snake Oil The World Health Organization (WHO) has alerted the global community al 

that claim to prevent, detect, treat or cure COVJD-19." Notably, deceptive websites general I: 
landline phone number. Consumers are advised to seek guidance from a medical professi1 
scammers are flooding the US market with fake or untested sanitizers and disinfectants, c 

coronavirus. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) lists approved sanitizers and thri 

retailers who sell unregistered COVID-19 related products. 

Social Security Scams The Social Security Administration (SSA) is warning th• 
threatening suspension of Social Security benefits due to COVID-19 -related office closurE 

recipients to call a number operated by scammers. They demand personal information or i 

wire transfer to preserve your benefits during the COVID-19 shut-down. The SSA emphasiz 

Security payments or benefits during the pandemic - or demand fees. Report these crooks 

The IRS regorts a wave of calls and emails from fraudsters seeking personal information c 

the $1,200 "Stlmulus Check." The official term is "Economic Impact Payment" and the IRS~ 
your bank account. The IRS does not call or email taxpayers to verify personal or banking i 
identity theft cons. Do not open "IRS Emails" or click on any links or attachments within th1 

involves sending taxpayers a bogus IRS check with directions to call a number to verify thE 

it. Report such scams at; b!1ps·//www.irs.gov/Qrivac~-disclosure/report-ghishing. 

Information and caution are protective against cheats. Get definitive guidance and subscri 

for Disease Control and Prevention at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/whats 

Public Health provides information and updates on COVID-19, at; httgs://www.sfdoh.org1.Q1 
City's overall responses can be tracked at; httos://sf.gov/tooics/coronavirus-covid-19. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideobser 
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by Dr. Derek Kerr 

T here's another deadly epidemic in the City. Until now,. San Francisco's robu~ 
reduction programs had forestalled the opioid overdose epidemic sweepin: 

_ Press Release and Health Commission presentation detailed how fatal dru: 
projected 400 cases in 2019. Deadlier than homicides, suicides and traffic 

overdoses are now primarily driven by fentanyl. Most casualties are men, 40 to 59: 
disproportionately African-American. · 

Fentanyl 

A potent and fast-actlng opioid, fentanyl is about 100 rimes mare potent than morphinE 
heroin. Formulated in 1959 to control pain from cancer or surgery, fentanyl was later aC: 
because it's cheaper to produce and easier to smuggle than heroin. As detailed in journ 

Fentanyl, Inc., it mostly comes from China where chemical companies synthesize recre 
subsidies. These labs produce fentanyl variants or precursors that haven't yet been dee 
thtUSl'tdM tll'll ·r·h·h d • - _, ~ -- - ' - - - - "" -
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additive mixed into various st'if?{f81M~fsftg1g)(//8HOO'lii6FW0iirCIF1 o'e/pil/,C~~l~;;\¥1{tl~H 
the street opioid of choice because it's cheaper and delivers a better rush, per Dr. Phillir 

Substance Use Research. Because the purity of street fentanyl varies, users don't know 

overdoses. Data Dr. Coffin shared with the Westside Observer shows that fentanyl-relat1 

annually since 2015, reaching 162 in 2019. But that's a partial count due to the 6-mont~ 

and toxicology results. DPH projEictions for 2019 foresee around 200 fentanyl-linked av 

fatalities far exceed heroin plus prescription opioid deaths. 

To counter the overdose epidemic, the DPH employs a Harm-Reduction model. This inc 

and clinics, freely distributing naloxone (Narcan) a drug that reverses opioid overdoses 

strips so users can check their stash, and planning drug sobering centers. Needle acce 

to smoke rather than inject fentanyl and offer aluminum foil to facilitate this safer optic 

single-room occupancy hotels where 30°/o of overdose deaths occur, advising drug user 

Treatment strategies include easing access to methadone and buprenorphine (Suboxo1 

Once implemented, Mental Health SF will expand these services. 

Methamphetamine 

Methamphetamine is largely produced by Mexican cartels that import the chemical pre 
cocaine, it's a stimulant but longer-lasting and cheaper. Meth-related overdose deaths t 
decade. However, the numbers exploded in 2019. As the Medical Examiner told the WS 

deaths as of March, with a projected total of 252. That's double the 126 meth deaths lo 

overdoses, the DPH found that 47% of Psychiatric Emergency visits in 2017-18 were m1 

Although no medications can reverse methamphetamine overdoses or block cravings,. 

Contingency Management, whe.reby users receive cash rewards for staying clean. Senc 

Senator Scott Wiener, would provide Medi-Cal coverage for this intervention. Based on I 

Force recommendatlorls, a 12-bed Meth Sobering Center with access to c_ounseling an1 

Tenderloin this year. 

Overdose Deaths and Prevention 

Overdose deaths refer solely to acute drug poisonings. They exclude drug-related deat~ 

injuries, and Infections. Also excluded are alcohol related deaths that are categorized d 

overdoses involve multiple drugs, it's difficult to determine which one was leth.al. For ex 

methamphetamine overdoses involve other drugs - mostly fentanyl. So fentanyl contrib 

attributed to meth, cocaine and heroin. When one death is caused by 2 drugs, it genera1 

reports. That's why the sum of individual drug-related fatalities exceeds the number of 
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2006 to 2016, injection drug JSl!iifihY:fia~~'dftiorif¥~~(,/1111fn"fu'.60\J t6°i1hrifsr~§'.t16W 
stayed flat. And it isn't due to the national prescription opioid epidemic. Local prescript 

steadily dropped since their peak 2010. The breakdown In the City's containment effort 

availability and desire for fentanyl - and meth. 

To curb the availability of dangerous drugs, the US Attorney for San Francisco launchec 

dealers and suppliers last August. This "Federal Initiative for the Tenderloin" started by 

drug traffickers who commuted from the East Bay. This intervention gave residents a w 

intimidating open-air drug market. Yet, prior drug raids by the SFPD faced criticism for 1 

needed, such enforcement measures bring transitory relief. 

Our overdose epidemic gives reason to establish Supervised or Safe Injection Sites like 

As reported in the September 2017 WSO, Safe Injection Sites (SIS) can prevent overdos 

facilitate addiction treatment, but may relieve a fraction of the problem without improvi 

drug users is low due to registration requirements and the stronger allure of the street i 

that more City users wanted "food and showers" than drug treatment from an SIS. lnjec 

traumas and despair that drive addiction. 

San Francisco's 3-year quest for SISs has been thwarted by federal prohibitions and op1 
enforcement groups. Hopes that the State would protect SIS operators were dashed wl 

Assembly Bill-186 in 2018. Brown called the bill "all carrot and no stick" for "enabling ill· 

without requiring treatment for addiction. With Governor Newsom in office, an identical 

Senator Scott Wiener and re-brand.ed as an "Overdose Prevention Program" was introdL 

This February, Supervisor Matt Haney called on the Governor to issue an Executive Ord1 

Site" in San Francisco. 

Hopes soared this February when Philadelphia got Federal Court approval for an SIS by 

decrease rather than enable drug use, thereby not violating federal law. However, a r;!Ubl 

the local US Attorney torpedoed the plan. Although Mayor London Breed introduced leg 

SIS, US Attorney David Anderson who orchestrated the Tenderloin drug raids vows to sl 

impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on efforts to contain the opioid epidemic. 

All told, the DPH funds 65 programs to provide drug and alcohol treatment services - a 

mental health budget. Contractors served 5,975 substance abuse clients last year. Yet 1 

show the Health Commission that its many- and costly- interventions are still effectivE 

deaths, drug-related Emergency Room visits and hospitalizations Indicate that City pro~ 

officials and non-profit contractors call for more services. There's a "carrot" versus "stic 

approach and Federal interventions. More integration would be better than more of eac 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact· watchdogs@westsideob 
~e > • • /' 0 •y , • - •- ,~ •- " < -, - -' - • - - -
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Some sewer claims were fraudulent but routinely approved by the cf aims bureau, at ta~ 
as detailed in the Westside Observer in SeRtember and November 2014, and February~ 

Hoeper's probing threatened managers close to Herrera, her investigation was shut do\ 

her position in July 2012. She was transferred to the DA's Office and later terminated. T 

"Sewergate." In 2018, the NorCal Society of Professional Journalists recognized Hoepe 

Information Award in the Whistleblower category. 

o ••~~·~•• oov •• oo< o.;o;" oo ,, ·'""'' o o ••~ o oo,. o o •·"· '.,,.''co .• ,., o; o > "" o '' <•, 

Taxpayer costs will exceed $5 million since the City has been paJ 
Nest law firm $850/hour to defend Herrera. Keker & Van Nest alr1 
$2,267,75, back in September 2016, records show." 

The Court of Appeals sustained Hoeper's awards of $1,338,578 for lost wages, $1,291,' 
$2.4 million for attorney's fees. The City argued that these awards were unwarranted ar 

characterizedthe City's appeals as "without merit". Taxpayer costs will exceed $5 millio 

paying the Keker & Van Nest law firm $850/hourto defend Herrera. Keker & Van Nest al 

back in Septembe'r 2016, records show. Karl Olson, one of Hoeper's attorneys, told the I 

California Supreme Court to review the case, but only 5% of such Petitions for Review a 

QR-Ed - A special to the Westside Observer) 

February 2020 

Auto Burglars Assail Westside, Ea: 
Migrate to LA 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 
lthough citywide auto burglaries seemingly dropped 2'7'o in 2019, 
they soared by 24% on the Westside. The table below is derived 
from the Ta_raval Police Station's excellent website. Note the 
surge in auto burglaries since August. 

As explained in the July 2018 Westside Observer, these numbers are static. 

They are not updated to include late crime reports. Such updates are logged 

into SFPD's separate Com12Stat database. Therefore, the crime figures 

reported on Taraval ~ation's website are lower than those shown on 
- - - ,_ ·-: ~ .::___ ~- ~--~'....~: '.:'_ --~-~ ..: : - ---- - -~ - - -·-_" - ".:'. ___ :_;~"---- • ____ , .::_·_< _:__"_- -"-~-·_"':'.,~ __ -:__ ...,~~~- -",.;;"":... "__.'._" _____ .~__: ~~ 
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Soc.iety tJf flrofessionaJ lot1rnali.\t.~ tl/OrCal Cha12tt?f 
CompStat shows that in 2019, home and shop burglaries numbered 334 versus 507 ret 
That may reassure Sunset residents. As the July 2019 WSO reported, home invasions 2 

uprising in that predominantly Asian neighborhood. 

l YEAR I JAN I FEB I MAR I APR I MAY I JUN I JUL I AUG I SEP I ( 
.2019 157 123 112 91 107 101 131 167 189 

' 
2018 134 100 122 100 121 104 

' 
128 135 95 

2017 121 140 157 154 176 149 i48 106 115 
-

According to citywide CompStat figures, there were 25,677 car break-ins in 2019 versu~ 

is dubious. By the time all the delayed reports for 2019 are tabulated, the updated total' 

reduction. On top of this, published numbers are understatements. Folks without comp 

bother to report break-ins when arrest rates linger around 2"/o. However, compared to th 

vehicles in 2017, the crime wave has subsided. 

The stabilization in citywide car break-ins masks a shift in crime targets. Auto-boosters 

to residential areas - like the Westside, and even Safeway parking lots per the 1 /31 /20: 

monitor tourist sites, criminals seek opportunities for easier pickings elsewhere 

San Francisco isn't suffering alone with this epidemic. East Bay auto break-ins soared ii 
there were increases of 25% in Oakland, 32o/o in Berkeley and 48% in San Leandro. As re 

Chronicle, East Bay police agencies have formed a "roving task force" to crack down or 

time. It gets worse. 

This January, the Los Angeles Times described a new crime trend plaguing LA since 2( 

members have been traveling to LA in rental cars to steal belongings from autos parke( 

Criminal tourists now prey upon regular tourists. After scouring parking lots for out-of-~ 
carS, they brazenly break windows in broad daylight- even in view of surveillance came 

Because Bay Area smash-and-grab crews are known to local cops, they hit the road tor 

anonymity. So, LA detectives are sharing data with their Bay Area counterparts to track 

data includes social media where thugs like to brag about their exploits. Last April, an ( 

auto burglaries in Hollywood, using electric scooters to hustle the goods away. The sto 

Oakland and 5 people were arrested. 

What's happening closer to home? The WSO asked T araval Station's Captain Nicholas F 

Westside car break-ins. He indicated that he was reviewing the crime data with his staf 

comment . - . ' . -
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eQL=i.11~&~ 
r:;" marijuana industry, shows how efforts to curb the illegal market while helpi 
1
i.'?.Etf · "· on Drugs can backfire. 

ln 2016, 74o/o of San Francisco voters passed California Proposition 64, allowin! 

cannabis for adults over 21 without a prescription. Since January 2018, these recreatio 

been tracked from "seed to sale" to ensure consumer safety and prevent illegal diversic 

{1} r':r 
: 1 ;i 
;__.! ·~..J 
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This quagmire burdens taxpayers ... In 2018-19 it collected $360, 
operating budget. Those fees came from existing businesses. But i 
zero application fees due to the logjam. Yet, its operating budget w 

With this mandate, the Board of Supervisors passe 

cannabis businesses 600 feet away from schools c 

and along commercial corridors. Then Ordinance 2 

process. It included an Equity Program that prioriti' 

the War on Drugs, and an amnesty program so sorr 

the legal market by complying with regulations. Th( 

to manage these processes. The Controller's Off1cE 

permitted cannabis operations. 

The land-use Ordinance worked, as shown by the 0 

At this time, the only Westside storefront dispensa1 

Doors are open at 2161 Irving St and medicinal cannabis is Barbary Coast Sunset at 
two on Ocean Avenue are closed for renovations. B 

created a self-defeating solution. 

REGULATORY LOGJAM: Although 212 cannabis businesses are authorize• 

operating. That's way less than the 387 operating in Oakland. Of these 118 operating bt 

retailers and all were pre-existing or pre-approved Medical Cannabis Dispensaries. Like 

only retailers, growers, manufacturers, and distributors were already in place. New busi 

That's because Equity Program applicants hold top priority_ By City law, no other applic< 

equity entrants get 50% of all permits issued. Only three equity entrants have been app1 

backlog. 

EQUITY REVERSAL: Equity Program applicants must meet strict criteria invc 
and school attendance, loss of housing, or arrests for cannabis-related crimes. Then, tr 

approvals from SFPD, Cannabis, Planning, Public Health, Building Inspections and Fire,. 
__ · "• ,,. o,_ '> • "·,_,. n,• ~ ::•."~0~1~ • .'~-~·•.<''·---~ ,'._'."_c,~,L:~.~_r.;;_<.,'_, 0 ';_.:;' '·'',"'' 
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BSEB 

Cannabis Storefront Retailers in San FranciscoStorefronts are heavily clustered in the 

Market Street corridor. Note: Delivery-only re~ail operators not~ 

store-front dispensaries. Another 144 await approvals for delivery-only outfits or cultiva 

distribution operations. The backlog is so bad that new equity applicants face an additi 

beiiig considered. As for non-equity applicants, they're shut out entirely. 

Meanwhile, equity applicants are crushed by expenses since they must maintain a site 
Rent alone can amount to hundreds of thousands of dollars while waiting for a permit. 

equity applicants are forced into debt. Or, they sell ownership shares to well-heeled invE 

companies. Either way, the alms of the Equity Program are thwarted. 

Although a Community Reinvestment Fund was set up to offset costs for equity applici 

City fears liability for aiding sales of a federally-outlawed drug. Further, there are so ma 

that the market wi!I be saturated before they're all approved, per the Controller's analysl 

As for the black-market entrepreneurs who opted to go legit, they're stuck in the permit 

thriving illicit market that dwarfs the legal upstart by a factor of 3 to 1. As the Report cc 

undermined its own equity goals and intent to eliminate the illicit market." 

ECONOMIC BURDENS: This quagmire burdens taxpayers. The Office of Car 

permit application and renewal fees. In 2018-19 it collected $360,000, about half of its, 

came from existing businesses. But in 2019-20 it will collect zero application fees due 1 

budget will top $1 million. Deficits will persist until the Office of Cannabis clears the bai 

all 12 City departments supervising the cannabis industry, the cost to taxpayers exceec 

cannabis sales taxes covered these losses. That may not last. After 3 years of steady i1 
declined by 16o/o then leveled out in 2019. Statewide cannabis sales saw a similar decli1 

black-market competition are cramping tax revenues. Meanwhile, legal cannabis price~ 
• ~ ,, "'' ''- l --=- _,._ . ' - - ' - , , ,,_ , . 
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Retail Storefront Locations of Proposed Equity Business (currently in queue)_ Out of 

applicants,133 are applying for storefront retail. The proposed locations are heavily< 

Union Square, the Mission and SOMA 

PUBLIC SAFETY PRESERVED: In 2006. the City assigned marijuana off, 

priority. Since then, cannabis arrests have steadily declined, although African-American 

disproportionately affected. SFPD incident reports show a 17% drop in cannabis off ens 

adult-use was legalized. However, this number does not include low-level Infractions. In 

comprised 0.1 % of recorded City crimes. As for marijuana-related complaints reported 

0.003"/o of 2018 calls. The Westside enjoys the lowest incidence of cannabis-related cri 

logged just 4% of the City's 2018 total. 

ln accord with other studies, the Controller's Report found that property and violent crin 

retailers dropped by 2%, whereas they increased citywide. Larceny theft and burglary pr 

dispensaries - but also throughout the City and at similar rates. Since dispensaries clu 

Controller's Report concluded; " ... crime that occurs near cannabis locations is likely drh 

commercial districts, rather than the notion that cannabis operators attract more crime 

California Highway Patrol records showed that cannabis-only stops for San Francisco~ 
2018. Those 31 cases were 10 more than in 2017, a post-legalization increase. HowevE 

increased and comprised 82o/o of DUls. The remaining DUls involved other drugs or fnix 

cannabis was used with other intoxicants. 

PUBLIC HEALTH CONCERNS: When adult-use cannabis was legalized. t 
consumption and limit access for young people. Current data for San Francisco is lacki 

recreational marijuana was legalized in 2012, there was no change in youth use rates. t 

cannabis use among youth decreased - even as many states legalized marijuana. 

- ' ..,-~ '0. - -=,~,-~ . :::c - ,¥,1 
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encounters. On the other hand, cannabis admissions to DPH Substance Abuse Treatm< 

201 B, just 355 or 4o/c of admissions were for marijuana. Per the Controller, these numbe 

reduce cannabis, just further monitoring. 

The Office of Cannabis has rallied City departments to streamline the permitting proce~ 

applicants, a $1.3 million grant was secured along with pro bona legal assistance from 

8-member Cannabis Oversight Committee inaugurated in December 2019, will advise t 

"facilitate socially responsible growth of the cannabis industry." Hopefully, it will help to 

recommendations detailed in the Controller's Report. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a SF investigative reporter. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserver.com 

February 2020 
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~~recarious Partnership: 

SFPD and the FBI 

.· .. _d 

Supervisor Gordon Mar opens the hearing investigating the Joint Terroris 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 
, ' " - - > ~ 'l' -- ;" -,- o ,o'' '• < • E • ~ '' • ' " • ~ "'"" ' • A " O. 

- -©-2020 Westside Sari Francisco Media. Nd port1011otthe-art1cles or artwork maibe - - _:: " without expressed consent:--· - -

P1788 
10/14/2020. 12:00PM 



lr. lJerek Ke1T https://westsideobserver.eorn/ne\vS/\vatchdog.htinliloct20 

James Nladlson Freedo1n of lnforn1ation Av;an 
. , - -~oc:ie I ~1 () f {l f()russi ()fl,J/ J 011I 11 (J iis L'i, t·J()f (-(; / c~ i";(:irYi er 

That arrangement was secretly reneWed in 2007, adding tighter FB! controls and secrec 

Commission. When its contract with the FBI expired in February 2017, the SFPD bailed 
concerns and the turmoil of switching its Police Chiefs. 

•,•<• ••~O> ••~•~ •• •• o •~• •' oo ~, "" o,,, ,,. o o •. , o, """, '",, ,, ;,~ ""'" 0 oo c. _, < ,. ",, 

... Supervisors unanimously passed the ... transparency and ace 

.. In effect, the law authorized SFPD brass and City officials too\ 

Joint Terrorism Task Force investigations." 

San Francisco Taxpayers Tapped Previously, the SFPD had usually a5' 

to the JTTF under the direction of the local FBI Office, and ultimately the US Attorney G1 

paid their salaries. These officers received Top-Secret security clearances and access t 
identiti,es were secret. They signed non-disclosure agreements that barred information 

and underwent polygraph exams. As federal deputies, they could operate anywhere int 

maneuver beyond local civilian oversight and local privacy and civil rights laws. Nomin< 

by such laws, notably SFPD's Degartment General Order 8.1 O: Guideline for First Amenc 

Supervisors Weigh In DGO s.10 was designed in 1990 to prevent police intn 

protests, and political assemblies. In the post-9/11 era, unwarranted JTTF practices be 

Alarming reports and warnings were issued by the Human Bights Commission, San Fra 

and 79 civic grougs represented by the Asian Law Caucus, Council on American lslami! 

Accordingly, in 2012 the Board of Supervisors unanimously passed the Safe San Franci 

govern SFPD participation in federal counter-terrorism activities. The Ordinance enshrir 

DGO 8.1 O's transparency and accountability provisions. It also mandated Police Comm 

between the SFPD 8.nd FBI. In effect, the law authorized SFPD brass and City officials tc 
investigations 

That expectation proved unworkable because the FBI included "threat assessments" in 

activities. FBl "assessments" seek information about persons who may threaten natiori 

laws. Unlike formal investigations, no "reasonable suspicion" of criminality is required. 

allowed more intrusive practices like pretext interviews, physical surveillance, telephon• 
deploying informants, all without evidence of wrongdoing. Anyone could be targeted be 

or race, thereby landing on a federal "terror watch list". Despite the slippery taxonomy," 

investigations that can circumvent criminal justice principles and First Amendment rig[ 

SFPD and FBI Conflicts As the FBI White Paper admits, such assessments 

SFPD officers working as JTTF agents. Further, these assessments "usually involve, on 

~ -: -~'~ "'-. j '" :;; ~ ~<;,:__~~-"' __ .:_ :____.~ __ ,___;_,~__..;.· ~~· _ ____::::____,_- __ ,~- -- --~o...:o_~~------'--
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ACLU Lawyer John Crew 
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Accordingly, none of the 119 assessments/investigations conducted by SFPD's JTTF a 

received departmental approvals. None were forwarded to the Police Commission or tr. 

AccOuntability, records show. That's because none targeted "solely constitutionally pro1 

repeatedly told the Police Commission. But, "That's the FBI standard - not the SFPD st; 

attorney and police practices expert John Crew and several Commissioners at the expl: 

DGO 8.1 O requires approvals and oversight for investigations that "involve" First Ameni 

that "solely" target such activities. The SFPD had been bending, if not violating, its own: 

investigative and secrecy tenets. 

Worse, SFPD's JTTF activities defied the oversight imposed by the Safe SF Civil Rights: 

activities are classified, they were withheld from SFPD brass, the Police Commission a( 

Accountability. Those folks lack security clearances. Indeed, the Police Chief's annual J 
Commission merely assert proper conduct, without evidence. The FBI White Paper add'. 

by proposing workarounds including, "sanitizing" JTTF reports, or amending DGO 8.1O1 

information" from the Police Commission. 
1 

Secrecy in Violation All this secrecy surrounding JTTF investigations nullifle' 

assurance that it "d!d not detect any instance of non-compliance with a DGO" by SFPD'~ 

- ,, o- • '~~ !" ,:~ !- 8 ~~-, : • I. - • ,~ - .- ),!I: 1- • AA·l. ' - .... ·1 
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adopted in San Francisco and'~afrfoYrliif 'Pnll'l~cisiI]:irb~~~lfon~lb'Jn,ifJ,srfl~e'd/cie~~m 
and President. As local politiclans including Mark Leno, Scott Weiner, Jeff Sheehy, Tom 

Rafael Mandelman and Angela Alioto warned in 2017: "if this (Safe SF Civil Rights) Ordi 

enforced ... !ocal offices will become entangled in the implementation of Trump's policie: 

and residents have unequivocally rejected." On the other hand, the Police Officer's Assa 

Commission to restore its JTTF partnership, decrying that it was abandoned "in a politi 

Currently, JTTF policies are antithetical to transparency and accountability. Upholding [ 

Francisco Civil Rights Ordinance keeps the SFPD accountable to the community it serv1 

Involvement in JTTF political surveillance entrains our police to view First Amendment 

Worse, more law-abiding San Franciscans view police as potential threats because unn 

contravene civil rights. There are other ways the SFPD and FBI can collaborate to addre 

the JTTF, as Portland, Oregon has done, strengthens public trust in the SFPD. 

Note: Source references for this article are provided as links in the electronic version a-t 

Acknowledgement: Mission Local and The Intercept first reported on the FBI White Pa1 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a SF investigative reporter. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserver.com 

December 2019 

~ (ff, Hedging the Shake-Up at Laguna Honcj 
.J /,y)or, Derek Kerr 

hree months after Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH) CEO Mivic Hirose and Quality Dirt 
ousted, another top executive has fallen. On Sunday, October 7, Acting CEO Maggit 
"Madonna Valencia, our Chief Nursing Officer, has left Laguna Honda Hospital." By 
this as an opportunity for us to welcome meaningful changes to our standards, re~ 
Valencia's exit to the patient abuse scandal covered in the September Westside Ob 

Restoring LHH's standards, reputation and purpose won't be easy given the long tenure 

Hirose. Hirose served as Associate Director of Nursing since 1999, then as Chief Nursi1 

as CEO from 2009 until the scandal emerged this June. Over those 20 years, Hirose hel 

culture. Lackeys were recruited, mentored and boosted into positions of power. As reru; 

Westside Observer, some nurses openly denounced "favoritism, nepotism and cronyisri 

will be to manage and transform her predecessor's entourage. 

The long-delayed departure of Valencia is intriguing. After all, she was directly responsi 
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CNO Madonna Valencia with Supervisor Norman Yee 

.. .inspectors found that 5 patients had been drugged with non-p 
sedatives. All suffered life-threatening overdoses ... caused by m1 
drugs smuggled into the hospital. LHH physicians knew someth 
wrong." 

Using the passive term "has left" for Valencia's exit is interesting. !n fact, records show 

Nurse Manager job paying $202,852/year elsewhere within the DPH. Similarly, the ex-ci 

soft-landing lnto a well-R_filingjob at SFGH. Such reassignments avoid recriminations fi 

skeletons are buried. Given the swirl of investigations by State and City agencies, more 

are expected. 

A cone of silence hovers abcive LHH's Medical Division. California Department of Publi( 

found that 5 patients had been drugged with non-prescribed oploids and sedatives. All 

overdoses requiring emergency transfer to outside hospitals. The overdoses were caus 

drugs smuggled into the hospital. LHH physicians knew something was seriously wron 

hospitals conveyed their alarms. 

In February 2018, one outside doctor notified LHH Medical Director, Dr. Michael McSha1 

internal investigation was underway," per CDPH records. Another kept a patient hospit · 
. - - .. ,_. -- .' - ~ "" - ""'~ ,~' . ,,, - . -· -
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LHH Medical Director, Dr. Michael Mcshane 

months later, by chance, an unrelated investigation of an employee dispute exposed th( 

pilfered meds. What happened with LHH's physician-run Medical Quality Improvement 1 

Improvement & Patient Safety Committee? Both are charged with probing adverse med 

Meanwhile, LHH has stepped up its reporting of adverse incidents to the State. In May: 

scandal erupted, LHH sent 20 reports of alleged abuses and other lapses to CDPH. In J 
scandal, LHH forwarded 37 reports to CDPH. In August, it was 42. Health Director Dr. G 

"as Laguna Honda changes its culture, there may be an increase in the volume of incidt 

o•••••Do•o••••DOoocooooooo.,o••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••~••••• 

Another kept a patient hospitalized for an extra week, afraid to s 
death" at LHH. Apparently, LHH's internal medical investigation 1 

months later, by chance, an unrelated investigation of an emplo; 
the patient druggings with pilfered meds." 

A burst of reporting is expected because staffers have been rattled by the scandal and 

the culture is another matter. One can be open about symptoms but silent about the un 

on 9/10/19 LHH finally admitted that there had been a 50o/a increase in AWOL cases co 

the trend has been ignored for 4 years. Recently, almost 1 in 3 patients discharged to tt 

by going AWOL or signing out against medical advice. Further, theft/loss reports and b; 

quadrupled over the prior year. Notably, there was a 54% increase in ''Serious Incidents': 

although a change in reporting methods may explain some of the rise. But the cause o1 

shrouded. 

LHH officials won't admit that DPH's Flow Project brings disorder that undermines pati! 

'~' ': - .. ~. ~~ ;. -,,~ '• "!,c,." ~ '' ~ .·. _ i·q;::-".:'~~~~-~-'.!'.,__r~,.~; ~ ·o "r~,}·.< ~ •~ 
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said SFGH Chief Quality Offic~f;1cr{-O~Wlfi~m)[~s_c.i<::-1na/ JcJ1Jrnofist."i, !·Jflf{~(Jf ChL"1~1ter 

Back in December 2016, the CDPH issued an "AA" citation (the most severe), plus a $1 ( 

detailed in the February 2017 Westside Observer, a nurse had parked an eider's wheeler 

set the brakes, resulting in a fall and a fatal head injury. Surprisingly, LHH contested tha 

Attorney sued the CDPH to drop the citation and fine. In Superior Court case #CGC-17-: 
LHH's lapse did not warrant an "AA" citation and that the fine was invalid as it was isSU! 

investigation rather than within 30 days as required. After 2 years of legal wrangling, th1 

an "A" but wouldn't budge on the $100,000 fine. However, the cost to taxpayers will far< 

Attorney fees. 

In comparison, the recent abuses of 23 patients were deemed so grave that CDPH insp 

state of "Immediate Jeopardy" - the top category of patient endangerment. State pena 

already levied. If the City again litigates against them, it could signal that Laguna Hondo 

protected. 

Dr. Derek Kerr was a senior physicians at Laguna Honda who exposed wrongdoing by thE 

watchdogs@westsideobserver.com 

November 2019 

' 
I ---a.in IC\ \~~nl 

Attempted Assassination of Westside lour 
Lee 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 
n August 6th; gunmen shot Brandon Lee in the face and back outside his home in lfuga 

Philippines. On the way to the Baguio City Hospital, he repeatedly shouted that the Phili 

for the attack. Internal bleeding required transfusions. Numbness below the waist indic 

surgery to remove a bullet lodged in his jaw, he suffered several cardiac arrests. Weeks· 
,.,-~. -·----· '''"·">·----·--·-:;-.-- ~~·--·---" " . ' , .. 
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offices, asking about Brandon1s whereabouts, 
office hours, and family members. In an e-mail to his brother Aai 
worries for the safety of his family and colleagues due to the go\i 

and harassment." 

In 2010, he moved to the Philippines to pursue his passion; helping farmers and indiger 

He became a permanent resident, married Bernice and raised their daughter Jessie, no· 

a correspondent for the Northern Disgatch, an English-language weekly news outlet. Hi! 

government corruption, military depredations under Martial Law, the framing of politica 

environmental justice. Also, he volunteered as a paralegal for the lfugao Peasants Mov, 

Dispatch Qpen letter declared, "The attempt on the life of Brandon is to sow fear and to 

communities of lfugao fighting against a corporate-led hydro-electric project and his cc 

people's mass movement." 

His writing was fearless. ln a May, 2014 article titled; "Phil. Army Desecrates lfugao Dec 

soldiers raided homes of local farmers at gunpoint and forced them to open the coffin~ 
searches were part of the Aquino government's anti-Insurgency program that he labele1 

bravely took over some duties of the IPM paralegal officer who had been murdered aftE 

a "communist sympathizer". Per the /nguirer Northern Luzon, "In 2015, Lee was among· 

members accused by the military of supporting the New People's Army" - the armed wi1 

Communist Party._ A slew of Facebook threats and vilifications such as "terrorist" and "( 

Brandon and 9 colleagues were mailed pictures of lfugao burial blankets - an implicit c. 

references to "GTFO" (Get the F-k Out) and "NorCal" - pointing to his "outsider" Ameri1 

publicly in 2018, after another colleague who campaigned against the hydro-electric pl< 

Army investigators asked Brandon to name his coworkers, he disclosed just two - thosE 

!n the days and weeks before being shot, soldiers had repeatedly appeared at IPM offic 

whereabouts, office hours, and family members. In an e-mail to his brother Aaron, Bran1 

safety of his family and colleagues due to the government surveillance and harassmen 

commander Maj. Gen. Pablo Lorenzo stated; "As regard the propaganda issue wherein' 

Philippines) is behind the alleged shooting incident, this is devoid of logic and factual b 

interests of the government and AFP". Instead, Lorenzo proposed that the Communist 
•·••• ·•• .••• :.. ' ·- ,_, • - ·.'.<• ·~· •• , •• 
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sanctioned extra-judicial killings that had "taken the lives of 29,000 Filipinos", including 

Brandon's family and friends have stayed with him, given the ominous intrusions of mili 

Supervisor Gordon Mar publicly condemned the "unconscionable human rights abuses 

Sunset District fighting for his life." Mar also lobbied the US Embassy to afford Brandon 

American citizens. Supervisor Matt Haney flew to the Philippines on a fact-finding miss 

hospital. On 9/10/19 the Board of Supervisors unanimously passed a Resolution callin! 

evacuation" for medical care, a Congressional investigation, and suspension of US mili1 

resolved. A Go Fund Me campaign has been set up to raise money for Brandon's medic 
via airlift to San Francisco. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideob 

October 2019 

Bryon Carmody 

ryan Carmody, the freelance journalist whose Sunset newsroom was raided by. 

August 13th at a Society of Professional Journalists (SPJ) forum at Northwest1 

Journalism in San Francisco. The panel included National SPJ President, J. Ale 

the media lawyer who represents Carmody . 

• ~ "~~~"-~" t •• ~ :~ ~~ ~-,. , •• !~ e ·_ .~· ~- •e,~ •. · -~~ "' 
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National SPJ President, 

J. Alex Tarquinio 

"Woken up from a deep sleep" by the sledge-hammering of his gate, a shirtless Carmoc 
as gun-toting officers plundered his belongings. Upon asking to make a call, a cop offe1 
ahead and unlock it for us." No way. Similarly, Carmody said nothing to 2 FBI agents wh 
conspiracy" and "obstruction of justice". The cops then raided Carmody's office at 794. 

where they confiscated computers, cameras plus 30 years of notes and digital photos. 
equipment, no way to work. A friend set up a GoFundMe campaign to replace $6,000-w 
the SFPD returned the devices but security experts advised him not to use them. 

' 

Thomas Burke 

Attorney Tom Burke explained that the raids were prohibited by the California Shie 

protects journalists, including freelancers, from being forced to reveal theirs 

information. Importantly, it also protects sources. After the home and office raic 

March 1st, the SFPD had acquired 3 other search warrants for Carmody's cell phor 

phone numbers, text messages and location data. All 5 warrants were subsequ~ 

judges who issued them, because the SFPD had failed to tell them that Carmody h1 

SFPD. 

•••• o, o• oo o• • • o ooo oo oo ooo o o oo• o o 00000 o••~• •o 0000 oo 0000 ••o ••<>• o ooo 0 

Burke was confident that the SFPD wouldn't use the seized inform• 
However, the SFPD now knows the phone numbers of police office1 

'---'..~ - '_'._ •• •'\fl' •' ~-·· - ~ ' .~~c- -~·~-' ," -- .J -
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raised their reliance on stringers - freelance photojournalists who cover breaking news 

the story, Carmody decided his best defense was to "talk to everybody and anybody." 

Attorney Tcim Burke asserted that "receiving and requesting information" is part of "the 

journalism." City Hall's "condemnation and lack of appreciation for what journalists do 1 

search warrants for journalist sources are generally illegal, journalists can be subpoenc 

advance notice to seek legal counsel. Even though the Shield Law protects sources fro1 

raids would inhibit sources from contacting journalists. Burke was confident that the SJ 

information in a legal case_ However, the SFPD now knows the phone numbers of polic 

with Carmody. As for the FBI involvement, Burke was mystified. Carmody previously inc 

public corruption, a charge that would apply if a police officer sold the stolen report. Ca 

happen; "J did not compensate, in any way ... the officers who were involved in this - not 

In 30 years of practice, Burke said "I've never known an American journalist, who hadn't 

targeted." That targeting was fueled by outrage from the Board of Supervisors, the May 

and Adachi's family. Once the City Attorney informed Police Chief William Scott that his 

and barraged by media criticism, Scott apologized. 

The Carmody search warrants were pursued by the Internal Affairs Division - part of Sf 

Scott. As ex-cop Lou Barberini reP-orted in the July Westside Observer, there are "cowbc 

Affairs Division. Their botched raids resembled the retaliatory "get-the-cop" investigatic 
' Accordingly, Carmody received sympathy; "Most of the rank and file came up to me anc 

was wrong.'' Further, the Police Officers Association blasted Chief Scott as "deceitful" f1 

diligence by department investigators" when the fault arose within his administrative ci 

Given law-enforcement capabilities for unlocking computers, Carmody advised, "Don't\ 

want someone to see." He admitted that he "would have been sunk" without Burke's leg 

are threatened by police can find legal help through SPJ's NorCal chapter or the First Ar 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideob 

September 2019 

~ (( Laguna Honda's Silent Abuse Sea 
'.Jb)or. Derek Kerr 

n July, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) declared a state of "lmmedla 

: st,Jr:ve found that 2 Li<;:~IJs_ed ,V9,catjoi:ia! ~urse:s .. ~VN 
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Acting CEO Margaret Rykowski 

Cf;] treatment. Another sprawled on the floor in a so_iled ?iaper. Some were filmed as~ 

J-:~1- affronts or asked to borrow money. One was being kicked by a staffer; another mL . 
~,~:zl photos and videos had emerged incidentally during a staff-to-staff sexual harassr. 

families a "Notice of Data Breach" disclosing privacy violations - without mentioning tr 

Worse, 5 patients were drugged with non-prescribed 1norphine, methadone, and tranqui 

threatening complications and emergency hospitalizations. An LYN had pilfered the mE 

He and a CNA exchanged text messages joking about making patients "sleep" and dis~ 

medications. They were on duty when the druggings occurred. One patient was treated 

urine tests showing non-prescribed narcotics between January and August 2018. He di 

caregivers, the perpetrators received annual Abuse Prevention and Reporting training. 

• ••o••• ••• o o o >• •• • o• o~ oo e o o••o' • • o o• o oo" ""' •·> • o"" o ooo'"" '' o o," • '' o o o 

Silence arises from a mistrust of leaders and fear of retaliation. Sil 
lack of empathy. Health care without empathy leads to abuse and n 
top 3 causes of patient harms are lapses in supervision, leadership 
All are aggravated by fears of speaking up:' 

ln a 2015 lecture, Dr. Ron Wyatt, from the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Hospit 

Silence as detrimental to patient safety. The remedy, a Culture of Safety, requires trust t 
result in action and improvement. Silence arises from a mistrust of leaders and fear of 

a lack of empathy. Health care without empathy leads to abuse and neglect. Nationwid 

harms are lapses in supervision, leadership and communication. All are aggravated by· 

Leadership: Organizational climate is set at the top. Unethical or incompetent leaders e 

below. When leaders are selected for obedience rather than competence, they are easil 

setbacks. Worse, they are threatened by competent subordinates and often push them. 

CEO John Kanaley in 2004, then Mivic Hirose in 2009, loyalists were rewarded and criti< 
work, LHH managers pursued recognition and trumpeted awards. A PR Director was h11 

,. ·p-~ayhievem~~J:i!~.,_A_puffy __ yye.bs!te_ W,.~_s pr~_-'!ted: f::la_ y_f~_pe_~ _cr,gwded ~~-~'.~ f<:J.C_~bo_o_.k.,p_a 
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mistakenly reported that she had resigned. In fact. she was placed on paid administrati 

did not govern clinical nursing and those nurses didn't report to her. Yet, LHH Chief Nur 

who does oversee nurses, wasn't held accountable. Neither were the supervising nurse 

Gomez's job involved reporting alleged patient abuses - once brought to her attention· 

reporting requirements, LHH reported more cases: 28 over the past 2 years. LHH was d 

cases, 9 for tardy reporting. All were patient-to-patient altercations. That helped sink L~ 

a proud 4 stars to a mediocre 2 stars. Ironically, Gomez's amplified reporting set the st( 

separate spate of patient abuses by staff went undiscovered, Gomez was apparently f11 
authority. 

Paradoxically, Gomez was replaced by Troy Williams, SF General Hospital's (SFGH) Qua 

State inspectors threatened SFGH with fines and payment cuts for an improper policy c 

patient abuses allegations since 2016. P!us, SFGH was cited for 2 negligent deaths anc 

services. The rationale for Williams replacing Gomez is elusive. 

LHH leaders have been preoccupied with flow, rushing patients in and out to accommo· 

care turned to process, churning out data and dashboards. "True North metrics", core ri 
"Kaizen" workshops became proxies for patient well-being. For example, LHH's May str 

c.elebrated metrics showing; "100% patient satisfaction wlth their care experience. We 1 

Meanwhile, managers were apologizing to the families of 23 abused patients. Splendid 

care. 

Supervision: Gone are the days when former Nursing Director Virginia Leishman roame 

patients and checking on staff. ln the old building, each 30-bed ward had a Head Nurse 
and staff. Nowadays, Nurse Manage.rs cover 60 beds, spending much of their time at d: 

When important people disengage from patients, patients become unimportant. To ma 
wards were re-named "neighborhoods", then "community meetings" were introduced. I\ 

were out of touch with patients and their caregivers. If no one noticed that 6 staffers at 
supervision failed. 

The mistreated patients resided on North 1 and North 2, the "Integrated Wellness" neig· 

cognitively impaired. Per LHH's Facebook page, North 1 has; "a dedicated staff of quali' 

experience helping residents with challenging behaviors. The program provides a varie1 

compassionate counseling with the goal of improved social functioning." North 2 aims 

of life while meeting their psychosocial and emotional needs." What happened? Why w1 

assigned to such specialized wards? How did they pass the hiring process? Why were t 
while working? 

' • ~ " , "' ·'"' .~ - _ _::. __ -__ .::.. - - " - " -,s --· '. - ,::_,_-~_ ,,_, ""'C:".::_ :::':::. - _.: __ :_, ~-=-~:':~_ _::: ~ ---~----
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the problerns associated with cultural dominance. A majority of LHH nurses are from ti 

tend to be collectivist rather than individualistic. Though dedicated and caring, LHH nur 

out - or cannot afford the rlsk. 

Establishing a Culture of Safety requires a root-cause analysis of why these abuses fes 

own Compliance Office and Hotline fail to spot the scandal? Does LHH still treat whistli 

abuses reported and buried? What derailed supervision on the affected wards? Were lir 

indifferent, or blinded bY group allegiance? How did hiring and assignment practices in1 

helpless patients? Hopefully, these questions will be addressed in LHH's "Turn-Around! 

For now, LHH has promised State inspectors that all staff will be re-trained in reporting 

check their patients weekly instead of monthly, and re-engage with their staff. Hiring wi 
questions about abuse and neglect. Tighter controls will be applied to narcotics and se 

allegations will be audited for timely reporting. As to why this scandal occurred, perhap 

proposed hearing will provide insights - if employees can safely testify. 

Acknowledgement: Thanks to the current and former LHH employees who provided tip. 

Dr. Derek Kerr was a senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital where he was fired for. 

by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

SEPTEMBER 2019 

~l;\jeaking the Silence: 

Laguna Honda's Patient Abuse Sc 

Former CEO Mivic Hirose 

tunned and bewildered. That was the reaction when 1,650 Laguna Honda emplo 

email from DPH Director Dr. Grant Colfax on June 28th. "I regret to inform you th 
. -·· . ··-
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impacted patients, family notffiMidMs?fulld<r~AfiKJil~o61'S'ia!P1i'lliJ,i;v.:'Ktln\l'ii~'dlre]fcl\<U! 
An Acting CEO has been appointed; Margaret Rykowski, RN, Director of the DPH Office 

Affairs. She is a retired US Navy Reserve Rear Admiral with the Nurse Corps who previo 

Officer at SFGH and oversaw Laguna Honda's Health at Home program. Within 60 days 

Laguna Honda "Turn-Around Plan" to the Health Commission and the Mayor's Office. 

••• • oo oo •• •~• ••oo • ••••• •• • ooo •• ••• o •o •o oo • o oo 'o o o• o oo o o oo o "~" ''~" o' 

Director Colfax made an accurate diagnosis when he identified a "c 
Laguna Honda. By allowing abuses to fester, this institutional silen< 
patients but unfairly shamed the many dedicated workers who can 
and compassion. " 

Former Quality Management Director Regina Gomez 

So far, all that is known about the scandal is what the DPH has reported. It's telling that 

to "horrific actions". A more granular analysis will emerge from an investigation pursue· 

of Public Health. Supervisor Norman Yee is seeking additional public and professional: 

the Board's Public Safety and Neighborhood Services Committee. The Westside Obseri 

of the scandal and welcomes confidential input from Laguna Honda employees. 

Perhaps the most disturbing aspect of these violations is that they were discovered by. 

Human Resources investigation this January. Nobody reported the shocking miscondu 

Director Colfax made an accurate diagnosis when he identified a "culture of silence" at 

abuses to fester, this institutional silence has not only harmed patients but unfairly sha 

workers who care for patients wlth skill and compassion. 

Dr. Derek Kerr was a senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital where he was fired for. 

by the Departmeht of Public Health. Contact: DerekOn VanNess@aol.com 

JULY2019 
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Photo courtesy: stopcrimesf.com 

istrict 4 Supervisor Gordon Mar heard an earful about property crimes from hi~ 

break-ins, residents are alarmed about residential burglaries and package thef' 

worsening safety in previously low-crime neighborhoods and the targeting of C 

criminals. 

On April 25th, Supervisor Mar held a hearing before the Board's Public Safety & Neighb< 
dozen residents expressed frustration and outrage. A construction contractor testified· 

$80,000 in equipment due to job-site and office break-ins, and a stolen truck. Yet, policE 

were disappointing. Most of the commenters were older Chinese residents who recoun 

and even the theft of food delivered to a 90 year old woman. Some feared going out at 

people wandering about and sleeping on private property. Seeing strangers now "cause 

said. Amid demands for more police patrols, arrests and prosecutions, one gentleman' 

maybe policeman sleeping?" 

... residential burglary cases had risen from 137 in 2014 to 237 in 2 
18% drop so far this year. In 2018, the DA filed charges in 86% of b 

SFPD Captain Tim Falvey provided statistics showing a steady decrease in residential t 
2015. The term robbery means that perpetrators confront victims and take property by 

burglaries occur without victims being present. A "hot prowl" occurs when burglars ent• 

present but without confronting them. Taraval Station logged 57 hot-prowls in 2018 - t 

However, the 379 burglaries, robberies and hot prowls recorded in 2018 were less than 

additional 41 o/o decline was noted in 2019. 

These declines were attributed to the 2018 re-activation of Citywide Burglary and Robb· 

across a\I police stations. Previously, police stations handled residential crimes within 1 

Neighborhood Crime Units. That system missed criminals who worked across station t 
system, arrests for burglaries and robberies increased from 322 in 2015 to 465 in 2018 

~ , • , ~ ~ " - • • • ; " e 1 • , - . , ~. t ,; •. . , ~ i. g, ~ • ~ - ·- - • g - _ - .! -LI! -~ 
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Supervisor Gordon Mar-Photo: Suriset Beacon 

The SFPD and Sunset residents agree that package thefts are mounting and can escali 

However, the SFPD doesn't track package thefts as a distinct crime. Instead, they are !u 

thefts and classified as "larceny/theft". Without data on the incidence and demographi! 
the SFPD couldn't say whether Chinese residents were targeted. Despite the citywide in 

still handled as low-level crimes at the station level. SFPD's focus has been public educ 

on Taraval Station's website; taraval.org_. 

Cristine OeBerry from the District Attorney's Office reported 1 6,000+ thefts in 2018. Sh~ 

since these were mixed into the larceny/theft category. Prosecutions are based on the· 

anything under $950 is considered petty theft - a misdemeanor. Although residential b' 

137 in 2014 to 237 in 2018, she reported an 18% drop so far this year. In 2018, the DA fi 
burglaries and 88'Yo of these yielded convictions. 

Kyra Worthy, director of SF SAFE (Safety Awareness for Everyone), explained how her c 

partn.ers with the SFPD to conduct free residential security surveys. SF SAFE also sets i 

Watch groups and Community Police Advisory Boards. 

Frank Noto, co-founder of StOR Crime SF described how his network of anti-crime volur 

rental cars to "our homes." He said crimes targeting Asians had'increased and favored 

This organization holds law-makers, the police, the DA, and judges accountable for crin 
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The handbuts also showed that burglaries and robberies had fallen 1n May, compared t< 

of anti-crime neighborhood leaders; Amos Lim, a gay and immigration rights activist, St 

Wendy Wong from Coalition for Good Neighborhoods, John Zwolinski, a Neighborhood 

Nancy Tung from Stop Crime SF and a DA candidate. Also present was mayoral candid 
a "make SF safe and clean" agenda. 

The multitude was separated into 4 groups. Afterwards, group leaders reported results 

·Ask SFPD to provide more patrols and track package thefts. 

• SFPD should facilitate crime reporting, address language barriers and improve respor 

·Increase police-community contacts to make cops more approachable and help resid 

• Seek City subsidies for security cameras and alarms. 

·Know your neighbors through events like Neighborfest, a City program that strengther 

·Work with SF SAFE to organize more Neighborhood Watch groups. 

• CommunitY- Ambassador Program, a City job-training program providing safety escort 

presence. 

•Use Nextdoor, a free social network for neighbors to report suspicious behaviors. 

All this led Supervisor Mar to form the D-4 Public Safety Working Group. Good thing be( 

community action, crime fears intensify. Meanwhile, he has to navigate between progrE 

approaches to crime, as well as conflicting claims of crime abatement and a crime wa\ 

Captain Nicholas Rainsford for a comment but received no response. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideo~ 

JULY2019 

r~ ,~ The Struggle for Sunlight on Dark I 
~·~Dr. Derek Kerr 

heSunljght On Dark MoneY. initiative launched this March is a rear-guard action to salva 

politics. The back-story features a split within the Ethics Commission, the resignations, 

and Quentin Kopp, and 2 years of excruciating deliberations that pitted the Ethics Comr 

Sponsored by Keane and Supervisors Mar, Haney, Fewer, Ronen and Mandelman, the si 
-

" ., , . -
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i 
James Madison Freedom of Information Awar< 

VQI IU tua "'' VOi' '1-'a 'Y' ''°'' 
prohibits developers 

pursuing land use decisions 

from funding campaigns for 

Mayor, Supervisor, or City 

' 

Attorney, and requires Independent Expenditure Committees (aka Super PACs) to namE 

oo •• o o o •••OD 0 0000 o • e ., o o o o o o • ooo Do 0 > Oo oO O' > o~' ''" o oo oo o o o oo•eo o ••0 o 

Then-Chair Keane warned against "putting our faith in a legislative 
political, jockeying for Mayor, jockeying for power, one group tryin! 
Keane emphasized that he saw no need for an Ethics Commission 1 
independently ... Keane announced "I resign" and walked out:' 

One impetus for this Initiative was the 2013-14 Civil Grand Jury report titled Ethics in th 

Pretense. It revealed that Ethics and the Board had covertly neutered Prop J of 2000, a 

banned "legal kickbacks" whereby City officials took contributions, gifts or jobs from th 

contracts, land deals or similar benefits. This "Taxpayer Protection Amendment" receiv, 

But in 2003, Prop J was repealed by Prop E, an "Ethics Reform" Charter Amendment sp, 

from Ethics. Prop E empowered the Board to amend - or undermine - voter initiatives ir 

and Government Conduct Code. Sold as a more efficient way to update ethics laws, it a 

majority of votes; 8 of 11 Supervisors plus 4 of 5 Ethics Commissioners. Prop E drew p 

guai-ding the hen-house" features, but passed with 62~o of the votes. There:after, conflic 

finance laws could be altered without a public vote. For example, in 2009 the Board anc 

lobbyists" - those who influence City Hall indirectly by subsidizing the lobbying of astro· 
groups - did not have to disclose expenditures. 

On 4/27/15 Ethics Chair Paul Renne asked Commissioner Keane to assess Prop J and 

possible ballot measures. Ethics can independently introduce ballot measures without 

Ethics placed Prop C "Expenditure Lobbyists" on the November 2015 ballot. Approved t 
opposed by the nonprofit sector. Then in November 2016, Ethics introduced Prop T tot 
to City officials whom they lobbied. It got 87o/o of the votes. 

In March 2017, Keane started a "Prop J Revision Project" that evolved into a complex A 

Accountability.Ordinance (ACAO). The ACAO sought a ban on behest payments wheret 

seeking City entitlements to fund their favored nonprofits or political committees - wh; 

behest". Keane wanted Ethics - not the Board - to place the ACAO on the ba!lot since it 

officials in terms of raising money." But it also cramped the fundraising and influence o· 

~- ,-~~~.,·,~, .. ~e;.,~~·· • L'~". Ot@ ~~, •O. -~ ~ ~ ~,. ;.. •• "~o~-' ~ 
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James Madison Freedom of lnforn1atlon Avian 
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Since the ACAO applied to nonprofits big and small, the nonprofit representatives empt 

nonprofits that struggle to make ends meet and serve needy clients. For these Mom-an 

too complicated, they argued, drowning them under layers of accountability. They coulc 

violations, then sued out of existence by corporate adversaries. 

Nonprofits resented being stigmatized as self-serving. If they don't lobby in the land us1 

opening or renovating their facilities - even displacement. By necessity, nonprofit devel 
try to influence land use decisions. Further, nonprofit board members often serve on Ci 

would prohibit them from fundraising for their nonprofits, or supporting candidates wh< 

contracts and benefits. Such limits would deter nonprofit leaders from sharing their ex~ 
Or, they might quit their nonprofit boards to avoid conflicts of interest. 

Nonprofits wanted City officials to steer donations to them. They viewed behest payme 

extortion or quid pro quos. So, Ethics agreed to switch from banning to simply disclosir 

nonprofits objected; having to report donations could discourage potential donors. Ethi 

accommodate their concerns. Yet after every amendment, they sounded the same refr< 

threatened. 

The Split within Ethics: On one side were Commissioners Renne, Keane and Kopp who· 

corruption via a ballot measure. They were generally allied with Friends of Ethics (FOE), 

former Ethics Commissioner and Civil Grand Jurors. FOE collaborated with Maplight a 

politics, to provide data supporting bans on certain campaign contributions and behest 

2015-16, City Commissioners appointed by the Mayor had reportedly funneled $1.1 mil 

mayoral agendas. Further, of $23 million in behested payments logged from 2012-201 J 
serving low-income San Franciscans. FOE a\so pushed to limit the huge monetary impc 

and the resulting displacement of local residents by luxury housing. 

On the other side were nonprofits and big businesses. The nonprofit cause was bolster 

Ed Lee appointed Commissioner Yvonne Lee who has long-standing ties with nonprofit 

duty to support the most vulnerable and community service organizations." She rebuff~ 

as arising from "anecdotes" rather than facts and because negative perceptions of "Asi 

sisters" had incited their persecution. Commissioner Daina Chiu, a corporate attorney a 

Chu, initially wanted to move "expeditiously" given the "harm done." Then she drifted, ci 

concerns, to join Lee against placing the ACAO on the ballot. After a 9/27 /17 Chronicle 

failing to tackle money in politics, Chiu deplored "the high-jacking of our electoral proce 

"'.:'- -'..'.:__'.'~ · _,£;- . .:_ •-..£.•~.zc;--1.,.,__ *'-...:____::,..:;.:_•"--'--'--"-' -""--,• Ll.:.._~- _:_:_Ok",• -':...<'• _c 

ed1a N1yp-ort1on of the art1cles-or:artwork rriay De _ _:_: _;;: "-:without expreSsed cOnsent __ "",.: _ ':.-
- _,, .:~- ' ' - ~::., -~-: ",,. __ - ,,,-~- ",, ::;; ·-~~ 



)r. Derek Ke1T htlps://1.vestsideobserver.comlnews/watchdog.ht1nl#oct20 

James Madison Freedo111 of Information Av.Jan 
Th us stymied, Ethics acquies~l>d ~61)1 iof rflr1n~1Mkg·W'~hltWer8'6liiol c~J!riif 1\niJtiflifriPirJ~ 
Major Donor Disclosure proposal. The Board voted 6 to 5 against banning campaign cc 

million from developers pursuing land use permits, citing the "highly diffuse and techni1 

making." Commissioner Kopp's motion to ban behest payments failed. Worse, most of· 

Ordinance 129-18 took effect after the 2018 elections - thus failing to stem the torren1 

London Breed's mayoral bid gained$1,248,098 in funds from Independent Expenditure ( 

money to all other mayoral candidates. 

Commissioner Renn e's term ended in February 2019. Isolated, Kopp resigned in March. 

mentioned Ethics' failure "to illuminate so called 'dark' money" given the "refusal by sor 

the face of political pressure from nonprofit corporations and businesses." Keane, Kopr 

Sunlight on Dark Money initiative to restore some provisions that succumbed to divisio 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideob 

JUNE 2019 

Tough Contract Negotiations: Unions \ 
Disobedience to Disrupt lnequa 

By Dr. Derek Kerr 

/'1.,[)· ·'\ n April 11th , . .{:( "•· 
s,~:: .. ~ after.noon, some 400 
""· · ·· Service Employees 

International Union 

(SEIU)-1021 and International 

Federation of Professional 

and' Technical Engineers 

(IFPTE) Local 21 members 
staged a novel civil 

disobedience protest at City 

Hall. Some 2 dozen workers 

were arrested for blocking 

traffic by sitting on the Polk 

Street crosswalk. 
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James Madison Freedom of lnforn1ation AvJan 
stand to ensure that San FranersdB~M a1 fRytlii!!1WoRCdt-lfri€(i'eff~n~~.J·hotSciMt{t~~·x.o,{,~~11 
money from beleaguered taxpayers, the idea is to hold big corporations and their CEOs 

services and infrastructure that allow them to thrive. Recent data from the Institute on· 

shows that some of the largest and most profitable corporations pay no taxes. In 2018, 

by 31 % according to US Treasury records. Most corporations use tax shelters and subs 

enormous revenues from taxation. So workers and small businesses have to make up 1 

service cuts. 

0 O 0 OfiO Oo 00 • 0 0 ·~· ·~~0 0 •>',' 0 0 o""" •> <> '' 0 Oo O e O > •0-' o O O 00 o '',' ,' "_, O~' ,, ->o ·, ·, ' ' O ·, • 

... multi-billion dollar corporations like Uber and Lyft get to play by 1 
have to pay their fair share towards the public services that City we 

Targeted by this demonstration were "unicorns" - privately-held start-up companies val 

handful of San Francisco-based unicorns are scheduled to go public through IPOs or In 

mint hundreds of new millionaires. This influx of wealth could further widen income ine 

increase homelessness and drive further displacement of long-time San Franciscans. C 

can't afford to live in the City and endure protracted, congested commutes. 

Demonstrators displayed colorful placards of unicorn figures with messages like; "Fair 

"Safe and Healthy Communities," "Affordable Housing for All," "Dignity and Respect for. 

don't get no contract, you don't get no peace" resounded throughout Civic Center as we 

Street waving signs and banners. That fervor was balanced by a demure minister from 

concluded with an appeal; ''Let justice roll down like a river and let inequity wash away." 

Hundreds then charged to Uber headquarters on Market Street to shame the ride-sharir 

workers and shielding its revenues from taxation. Union members see similarities betw 

1 So/o of City employees who are retained as temporary rather than permanent employeE 

protections of regular workers. 

Upon returning to City Hall 24 City workers staged a sit-in across Polk Street facing Cit) 

traffic. Monitoring the demonstrators were some 50 police officers plus 12 Sheriff's de~ 

entrance to City Hall. The police respectfully warned that arrests were forthcoming. No 

budged. So the cops gently guided the demonstrators one at a time to stand up to be zi 

waiting paddy wagons. 

Apparently, rising corporate wealth and predations, coupled with shortfalls in public ser 

portend more discontent, protests - and strikes. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a San Francisco investigative reporter Contact: watchdogs@westsideob 
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James Madison Freedom of Information Av;an 
''«',L"Vj' SF1oT,-;,,,v of f'rore1.\1·ona! J,1,1rrnali11;·

1
. Norff#h 

1 \. Ji ·.i·J M A over the 1nsta1 at1on o rans1t'-on y Jie "li.'j -
~ 'L:·· \~.. lanes. Such lanes, separated from regular e.~-.-~. 
raffle, aim to improve MUNI reliability and reduce ~21·.~ ; .. 

. pedestrian injuries. But they eliminate the parking that ~.\:.~'" 
··'-'-·~sustains businesses along commercial thoroughfares. A i-- ~- -

colorful protest against purged parking was covered in the June 2018 
Westside Observer's "Taraval Merchants See Red Over Parking Ban." 

In a March 10 letter to the SFMTA, Albert Chow, President of People of 

Parkside Sunset (POPS) demanded that an ·evaluation of planned transit

only lanes on Taraval Street be conducted as promised. POPS is a 

coalition of merchants and residents who promote local businesses as 

well as neighborhood activities and quality of life. Back in July 2018, 
SFMTA Rapid Team Leader Michael Rhodes had assured Chow that he would compile' 

residents and merchants" and "reconvene the small working group to share the results 

finalizing any staff recommendations." But the L-Taraval Project will resume this year a1 

part is missing. POPS members worry that SFMTA is "walking back understandings an1 
supported by then-Supervisor Katy Tang. 

,;Fj ,-;;;. 
1-I, r.-1': 
t _. ! >'"• '! 
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Simultaneously, the Controller's Office released a study of SFMTA'• 
It was conducted because, "Members of the public report that notii 
inadequate and that SFMTA can appear to make decisions regardle 
received." 

We asked Rhodes to comment, but he is out on leave. Instead, SFMTA's Philip Pierce re 

will continue until 2021, with ongoing community surveys and engagement with POPS.· 

community survey of about 1000 people showed that 49o/a supported transit only lanes 

Simultaneously, the Controller's Office released a studY. of SFMTA's community outreac 

"Members of the public report that notification can be inadequate and that SFMTA can 

regardless of the public input received." !n early 2018, SF MT A staff upgraded its public. 

processes. Improvements included public notices with maps and project manager con1 

emails to interested persons, and conducting satisfaction surveys. Satisfaction ratings 

SFMTA's public hearing notices and from 66o/o to 89o/o on the clarity of its approval proc• 

Statistics aside, POPS expects SFMTA to survey rnerchants and residents and hold car 

the impact of the transit-only lanes on merchants and residents is fully explored." In ad 
"' '-"--· -"' :::~ ·~,~,. "·"' ~ ·.~ ... : --~-~-~"'..':'---~--··---~,--•·- -- .,--._ __ ._ ~ . .,,_'..:':.'\'::'.':'___::; ~-~~:::.--·~..:· 
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James Madison Freedon1 of lnforn1ation Avvan 
by Dr. Derek Kerr 
~-~J ine days before the untimely death of Public Defender Jeff Adachi on 2/22/19, 

1J--f<~~;_.:~ received an em~il fro'.11 his.office. lt ~etailed allegations of prisoner ab~se by.~ 
__ .;l '~- and offered an 1nterv1ew with Adachi. WSO reporters were busy preparing art1c 

would be time, we thought, to confer with Adachi, a former WSO contributor and St. Fra 

00000~'00000~""""""'" ,.,--.. ·-o·;o•-,' '"''"'"·'""•o·>''·'O·'C ''·', •• ,_,,,', '·'<> 

... 16 female inmates alleging that some were strip searched in vie• 
Once naked, the women were ordered to lift their breasts then squ< 
and cough for vaginal and anal exams. They felt humiliated and de! 

Adachi's message included a 1 /16/19 formal complaint to Sheriff Vicki Hennessy abou 
the San Francisco jails and ongoing and repeated misconduct by SFSD deputies." Adac 

were "fearful of retaliation for coming forward with their complaints" but were willing tc 

P1811 



)r. Derek Keir https://vi'estsi<leohscrvcr.co1n/ncws/watchdog.hhnl#oct20 

.... ~ '" .. 

' 

Attached were reports by 16 female inmates alleging that some were strip searched in; 
of individual private strip searches; these were conducted en masse. Once naked, the¥ 

breasts then squat, spread their genitalia and cough for vaginal and anal exams. They f 
Another 15 male inmates at the San Bruno Jail reported "abuse or physical assault" by. 

There were injuries from fists and kicks as well as being dragged by handcuffs. In all, si 

implicated. 

Sheriff Vicki Hennessy rejected Adachi's designation of "deplorable conditions" but lau1 

Adachi wanted an outside investigation - with good reason. Back in 2015, he had exRd 

scenarios_" at the Hall of Ju_stice jail on Br ant Street. Sheriff's deputies had maniRulat 
•·• ''•• •• <·~''•'-.•• ,•·• •o•·'"• '.~ •• ' . .>·•· -• ,,_, ,,.. - -'-.-•, ' 
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James Madison Freedorn of lnfonnation Av1an 
Alarmed that his current com~·Riih'f Wd~fJ11J~rs-·1mira.riy1fd'rp·ea'O~J1> ABJ~li\r~Ma' SJpeFViSC 

called for an independent investigation and oversight of the Sheriff's Department. After 
Hennessy referred the investigation to the Department of Police Accountability - witho 

investigative fiasco. 

Mistreating prisoners is an occupational hazard for guards. That was made clear in the 

ExQeriment. Psychologist Philip Zimbardo recruited students to act as guards and prise 
after 6 days because the subjects who played guards became sadistic toward the inrr1c 

that situational forces overtook the subjects' sense of morality and agency. A similar tr, 

Mother Jones reporter Shane Bauer who spent four months undercover as a prison guc 

treat everyone as human takes too much energy ... 1 focus on proving I won't back down.' 

lack of self-control, my growing thirst for punishment and vengeance." 

One reason that jail conditions matter i.s that almost anyone can be arrested. Take Sun: 

Kathleen McCowln, a proponent of natural grass and limited lighting in playing fields. Ir 

arrested her for peacefully protesting the rushed bu lldozlng of Golden Gate Park to inst 

lights. Her December 2014 WSO article, The Shame of Rec and Park, provides the back· 

Dur\ng her one-day stay at County Jail #2, Mccowin says her pregnant cell mate "Aman1 

Amanda's cramps and leaking were dismissed. Once bleeding occurred, she was taken 

chained to a bed as she miscarried. Upon returning to jail, Mccowin offered to switch b 

Amanda the lower bed. Reportedly, the guard wouldn't allow it and no menstrual pads v 

The Sheriff's Department was anxious for Mccowin to sign herself out as she was con: 

settled in after a reassuring but exr;iensive phone conversatlon with her teen daughter.: 

also called her daughter who was supposedly crying for her release. The deputy needle 

daughter's needs, hoping to get her to leave. That call was "fabricated" Mccowin insist! 

to this day. Upon recounting her jail experiences to her Public Defender, she recalls tha1 

my world." 

The jail environment depersonalizes all involved, so the latest allegations of illegal beat 

surprising. The prisoner-guard dynamic creates power struggles that compound the tra 

March, the Health Commission passed Resolution 19-5 declaring; "Incarceration is a Pl 

"each experience of being incarcerated is physically and psychologically traumatic with 

their families, communities." But it's also traumatic and corrosive for guards who are ec 

would normally disavow. Too often, "rogue" actors are blamed instead of the pathologil 

cultures, role expectations, and unchecked power. 

At a March 7 hearing before the Government Audits and Oversight Committee, Supervi~ 

oversee the Sheriffs handling of jail complaints. He insisted that the Sheriff's Office ca1 
_f ___ ~ __ A•-----<<'-·'- - '.."'-".~~--=-~-ii:: :;_":"__~,.'.:_"~]•~ill_] "'~•::°"-------'·"~'!' /~ :.:_,;:_,~),~.l_$.J'.:_~~ "" -:..:.•_,_;;-_;_~0, 
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James Madison Freedon1 of Information AvJan 
where discipline is determinea'lt<i1·1:1;¥~y ffie:Snerifl'SHefm111eRlieH1/cl·e1frrn'lcilffef's@f 
to a chronic lack of Staff and funds. However, Hennessy acknowledged that in 2018 thE 

citizen complaint investigations, double the number of previous years. She affirmed her 

of 21 misconduct claims to the Department of Police Accountability (DPA). While the D 

testify, Hennessy agreed to require their cooperation. Since the DPA cannot pursue crin 

Henderson vowed to promptly refer such cases to the DA. And the DA's Chief of Staff, C 

willing to assist and pushed for immediate referrals. It seemed that Jeff Adachi's death 

collaborate- and resolve his last complaint. 

Dr. Derek Kerr is an SF award winning investigational Journalist. Contact: DerekOnVanNe 

APRIL 2019 
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City's Lapses in Rape Reporting and Han 
Reforms 

· .·. 'By Dr. Derek Kerr 
' · i 'if;\ cross the country, police departments convey that they solve ra1 

·~·. ·: ,· :r.i~~~,:.;:_ close them according to an investigation of 60 police agencies; 
/.' -t~i· -"' · conducted by Newsy, Reveal and ProPublica. 

;·The public views arrests as the way to clear rape cases. But police agen, 

even when suspects go free and victims don't get justice. Nearly half of! 

studied cleared more rape cases by "exceptional clearance" than by arresting a suspec 

Oakland PD reported that 60% of rape cases were cleared in 2016. When journalists ob· 

out that only 13% of rapes were solved by arrests while 47% were solved by "exception< 

r:» lf/J i-',. /',
1
_ •O~••••~•••••~••~•••oooo&oo•••••o•oouoooooooooo~oo.-oooooo•'••OOOo'' 

'.J 'j Exceptional clearance is the term used when police have enough e1 
arrest, and know who and where the suspect is, but can't make the 
circumstances outside their control. These include when the suspE 
incarcerated, when the District Attorney declines to prosecute, or v 
the case." 

Exceptional clearance is the term used when police have enough evidence to make an 1 

where the suspect is, but can't make the arrest due to circumstances outside their cont 

suspect is dead .or incarcerated, when the District Attorney declines to prosecute, or wf

However, some police agencies stretch this definition. 
- --. "· . _ .. ,;: '- --~ - .., . -- -~--- '-·-- - - - :: .• -- ·- - --'~---·--- ~- ---"""----0'::_ 
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James Madison Freedoni of lnforniatlon Avian 
rape cases - 87 more than whgf t:/ci!l re~8rtE/~F-t6it~1ec-Ps(~--pieff'{8~Stf1:1cl'g.er3_7:ec{;~s7Wl:!rE 
sexual assaults short of rape, but we can't tell. The table below shows these discrepan1 

SFPD Rape Case Reports 

2014 378 355 109 (3lo/o) 

2015 391 344 129(38°/o) 

2016 429 342 334 (98%) 

2017 437 367 63 (17%) 

2018 417 n/a n/a 

Avg: 41 O/yr 352/yr 159/yr ( 45%) 

When journalists request SFPD's rape data for exceptional clearances, arrest rates or u1 

get stone-walled. As Mark Fahey, one of the Reveal collaborators told us; "I talked to thi 

department and the Media Relations office - more than a dozen times between Januar 

indicated that they did intend to respond to our request, but missed their own deadline~ 

unresponsive ... " The Westside Observer's own records request on 12/27 /18 was ignore( 

was acknowledged ... but no response to date. 

By 2021, the actual outcome of rape cases now dubiously reported as "cleared" will be( 

whe_n the FBI will implement its National Incident-Based Reporting System nationwide. 

exceptionally cleared cases from arrests - unlike the Uniform Crime Reporting Program 

this new system is also flawed as it doesn't count the many cases deemed "unfounded 

Omitting unfounded cases can mask the prevalence of sexual violence and impede soc 

incentivized. Labeling rape cases as unfounded can make police agencies appear morE 

reported crime rates while boosting clearance rates. Because of the Newsy/Reveal/Pre 

plans to add the "unfounded" category to its new reporting system. The SFPD should b, 

The need for reforms emerged when the Board of Supervisors' Public Safety & Neighbc 

heard from sexual assault survivors and experts on 4/25/18. ln emotional testimony, tr 
empathy, respect and investigative zeal from the SFPD's Special Victims Unit. The City': 

Team also faced criticism. That entity includes the SFPD Special Victims Unit, the DA's 

,,. ' • -"'"- i~-~ --~l'.l-"·""·--;-P'"-~---:-.-·~,.Jr~-•--.-~"':_, .... ;·.~~ .. ~~,,:~ . .,,,.,111·"'~ ,~'\,~,.~~.,,..-
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improvements, navigating th,$1'!ri0ll lfe>iiilr'<l~saUl\'!ler\,;lc1!s' leilJitths ~lriJH~1¥, ~~Uliliilg € 
isn't treated as a public safety threat. Similar defiCiencies were identified in a 2017 reru;:: 

Violence commissioned by the Department on the Status of Women and a 2018 reP-ort 

Accountability. 

The lack of transparency in the handling of rape was exemplified when SFPD Cornman< 
give the clearance rate for rapes at the Hearing. And the DA's Chief of Victim Services, r 

how many of the 436 sexual assault cases served by her Division in 2017 were chargec 

Reports only show the percent of cases charged that result in convictions - without dl~ 

remains in the low single digits. Prosecuting sexual crimes is difficult. Nationwide, 20"1o 
arrests and just 2% to convictions. 

So we asked the DA's Office for the number of rape/sexual assau!t cases it charged ani 

law enforcement presented an average of 141 arrests/year to DA prosecutors. (The DA· 

3 times more because it also helps victims of unreported and uncharged crimes.) On a' 

such as filing new criminal charges, proceeding on another case, revoking probation, or 

52% of cases. But we couldn't get the actual numbers charged with or convicted of sex 

does not presently have responsive and reliable information". 

After the Hearing, Supervisor Ronen crafted Ordinance 215-18 creating the Office of Se· 

Response and Prevention (SHARP). It was enacted in September 2018. Working under· 
SHARP will have a Director and 2 full-time employees at a cost of around $400,000. Ke~ 
blaming, promote survivor-centered services and oversee all City agencies dealing with 

to receive complaints about City services for sexual assault, help victims navigate the~ 

to meet with complainants, report service failures to involved departments and City Ha: 
combat and prevent sexual crimes. 

Importantly, SHARP will gain access to and publish sexual assault data that is now uno 

Dr. Derek Kerr was a senior physician at Laguna Honda Hospital where he repeatedly exp 

Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

March 2019 

~ ~ Rape, Stolen Valor Charges Jolt Human Se1 
by Dr. Derek Kerr 
immering anger over hiring practices at the Human Services Agency (HSA) turned to di: 

•.• - -·: -!. "-~---~··•it•~ "!~ 9"' ., ' . ' -
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the local community". Jones earned a salary of $92,927 

($125,631 with benefits) in 2017. 

Five months later, he was accused of stolen valor by the 
veteran-operated "Military Phonies" website. Reportedly, 

Jones had been representing himself as a former Navy SEAL 

with combat duties and injuries in various war theaters. 

However, military records disclosed by Military Phonies show 

that he actively served the Navy from 1998-2000 - with no 

overseas deployments, SEAL training or service. His 2002 

discharge from the Naval Reserve Personnel Center was "for 

.. ·If'~ -EJG 

the convenience of the government" these records show. On 1 /22/19, Jones apparent!) 

"false allegations". Military Phonies responded by asking for his BUD/S class number.) 

6-month Basic Underwater Demolition/SEAL class but Jones' records showed none. Ar 

class\fied. 

oo~O<>>•••o•o< oo~o.••o•o>.-,,. '·''''"'" '"' '·' '' '' ,,,,,.,, ···'"' 

Given HSA's 2,000 employees, occasional scandals are expected b1 
HSA has been a hotbed of protests about "cronyism, nepotism and 
hiring and promotion of unqualified personnel..." 

The 2013 Stolen Valor Act imposes penalties for fraudulently claiming to have received 

so secures money, property or other tangible benefits. HSA's Human Resources Depart 

whether Jones embellished his military service and whether tangible employment benE 

However, HR Director Luenna Kim had to surmount a bigger challenge - in her own offi1 

old attorney and Labor Relations Analyst was arrested for rape in Dublin in November 2 

he is being held without bail at Santa Rita Jail according to the Alameda County lnmatE 

will be in March. 

Prior to working at HSA, Harris was an Investigative Analyst with the DA's Office. Altha~ 

were excellent, sources say his arrival at HSA entailed some controversy. A University C 
graduate, he was admitted to the California Bar in 2014 and remains in good standing. 

salary of $82,108 ($112,687 with benefits) in 2017. HSA disclosed that he's no longer e 

There's more. In June 2018, long-time HSA engineer Albert K. Broohrn, age 59, was arre 

warrant for aggravated sexual assault of a child under 10. A stunned HSA colleague de 

person". A resident of Hayward, Broohm remains incarcerated at Santa Rita Jail with a: 
,_~, ~ -.-.,t1 ~:. ~,_.$ •I): ... fg ,. ,,.- "f !~ ., 
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March 2019 

The Way We were 
by Dr. Derek Kerr 
etween 1938 and 1940, the New Deal's Works Progress Administration (WPA) hired sor 

detailed wooden model of San Francisco for the Planning Commission. The idea came 

Timothy Pflueger. The 3-D scale model served as a planning tool for the many WPA pro. 

to Golden Gate Bridge and the Bay Bridge itself, as well as the development of Treasure 
City working during the Great Depression. Built at a scale of 1 inch to 100 feet, the 6,001 

mundi covered 1000 square feet. The cost; $100,000. The model was displayed at the~ 

in 1939, then at City Hall in 1940. It was packed away in 1942 to make room for admini: 

In the late '60s, it was shipped to UC Berkeley for urban design studies. 

Last year, the SF Museum of Modern Art, in partnership with the SF Public Library and t 

Bik and Jos van der Pol, restored the model of San Francisco circa 1938. The goal was· 

public in a memorable way and promote civic engagement. The result is an exhibition c 

branch of the Public Library will dlsplay sections of the scale model corresponding to it 

will reveal something about the way we were and the City's evolution. Events and progn 

will accompany the display from January 25 through March 25. For more information c 

see Take Part 

Dr. Derek Kerr was a senior physician at Laguna Honda Hospital where he repeatedly exP, 

Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aof.com 

LIBRARY BRANCH EVENTS 

2. RUblicknowledge.sfmoma org/events 
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~ • '·' b_J 17• ' pipelines. In March 201f:\!:!b~ffl!icfV2~isors directed Cit 

·-... .-- GlG ,si;:i,. 81.Jt, t.hi;:ise bar;iks. s lsGJ f1.nar.ic;:ed. prav,ate iJfliSGJRs,Ji,edgtt. iullds1 we.a 
,-,, -)·] fuels, tobacco interests, and luxury real estate. Plus their predatory pra1 

tanked the financial system. When it came to loans for City housing, infrastructure, tran 

interest charges were steep. Since the Westside Observer's May 2017 article "A Public E 

appeared, much has happened. 

During the early 
19005, North Dakota's 
economy was based on 

agriculture, specifically 

wheat. Frequent drought and 

harsh winters didn't make it 
f ,.,~, .·,-. n,·.o. ,~~,,,i•.~-r~, ,,, , " ... '<" •"~ 
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interest rates on farm loans, 

sometimes up to 12o/o.North 

Dakotans were frustrated 

and attempts to legislate 

fairer business practices 

failed. 

A.C. Townley, a politician 

who was fired from the 

Socialist Party, organized the 
Non-Partisan League with 

the intent of creating a farm 
organization that protected 

the social and economic 

position of the farmer. 

https://y,·estsideobscrveccon1/ncv•s1\vatchdog.ht111llloct20 

BSEB 

The Non-Partisan League gained control of the Governor's office, majority control of th~ 

one third of the seats in the Senate in 1918. Their platform included state ownership ar 

credit agencies. ln 1919, the state legislature established Bank of North Dakota (BND) • 

Elevator Association. BND opened July 28, 1919 with $2 million of capital. 

Per the Controller's SF Open Book website, the City paid private banks a whopping $581 

bonds and loans in 2017-18. Of that amount, taxpayers owed up to $121 million, accor( 

Annual Financial Report. The rest was owed by ratepayers using water, transit, airport a 

services. Either way, bank executives, shareholders and bond holders reaped the proce1 

reported $864,000 in bank fees last year. In response to public pressure to save money 

our values are, City officials, like those in Oakland and Los Angeles, began exploring Pu 
the public good . 

••• ··~ •• 0060". ,, ••••••••• 0' 0''' ••• " 0"'.) _, '~· 000 •• 0 •• 0 •••••• " •• ····~ 

Public input also favored divesting from Bank of America and Well! 
Treasurer's Office finds it daunting to 'create a Public Bank from sc 

Pursuant to the Board of Supervisors' Resolution 152-17, sponsored by Malia Cohen, Si 

and Hillary Ronen, Treasurer Cisneros organized a 16-member Municipal Bank Feasibili 

Fewer's request, the Budget & Legislative Analyst's Office issued a November 2017 reru 

and other community supportive banking options. 

:;-~-" . , _,,, ._,,,~ , , ~ _ f IJ,.,_" _ :. I!, ~4 i _,!_ ~~-·l_ -~."- ~ _ -·· • !_~ _ •~~-_____:,_ ~ ~--~--_ , --'----- 1 . _ _:,_,_J~ ~- . a_- ,._ -
© 2020 Westside San Francisco Media No portion of the articles or artworl<ffiay be .:h:- · j, ~ ,W1th~tit expr'essed consenf ~- •:,_ 

- ,_ _, »:,~ ' - . - :".::~·"'~_,,l__,,,-·_ ~.~;[;;, '';:, ' -~····;".,·,. ~ ~-·-·-~:..C. 

P1821 



lr. Derek Kerr https://wcstsiJ.eobserver.co1n/ncws/watchdog.htrnl#oct20 

James Madison Freedom of Information Avvan 
WU-"ll l<:::-"-"C-"1 QI IU -"lUUCl I l'> YVV.~Bt.-.'.'-<.-r:fy' '{lf •f\•tl}f.!_U,ljf'!_l'/'f,!7 J1 ':fl""Jflf'i'RJ/i.i' 

and "will never be profitable." 

The most viable model, a Commercial Municipal Bank, would 

use the City's General Fund for lending. By not taking deposits, it 

would eliminate the complexity and costs of a getting a charter. 

It would ma_ke money by year 2, and a $17 million profit by year 

10. But it wouldn't break from Wall Street or provide consumer 

loans. 

On 12/13/18, the Board's Budget & Finance Committee heard. 

cannabis. Turns out the 4 models proposed in September took 

flak for being "too small - not thinking big" according to Amanda Kahn Fried. Public in~ 

Bank of America and Wells Fargo. However, the Treasurer's Office finds it daunting to "c 

scratch," declines to recommend a Public Bank, and hasn't provided a roadmap to estal 

costs of a Public Bank, the social costs of depositing public dollars in private banks arE 

and Fewer urged the Treasurer's Office to "think big," move beyond its comfort zone, an 
State legislators. The goal would be "local control, financial empowerment, and transpc 

bank balance. Accordingly, the Task Force will present 3 new models: Divestment, R_e-lr 

at its last meeting at 3 PM on January 31, Room 305, City Hall. 

The counting room at the Bank of North Dakota 

Meanwhile, on 1/10/19 over 200 people packed the Women's Building to launch the Sa1 

- --XpreSSed Collsent-C :-
- - ~ 
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concept. SF Public Bank Coalitllf~'Hrgarfi£efSrKUt-t!SWli ~rtdrlJ~li~l~cFi~fdef-a~h;1~1il6'~8~ 
Bank Charter Amendment before voters in November. Supporters can check SFPublicB 

sessions and work groups. 

Regulatory and political hurdles abound. Last November, Los Angeles placed a Charter 

allow the creation of a Public Bank. A robust 44'?'o of voters approved - but it failed. Oak 

commissioned a study concluding that a multi-Jurisdictional Public Bank was feasible. 

Office r.gjected it citing "no clear roadmap, structure or supporting data." As for cannabi 

California Treasurer's Office found that "No State"backed financial institution designed 

industry is feasible. All alternatives fail on both risk and financial grounds."Banks handl 

asset seizures and employee prosecutions for enabling a federal crime. 

Yet the quest to transform banking is gaining momentum. In 2016, the second US Publi, 

American Samoa, QQened with Federal Reserve approval. Hundreds of Public Banks thr 

nascent Green New Deal movement dovetails with Public Banking. Recall the Great De~ 

Roosevelt tapped the publicly-owned Reconstruction Finance Corporation to finance N( 
Congressional appropriations. While campaigning, now-Governor Newsom declared, "IJ 
chokeho!d on state finances and develop our own state bank." 

Meanwhile, City Treasurer Cisneros actively pursues socially responsible investments. 

Local" program allocated $80 million from the County's Pooled Investment Fund to ban 

community lending. Other City agencies facilitate loans. For example, the Mayor's Off1c 

Development backs $86 million in home loans for lower-income residents. Such servici 

Public Bank grows. 

(~{fperek Kerr J.M1~Dfc,~M'9g;fr~~twii'~hf~ig 
_J ImlJJ<!f!<!'ltll&rPl!P!Jl:f-J'fflJlfu Contact: DerekOnVan Ness@aol com 

Rivero 
hree years ago, in Exodus from Laguna Honda H~d6~,'-till~~gm Observer reporte 

0 ~ ...... ~" O<>O O<>~~ ~,, 0 <>0,, O<>~OQ" 0<>0~ 0 ~" ~ o<>¢ ~ ~ ~ D ~''"" ,, ~~ ~ O·> "~, 0 ~~, 0'>·' r, 

number of LHH patients who fled the premises. Now, LHH managers are publicly acknc 

testing ways to reduce "unplanned discharges." Unplanned discharges refer to patients 

Ag a inst Medical Advice (AMA), or who simply walk out Absent Without Official Leave (. 

patients eventually return to LHH. 

At LHH's 11/13/18 Joint Conference Committee, a public meeting of LHH managers ar 

Social Services Director Janet Gillen presented an analysis of unplanned discharges. SI 

saw a significant.spike, with 23.6°/c of all community discharges leaving AMA or AWOL. 

of unplanned discharges hovered between 18% and 24"/c. And in the year ending in Sep· 

rate hit 26o/o, a new high. That's double the historical rate around 13o/c,even in the old LH 
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sem1-pnvate rooms were t .. -·· ·. i·" 'r, 

supposed to contain such I 11 11 ·· 
jarring behaviors. Instead, the -~- "· 
proportion of patients showingM., • , ~· """. 

bothersome behaviors steadily ,.. <.~. ·' 
Increased from 23°'6 in 2013 to _ 

31 % in 2017, almost twice the ~'t!~},..C<i'i\;; <!"!Jll!,,.~'~"' 
State nursing home average of .: ,: --;:'.~:.:1} _ _ 
17°1o. Recently, largely by f--~~?~::::~~;'.-.?.·- -~.- --· --- ·~,-1-.: -t;i __ · . 

changing reporting standards, r-'~::::;:_..;· 
LHH claims that patients wlth ~·: '--~-' _. 

' disruptive behaviors fell to 

23%. Hardly a healing 
environment. Nothing was said'. ·_ 

~ " 

Janet Gillen Social Services Director 

about bothersome patiei-its provoking others to bail from LHH. 

O 0000000• 08•0 OOa• 000 D 00 0 O 0 0 ~· 00. 0 0 000 O O O O~ O O O O O 000 • oOO 0. 0 00 0 O O oa O O 

Concurrently, LHH is coping with a rise in unruly patients with "heh 
like wandering, screaming, aggression, and rejecting care." 

LHH is working hard to reduce the turmoil whlle keeping its roots hidden. Without addri 
8 I • I I I I 
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There are costs. This year LHH faces a $2.5 million budget shortfa 
increased need for coaches in an effort to facilitate patient flow wil 
Coaches are staffers assigned to watch unruly or unsafe patients. J 

costs for security services, including staff1ng 1 patrols, security tecl 
environmental controls. For eMample, every AWOL event triggers a 
wide search by the Sheriff's Department and busy LHH staff. Mean• 
more guarded and restrictive." 

Why do LHH patients flee? Here, we are baffled by contradictions. Between 2010 and 21 

reasons for AMA and AWOL discharges included 33% who "Did not want to be here" an 

abuse. Now, according to Gill en's November presentation, 70°1a of unplanned discharge: 

abuse. Only 18% didn't want to be at LHH. However, in a September presentation, Chief 

insisted that merely 18o/o of unplanned discharges were tied to substance abuse betwe• 

2018. lfthat 18% is correct, treating substance abusers won't do much to curb runawa:, 

reduce abrupt decampments seem directed at drug users. The conflicting numbers pre 
Qian are unlikely to guide effective interventions. We asked Ms. Gillen and Dr. Qian to cl 

response yet. 

Currently, records show that 25?'o of LHH admissions are designated as homeless. Sur~ 

caring for these sometimes challenging patients. Although L!--1H documents are almost 

did say that most AMA discharges were homeless. But their presence within the larger 

disclosed. Gillen mentioned in passing that 44% of unplanned discharges fled from the 

from the HIV I AIDS ward. Such information should help to target specialized services. 

LHH deploys a host of interventions to cut unplanned discharges_ These include early i1 

troubled by drug cravings, as well as more support groups, motivational counseling, an1 

Surprisingly, a 16-month trla! of Medication Assisted Treatment, offering buprenorphint 

was a flop. Turns out only 1°/o of unplanned discharges were opioid users. So, treating~ 

AMA and AWOL discharges. Another 17% of runaways craved non-opioids like cocaine, 

methamphetamine. These drug habits cannot be treated with methadone or buprenorp 

support groups, and anti-depressants can help. Even so, LHH Psychiatry surveys show 

have a major impact on patient flight. Wisely, LHH recently abandoned its draconian po 

After 3 years of harassing smokers who defied no smoking rules, and causing some to 

restored a patient smoking area. 
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There are costs. This year LHWiit'~N a1 §2' .. ~·litim&nrt108&e\!§R6~iMn:·i;i~11\ly1~~-.0io1hi! 
an effort to facilitate patient flow within the network." Coaches are staffers assigned to 

patients. And there are escalating costs for security services, including staffing, patrols 

environmental controls. For example, every AWOL event triggers a burdensome campu: 

Department and busy LHH staff. Meanwhile, LHH becomes more guarded and restricti1 

Finally, San Francisco lacks nursing home beds, shelters and housing. The Health Depa 

Medical Resgite beds on Mission Street for homeless persons discharged from SFGH. 

LHH even if they don't want to be there. Because LHH always has a waiting list, folks w 

displaced by those who don't. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital whr 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobservet 

Propositiovi 8 Decemjler 2018 
·Mayor-London· Breedis. Aversion· to·Sunshint 

,by Dr. Derek Kerr 
·.q'"J ondon Breed's ascent into Room 200 portends a loss in City Hall· 

' ! .,J r1 the City's "Privacy First Policy" - passes in November, it would allc 
·.:·.,· i ::.·:~ .J Sunshine Ordinance without voter approval. And thus, our sunshi1 

amendment to reinforce it . 
. •j 

As District 5 Supervisor, Breed repeatedly defied the Sunshine OrdinancE 

requests. When thwarted requesters filed complaints with the Sunshine Ordinance Tasl 

adjudicates alleged violations of the Ordinance, Breed ignored SOTF summons to atten 

intransigence came to a head in August 2017 when public advocate/gadfly Michael Pe1 

President Breed for a list of addresses she had blocked from her Twitter account. No re 
reminder emails. Still nothing. Unlike Breed, other Supervisors responded to the same r 

~· ••••••••••••••••• ·~· •• " ••••••• 0. ·~·' ••••••• 0' .,~" '>•, 0' •• 0 ........ . 

The SOTF determined that Breed had violated the Sunshine Ordinal 
public records and failing to attend its hearings. This April, frustra1 
voted 7-0 to refer Breed's delinquencies to the District Attorney to' 

"Blocked" means that those individuals cannot view what Breed is tweeting, or convers1 

some of those tweets entail City business. The case was timely because a March 2017 

(San Jose v Superior Court) established that public business conducted on personal el: 

subject to disclosure. (In May 2018, a US District Court ruled that President Trump violc 

•c_.~__ ·.~_" "' .• .._, _ ___.:_ . ,:.:~~ ~_.! _· _. !· ~-- ·_ ·_-:.._ __ :·: _____ ::_ __ __:'."-2:.:::~_::_·_:_::_:_ 
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Jaroes iVlaclison Freedo111 of lnforn1atlo11 Avian 
ln a May 1st letter to DA GeorBEV-ci'8~C6K,l$'@{~-·cf{a.1r(BrJ·c~,1 W'Olfk\fuX-pi'~TK~d1t1h;~fjBTeifd' 
compliance with the Sunshine Ordinance and has failed to respond to publlc records re 

SOTF hearings." Wolfe noted Breed's non-compliance in 5 prior cases: #15029-2, #150~ 
#17047. The rebuke stirred the Mission Local to describe Breed as one who "continua lb 

"has no patience for public records requests or the task force that oversees the1n." On~ 

case to the Ethics Commission where it awaits resolution. 

Breed's aversion to public scrutiny of her public service isn't new. As The Westside Obs( 

Breed had refused to disclose her work calendars. When the Board of Supervisors vote

the names of participants in its official meetings, Breed voiced the sole no vote. On sec 

that September she deployed her unique aversion to calendar disclosures as a litmus·t( 

Thanks to a tip from Patrick Monette-Shaw, here are Breed's sunshine violations per thE 

In complaint #15029-2 Michael Petrelis showed that his request for Breed's outgoing er 

ignored. When the SOTF met in June 2015, it found his request was unduly broad and a 
Nobody from Breed's office appeared. Although her aides Connor Johnson and Iris War 

committee hearing, Breed was cited for dodging the full SOTF hearing and failing to res 

request. 

In complaint #15038 from March 2015, Ray Hartz requested Breed's records about app 

Public Library. No response. The SOTF unanimously cited Breed for failure to provide tr 

appear or send a representative to its hearing. The matter was referred to the SOTF's c, 
Committee. There, Breed's aides Connor Johnson and Iris Wong did show up. Offended 

seen Hartz's request, had no responsive records, and had replied - to the Clerk of the Be 

received the requested records from other Supervisors. Nevertheless, Breed's aides we 
response directly to Hartz- after 7 rnonths. 

In complaint #15060 from December 2015, Michael Petrel is requested Breed's work ca 

2015. Astoundingly, he was told that Breed didn't keep calendars. In October 2016, hep 

the SOTF's Compliance & Amendments Committee. Connor Johnson and Iris Wong did 
Breed's calendars. They had to. By then, the Board of Supervisors had voted to disclosi:; 

Breed's opposition. The SOTF cited Breed for failing to timely respond to a public recon 

In complaint #17018 from March 2017, journalist Josh Wolf requested a list of person~ 

account. No response. Wolfs follow-up request 10 days later was also ignored. The SO 

block spammers and trolls, but had to disclose who she blocked. Further, Breed had vie 

by withholding public records and not sending any representative to 2 hearings. 

\n complaint #17047 from May 2017, political blogger Angela Gerben requested a list o 

her--. .F 
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James Madison Freedom of Information Avian 
purposes." But by showing up''@rh\L'filM il!lTr'h\i~tllii/ lh~i/Ya'll~d ev~f)l!r::i'k 'tililefY""' 
only one week's emails. 

Yet, Breed's sunshine aversion persists. This August, Petrells requested Breed's calendi 

right before she was sworn in as Mayor. He received a same-day response - 41 grossly· 

them on Google drive for all to see, then filed a sunshine complaint alleging egregious r 

perhaps, a subsequent request for Breed's mayoral calendars received a prompt respor 

behavior, and the ominous implications of Prop B, a sunshine eclipse may characterize 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a member of the Society of Professional Journalists and an investigativ1 

watchdogs@westsideobserver.com 

October 2018 

"Privacy First Policy" Threatens Sunsl 
. 'by Dr. Derek Kerr 

:[,:i-·.---(-'i] he "Privacy: F.irst Policy:" (PFP), a Charter amendment prop~sed t 
~ r-: safeguard private data from abuse by tech-based companies, u~ 

L -~J Ordinance. Set to appear on the November ballot as Proposition. 

etween privacy and transparency. By conferring "First" place to privacy, 
'..~~sacrificed. 

Origins of the Privacy First Policy: Drafted by Peskin's legislative aide Lee Hepner, a res1 

Ordinance Task force, and Deputy City Attorney Paul Zarefsky, the PFP was initially co-~ 

Ronen, Kim, Fewer and Sheehy. It propounds 11 privacy principles. These affirm the put 

personal information is being used, how to access that information to ensure its accur< 

informed consent for the use of that information by the City or parties benef1tting from 

offered as guiding rather than binding City policy. In a round-about opaque way, it direct 

devise an Ordinance implementing the policy guidelines by May 2019. Then the Superv. 

(_~;~ ii't} 
r·f ~1 •••••••••••••o•o••••••OOA••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••oooo••>: 

' 'I ,-.,I Who decides if an amendment of the Sunshine Ordinance is "not in 
-~ . .,..} 

purpose? The City Attorney, according to Peskin ... Trouble is, the I 
loyalties, representing the public and City government. When the t1 
Attorney defends City officials:' 

. . ~ -
- WithOufexPi"eSseac-on-Serit-,,--

-~ - - - -
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records, provided that any such amendment is not inconsistent with the purpose or inten 
the voter-approved ordinances." 

Who decides if an amend1nent of the Sunshine Ordinance is "not inconsistent" with its 

purpose? The City Attorney, according to Peskin. City Hall would rule on voter intent - c 

its own intent. Trouble is, the City Attorney has dual loyalties, representing the public ar 
two clash, the City Attorney defends City officials. It's not a hypothetical concern_ Recal 

Matt Dorsey told the New York Times in 2011 that the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force I 
jury that beats up on City departments ... " As the Westside Observer has repeatedly re11r 

the Ethics Commission to dismiss virtually all sunshine violation referrals. Plus, the Cit) 

already- as the "Supervisor of Records" to adjudicate public appeals for withheld City r' 

the SOTF 

Granting the City Attorney and Supervisors Charter powers to amend the Sunshine Ordi 

It happened before. In 2014, a cabal of Supervisors (Wiener, Chiu, Farrell, Tang and Yee: 

qualified applicants who were deemed too independent. Instead, City Hall shills were in 

Sunshine Ordinance to tampering by the very City officials who contend with sunshine r 

complaints. Unlike California's Consumer Privacy Act Prop B becomes a Trojan Horse 1 

government laws into a bill that appears to protect consumer information. If it passes, 1 

lessen transparency - despite assurances to the contrary. 

The current Sunshine Ordinance was voter-initiated and approved As such, it can only t 
Supervisors. That's apt because sunshine complaints are all directed against City Hall< 

and City Attorneys are regular targets. Allowing them to modify the Sunshine Ordlnancf 
Since 1999 the Board hasn't touched the Ordinance, except to add something. ln 2008 · 

Supervisors amended the requirement that audio and video recordings of City Hall meE 

be digitally recorded, and available to the public in digital form. Under public pressure, i1 

themselves and other top off1cia Is to maintain work calendars as public records, and to 

meetings. These add-ons neither altered existing mandates, nor bypassed the SOTF -

permit. 

Stakeholders Beware: Almost privately, PFP was composed within the confines of City I 

companies were consulted, the bill received a perfunctory, unnoticed introduction at th( 

Supervisors meeting. Then came two fleeting reviews before the Rules Committee in J1 
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Granted, the PFP/Prop Bis w~ffl-ir{tE!il1de~f"Wffine\:!tr1.Pr'O~JC~i0fi1 ftgM-\di~1rt1ill~c{{fd-rm'St~,rl 
and monetize our private data. Granted, its sponsors generally sUpport open govern me 

they likely wanted to facilitate updates to the Sunshine Ordinance, some of which are S· 

Alarmingly however, Prop Basks voters to give up power for politicians' good intention! 

lurks the fox. Giving future politicians the leeway to amend the Sunshine Ordinance is ti 

Hall could simply deem self-serving revisions as "not inconsistent" with the Sunshine 0 

Dr. Derek Kerr is a member of the Society of Professional Journalists and an investigativ1 

watch dog s@wests i deo bs e rve r. com 

Sept 2018 

No Takers Yet: Laguna Honda's Aid-ln-D}I 
by Dr. Derek Kerr & Dr. Maria Rivero 
~ s reported in the June 2017 Westside Observer (WSO), 

//~'.~ \ Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH) approved a medical ald-in
~--:l f.~.' l dying policy last May. Based on California's 2016 End of 

Life Options Act. it allows terminally ill patients with decision

making capacity to self-administer prescribed lethal sedatives in 

the hospital. While awaiting LHH's promised annual report on its 

aid-in-dying program, the WSO requested records showing the 

number of lethal prescriptions issued and the number of associated 

deaths. LHH's response: "zero" and "zero". 

Zero takers may seem surprising in a hospital that reported 181. 

deaths in 2017. However, few dying patients choose this option. For 
example, Oregon's 20 year old "Death with Dignity" program accounted for just 144 dea 

rise in participants, that's merely 0.4°/o of Oregon deaths. In California, data for the first 

Options program, June through December 2016, show that 191 patients received lethal. 
(58°/o) took them. That accounts for 0.06% of California deaths during that period. Data 

prescriptions were issued and 374 (65%) of those patients died as a result, amounting· 

deaths 

••• ···~· •• ·~ •••• '··~~· ,. ·~"' ., 040 ·~·· •••••• '' < ••••• 0 •••••••••••••• 

... the overwhelming majority who opted for aid-in-dying were over 
educated, insured cancer patients living at home with Hospice sen 

0: . © 20-20 We~t:1d~ Sa; Fran~rS~O ~ed;a~-N~ ·p~rt~o~-:;f t~=~~~l~s ;~a~~~k :aYbe'"" ~7-_:; :~. _.=. withOut e;preisedCOnSE!iit :: , · _.:. -
!'::fL·~': ' - - ,,-,_,___,_.,':_ '.» ,:. • ·'<L • o ~;., ,,: • , ·• 
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This May, a legal challenge byrn~'£ilk<tloS1i1'6etle'n!i/FPoGlkl~~ek 't~'mf16ltlri1y' !iJ3~eHde 
Despite pleas from ComRassion & Choices, a group that supports assisted dying, a Rivi 

judge invalidated California's End of Life Options Act- on procedural rather than substa 

Hestrin case, the judge ruled that the Act was wrongly passed in a special legislative SE 

for Medi-Cal recipients. That maneuver was deemed unconstitutional as it skirted the a 

Special sessions also bypass committee reviews and potential opposition. After 3 wee 

General Xavier Becerra's motion to stay that ruling was granted by the 4th Circuit Court 

arguments to overturn that decision will be heard this July_ Given the strong public sup1 

absence of reported abuses, the Legislature could simply reenact the bill in general ses 

the Act. 

Since the LHH's medical aid-in-dying program was enthusiastically introduced to the H1 

since controversy abounds, the reasons for zero patient participation, the program's pr< 

disclosed this year. 

Dr. Derek Kerr & Dr. Maria Rivero were a senior physician at Laguna Honda Hospital, they 

reporters. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserver.com 

July 2018 

Westside Car Break-Ins Subsiding -
by Dr. Derek !(err 

J
·~_:' ncorrected data from.the Taraval Police Station's website (w:'w.Taraval.org) sh 

i- reported auto burglaries. The average number of auto break-ins for 2018 now::: 
• .. ! 

~..._~- big Improvement from the 140/month average logged in 2017, and slightly bet1 

-t e.best 
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WESTSID» ,,. BSEB 
·James Madison Freedom of Information Av1ari 

_)o(f,_~r·/ uf f1r(),f1_'55.i1Jn{7/ J(J!J(n(1(i_'>ts, .r./1"Jr(~(1/ Chaplr!r 
122 100 ' 121 2018 B4 100 

(computer statistics) database. Last month, WSO columnist Lou Barberinl - a CPA and 

the SFPD's CompStat numbers as ''phony statistics" because they quietly increase - so_ 

age. Th<it's partly due to the addition of cases filed after the monthly crime reports are· 

corrections inserted so many months later? Initially, the current crime rate is understatE 

update the data creates an illusion of improving crime trends by pairing current underc1 

numbers. 

For example, car break-ins recorded in Taraval Station's monthly reports totaled 1,418 i1 

logged into ComgStat show 1,614. That discrepancy amounts to a 14% surge - from 11 

Notably suspicious, the 81 auto break-ins T araval Station recorded for December 2016 

CompStat. Similarly, Taraval reported 1,680 auto break-Ins in 2017, while CompStat she" 

instead of 140 break-ins/month, the retroactive average for 2017 was 149/month. Give 

thefts from autos go unreported, the true numbers are likely about 10% higher than Tari 

Last month, SFPD Lt. Tim Paine told the West of twin Peaks Central Council that the re~ 

and home burglaries - was tied to the arrests of 12 of 30 members of a gang targeting I 

residential burglaries plunged to 26 this May·. That looks better than the 2017 average c 

home burglaries had risen in early 2018, the drop in May merely kept this year's averagE 

statistics are malleable, and becciuse burglary gangs are resilient, vigilance remains ne1 

Dr. Derek Kerr is an investigative reporter living in San Franciscco 
Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserver.com 

July 2018 
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~ti Taraval Merchants See Red Over Parl 
::;] r. Derek Kerr 

oursing through the Parkside and Sunset neighborhoods, Tarava! Street is dotted with~ 

their owners have strenuously QQJ:!OSed_ Metropolitan Transportation Agency (MTA) pla1 

commercial corridor. The latest fiare-up came on Monday, May 5th. Tai"aval merchants 

paint along the entire curb of the 2200 block. Gone were the parking spaces in front of 

Fire Equipment, Avenues Pet Hospital, Allstate Insurance and the Zhong Shan Restaura 

forewarning. Although the MTA had promised fliers, business owners say they weren't r 

_. d~ters custon:iers_and. elirninat,e.s .l_o.acJt!l_g zones. f_QL tj.13.JI 
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. . · 

When business owners along Taraval Street arrived at work on Monday mo 

surprised to find MTA had painted the curbs red along the entire block. Ali( 

MTA's process at a press conference three days later 

doesn't rank among Vision Zero's 57 priorities. According to MTA's website, 22 people r 
L-Taraval trains in the last 5 years. The agency blames motorists who failed to stop as I 

Just 72% of drivers complied with required stops. In April 2017, a 6-month pilot project 

compliance by deploying street markings, signs and flashing lights on trains. If the corr 

would have continued these measures. But compliance stalled at 74'Ya. So, 36 parkings 

to install concrete boarding islands at train stops. Apparently, the 2200 block was the 11 

last straw. 

0 0 • ~ 0 0 0 0 0 A 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ~ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 < 0 0 0 0 0 ; 0 0 0 0 0 " " 0 0 0 ; 0 ·' 0 O o O 0 0 o 0 O ,, O C ·' 0 ., 

Alioto's message resonated; "Neighborhood serving businesses ar< 
losses. With behemoth competition like Amazon on one side and e• 
City agencies like MTA on the other, our small businesses are beini 
Francisco." 
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"I was at wits end,'' Dianna Anderson (left) of Avenues Pet Hospital said, "I h< 

Alioto criticizing MTA's tactics recently at a mayor's forum, and it gave me sc 

would listen to our small businesses." Shown above is Ms. Anderson. 

Marcello the owner of Marcello's Restaurant and Sue Hoffman 

MTA and abandoned by their Supervisor, Katy Tang. That's why Diana Anderson, co-ow1 

appealed to mayoral candidate Angela Alioto. On May 8th, Alioto and her team joined a 

30-person Press Conference outside the Pet Hospital. 
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Much discontent was directed at MTA officials, its unelected Board and Director Ed Rei: 

over the past 3 years, the agency "just steamrolled over any objections and refused to i1 

solutions we offered to address safety concerns." She's also skeptical of MT A's "dising\ 

and methodology. She doubts that cutting parking will improve safety, citing the srnall r 

Taraval's 30,000 daily transit passengers - about one collision per 2.5 million riders. As 

questioned why a 24 hour/day parking ban was imposed given the paucity of riders out 

rush hours. Indeed, several nearly-vacant double buses rumbled by during the noon rail: 

Mike O'Rourke, representing the Transportation Alliance of San Francisco, a grass-root~ 
characterized the MTA as an ''autocratic fiefdom, insulated from the public." Albert Cho· 

Parkside Sunset and owner of the Great Wall Hardware store joined past-president Alar 

Insurance office, in decrying the many hours they wasted conveying community cancer 

to the MTA. They say their pleas for parking recuperation and mitigation of "highly impc 

ears. Barry Hermanson, a 40-year Sunset resident and Green Party candidate for US Co 

original presentation to the community was a fully-formed plan. They didn't come to us. 

Economic and service disruptions emerged. Gene, the 20-year owner of Gene's Deli, ke~ 

Now, he's losing customers because nearby parking is scarce after 6 PM. Veterinarian 1 

she's legally obligated to see emergency patients, while MTA prohibits emergency acce 

when guardians of large dogs have to scrounge for parking and haul their ailing pets se 

attention. Customers are complaining and some have canceled visits for lack of parkin 

••• ••• ooo o o o' o o oo oo ooo o o; ;-> o-;' ., "o <· oo •" o •• •' '> "'· • ., o o o O·> ',,, o •~; o o ' ''' 

Just because certain merchants are unhappy ... does not mean I ha 
The SFMTA Board ultimately makes final decisions ... and the Boar 
to my recommendations." (Supervisor Katy Tang responded)" 

These cornplaints are reminiscent of a prior revolt against the MTA, championed in the: 

_ ·'·-- _ .s~~.~ry,i_s_or T!=!_0Y .H~ll- Back~_d,.~t ~~e Coal_itlon_for S<!n_ Franci_~_c_o ~eig .. hb~rho_o~_s, .a m~~ 
-- .:,, .--· ,~~ '·, )-"-''-•'''--, ;• ._,_,., .• ,:•-";··~---..c-,"-{N-\., ' .. ··.-~·-•· "- - , •· .•• ,, ....... 
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Greatwall Hardware Business owner, Albert Chow, President of People of P: 

outlines the inflexible pattern of SFMTA's responsiveness to neighborho6d 

the kind of public interaction I would expect from a Director wi 

almost a half-million dollars a year," Alioto respondec 

support. Advocates for public transit, pedestrians and bicycles won then and remain fo 

resistance, there may be hope. On May 15th, the Board of Supervisors, citing "frustratio 

certain transit decisions based on neighborhood appeals. 

-' -. _,--'. - • - ,,.,-, - -··- ,.;,~' • > ". ':'.. ---~ <----"--- _._: ___ i:-___ ~2;_!:__..! --'"···::~"'~-...:..;:;!:....::~~· 
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Desperate merchants reached out to candidate Alioto, fearing as one merchan1 

have to look at what happened to the businesses along the N Judah Line to see v 

to our Taraval businesses 

-'-,, 

,_ -~--,--_ ---
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James Madison Freedon1 of lnforn1atlon Av;arc 
focus groups after MTA hearil@§idoYdNlc\'in~6'·sftoU1Md'm!ffOR~§JwM1e1i[i!ih\iW~Rl1n< 
merchants who wanted additional study before sacrificing parking for boarding islands 

alterations for a year. Still, several rally participants viewed Tang as unresponsive to thE 

oddity of District 4 merchants appealing to Angela Alioto rather than their own Supervi~ 

Barry Hermanson, a 40-year Sunset resident and Green Party cand 
recalled; "SFMTA's original presentation to the community was a fu 
didn't come to us to help craft a solution." 

While Alioto has pledged to "Fast track infrastructure projects to our most heavily trave 
vowed.to fire Ed Reiskin and audit MTA's billion dollar budget. That's why she was recru 

resonated; "Neighborhood serving businesses are suffering devastating losses. With bi 

Amazon on one side and ever more-demanding City agencies like MTA on the other, ou· 

squeezed out of San Francisco." 

To a Westside Observer query, Supervisor Tang replied that she wasn't invited to the ral 

Mayoral candidate would insert herself and prey on angry merchants given that she di~ 

understand the history of the project." Tang added; "Our office has been working with SI 

A small group of counter-protesters attempt to disrupt the crowd gathered t~ 
• • • I - -. -·,~-·.-~·~-~·--T--·~ ~',-~r-.c~: __ ,. _ -'"-.:.. _:_•_._,,._:;__,_'""" __ ":__ __ -~· ._ ·" --~ ;:- .. 
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James Madison Freedon1 of Jnforn12tlon /'\vvan 

and trade unions largely rejeCir. .;-;i~· ~{idJ, 2~ .~:;-~i ~~i(~r'r 
displacements, and add afford 1al a001~:a 

mayoral candidates, London Br e~e_·:·;o~:~~·~ 
backing from blg technology fl 

The bill's defeat was fOreshad rviSiv~ness wcfs exemplified, _ 

Gathered in opposition was a d, e~co~liftJ~-~- ;f tenant, rieighborhood, bu'sin~!*·~ a-nd 9 
by some 100 multi-ethnic and multi-generational protesters. Many were unmon'6%red se! 

11- 1 

Asian. Their message was that SB 827 would wrest contra! of land use '(ram the; City a1 

residents. Their slogan; "Say go·odbye to your r:eighborhood." They cheered spe3·~~rs fr1 

Supervisors Jane Kim,_Aaro~ _Peskin and Sa~dra Fewe_r as wel~ as former Mayor .&f A~j 
penned a comprehensive cnt1g~e of SB 827 1n the April Westside Observer, spo_k~ \?_rt1 
Neighborhood_s. But their messages Were suppressed. " t, \ · 

Riling them up were YIMBY Action head laura Clark, Bay Area Renl 
and wannabe District 6 Supervisor Sonja Trnuss, and SF Housing A 
and Wiener acolyte, Todd David. Trauss even barged into the larger 
shaking her placard ... A Sheriff's deputy asked Trauss to leave that 
VIMBV's disruption provoked angry verbal exchanges and soon a IE 
out to separate the clashing factions" 

Shouting them down were barely 20 young, white counter-protesters. These self-descril 

their opponents as old, wealthy, self-serving, white NlMBYs. So they were taken aback t 
and out-represented by an unexpectedly diverse crowd, the YIMBYs stooped to drownir 

up were YIMBY Action head Laura Clark, Bay Area Renters' Federation leader and wann 

Trauss, and SF Housing Action Coalition director and Wiener acolyte, Todd David. Trau~ 

group twice yelling and shaking her placard. An offended demonstrator slipped her owr 

A Sheriff's deputy asked Trauss to leave that section of the rally. The YlMBY's disruptio1 

exchanges and soon a team of deputies came out to separate the clashing factions. 

Some of the elderly demonstrators were startled and Intimidated by the YIMBY's bullyin 

Eventually, the larger group began chanting "Shame! Shame!" and "racism" while pointir 

contingent. True to form, Laura Clark resorted to vlctimology, later claiming that her bo1 

"a trap" and were "gaslighted." The Examiner's Joe Fitzgerald-Rodriguez's provided a nu 

its fallout. Tim Redmond of 48 Hills provided additional background including the posit 

coalition opposing SB 827. 
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Who Owns Voting? 
by Dr. Derek Kerr & Dr. Maria Rivero 

May2018 

(~,-:::-] an Franciscans are seeking more autonomy in some of 

~.;:) their public-private p~rtnersh'.ps. A.lo~gside the 
•~ "'-- movement for a Public Bank 1s a similar quest for a 

Public Voting system. There's unease when public votes are 

counted secretly by private corporations. 

The 2000 Bush v. Gore "hanging-chad" debacle drove 

computerized voting. But the new technology begat glitches. In 
2007, California Secretary of State Debra Bowen decertified all 

of the proprietary voting systems tested because of security 

and auditing flaws. That year, the SF Elections Commission 
prioritized voting systems that "provide the maximum level of 

security and transparency." The Department of Elections (DoE) 

then contracted wlth Sequoia Voting Systems. The upfront cost 

was $9.6 milllon. In 2010, Dominion Voting Systems acquired 

Sequoia and became the Do E's vendor. Over 11 years, these 

contracts have totaled $22 million. The current contract will expire in December 2018 s 
has been reviewing its security and transparency goals, nicely summarized at www.SFc 

Current Problems: Dating from the 1990s, the technology running our leased voting syS 

high risk of malfunction - and vulnerability ta hacking, as shown by the breach of votin~ 
conference. Importantly, transparency is lacking since the computer codes operating t~ 

guarded by copyright. Election officials cannot verify their accuracy or security, or even 

machines lack auditing functions and thus, accountability for their transactions. Althow 

by random 1 o/o manual tallies, today's voting machines are "black boxes" when electoral. 
boxes". Compounding these flaws is "vendor lock-in." Only one company can service or 

adjustment requires vendor permission. And, options are limited with just 3 major vend 
tabulations are largely controlled by contractors - not government officials . 
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"" ·'l,~-Ja 1n es i\11adlson Freedom of Information AvJart 
accessible computer codes H'C'E!Fi~€1:JibYftRe:_Q~eri '88Uf~bl h'i~!at:ilieJ \>Jrilike(Prbpri1~ta?§•CA 
free for anyone to inspect, copy and improve. Because many eyes scrutinize the softwc 

corrupt lt unnoticed. Though publicly visible on platforms like GitHub, the code is still c1 

Most super-computers use open source codes, as does the US Department of Defense 
' 

CIA Director R. James Woolsey QJ;!ined in the New York Times; "To Protect Voting, Use ( 

federal R.Q1kY. requires that 20'Ya of all new software be open source to facilitate Inter-a£ 

peer review. Personal computers also use open source software via the Firefox and Chi 

Android operating systems. Open source systems are transparent, secure, flexible and. 

proprietary barriers and fees. 

Plodding Progress: In 2011, the Board of Supervisors' Voting Systems Task Force recor 

voting system. In 2014, the Board unanimously supported such a system, along with a 

Agency Formation Commission. Based on this study, the Elections Commission passe( 

Systems Resolution in 2015, requesting funding to "develop and certify an open source 

That means voters would still get paper ballots, and touch-screen votes generate a vot\ 

recounted by hand. 

The plan is to advance incrementally, developing and certlfying individual components· 
the development would rely upon consultants overseen by the DoE. Meanwhile, ground 

Election Commission's Open Source Voting System Technical Advisory Committee. 

Chaired by Commissioner Chris Jerdonek, PhD, its meetings are open. OSVTAC membE 

contracting for the new voting system. Cost savings are anticipated from using commE 

terminals and optical scanners instead of proprietary hardware. Buying replacement pc 

longer obllgated to a single vendor, the DoE could hire any contractor to maintain and u 

Elections Commission has requested $4 million for 2018-19 to start building it. 

That money awaits the approval of the Mayor's Office and the Committee on lnformatic 

Francisco's 5-Year Information & Communication Technology Plan touts an Open Sourc 

goals, Universal Broadband is a competlng objective. Until a publicly-owned voting syst 

spend $2 million/year on an interim proprietary system that accommodates open soun 

HoWever, the 2016-18 City Budget did provide $300,000 to develop "a new voting syster 

software. The DoE allocated $100,000 for a salaried Project Director. But no satisfactor 

Director John Arntz assumed the role. ln September 2017, the DoE engaged Slalom Col 

"prepare a business case" for an open source voting system. 

Risks and Challenges: Slalom's February 2018 draft report emphasizes the complexity i 
required to build, certify, run and maintain an open source system. One challenge is tha 

_-_ nt· t ing it_b_i_t by __ p\t qr a,dju~t!,r1 t~0 
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through. ominously, contractd~·~nu·nnlfttKEfTe>f€S1prb/eC1'Jlfe~h·ufu·~ ~Pe·r{~"t1J~6e~sy~·te 
mentioned in the Slalom draft is the expected resistance from corporate vendors. Slalo 

recommend more planning. 

State Support: State funding is likely because California's voting system is overdue for; 

model designed here could be freely copied by other counties. Secretary of State Alex f 
voting as "the ultlmate in transparency and accountability." Last year, the Assembly app 

to California's voting machines via a 2018 Voting Modernization Bond Act. But that me; 

However, Governor Brown has proposed spending $134 million from the budget surplu~ 

Elections Commissioner Chris Jerdonek seeks public input and support by speaking to 

reached at chris.jerdonek@gmail.com. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital w 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserv 

April 2018 

Parkmerced: Class Action Laws 
Settlement, Small Chani 

((:/)., n December 13, 2017, the City's Superior Court upproved a settli 

;:_;,.(:_-~1-l;Y of Stewart v. Parkmerced Investors ProRerties. Notably, "The Se 
·· .;___-,, are barred from initiating any publicity of the Settlement ... and w 

any media .. "Accordingly, this report was derived from court records 

In May 2014, Danilo Stewart and his girlfriend moved to Parkmerced. They settled into; 

building at 405 Serrano Drive. The rent was $2,391 /month. Soon, Stewart developed na 
headaches. He attributed these symptoms to moisture and mold caused by building an 

allowed water intrusion and excess humidity. Parkmerced abuts Lake Merced and sits· 

There's fog. Its leases include a "Disclosure of the Presence of Moisture/Mold/Mildew" 

commissioned air quality testing that reportedly showed "excess dampness" and "harrr 

causing contaminants." Parkmerced responded by performing its own air quality testin! 

done, SteWart claimed his symptoms persisted, leading to "severe mental and emotioni 

deemed his apartment "not habitable" and moved out. 
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James iV\acllson Freectorn of lnfonT1ation Av1arc 
$75 late fee. on July 3rd 201 £,~t~Nl:i'r'f16iilt1 i§2:s-S·o,rra/ rg?i'tl,rgattfa~~ ~·Acf Giil{tf~~.· HUt11ri 
total dues owed. For this 1ninor shortfall, he was charged $75. The next month, his rent 

$75 penalty was imposed. Stewart felt that Parkmerced's fiat-rate late fee was unfair. It 

arnount owed or the length of the delay. He charged that the late fee was excessive, ge 
over-compensating Parkmerced for so-called "cost and damage". He alleged that tenar 

of outstanding dues for services and utilities, thereby increasing their ri·sk of fines. 

Further, his lease defined the late fee "as additional rent". The SF Residential Rate Sta bi 

Ordinance doesn't allow late fees to be collected as rent. Although Parkmerced did not 

when it Imposed a late fee, the Law Offices of Eric Lifschitz considered it an "illegal ren· 

Action lawsuit was launched on behalf of 5,186 Parkmerced residents - expressly fort 

asked for "restitution of all excessive late fees." 

Parkmerced moved to dismiss the suit as meritless. It denied that its late fees were rer 

increased the monthly rent due, merely assessed a late fee when rent wasn't timely pai! 

- administrative fee, not added rent. Parkmerced also rejected Stewart's claim for punitiv 

of malice or reckless disregard. However, in October 2016 Judge Ronald Quidachay all< 

since the lease verbiage related the late fee to a rent increase and Stewart's ill-health C< 

An arduous discovery process ensued during which Parkmerced showed that its late fE 

of 8 similar City landlords overseeing 75,000 units. Most charged $100 with a range of 
testified that tailoring late fees wasn1 feasible and a fiat rate was both reasonable and 

Parkmerced's $75 late fee undervalued its administrative costs for handling dellnquenc 

Parkmerced assessed 2,271 late fees (some were waived) totaling $132,825 of which~ 

calculated management costs were double the sum recovered. 

After a year of wrangling, mediations and conferences, a Final Settlement was approve, 

retain its $75 late fee, but agreed to delete the descriptive phrase "as additional rent" fn 

replaced. Only the late fee language can be revised on the new tenancy agreements. A~ 

Parkmerced reduced its separate fee for bounced checks from $50 to $25. While denyi 

agreed to pay $120,000 in legal fees 1 and $30,000 to Danilo Stewart for work loss, envir 

moving costs, plus acting as the Class representative. Parkmerced residents with cone 

their newly-revised leases can contact the Housing Rights Committee of San Franciscd 

(Case#: CGC-16-551696) 

Dr. Derek Kerr is an Investigative Reporter living in San Francisco 

March 2018 
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57% of votes statewide - and 

74% in San Francisco - it 

legal\zed the sale of 

recreational marijuana. 

https://\vestsidcobserver.ccnn/ncws/watchdog.hl1nl/foct20 

Medical marijuana has been 

legal in California since 1996. 
1 
__ 

Prop 64 allows adults aged 21 
and older to possess 1 ounce 1iiflJSi;i:~li£rf_~·J£1·; ~-;.:t""~i 
of marijuana, or 8 grams of e---- . --·~~ - --~~~-- ' 1 
marijuana concentrates, and to cultivate 6 plants at home. To sell marijuana to adults -

need both State licenses and City permits. Detailed State regulations were issued. On 1 

ConsumRtion Ordinance installed the Office of Cannabis with regulations and equity po 
providers. 

In December 2017 the City's Department of Public Health (DPH) reQorted the potential 1 

of legal cannabis, focusing on youth exposure and neighborhood quality of life. The 20-
Assessment on Legalization of Adult Use Cannabis" aims to minimize health risks, you· 

disruptions. Based on these guidelines, the DPH reviewed the scientific literature, cons\ 

surveys to come up with key findings and recommendations. 

Youth Impacts 

a••• o o oo oo ••• o oo• o •• • •• •• '" •• o o • o o o ••••• oo,,' '' -, >•~" o••• •• o o o oo o •• •, 

As of August 2017, there were 38 medical marijuana dispensaries i 
were delivery-only services. Of these, 64% were located in 4 neighl 
Market, Mission, outer Mission and the Financial District." 

Although the new law applies to adults, youth may be affected by the legalization of rec 

among youth has been associated with learning difficulties, lower school performance 

Recent City surveys cited by the DPH show that 17% of our high-schoolers use marijua1 
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Owners of 2505 Noriega have filed in court after the Supervisors upheld an appeal by n 

granted by the Planning Department. 

young people. Back ln 1991, nearly BOo/o of San Francisco voters approved Proposition I 

- 5 years before California legalized it. And in 2006, the Board of Supervisors passed Or 

possession of marijuana the "lowest law enforcement priority". In 2011, the SFPD repor 

misdemeanor marijuana possession - and all were secondary to other charges. Per th1 

Colorado, Washington, Oregon and Alaska has not resulted in increased use among yot 

could change with uncontrolled advertising and marketing. 

Young people are especially susceptible to advertising, a vulnerability long-exploited by 

Industries. Conversely, restricting advertising is a proven strategy for preventing drug u: 

advertising by licensed marijuana businesses, there's a looghole. Advertising agencies 

not directly sell marijuana can freely promote marijuana. That's why local vigilance play 

Transportation Agency stripped marijuana ads from buses in November. The Golden Go 
Transportation District, followed suit. The DPH recommends regulating the content anc 

does with tobacco and alcohol. 

Medical Impacts 
Even before the legalization of recreational cannabis, "cannabis-related" hospitalization 

However, from 2011-2015 City hospitalizations and ER visits directly caused by cannab 

annually. In comparison, alcohol-driven hospital visits were around BO times higher. ThE 

cases involved young people under 24 years of age. Interestingly, hospital visits attribu· 

higher for African-Americans than for the overall population. 

A particular concern is poisoning by edible forms of marijuana llke cookies, chocolates 

cannabis poisonings between 2006-201 O and 2011-2015, ER visits increased from 133 
indicating more serious impairments, rose from 21 to 52. These are small numbers as 1 

unlike other drugs, marijuana has never been fatal. 

Not mentioned in the DPH report is the August 2016 incident at a Quinceaniera celebra· 
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counseling services in 201 s. fR€ie'S~n·afrRen'ti·oh~b1"lll~ 5Lfb11tr:istlb~t;,irl ... i11e(26~~~CY11af11C 
compared to those of past decades. That raises the risk of intoxication for those who~ 

Drugged driving isn't mentioned. That may be because research has not yet proven tha1 

increases crash risk. Nevertheless, marijuana can impair critical driving skills. While tra 
marijuana became legal, recreational marijuana-linked crashes and fatalities have risen 

Washington. 

Also missing is a Kaiser Permanente study of 35,000 pregnant women. In 2016, 6.6°/o tE 

rising to 19% among those between 18 and 24 years old. Fetal development may be aff 

study of 5,588 women showed a 5-fold rise of pre-term births among those who contin 

pregnancy. Most medical marijuana dispensary physicians discourage marijuana durin· 

history of addiction or mental illness. And because marijuana harbors bacteria and fun• 
immune systems are advised against smoking it. Recreational purveyors won't be soc< 

public education campaign targeting pregnant women, youth, parents and seniors. For 

Community Impacts 

Like retail outlets for alcohol and tobacco, marijuana dispensaries gravitate toward low 

communities of color. As of August 2017, there were 38 medical marijuana dispensariE 
delivery-only services. Of these, 64o/o were located in 4 neighborhoods: South of Market 

Financial District. Commercial zoning laws and community participation in the approva 

distribution. The Westside's sole approved retailer is Barbary Coast Collective due too~ 

Check WeedMaps.com for dispensary locations. 

Because alcohol and tobacco outlets are associated with increased youth exposure as· 

traffic, vehicle accidents, and crime, the DPH ls concerned about the impact of marijuar 
sparse, most community complaints mention malodorous marijuana smoke. The risk c 

cannabis retailers are cash-only enterprises with lots of it at hand. Cannabis tourism rn· 

retailers may be adversely affected. Importantly, the DPH reports that; " ... none of the st< 

organizations serving communities of color, or living in these communities, believed ca 

benefit communities of color, and instead would have a negative impact ... ". While the DI 
outlets in neighborhoods burdened by drug abuse, it doesn't address the opposition fro. 

community where cannabis use is very low. 

The DPH promotes a "measured approach" that mitigates disparities - and fears - by uq 

especially in lower-income, higher-crime neighborhoods. Health and safety inspections 

the Office of Cannabis, Fire Department and Department of Building Inspections, ComP 

311. 
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- :_ 1 of soldiers in do1nestic policing. Soldiers are 
'. -~~J trained to kill and destroy while cops serve to 

keep the peace. This distinction has faded with the 

militarization of police ln the War on Drugs and the 

War on Terror. A warrior mindset has seeped into 

routine policing as reported by criminologist Peter 

Kraska. the ACLU in War Comes Home, and journalist 
Radley Ba\ko's Rise of the Warrior Cop. Back in 1998, t - .;~;~_, ..... 

the Bay Guardian covered an SFPD drug raid in War on ~-'i=J{ii.:·: ___ .:. 
Crime, warning that when cops become soldiers, the community becomes the enemy. -

Militarized policing started in the late 1960s when the LAPD introduced SWAT (Special 

to quell riots and violent emergencies. Initially driven by fears of civil unrest and armed 

acceptance. For politicians, SWAT teams confirmed tough-on-crime credentials. For co 

But money drove mission creep because SWAT teams generated revenues. lncentivize< 

gear for the War on Drugs as well as civil asset-forfeiture laws, police forces eventually 

deplciyments to drug searches and non-violent crimes, versus 7°1o for emergencies like• 

situations. 

0 •• ~ ' ••• ~ 0 0 , " •• ' , 0 ' ' ' 0 " ~ • " ' ., ' ' ,; " ., , • '• 0 ' •, , ' 0 _, 0 " , ~ • -' ' ' • " • , " 0 • c • " ••• ' 0 

~J President Obama issued an Executive Order limiting and banning ti 
fteld staples like tracked armored vehicles, large-caliber weapons, 
bayonets and grenade-launchers." 

Then came massive donations of excess military equipment from the Department of D· 

National Defense Authorization Act (NOAA). The 1989 NOAA authorized the transfer of 

and State agencies engaged in the War on Drugs. The 1996 NOAA created the "1033 Pr 

deliveries to local law enforcement for counter-terrorism as well as counter-narcotics p 

gear must be returned if not used within a year, its deployment is abetted. Loosely over 

Emergency Services, the 1033 Program is administered by the Defense Logistics Agen( 

Office whose motto is "From Warflghter to Crimeflghter". September 11, 2001 spawned 

Department of Homeland Security (OHS), and the ongoing national State of Emergency 

departments with grants to address terrorism and disasters - emphasizing national se 

And, given the rarity of terrorism and disasters, OHS offerings trickled into everyday pol 

The deployment of war equipment to quell civll uprisings raised constitutional concern: 

~ests and_rjqt ·n ,f, gqson, Misso_uri. .Tr<~.nsparenc_y and acco_u_ntaQ.ili_ 
- ·-- -,. . ---"-'' -- .. , .. ,_., --· -·- '• -·- -----
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so far, the SFPD has been jud~616ltSIJfi(rfrJ'~GVitlQ-"bas"¥0ffiRTHffcif!~1.'=-1ffnllk1e1 6t!1t:lr<B1ay1.~fea 
hasn't sought combat equipment. DOD records show that between April 2008 and May 
surplus items valued at $447,535. This represents the "acquisition cost" to the DOD ratl 

surplus equipment, 36% of which is unused. The SFPD gets the gear for free, but pays~ 
costs. The big-ticket items were mobile remote-controlled robots, namely an MK3MODI 

Packbot 510s valued at $77,000 each. These machines can probe hazardous sites and 

remaining items were vision-enhancing devices like thermal and reflex sights, night visi 

illuminators for surveillance and reconnaissance. 

So the SFPD upgraded its arsenal with cost savings. Of course, with a budget of $583 r 

weaponry from private vendors. Or, it can accept gear transferred from other 1033 Pro~ 

Francisco's FBI office, its Joint Terrorism Task Force partner. The SFPD acknowledged 

Neutralization robots" from "another law enforcement agency" in this way. 

Incidentally, the City's FBI office is the major local recipient of DOD military surplus_ Rec 

least 1,850 items valued at over $10.9 million since 1996. Major acquisitions include 1 · 

valued at $6.7 million, 2 "Reconnaissance Camera Systems" valued at $167,000 and 3 i 

$195,000. Much of the equipment is quotidian; computers, cameras, flashlights, rescue 
coffee maker" and "exercise bicycles"_ The military-grade equipment falls into 3 catego 

Disposal like robots, Hazardous Material Disposal including gas detectors, electric blov 

machines, and Reconnaissance gear including night-vision goggles, gun sights, rifle sci 

and thermal signals. None of it is offensive combat gear. 

Very little of the DOD surplus acquired by the SFPD is reported publicly. A search of the 

Program" revealed just 2 entries; 3 mobile decontamination trailers requested in 2002 a 

reports indicated that 2 helicopters were acquired in 1998. None of the military items ic 

in Police Commission meeting minutes. Neither are goods transferred from other 1033 

obscure is the impact on SFPD practices of $28.8 million in grants received from 2003 · 

million annually) from the Department of Homeland Security. Although these grants do 

provide military-style equipment and training. Military paradigms legitimize violence an· 

The SFPD's use of force showed "significant deficiencies" per the Justice Department's 

Initiative". Its lack of transparency was the theme of the 2015 Civil Grand Jury report "lr 

Now that weapons of war are again readily obtainable - without Pentagon reporting re1 

transparency about its acquisitions is indicated. The frequency and purpose of SWAT t1 

publicly reported. And, the Police Commission should re-examine the impact of federal 

and community engagement. The threatened cuts of law enforcement grants to sanctu 

lining; shifting resources away from militarization and toward community policing and I 
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Johnson acknowledged a conflict. She resolved it by contortion, vo 
policy decisions at SPUR while continuing to vote on housing polic: 
Commissioner. Although she had told Mayor Lee she wanted to res 
SPUR:' 

At the March 27 Ethics meeting, clean-government advocates with "Friends of Ethics" n 

Quentin Kopp of a potential conflict of interest. It involved Planning Commissioner Chri 

been dubbed Director of SPUR's San Francisco chapter following a term on SPUR's Boa 

Area Planning and Urban Research Association) is a member-funded "non-partisan" thi1 

advocacy. Its income for 2016-17 was $7.1 million, of which 34o/c came from some 6,0( 

corporations, developers, realtors, as well as trade unions and public institutions. Anotr 

mostly private. Noted for past "urban renewal" fiascos, SPUR promotes development th 

contributors, among others. Kopp included Johnson's alleged conflict among 10 sugge 

Ethics' work on an Anti-Corruption Ordinance- and future meeting agendas. 

P1849 
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Commission President Peter Keane 

was Johnson SPUR's salaried advocate and fu 

reversed her vote to tighten Airbnb regulations 

Mayor's Office. 

So Ethics had to decide: address an 

imminent vote potentially tainted by a conflict of interests, or wait until the 
matter could be agendized. By then, Planning would have voted. The Brown 

Act and the Sunshine Ordinance require that government meeting agendas be 

publicly posted 72 hours beforehand to allow public participation. But both 

allow action on non-agendized items if all cornmissioners present deem 

immediate action necessary to avoid "serious injury to the public interest" and 

if the need for action arose after the agenda was posted. Commissioner Kopp 

moved to take action on Johnson's perceived conflict. Deputy City attorney 
(DCA) Andrew Shen, who is asSigned to the Ethics Commission, cautioned 
against further discussion as the matter wasn't on the agenda, as did Ethics C< 

Director LeeAnn Pelham. Ethics Chair Peter Keane ruled that the matter was 

urgent, important and in order. A required roll-call vote on this decision wasn't taken but 
in agreement. 

What ensued-was a one-hour open discussion punctuated by DCA Shen's defensive ref! 

potential conflict. Larry Bush shared e-mails showing that the Mayor's staff had called 1 

and Johnson about, "having to recuse herself from items at the Planning Commission .. : 

Administration." This Shen did not disclose. Nor would he share that he told Johnson sl 

"attorney-client privilege." He wouldn't reveal if his advice was written or verbal. He ever' 

points of law related to conflicts of interest. Not once did he mention that the Brown A( 
non-agendized matters. Awkwardly, Shen was caught in his own conflict of interests - s 

differing views. Worse, Ethics was rejecting the "no-conflict" pass he had granted to Joi 

discussion, and suggested that one Commissioner send a personal letter to Johnson. I_ 

comments, Ethics voted 4-0 to send a letter advising Planning Commissioner Johnson 

Incompatible" and to recuse herself from acting on "housing or other development proj1 

•• •~n•~• O&•• •o• o o o •••• 00000• o • o •• • o • • •• o •• "" o o •• • o > c•o o • o ooo o o o •-••' 

Ethics made a good-faith effort to fulfill its duty and met the imme1 
allowed by the Brown Act. YIMBYs desiring fairness can report to E 
conflicts enveloping other Planning Commissioners. And Ethics sh 
conflict-bound City attorney with independent counsel." 
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criminal prosecution - as did the YlMBY complaint against the Ethics Commissioners. 

Johnson acknowledged a conflict. She resolved it by contortion, vowing to avoid housir 

while continuing to vote on housing policy matters as a Planning Commissioner. Althol 

wanted to resign once hired by SPUR, Lee asked her ta stay until he appointed another, 
another 7 months. She walked out during public comments that overwhelrningly favore 

However, she did support one amendment that favored low-income residents. Tension~ 

Jane Kim arrived to announce that the dueling proposals would be melded into a "cons 

YIMBY grievance against Ethics proceeded. 

On 9/6/17, before the full Sunshine Task Force, Ms. Clark and a handful ofYIMBY supp 

Commissioners Keane and Kopp and their allies. lntrigulngly, the YIMBYs' fervor for sur 

long-committed sunshine advocates like Bruce Brugmann, Rick Knee and Bob Planthol1 

Commission. The all-white YIMBYs injected victimology and identity politics into their n 
discriminatory to challenge Johnson because other Planning Commissioners harbor cc 

lamented that "I had my character thrown under the bus." Previously, she had argued it 1 

(Johnson) through the mud." She labeled Ethics "a rogue agency ... f1lled with politically-r 

the hammer an whoever they deem a political opponent." Housing Action Coalition CEC 
about old white men not liking Christine Johnson." Dismissing conflict of interest cone\ 

for "a political witch-hunt for a minority female woman," "a political vendetta", "selective 

and "new levels of hypocrisy." They also maintained that the Ethics letter didn't address 

had received tips about Johnson's conflict weeks before and she had previously voted i 

almost worked. A motion to find that Ethics had violated the Sunshine Ordinance died c 

the 6-vote threshold needed to pass. Commissioner Johnson wasn't there to back hers 

Shen. 

In sum, Ethics made a good-faith effort to fulfill its duty and met the imrnediacy exemp· 

YIMBYs desiring fairness can report to Ethics the alleged confiicts enveloping other Pia 

Ethics should replace its conflict-bound City attorney with independent counsel. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna HondCJ Hospital whi 
wrongdoing. Both are local San Francisco residents. Contact Derek. 

,r~~:;:i r( 
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Safe Injection Sites: Neither Drug Dens r 
Recovery 
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James fVlacllson Freedom of Information Av;an 

people died of drug overdoses, about 100 by injection, 

primarily heroin and methamphetamine, mostly 

hidden in Tenderloin and South of Market hotels. 

Drugs drive thousands of ambulance runs and 
hospital vislts for infections, overdoses, falls and 

other complications yearly, not to mention crimes and 

arrests. 

- .- ., 
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The Bill passed the Assembly 41 to 33 and awaits a Senate vote. 0 
Police Chiefs Association, District Attorneys Association, Sheriffs' 
Narcotic Officers' Association ... Nonetheless, SISs offer hope ami< 
fentanyl-spiked overdoses despite the fierce policing and mass inc 
on Drugs." 

Drug addiction is viewed by experts as an illness - substance use disorder. To tackle its· 

Board of Supervisors passed Resolution 123-17 in April. It urged the DPH to convene a· 

Services Task Force to assess setting up sites where people can legally inject their owr 
under medical supervision, and connect with health, drug treatment and soci_al service~ 

meetings, the Task Force will send recommendations to the Mayor. In June 2016, Maye 

injection site at a homeless Navigation Center, declaring his "vigorous disagreement o\I 

heroin and meth, to literally destroy their bodies and their minds, in a City-funded shelt~ 

Director Barbara Garcia endorsed injection facilities in December. 

Safe Injection Sites (SIS) originated in Switzerland in 1983 then spread to 100 cities in· 

Canada, Denmark, Germany, and Spain. Two of these incorporated scientific evaluation 
Sugervised Injecting Centre set up in Sydney Australia in 2001, and the lnsite program· i: 

established in 2003. Their research shows that SlSs attract hard-to-reach, high-risk drut 

and long-time addicts, many with no prior drug treatment experience. SISs promote sat 

likely reduce overdose deaths and infections as well as public injecting and litter. They: 

treatment, social and health services without increasing local drug use, trafficking or c~ 
Supreme Court of Canada blocked government efforts to shut down lnslte in 2011. De~ 

US, health officials ln Seattle have authorized 2 SISs and San Francisco aims to follow. 

10/14/2020. 12:00 PM 
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Jan1es iVlaciisoi1 Freedorn of lnfonT1atio11 A\van 
Cri1ics who ana lvzel1 1he d a1a';ll6h~ \he'tfdli'ifa'rl8'·'i'ilhd81NM<s'iss'c~·~11~~9<,ifihefl 1eH 
just 31 % of Vancouver public injectors said they would use SISs because registration is 

injections nor drug sharing are allowed. Acceptability dropped to 20°/o with police prese 
SISs, do so for less than 20'1a of their injections on average. Canada's Expert Advisory C 

lnsite's thousands of visits represented barely So/o of overall community injections. Sucl 

potential and sometimes elusive benefits. The Sydney SIS could not demonstrate reduc 

infections, hepatitis or HIV. Although Vancouver's lnsite reported improve1nents in all, ti 

saw no direct evidence. While neither program reported overdose deaths in-house, thei1 

those reported in the com1nunity. Apparently, sorne SIS clients feel emboldened to expt 

drug cocktails while safely supervised. 

SIS referrals to drug treatment programs are widely touted, but only 14% of Sydney clie1 

majority did not attend until recently, with added funding and follow-up. In Vancouver, jL 

drug treatment. ln San Francisco, merely 14% of drug users surveyed wanted drug trea1 

wanted food arid showers. Denial of disability is a sympto1n of addiction, but same taxi 

returns on investments. However, both the Vancouver and Sydney programs reported c 

businesses and residents complained about loitering and drug dealing. While no increa 

detected, cops had boosted patrols around both SISs - a hidden cost. 

SIS critics complain that "partisan sympathizers" cherry-pick data to highlight successE 

diversity of DPH's Task Force was revealed when its members were ruffled into admitti1 

SISs. On 8/10/17 the Task Force proffered 6 City SISs rather than a pilot program. Othe 

eg!!l1Y." whereby every City District would do its fair share. Unaddressed are drug users' 
acceptability barriers and the allure of the street scene. Ideological opponents fear tha1 

behaviors. They call for more robust treatment programs as well as pre-arrest diversior 

mandate treatment. 

The SIS movement is stymied by federal and state Controlled Substance Laws that prol 

drugs and paraphernalia. Even building owners and operators may be held liable. This~ 

Sessions directed federal prosecutors to seek "the most serious, readily provable" pena 

work-around is California Assembly Bill 186 for a "Safe Drug Consumption Program." It 

approved injection sites. The Bill passed the Assembly 41to33 and awaits a Senate vc 

Police Chiefs Association, District Attorneys Association, Sheriffs' Association and Nar. 

They worry about conflicts with federal laws, congregating drug-related criminality, and 

dens" that don't require treat1nent. Nonetheless, SISs offer hope amidst an Opioid Crisi~ 

overdoses despite the fierce policing and mass incarceration of the War on Drugs. 

Like other municipal efforts to combat national plagues, S\Ss may relieve a fraction of 1 

.. "it,oy~cal,l .. S,il},C'.~. '!1t:>df7_St re_sult.s f1.t the. H?rm R_edlJct_ion paradigm, the Task Force will s 
· '-" - · '' .-," ' --- ·-' ·; '·•'"· '., ·. '~<:;,_"""·''-:·'"" ," ·.,..~.,,,,.;-·,-·. -.-.;,_,~·,p; ;; .. ..,,.~· -., ' •. · ~"·"c-;;--hi:- "•"'-''';., 
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September 2017 
·· · · ·,,, · · · 'FBl'Pli'c:ib'e' Plunged DPH' into Turmoil' 
by Dr. Derek Kerr & Dr. Maria Rivero 
l-~-;----:J he March 2017 Westside Observer reported on the FB\ probe of a pay-to-works 

_! \ Department of Public Health (DPH). Payments had allegedly been solicited in e 
-·-~-1 questions, promotions and shift assignments. Since then, new sources and do< 

investigation dug longer and deeper than initially reported, miring the DPH in recrimina1 

Starting in 2011, DPH janitors were questioned by the FBI 

and City Attorneys about payments for jobs and the hiring 

of janitors with unverified qualifications from China. Who 

notified the FBI is unclear. According to confidential DPH 

sources, a janitor who reportedly paid $5,000 for a 

position that didn't materialize demanded a refund then 

complained after receiving just $4,000. Another janitor 

allegedly paid $10,000 for a position. No legal action 

ensued as the victims declined to testify. However, the 

DPH introduced multiple-choice exams for hiring janitors. 

The FBI kept watching for potential human trafficking. 

Hostile Work Environment: In 2011.12, the 

DPH launched 3 investigations targeting its General Services manager, Willie Crawford, 

other facility services. Several of his subordinates had complained about his "harassm~ 
reduced responsibilities. Crawford, a 35-year DPH employee who is African American f! 

employees had issued "false allegations" resulting in a "hostile work environment" that 

His 2011 complaint to the DPH Equal Employment Opportunity office was rebuffed. So, 

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH), adding retaliation to hi 

o o o oo • • oo • •• •~ •o oo ·~~ o oo • oo • • • • o •• • o 'oo • o • ., ''" o o ·~ o o "" • oe • • oo"," ·~• 

Adding to the impression that dirt was being hidden was a series ol 
and thefts from DPH executive offices at 101 Grove Street. The DP 
activating or installing security cameras. Key documents, includin~ 
vanished." 

To calm tensions, Crawford was assigned new supervisors. One was Ron Weigelt, hi rec 

Resources chief in M_ay 2013. Crawford says his mistreatment continued-including the 
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for threatening behavior. 

Investigative Zeal: Remarkably, the Whistleblower Program and the City Attorney pounc 

witnesses from August to December 2015. Crawford's deputy and "right hand woman", 

and sought reassignment. In October 2015, Crawford was placed on Administrative Le< 

His replacement, a Payroll manager with no janitorial experience, was David Palma. Pal 

Amanda He as his deputy. That move was reportedly opposed by DPH Director Barbara 

staff who longed for ch<inge. But Weigelt, who protected informants, supported it and~ 

purged half a dozen employees and supervisors, including witnesses to ongoing intrigu 

outcries over retaliation and discrimination. 

The City's investigation stated that Crawford had "accepted money from a subordinate" 

"threatened bodily harm". Labeled an "administrative retaliation ploy" by Crawford, it res 

notice o_n 12/18/15. Crawford had been taken aback by a grilling on his personal ftnanc 
and even his Chinese-American wife's business. Moreover, he had been ordered to und( 

attorney present, and to attend a disciplinary hearing while on Medical Leave - a breacl 

City Attorney was investigating Crawford - while defending the DPH against Crawford's 

attorney protested "a biased investigation designed to terminate hirn" and successfully 

Attorney from the case. That's why Louise Renne's Public Law Group began defending 1 

thereby collecting $187, 158. 

FBI Behind the Scene: The City's investigation wasn't autonomous. By November 2015, 

janitors it wanted to interview. FBI agents also interviewed DPH Human Resources Dire 

Director Micki Callahan. The DPH scrambled to review complaints janitors had filed sin, 

Weigelt crafted a memo encouraging janitors to cooperate with the FBI and promising i, 

information. This memo sparked contention between Weigelt and cagier City Attorneys 
off managers suspected in the pay-to-work scheme. The FBI asked to search Crawford' 

demanded a warrant. The FBJ argued that it simply needed DPH's permission since the· 

City Attorneys held FBI agents at arm's length. The FBI did not force the issue, but agen 

lack of cooperation. 

Instead of an FBI search, the DPH's Weigelt directed a search of Crawford's office and c 

Attorney's investigation reportedly bypassed the As Needed janitors who were more lik1 

pressures. Adding to the impression that dirt was being hidden, was a series of break-ii 

DPH executive offices at 101 Grove Street. The DPH reportedly stalled on activating or i 

documents, including promissory notes allegedly showing that janitors had signed ove1 

vanished. Months of Crawford's emails also disappeared. 
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Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh• 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: watchdog_s.@westsideobserve1 

Laguna Honda to Offer Medical Aid-I 
by Dr. Derek Kerr & Dr. Maria Rivero 
/'~~:\ n May 9, 2017, Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH) pivoted to offering terminally ill 
(,_ \ j···j patients the option of taking a lethal drug cocktail on its premises. This Medic< 
·· : .. .",,./ Aid-In-Dying (MAID) policy is based on the June 2016 Callfornia End of Life 

Option Act and a related Department of Public Health (DPH) policy approved this 

February. Since the California Act prohibits MAID in a "public place" - and public 

hospitals are public places - it was assumed that patients would self-administer the prE 

patients without homes or caregivers, the DPH initially planned to "facilitate placement 

setting." But there are few community settings where MAID can be safely conducted - ~ 

the right to choose the timing, place and manner of their own deaths, LHH devised an c 

need skilled nursing services, patients may be admitted to LHH for MAID. 

•~ ;o~~D o o~oon • • '" 'Q oo • o•" oo • • D "" "" • _, o •' '~ o; n '· ·> n > n n' o -''·' •-" .,~ o" o '"on" n 

Patients must personally request MAID from their physician. No o" 
behalf. They must understand and communicate the nature and co1 
The physician assesses the patient's eligibility and offers alternate 
Care, palliative sedation, ending life-prolonging treatment, or volur 
drink:' 

Since Oregon's 1997 Death with Dignity Act, Washington, Montana, Vermont, California, 
similar laws. Oregon data shows that 1,749 terrninally-ill patients were prescribed letha 

deaths. In other words, one-third decided not to use the drugs. Last year, just 0.37% of< 

MAID. Overwhelmingly, they were over 65, white, college-educated cancer patients with 

So/o took MAID in long-term care facilities like LHH. The prime reasons for seeking aid-ir 

control, unbearable quality of life, and loss of dignity. In 19 years, no complaints of MAI 

The MAID advocacy group Compassion and Choices describes the experience in a vlde 

To qualify for MAID, patients must be California residents, at least 18 years old, and ten 

months to live. They must have the capacity to make informed medical decisions - an< 

drug. Because patients in Skilled Nursing Facilities are vulnerable to coercion and desp 

that MAID requests are voluntary and rational. Patients must personally request MAID 1 

c;;:~ _ ~heicb_ half:._T. e .m t d,a 
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Psychologist. The review takes 3 weeks at minimum, and likely twice as long. In Oregor 

decision can be rescinded at any time. 

Days after the written attestation. a prescription is 1nade out for 10 grams (100 capsulE 

along with pills to prevent vomiting. The medications are provided 48 hours before the 
must self-administer the drugs and is reminded that it's OK not to take them_ To mask t 

emptied into half a cup of juice or apple sauce then swallowed within 2 minutes. In Ore 
out after 5 minutes but a few stayed awake for an hour. Most died within an hour, thou~ 

days. The cocktail can be modified to speed up the effect. A physician fills out the deat 

underlying termi_nal illness as the cause of death_ By law, MAID is not suicide and does 

All MAID prescriptions and related deaths are reviewed by the State Departrnent of Jus 

Health (CDPH), respectively. Annually, the CDPH will publicly report the number of pres1 

demographic data, keeping patient identities confidential. 

MAID is controversial and emotive. Cathol\c doctrine opposes it, as does the Hippocrat 
Medical Association though the California Medical Association takes a "neutral" stancE 

believe that MAID ref1ects a fear of disability, thereby devaluing the lives of disabled pe1 

quality of life may be due to poor quality of care. Traditionally, Hospice care neither pro 

process. Accordingly, the Act allows health care providers and hospitals to opt out. Cat 

and St. Francis prohibit MAID. So does the VA hospital system. The Vitas Hospice chai1 

not prescribe MAID. 

Commendably, LHH conducted a staff survey before introducing its MAID policy. Only~ 

physicians agreed to participate. Support seems spotty among nurses, most of whom; 

did not disclose how many staff refused to participate. Or how many declined to be sur 

response rate. LHH acknowledged "challenges that needed to be addressed for conscii 

explanation. Staff who oppose MAIO on ethical, cultural or religious grounds are free to 
be offered Monday through Friday during the daytime when enough supportive staff ari 

afforded a private room on the Palliative Care Service which is accustomed to caring fc 

LHH patients, who are largely poor and non-white, were not surveyed. Neither were DP~ 

the demand for MAID. A UC Berkeley ROii showed that 76% of California voters support 

African-Americans. No one has polled terminally ill patients. Offering MAID without pu~ 

be a challenge. 

Apart from those who request MAIO, who benefits? The DPH Flow Project rushes non-~ 

to relieve crowding and cut costs. In October 2012, DPH Director Barbara Garcia listed' 

priority. In a May 2014 "Patient Flow" presentation, LHH reaffirmed its commitment to "1 
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? 1? A Public Bank for San Francisc 
! l 

· ·' by'Dr. Derek Kerr and Dr. Maria Rivero 
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James iVlaflisoi1 Freecioi11 of \11fc1r11·1at!o11 A\''lari: 
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The Non-Partisan League gained control of the Governor's office, rnajority control of the 

and one-third of the seats in the Senate in 1918. Their platform included state ownershi 

and credit agencies. In 1919, the state legislature established Bank of North Dakota (Bf\ 

Mill and Elevator Association. BND opened July 28, 1919 with $2 rnillion of capital. 

.·.;··''············· .. ·························-

c.~ .·"J /.7\, ~:·~1 here does money come frorn? It's created frorn nothing - by banks. Becaus1 

'\::~·';\;· -
1
/ banks can lend $10 for every. dollar they hold. By charging int.erest on th_is f 

~~· ··~ much more than they lend. Since loans are marked as deposits, they can al 

governments collect taxes and deposit thern in big banks. By serving as interrnediaries 

this money or lending it. Instead of fostering cornmunity developrnent, most bank loan~ 

institutions, insurance and real estate companies. hedge funds and corporate raiders. ( 

urban development grants have locked cities into the private banking system. Averse tc 

·budgets, cities obtain private credit via municipal bonds or public-private deals that re\<\ 

the costs of public projects. Private banks monopolize a wealth-transfer mechanism th 

shareholders at taxpayer expense. 
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WESTSIDE,-. 
James Madison Freedom of lnforn1atlon A1•1an 
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auctions. These and a host of other violations yielded billions in pilfered profits despite 

settlements. 

""" o o" o ooa; 0000 o~a oo o •~' o ooo~~o o •· o<>• o oo o o o oo o o o o """"" o oo "" ,, ", ,,., ,, ', 

Supervisor Sandra Lee Fewer directed the Budget Analyst to re-as• 
city-owned bank. Treasurer Cisneros will also have an opportunity 
With the ongoing risks and predations of private banks, threats of 1 
cities, and revenue losses from denying bank services to the cannci 
banking option is needed." 

One antidote for these abuses is to establish public banks. Their purpose is public intet 
public utilities under public oversight, they take tax receipts deposited by governments. 

projects and local businesses and return profits to General Funds. Run by salaried civil 

commissions for boosting loans or pursulng speculation. This alternate paradigm war~ 
(BND), the nation's only public bank. Founded in 1919 to support farmers who couldn't. 
banks, it now fln_ances infrastructure projects, and provides low-interest loans for stude 

services. BND partners with local banks that lend to homeowners and small businesse: 

pumped some $300 million back into State coffers - one reason North Dakota was uni 

ftnancia! crisis. In 2015, the BND's Infrastructure Loan Fund offered 30-year loans - at 2 

banks are publicly-owned. Among US cities considering public banks are Oakland, Sant 

San Francisco already has a temllifile for public banking. In 2009, then-Supervisor Jahr 

Sociologist Karl Beitel, who went on to publish a monograQh; "Municipal Banking: An 0 1 

public bank could recapture $68 million annually by purchasing the City's short-term bo 

foreclosures and housing costs that displaced City residents, as well as the Occupy We 

movements, in 2011 Avalos asked the City's Budget and Legislative Analyst to researcr 

Rose's September 2011 report identified a major barrier: State law. Government Codes_ 

shall not, in any manner, give or loan its credit to or in aid of any person or corporation." 

Attorney QRinion concluded that as a charter city, San Francisco could establish its owr 
create public banks (AB750 in 2011 and AB2500 in 2012) were vetoed or buried after o 

Bankers Association, and the State Treasurer. 
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Cisneros' current Investment Policy keeps "social responsibility" subordinate to securit: 

liquidity, and returns. However, his "social responsibility screen" steers City investrnent~ 

from firearms producers, major polluters, and predatory lenders. A foe of predatory bar 

Cisneros uses public bank-like tools to boost community financing. In 2008 he advancE 

Bank On SF program that partners with credit unions and "responsible banks" to provid 

income residents with low-fee accounts. Last year he suspended Wells Fargo from the 

sham accounts nationwide. His Kindergarten to College program used City and philantl 

savings accounts for over 18,000 kids. This March, he was pushed by the Board of Sup 

that sponsor the Dakota Access Pipeline. Why not open a public bank? 

E-mails obtained from the City Treasurer's Office since 2011 reveal wariness, skepticisr 

public banking - and its proponents. Inquiries from Avalos and associates were cautiou 

Legal Section. Correspondence between City and regional treasury officials expressed -

1. Conflicts of lnterest: Can bank governance be insulated from politics? Will politic 

loans, or how bad debts are collected? 

2. Complexity & Cost: Can the City provide the necessary expertise and start-up cap 

3. Risk-Management: Would prioritizing economic development loosen loan stand a 

risk? 

The Public Banking Institute has answers to these questions. And on 4/11 /17 Supervis 

the Budget Analyst to re-assess the feasibility of a city-owned bank. Treasurer Cisnero~ 

to re-assess his stance. With the ongoing risks and predations of private ba_nks, threats 

cities, and revenue losses from denying bank services to the cannabis industry, a publlc 

Dr. Derek Kerr and Dr. Maria Rivero and were senior physi 

~~y~~A1!l!iyofi:fi;ix1 
a~93s@westsideobserver.com 

leblower retaliation trial rendered a $2 rnillion judgment 

_ er -~ f Trial eputy, Joanne Hoeper, claimed she was fired for expos 
- - ' " 1 

involving the Clty Attorney's Claims Bureau. Herrera ~~f~'Ollf had long-planned to 

~fJ~r,'..\, \'.'/~~~:;, gf, 1,e,?tir,npJlY,,~ ~YP.erlPI ,c.oourcj~r,y, yq9f11Qi~u> y ,spyr~e.d,~errnriJ';;,,o,at~ 11 
nothing to do with my decision to replace her." 

Prompted by an FBl tip about fraudulent claims, Hoeper found that plumbing contracto 

checking City records to locate City trees. They drove around to video sewer traps with1 

•... -.,Th nthe ,lID.gckE1d on.doors,:warn_ing. Qf tre~~ro.ot prob\ems_ne~cjing_irr:imed(at~. atte_nti 1 

'·- . .-~ . ~':~0- _·~.~:.··:.;~~~-"---~~---~~-'.~;:.·.'-{'.!:~~'.~-~~~~~~: 
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... Hoeper had offered to sellle for $1,895,000 while i: :· . ' 
Herrera countered with $355,000. Now, taxpayers face i'{~~~'. 
bills surpassing $3 million for Herrera's attorneys, plus '" «:'lt;;· 
$2 million for Jo Hoeper and around $2.5 million for her °'. 
attorneys." 

Sewer and tree-related claims were soaring. In 2002, 202 claims totaled $1.1 million. B~ 

$4.6 million. The 10-year total was $24 million, including legitimate types of sewer and 

didn't pay for sewers infiltrated by city-owned trees because roots rarely break sewers. 

And most can be cleared by root cutting for a few hundred dollars rather than spending 

replace entire lines. That's why Oakland, with a comparable number of city trees, paid$ 
sewers. Meanwhlle, one SF contractor collected $600,000 over 2 years solely from City 

did replace sewers, it paid SOo/o to account for depreciation. SF paid full freight for bran1 

that dubious payouts had cost taxpayers $10 million. 

Most of the claims were for private sewer lines that run from homes to the sidewalk. B; 

sewers, the City was providing capital improvements for property owners and big payd< 

contractors. According to the Government Claims Act, cities are only liable for public sE 

And City codes require the Department of Public Works (DPW) to fix street sewers thro1 

However, the Claims Bureau paid 

for some street sewer jobs. These irregularities were tolerated as "a conspiracy of expE 

expedite repairs. Hoeper saw false claims and suspected corruption. 
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Herrera supported Hoeper's investigation - until her findings triggered blow-back. Mattr 

connected Herrera ally who heads the Claims Bureau, was rattled. He told Hoeper; "Yoe 

be sorry." Also upset were PUC Manager Ed Harrington and DPW Director Mohammed I 
Bureau for mismanagement. Wagon-circling ensued - another conspiracy of expedienc: 

Deputy Attorney, Therese Stewart, to defuse tensions and wrap up Hoeper's investigati( 

Rothschild and his staff, without notifying Hoeper's investigative team of her back-char 

fended off Harrington's accusations, declaring; "Everybody has a hand in this ... no need· 

2012, Nuru and Harrington barred the "pre-approval" of cvlaims by the Claims Bureau v.i 

Troubled by Hoeper's ongoing search for "something nefarious," Stewart demanded a": 

blow by blow summary" of Hoeper's findings. Instead, Hoeper delivered a 27-page draf1 

recommending a "top to bottom" audit of the Claims Bureau. One week later, Herrera to 

to the DA's Office for 18 months, then be released with full retirement benefits. It was a1 

!anding, removing a threat rather than dernoting an under-performer. Plus, Herrera's tim 

Rothschild, a target of the sewer investigation, knew of Hoeper's sacking a week beforE 

Herrera would reconsider, Hoeper accepted the transfer and a $120,000 severance but 
her release from the DA's Office, she filed a wrongful termination claim in June 2014. 

Attorney John Keker 

Herrera testified that he had "lost confidence" in Hoeper and resolved to replace her in' 

find the right person. He described a desultory recruitment effort that stretched over 2 . 

. ~uq fSJ~ M_ayor. He cou_IQn'!_ prove he interviewed candidates because he didn't keep n_ot 
~ ', -_ ,,- _,_,,. J~s.;;;"c/ ::;,,. - ·'., •, - .pc_ -•·_ ,_, ·- ,;: "{ -< -_,« ,__- ~\ --· '' <:o .. :"V:~J-- '1'!<;,';,'i_'.U~i- C,·) -Yi , ·;,,-- - -- -• -.---'-- j '·'-'i;;,;:'-\ ' -~,_ :-i;;:- '"'"' -

t• ,, ;:,.,,;.'!;t-.1-
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termination, arguing that she 'ivl!dri'ii't8b r.lftll't1b'tiall)!tieva'sfM~&;·,io t1.'K~· 0-a~itrbi1:l'&i r, 
outlets. He exhorted; "Press contact is not distress, it's a sign of wanting to win.'' As if t 

attention. Keker asked why she accepted a transfer to the DA. Answer: "I needed a job." 

transfer? "I was unsure if I wanted to do it." Why did she finally decide to sue? "BecausE 

City Attorney's Office if I didn't and it came out some other way." 

Therese Stewart, now a judge, testified: "There was always some friction" between Hen 

good enough job," underestimating liability, withholding information, scrambling from"< 

rather than settling - and making a paralegal cry. She cited key examples of said flaws 

Herrera decided to fire Hoeper. They wobbled like pretexts under cross-examination by 

Fickes, and were refuted by several witnesses. Something more than Hoeper's tempera 

about "over-investigating" the sewer deals. As to why it took 2.5 years to recruit Cheryl, 

Stewart glibbed, "no one thought of her" - even t!1ough Adams had sought the job whil1 

Ironically, Herrera manifested the flaws he attributed to Hoeper, i.e., bungling a crisis, d1 

withholding information, and running up costs by over-litigating. Records show that Ho• 

$1,895,000 while Herrera countered with $355,000. Now, taxpayers face bills surpass in 

attorneys, plus $2 million for Jo Hoeper and around $2.5 million for her attorneys. 

:Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians a 
. /hey repeatedly exposed wrongdoing by the Department of I 

!\: __ --'-,() ecall when the FBI exposed "pay to play" schemes involving State Senator Lei<\ (':,s-1 Commissioner Nazly Mohajer and staffer Zula Jones, as well as political consl 
r>/- \:".~- president Keith Jackson? Less well known is the FBI probe of "pay to work" cla 

Public Health (DPH) . 

... employees - who requested anonymity for fear of retaliation, told 
work schemes exist in many departments but mostly the DPH - th4 
some 7,370 positions ... gifts can yield access to exam questions, I 
locations, or promotions." 
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Ron Weigelt DPH Human Resources Director 

in exchange for jobs, promotions, or assignments_" It came from DPH's Human Resourc 

both Chinese and English, it explained, "if you give truthful infonnation to the FBI about 

use that information to seek discipline against you." Immigrant porters are more vulner; 

to their limited English proficiency and knowledge of laws. Some complalned about bril 

pro quo culture, according to DPH sources. But the mostly Chinese-speaking porters w1 

promised immunity from reprisals. None were willing to testify and the FBI probe co Ila~ 

Janitors maintain safe, clean, functional environments for every City department. Thos1 

called porters. Those working in non-clinical departments are called custodians. Payin\ 

these entry-level jobs attract immigrants and minorities with basic manual and languag 

"Pathways to Entry Level Positions" training to help candidates with applications, exam 

Last year, 959 janitors worked for the City. Meanwhile, there were 812 applicants for a~ 

There's plenty of competition. 

Applicants must have 6 months experience in commercial janitorial work, or complete< 

Program. To get hired, they must pass a 2 hour test with 75 multiple-choice questions. 

permanent Civil Service position with benefits, rather than being hired provisionally or"< 

competition for job locations, shifts, and promotions. Each of these decision points ca1 

kickbacks and extortion. Current and former City employees - who requested anonymit: 

WSO that pay to work schemes exist in many departments but mostly the DPH - the Ci 

positions. Allegedly, sums up to $5,000 or expensive gifts can yield access to exam qui 

locations, or promotions. 

For some, these are good deals. Others, who earn their jobs and assignments, resent t~ 
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and according to Callahan; "tlielf~!/§eS\frfi&rl.f•wa~·tnfiJ th~of!wEif~/fi;Jt'oHb~f\;f~iitls';~fr< 

At the October 3 Commission meeting, Callahan whittled the narrative down to "one al)( 

individual who ... was terminated"- Nonetheless, she was launching a training program tc 

rights. Commissioner Kate Favetti emphasized that the City has reduced the number oi 
vulnerably in provisional and "as needed" positions. Commission Executive Director Mi< 

characterized the bribery claims as a "new thing" then acknowledged that investigation 

"those people that are affected are not coming forward." On that point everyone agrees 

There is disagreement on the scope of the problem and how to proceed. Officialdom dt 

while our sources say that 3 DPH employees have been fired. DHR records show that ir: 
members e-mailed the Mayor, Board of Supervisors and department brass to report the 

for surveys and policies to counter workplace favoritism, bribery and the resulting cont1 
Promptly, DPH Director Barbara Garcia and Ron Weigelt conferred with a City Attorney< 
use of DPH e-mail during work hours. Then OHR Director Callahan notified Louise Renn' 

FBI probe. 

One month later, OHR Policy Director Susan Gard responded officially that additional la) 

"a problem being caused by people who are willing to break the law and disregard City 1 

"rooting these people out of the system is the most effective way to eliminate this type 
because victims aren't willing to testify. Also, the anti-corruption efforts of Managemen 

different political expectations. 

Records show that the two sides agreed on training janitors about workplace rights, ani 

how to get help if violations occur. We asked the OHR for any notices or policies relate( 

extortion developed since the issue arose in 2016. On 1/27 /17 there were "no responsi• 

agencies will likely be more adversarial toward San Francisco in coming years. Better t< 
before the feds _step in. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh• 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aof.com 

... .., . ~. 

1-. -: (. 
:J : ___ j 

March 2017 

Will Honesty and Sanity Save Lagun; 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
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Eugene Jeandeville 

since our "Requiem for an Old Friend" reported on April 2015. /er) .. 
i ( i .· 
' ' ' -,, - - - ' Commendably, LHH disclosed the State investigation of the accident, the pena 

actions the hospital has taken - before the CDPH issued its Press Release on 

media about Class AA citations, the most severe, whose fines range from $25,000 to s· 
own revelation occurred at its public Joint Conference Committee meeting - a forum u 

\apses, spin controversies and celebrate trivia. lt took 2 years, partly due to a backlog ir 

Office, the bureaucratic pace of State regulators and the gravity of the case. Still, LHH's 

notch toward honest accountability. Adverse outcomes, though rare, occur in all hospit; 

dreaded and difficult. Doing so shows professional integrity and respect for the commL 

At the same meeting, LHH quietly reversed a bizarre feature o-f its Admissions Policy. A 
Medical Director has been restored as "the ultimate authority over admissions." Sane a! 

could be uneasy for recently-appointed Medical Director Dr. Michael Mcshane. 

•a, o• •' •••'" oo "·' o o •> ''" oo' o "'' • o" ·>a ao' o o • o= 'o o" '• o •' "'"'"' ''" > ,, oo o ·' '" • 
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potential harms and liabilities involved, that Admissions Policy degraded professional r 

hospital that aspires to be more than a Nursing Home. 

Perhaps these steps toward honesty and sanity were spurred by external pressures fro1 

Nevertheless, they are encouraging signs for the New Year. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserver 

February 2017 

Cit_lj Ho.ll Watchdogs 
Show-Down on Cronyism and Conflicts 

By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 

[[-
1
.'t,i;1J he Civil Service Commisslon (CSC) convened on 9/19/16 to respond to chargei 

f"~). cronyism" in City hiring and promotion. These complaints, mostly from Human. 
(~;:;;.b Department of Public Health workers, rattled the CSC last November. (see WSC 

CSC Executive Director Michael Brown reported that of the 27 complaints, one was vali 

outside the Commission's purview, and 17 showed no violation of existing rules. Non-vi 

the "broad discretion" granted to appointing officers since "Civil Service Reform" in 200! 

Chair Gina Rockanova identified an "unfair hiring process" as "the elephant in the room. 

asserted that "managers do whatever they want" including secret promotions, stacking 

and black-listlng dissidents. While all City jobs require minimum qualifications, indignar 
"not given a fair opportunity to compete" because non-merit factors like relationships a 

appointments. 

0~ >0 ·~00' .O 0 00 00 D DO O O~O O' 'O~ O' 0 0 00 0 0 ' '' O O > 00 O O ~O 00•' O •o O O O•' O O o '<• ,, > o ·'. 

appearances matter. Perceived high-profile entanglements fuel cla 
erode the sense of organizational integrity that keeps employees le 

Representatives froin the most-blamed departments were summoned to the Commissi 

Director Ron Weigelt indirectly acknowledged a diversity "breakdown" within Laguna He 

which is disproportionately Filipino. However, he didn't explain why it happened or if an1 
from it. He vowed to extend outreach and recruitment efforts to under-represented corr 

ers .. an9 . .i11tervi,e_w.~r.s hav.~.bc:eo .. required to _stu9y "im lici~ b.i,a.s" cind sign 1 

. . . -. ' ,- . ' '. ' '· ' ·- ., - '' . . . ' . . - . . ' 

P1868 



lr. l)crek TCC!T http~://;vestsidc:obscrver.con1/nc\~s/\v;1tc]ldog.htn1l!luc12Q 

Ja1nes ~Jladison Freeclo1n of lnfonT1atio11 Av;an 
The Commission announced-(~-f6~'fh~ofhi~Q :R·erai10HS-Ki ~q:)(f\fCY 1~·01 c'ie~f'VJitK•/ci~an~1b·'a· 
between job applicants, employees and appointing officers. Currently, employees are p1 
hiring of family members or supervising them directly. However, both the DPH and HSA 

favoritism and conflicts of interest involving contractors as well as employees. The ren 

partly due to controversy swirling around Antonio (Tony) Lugo, HSA's Welfare to Work a 

Director since 1999. His base salary was $169,080 in 2015. 

Lugo is a Program Manager, but is also listed as a Deputy Director. Deputy Directors, ac 

and Governmental Conduct Code; " ... shall disclose income (including gifts) from any sc 

investments, and all business positions.,." In his capacity as a Program Manager within 

"no reportable interests" in his Statements of Econornic Interest from 2012 through 201 

them previously, HSA told us. HSA's Statement of Incompatible Activities, a guide to av1 

"No officer or employee may knowingly provide selective assistance (i.e. assistance the 

all competitors) to individuals or entities in a manner that confers a competitive advant 

who is bidding on a City contract." Problem: Public records suggest a possible conflict i 

Ahumada. She's the Director of Arriba Juntas, a venerable, major non-profit provider of. 

services to HSA's Welfare to Work Program - a program headed by Lugo. Ahumada ea1 

Juntas, and previously served on Grievance and Oversight committees in the Cal-WORf< 

Alameda County property records show that since September 2002, Antonio Lugo and 

a rental condo in Albany. Their mailing address for property taxes is a house in San Pat 

Controller's records show that Arriba Juntas has received some $44 million since 2006 

About 25o/o of the grants came directly from City funds, the rest from federal grants adn 

for 2014-15 show that half of Arriba Juntas revenues - $5.3 million - were government~ 

There's more. An 8/24/16 Controller's independent audit identified significant lapses; b1 

Arriba Juntas' delivery of services. Although Arriba Juntas is inspected annually by the 

Monitoring Program, HSA representatives are closely involved in these inspections. ThE 

Monitors; " ... your first resource should be your supervisor and/or your department's Ste 

representative." 

The big question is whether an outside relationship between Tony Lugo and Dalila Ahui 

Juntas an advantage in securing HSA grants. Typically, HSA solicits bids via a public Rf 

Applicants submit proposals and bids, and they are interviewed by a Review Panel who 

standardized questions. Scores are assigned to each response and tabulated to detern 

highest average score. Tips from an HSA insider can give a favored bidder a competitiv 

Whlle grants are approved by the Human Services Commission, CEO Trent Rhorer, and 

P1869 
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kept staffers buzzing. It's not. the first time. Between 2007 and March 2016, Lugo co-OVI 

Terri Austin. Austin rose to Principal Administrative Analyst in Lugo's Workforce Develo 

when she became HSA's Integration Coordinator. 

Potential conflicts of interest can be averted by segregating the involved individuals fro 

disposing of assets that create the conflict, or obtaining an Advance Written Determina 

no conflict exists. We asked HSA, CEO Trent Rhorer and Tony Lugo if such steps were t 

real estate holdings with a former subordinate (Austin) and a vendor (Ahumada). HSA 1 
(or) explanatory statements of administrative action surrounding potential conflicts of 

appearances matter. Perceived high-profile entanglements fuel claims of "favoritism" a1 

organizational integrity that keeps employees loyal and motivated. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

;'(:: ;;·~1 
! -· 1 - ~ ",' -,, 
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,tir14 a a o 'J fewer convicted. With such long odds for recovery, prevention is f 

aaa"'tt'@ ~0m0a~r!\ 
What Drives Auto Burglaries: There's a tendency t 

the homeless, drug addicts and juvenile delinquents. That connection is minor; some 7 

committed by criminal street gangs. Overwhelmingly, perpetrators are young, unemploi 

records. Skilled and organized, they stake out lucrative targets (tourist sites, Costco, St1 

cell-phones, flashlights, glass-breaking tools, look-outs, getaway drivers and fences acr 

proficient at counter-surveillance and evading capture. Some are tech-savvy, opening Ci 

mimic or remotely activate your key-fob signal. More than just a crime of opportunity, a 

livelihood with a self-reinforcing thrill. 

Accounting for crime trends is notoriously difficult. Simply stated, crimes flourish when 

are low. The influx of monied newcomers and tourists leaving valuables In cars makes. 

destination for thieves. Many residents can't distinguish their neighbors from suspicioL 

streets as garages fill with stuff or tenants. Much has been made of the Novembe1· 201 
reclassified "non-serious, non-violent" felonies, like car break-ins yielding less than $95! 

research shows that many States have lowered theft felonies to misdemeanors, and nc 

crimes. 

>o •~-' oo oo o; o '~ 'o, o oo ,,,, o,, •' _, o "" o o ' ' o oo o ~-·' • , o o, • -• > < ·'-• _, ., ·'"' o '" 

Putting away car burglars is tough: it requires an eye-witness or vi( 
suspect who gets arrested must be charged or released within 48 ~ 
scramble to compile evidence that meets the "beyond a reasonabl< 
then can the DA press charges in court." 

More important, per the Civil Grand Jury, was the SFPD's 2009 pivot toward Commun it~ 

and Chief Heather Fong. Until then, investigative units like the Serial Crimes Unit had bE 

Headquarters. That allowed inter-unit collaboration and cross-precinct responses to se 

with neighborhoods to fight crime, the SFPD dispersed investigators to local precinct s1 

including disbanding the Serial Crimes Unit, favored criminal outfits operating across p1 

January Febru~ry Mar<h April May 

Auto 200 157 154 117 111 

47 7l l9 

Putting away car burglars is tough: lt requires an eye-witness or video evidence. The rat 

.:4~{"m~~\:~-~,p~'1a rg,i:'l ~~:si::!~.~~-e,~JJ!:~i,~ .. ~,~:-~~~r~_;. -~? ·_ ~?:P;~}~~-~~ ~·.~:\; !0
, ;:e~~F)lo~~X~~:Qg;~~, 

-_ .. '._·:._ ·. _- -~- .-_ ·,,c .. ·:_,~~,.,_::".::'-;'.:~.-'.:.~~l-~~~~~·~lt-W~IE~ 
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Crimes Unit. It pioneered the ,)Buri Olf iiQ" of rilliltiP· § 'ir1CT den s i~to· C5 ii'e P roSebutib'ri Dy Sl 
they commit serial break-ins, until enough evidence is gathered to convict. Along withs 

investigation, it specializes in post-arrest evidence collection. Videos, victim statement 

of stolen property are presented to the DA within 48 hours. These developments align v 
recommendation to restore the Serial Crimes Unit. 

The DA's "Crime Strategies Unit" also functions as a Serial Crimes Unit, collaborating w 
Formed in 2014-thefirst in California, its prosecutors are assigned to neighborhood pr 
local intelligence to thwart recurrent crimes. lt has mapped a network of security came 

evidence. Security cameras owners can register theirs online at sfdistrictattorney.org. 1 
from 63'rc in 2014to 80o/c in 2015. 

Westside Communities Mobilize: The spikes in auto and residential b 

mobilized Westside communities as reported by Tom Pendergast in the April 2016 WS\ 

Captain Denise Flaherty announced that uniformed and plainclothes officers had been 1 

showing where and when most break-ins occurred. Follow-up investigations were interi 
Volunteers on the Community Advisory Police Board, a gem of the 2009 Community Pc 

community concerns and ideas with police brass, then created and distributed the earli 

neighborhood hot-spots. Supervisor Norman Yee began crafting legislation requiring re 

tourists about break-ins and how to prevent them. On 10/18/16 the Board voted 7 to 4, · 

Property Crimes Unit" ordinance. Mayor Lee vetoed the Ordinance on 10/26/16. It woul 

Crimes unit in each precinct with the flexibility to address unique local crime patterns, v 
centralized Patrol Bureau Task Force. 

Car break-ins steadily subsided - until September. At a 10/18/16 Community Forum, S1 
precinct residents that burglaries are prioritized with "more effort" applied to monitorini 

evidence, "working every lead" - and making arrests. Taraval Station's exemplary webs 

monthly analyses of auto and house burglaries: 

Prop R - Safe Neighborhoods Ordinance: Reacting to rising prop• 

encampments, Supervisor Scott Wiener authored Pro1::1osition R to create a "Neighborh( 

SFPD. lt aims "to make neighborhoods safer and improve quality of life" - as did the 2C 

policing. Instead, Prop R re-centralizes various crime units into a single command struc 
officers. Currently, the growing Patrol Bureau Task Force constitutes 1.1°/o of SFPD's 1,/ 

effect only when the SFPD roster reaches 1,941 sworn officers, as mandated by the Chi 

2017. Civilians should guide policing, and Prop R resonates with frustrated voters. How 

solution, something that the SFPD, working with the DA and the Department of Homele 

already implementing, and can modify as crime trends shift. 
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f_i-: -_-,-~J he whopping $190,903 forfeiture imposed on Supervisor Mark Farrell by the Et~ 

: ]- most controversial in the City's history of campaign law violations 1 . Now Farrel 

':' ____ 1 other. In the era of Citizens United, money as speech lurks beneath their Superi· 

by the Ethics Commission's bold response to a Fair Politlcal Practices Cornmission (FP 

supervisorial campaign unlawfully coordinated with an "independent" expenditure com1 

·--,.__ . 
/-.....:. . 

,',/. "!....\"..>·:-

Supervisor Mark Farrell 

The FPPC Investigation: 
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Act, a controlled committee is one that is directly or indirectly controlled by a candidatE 

acts jointly with the candidate in making expenditures. Since Farrell denied cheating an 
asserted otherwise, the FPPC added, "The evidence supports the finding that Mark Farr 

Respondent Lee, as an agent of the Farrell Committee, to coordinate with Respondent ( 

Farrell's responsibility for his agent's actions, but voted 3 to 1 finding Lee "rnost respon: 

for enabling CSV "to send out hit-pieces on opponents without disclosing its CJ.ssociatio 

Ethics Commission Asserts Itself: As a State agency, the FPPC couldn't address the Cit 

contributions. Its $14,500 fine for influencing $221,500 in "independent" expenditures -

was hardly a deterrent. After inertly participating in the 4-year FPPC probe, former Ethic 

notified Farrell on 12/9/14 that CSV expenditures beyond $500 were considered donati. 

reported spending $43,399 supporting Farrell and $148,004 opposing Reilly, Farrell had 

exceeding the $500 limit. When Reilly's attorney, Charles Bell, demanded additional pen 

abuse" of City campaign laws, it sparked a duel with Farrell's attorney Jim Sutton . 

• , 'oOOOODO • •• ••o• ••••••••••. , '"'. 00 0 0 00 •• '"' 0 •• , ', Oo "" ,, • 0' ,, • 0 •' ·'• 0 0. 

Two weeks before the scheduled Superior Court hearing - a settl 
Farrell offered to pay $25,000" 

ln a series of meetings before skeptical Ethics Commissioners, Sutton insisted his clier 

exonerated" by the FPPC, CJ.nd that the 4-year statute of limitations for City campaign la· 
portrayed Farrell as a novice, reliant on his consultant, and unaware of campaign violati 

interrogation in 2012. Sutton deemed the forfeiture demand unprecedented and inapt b 

money that CSV collected. Further, Farrell had cooperated with the FPPC - in full View ( 

take timely action. Bell countered that Farrell was liable for his agent Lee's violations, a 

concealment" of his wrongdoing extended the deadline for legal action. For example, Fo 

campaign reports to show that CSV was controlled by his campaign. And since CSV w~ 

campaign, it was his money. 

Then came a schism between the Ethics Commission, its Executive Director and the Ci' 

scenes, the City Attorney declined to pursue a civil claim agCJ.inst Farrell, citing the statu 

the commissioners forged ahead with their forfeiture demand. Then St. Croix caved, dr! 

citing "statute of limitations concerns." On 4/27 /15 the commissioners decided that thE 

say on the waiver. The Deputy City Attorney assigned to Ethics cautioned he was "unaVi 

Commission to "adjudicate" its Director's waivers. The City Attorney had long sought to 

setting policies while letting department heads implement them. Per Administr<:Jtive Co 

department head shall be immedjately _responsible for the admlnistration of his or her . ·- -, .. :,· 
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the waiver. commission er Ke~R~ i,f Srteaf '1lf ·p ~?r'e'l i qs1rni pi'd tifiQ 1l/J.~'it'er/ W f1Yl1 fl d.H (,/-H C/t(C, 
could waive the statute of limitations and defend his integrity at a Hearing." None of th1. 

Farrell was clueless about CSV's machinations in his behalf. As summarized by Keane, 

solicit $191,000 without Farrell's involvement isn't credible." They held Farrell accountal 

because Lee acted within Farrell's agency as his campaign consultant. Sutton decried t 

interpreting the Campaign & Gov't Conduct Code: 1.168(c)(4) as "solely" authorizing thE 

forfeitures. Ethics Chair Paul Renne asserted the Commission's "inherent" right to overr 

as a Commission, are just a bunch of supernumeraries," Keane added. 

The forfeiture demand was referred to the Treasurer's Bureau of Delinquent Revenue fo 

walled until 11/4/15, then rebuffed it because the FPPC "concluded that Supervisor Far 

Treasurer sought guidance on the impasse. On 4/25/16 a frustrated Commissioner Ke< 

ca1npaign "took illegal contributions and laundered them" through CSV. After closed se: 

decided to sue Farrell. Four days later, Farrell sued Ethics. On 5/23/16, Ethics instructe< 

cross complaint" to recover the $190,093. 

Farrell's Money as Speech Defense 

Farrell's lawsuit emphaslzes the statute of limitations expiration, the FPPC stipulation t 

forfeiting funds he never held, and the denial of due process without a formal Ethics he 

complaint alleges that Farrell engaged in "concealment" and was "personally involved it 

was aware of Lee's activities in this regard." Since Farrell blamed Lee for going "rogue," 

explained Lee's motivation for acting in such an allegedly unauthorized manner," and wl 

be held responsible for the actions of all persons working for his campaign." 

In a First Amendment twist, Sutton fired off a "Special Motion to Strike" the City's cross· 

freedom of speech. His tightly-woven 7 /18/16 plea contends that the City's case is unt1 

victimized "because he exercised his constitutional rights to run and campaign for off1c 

defended its enforcement of contribution limits, adding that campaign law violations a1 
replied that since the City's allegations are unproven and Farrell "vehemently denies" th1 

Farrell for "raising and spending funds to be used to communicate with voters about pc 

qualifications for office." Two weeks before the scheduled 1 0/3/16 Superior Court hear 

Farrell offered to pay $25,000. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserve1 

1. Case# CGCl 6551745 
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Sewergate: 

Gushing Costs and Profits in City's 
War on Whistleblowers 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 

-~-.. ··-· 

l.i'i-:· 
1
-1 he fate of high-level City whistleblowers is retaliation. Then immiseration, as 1n1 

:. _ to dead ends, notably Human Resources departments that are harnessed tom; 

r ,:..:.:.] Commission that hasn't sustained a retaliation claim since its founding. Whistl1 

burial or seek validation externally from courts or the media-at a cost. 

Herrera's Chief Trial Attorney Joanne Hoeper 

Take Sewergate-the dispute between City Attorney Dennis Herrera and his former ChiE 

whistleblower, Joanne HoeQer. Her lawsuit alleges that the City Attorney's Office enablE 

replacement scheme that drained $2 million in taxpayer dollars annually, and that Herre 
- -;..· .. -• ... 
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between October 8, 2015 and'75~-1Y-'i7, t2_6~6~i'.ek~f)&1Vfu~lNlfs't(r38i!fu'ct~{f'2fr6/,~[~~1't6t~ 
Attorney's Office taken this case, even at its top billing rate of $291/hour, the costs wou 

million in taxpayer funds. The City Attorney's Office held 10 other sole-source contracts 

in 2015-16. Unlike the open-ended Keker & Van Nest deal, their pay-outs were capped. ~ 

Van Nest outlay. All 10 totaled $1,895,000. 

According to City Charter section 6.102, the main reason to retain outside counsel is to 

example, when Hoeper filed her initial retaliation claim against the City Attorney's Off1cE 

Clara County Counsel for independent evaluation since Herrera was the respondent, an 

outside counsel may also be appropriate for unusual or specialized cases, internal inve 

workplace distractions. However, the Charter requires that City officials; "shall give pref. 

of a City attorney's office, a County counsel's office or other public entity law office ... " 

> 00 oo~o oo "' o >O o-' ·'-' o., co; O >->" """ ,,,, -'O o, o "' ., '" <, > o o o •. ,, ,, -' '·' > <• '•, ',, • '. '' "·' ., '., 

Had the City Attorney's Office taken this case, even at its top billin! 
costs would be one-third of almost $2.2 million in taxpayer funds." 

Keker & Van Nest 

How did Herrera come to hire Keker & Van Nest - a private and pricey ~" 
· 1~HR0 powerhouse that occasionally does pro bona work? Granted, the lead defense ~ , __ , 

1 

attorneys, John Keker and Susan Harrison, served on the Police and Ethics f')~ 
Commissions, respectively. But according to The California Lawyer, Keker is "the g_;J 
lawyer other attorneys would turn to when they are in trouble." We asked the City 
Attorney's Office for policies or legal opinions that justified the sole-source 

contract with Keker & Van Nest, as well as records showing that public entity 

attorneys had been solicited to take the case. There were none. As to our query; 
"Who approves the City Attorney's decision to hire outside counsel?" we were 

told; "Given that the lawsuit is an active litigation matter, we are disinclined to 

respond to your questions about it at this time." 

Campaign Donations 

Pre-trial litigation costs are exploding due to Keker & Van Nest's strdtospheric 

fees and hours. Calculated at $850/hour, payouts through July 2016 amount to 

2,564 hours - equivalent to one attorney working 40 hours a week non-stop for 16 mont 

retainer agreement identifies 3 attorneys, but doesn't limit the number Keker & Van Nes 

. Jul ,, ~tl~-~ · 't-~~eo.,a.ro~Jl_ ed~.i:.~~J~:.~~· _it'~ ,unlik~IY:,fflat_ th:~ f1rrn's._~i_!!~~r~!~~~ 

- .,_ ,,_, _,:~-,~~i~ 
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was expected to be thrown oi'.IP6f.'-Cbl.LJH( 1 1~~?~1ati;·i6f1 7Jlfni~J2'.12b11~~s~~·Jri16~-66b~1~al:lg~ 
Herrera's arguments that Hoeper relied on privileged information she obtained as an at 

of limitations, and failed to tie her termination to her sewer Investigation. Ulmer denied 

judgment and granted Hoeper a July 5th trial. 

Team Herrera appealed to block the trial, arguing that it would cause "irreparable harm 

''privileged information and attorney work-product." This despite the Court's agreeing to 

confidential. Herrera's petition was cast as upholding a "public interest", namely, preser· 

attorney-client privilege." No mention of a public interest in the City Attorney's handling 

claims, or of the private interest served by prolonging litigation at tax-payer expense. 

Appeal Denied - Herrera Moves to a Higher Court 

The Appeals Court denied Herrera's petition, but another appeal was filed with the 

California Supreme Court on August 12th. Borrowing the tone of Herrera's 2014 portray 
of Hoeper as angling to "shake-down tax-payers," one might ask whether he's doubling 

as a "rain-maker" for Keker & Van Nest. The City was granted a temporary stay until 

October 12, 2016. By then, legal fees will be surging toward $3 million. A Public 

Advocate audit, and oversight of whistleblower protections, are needed_ 

1. Westside Observer: Sept. & Nov. 2014, Feb. 2015. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr repeatedly expose wrongdoing. Contact: watchdogs@ 

September 2016 

'- ... -~ 

/(\'oi119 l\legoJive: 
_J ..J Supervisor Mark Farrell v. Ethics Con 

Dr. Maria Rivero & Dr. Derek Kerr 
ot once did Supervisor Mark Farrell stand before the Ethics Commission to answer que 

over 18 months. Whether indignant, insecure or entitled, he couldn't access the humilit) 

candidate, or the comity befitting a twice-elected official. Instead, he deployed proxies; 

City Hall, and crisis manager Nathan Ballard to spin the media. Ballard declared an Ethi 

2010 supervisorial campaign "was no reason for Farrell to waste his time." 

Farrell had already cooperated with the State's Fair Politlcal Practices 

Commission (FPPC) investigation. It found that his campaign 

consultant, Chris Lee, had illegally coordinated with an Independent 
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J ' t 
more penalties, the City Attorney declining to pursue Farrell, Ethics :k 

Executive Director John St Croix waiving the forfeiture, the ~ 
commissioners overruling St. Croix, and St. Croix resigning_ Perceiving 

"egregious violations", the commissioners had questions for Farrell but 

got Sutton's answers instead . 

. , ....... ,,,,.,,._,,,,_,"'''"'""'''-'''''' -.,,.,.,_,,,,,,"'"' 

Since then, Ethics has been a battleground with 
Farrell refusing to pay, Reilly pressing for more 
penalties, the City Attorney declining to pursue 
Farrell, Ethics Executive Director John St. Croix 
waiving the forfeiture, the commissioners overruling 
St. Croix, and St. Croix resigning." 

' . 

) 
I 

Political optics were at play. \t looked like big money had swung an election illegally. Th 

pass. His underling was flamed. Also, Ethics was seeking a budget boost while scrutini 

City's Budget and Finance Committee. Still smarting under lts "Sleeping Watchdog" tag, 

"genuflecting before an instrument of power" as Commissioner Keane put it_ And, Farre 

suggested hubris or guilt. On 4/25/16 the Commissioners voted 5 to 0 to sue Farrell to 

contributions. Four days later, Farrell sued the City to block the forfeiture, recoup attorn 

further relief." On 5/23/16 Ethics Chair Paul Rene vowed to "vigorously" respond with a 

Next came echoes of the negative campaign that launched Farrell into City Hall. Much• 

his rival in 2010, surrogates were now bashing the Ethics Commission. Sutton portraye 

completely innocent" victim of a "witch-hunt". Ethics was "guilty of a gross violation" an 

resulting in an "outrageous" and "utterly frivolous" forfeiture demand. Ballard painted Fe 

commissioners and sore losers. Behind it all, the pursuit of power. 

The 2010 Battle for District 2: By November 201 o, the Marina, Pacific f 

had weathered a 2-week blitz of anti-Reilly attack ads frorn an IEC called "Common Sen 

Farrell squeaked past his rival by 258 votes. Reilly had 196 more first-choice votes, but 

votes. His margin was less than 19'o of the 28,911 votes cast Swaying 129 potential Rei 

could have done it. Reilly attributed her loss to CSV's mud-slinging, coordinated by Sup1 

Farrell's campaign. She reported violations of the Political Reform Act to Ethics and the 

Commission (FPPC). 

The feud originated in 2008 when City Attorney Dennis Herrera decided Alioto-Pier coul 

'.'1'•'if''•';i.£'c':Jln&,g,~Q,f\'lJ.d,,F~~~~~~~g,,~lk'j~~~ii~~~'!¥9£iJ 
o]' ~- .. 

1 
_
1 
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0
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By then Reilly was ahead in endorsements, polls and contributions; eventually receiving 

$265,198. Farrell's team had to chop her lead. Enter attacks ads. Becuuse going negati• 

or a win-at-any-cost ferocity, trailing candidates welcome third parties that mallgn rivul~ 

unlimited funds, whereas candidate committees are limited to $500 contributions and I 

However, IECs cannot coordinate with candidate committees, must identify major done 

income and expenses to the Ethics Coriimission. 

FPPC records indicate that Farrell's camp concocted "Common Sense Voters" (CSV) in 

Pier decided to endorse Farrell's "common sense values." She encouraged her aides anr 

Richard Schlackman to help, gave Farrell her donor list, and boosted CSV. Nominally, C~ 

a San Mateo corporate attorney. Formerly a law-firm colleague of Farrell's, Helfand serv 

Finance Committee - until he quit to start CSV. He hired Farrell's campaign treasurer as 
campaign consultant Chris Lee gave Helfand set-up advice, pegged Rich Schlack·man ti 

consultant on board that you will need to meet ... ", and sent him Farrell's campaign done 

"who were sort of outside San Francisco," initially raising $30,500 from 5 venture capita 

registered as "primarily formed" to support Farrell - rather than oppose Reilly. Farrell to. 
CSV "through public filings." 

Meanwhile Alioto-Pier lobbied socialite-philanthropist Dede Wilsey and Republican real· 

fund CSV, something Schlackman wanted kept secret "because of politics." Farrell wusi 

spent two hours with Dede Wiis·ey- to soil cit a $500 campaign contribution. Wllsey pou 

later. Per FPPC records Farrell was "only interested in Coates hosting a fundraising evei. 

to help out his campaign." Three days after hosting said house-party, Coates pumped$ 

$41,000 the next week. Regarding her energetic fundraising, Alioto-Pier explained to th<: 

Farrell." 

In the two weeks before the election, CSV disbursed the $191,000 bestowed by Coates: 

chest) to depict Reilly as a covert purveyor of "radical politics" and a puppet of the "ultri 

mailers cited her $500 donation to Peskin's 2000 campaign. Her husband Clint Reilly's~ 

2008 SF Clean Energy initiative became her "risking public safety." Other ads featured S 
wizard behind Janet Reilly's agenda." The ads didn't identify Coates and Wilsey as then 

sound, such attack ads work subliminally - and effectively, to plant doubts and kindle fe 

Newsom, Frank Jordan, Louise Renne, and Diane Feinstein denounced the smears as d 

ridiculous. Amidst this chorus, Farrell stayed mum. In his victory speech, he pledged to 
Hall." 

Common Sense Voters' attack ads overwhelmed <311 other lhird party exRenditures. Sou 
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comparison, outside spending against Farrell 

was minor; $12,912 by the Bay Area Firefighters PAC and $7,244 from the Democratic ( 

As for going negative, Farrell finally spoke out in May 2016 while running for the Democ 

Committee. ln a memo to constituents, he acknowledged that his 2010 campaign had' 

because the Reillys "spent hundreds of thousands of dollars on personal attac.ks aguin: 

tearing others down." Why this 180 degree spin? /\s the Chronicle reRorted during the C 

$20,000 on ads mocking Farrell's "failed ethics" since he "cheats to win" then sues to "a 

when Farrell condemned as "disgusting tactics" the type of ads that propelled his politi1 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 

wrongdoing by the Departtnent of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

July 2016 
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Loss of Trust: The Human Services J 
By Dr. Maria Rivero & Dr. Derek Kerr 
- - -1 ast month's Westside Observer covered employee 

, ] _,l protests against "favont1sm, crony1sm and nepotism" 
, w1th1n the Human Services Agency (HSA). These 

complaints have rocked the Civil Service Commission since 

November 2015. To its credit, the HSA expedited an Al\ Staff 

Surv~y in mid-2015, right before simmering tensions erupted 

publicly. 

HSA's All Staff Survey: An impressive 82o/o of 1,986 active 

::~:~~~=s~:~:~;l~y~:o:~~~~c~~i~gs~·~e~i~~1:n: :~~vice :;;:'":"~\'•:F'i~ ' 
values. However, according to Director Trent Rhorer, two !'.,;;!i#~.,:;r;~1;mm¥~ 
shortcomings emerged: communication throughout the agency is poor, and employee 1 

The survey also indicated; ''There appears to be a mistrust of management, especially< 

respond to more sensitive questions in the survey (i.e. trust in executive staff managen 

confidentiality of their responses, 13 '.Yo declined to identify their programs. Overall, just, 

trust and confidence" in Rhorer and his deputies_ But among direct client service provid 

executives. 

't ""~''"'' .,,,'' '-, ,, •, ,_,, ,.,,,_,, '•'' ,,.,, ,.,, ''", "''' ,,, 0 -.,.> '''0'"' '""""''' ''·' 
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With no opportunities to be promoted, some employees felt less motivated to excel. So 

that programs were not hiring internally and new employees were unqualified or lacked 

recommended; "a succession plan that seeks to develop staff and promote from within 

time and cost ... in hiring and inducting new candidates." HSA data support this idea, as 1 

grievances behind it. Before the Civil Service Reforms of 2005, promotions from within 

appointments. Since then, they've fallen to 50%. Meanwhile, new hlres swelled from 26' 

Despite staff discontent, managers are happy. For example, 86'10 of managers reported 

compared to 37% of line staff. Being recognized for good work garnered 86'10 from mar 

staff. And, 92o/c of managers felt their opinions counted versus just 40% of workers. Wh 
top executives, merely 37'Yo of line staff did so. According to 95'1a of managers, their pre 

practices, but only 57% of line staff agreed. Similarly, 94% of managers believed that cli 

68% of direct service workers. 

The survey confirmed that the "Service Center Model" programs, namely the merger of 

stamps), and the redesigned CalWORKS (welfare-to-work), are troubled. Only 35% of 36 

workers rated their workload as manageable. Their trust ratings for HSA executives we 

and minimally higher for their program managers. At CalWORKS, trus't ratings were 43~ 
program managers. While undergoing taxing reorganizations, these programs rated be! 

decision-making. 

HSA's Response: Records show that executives carefully studied survey responses an~ 

address the negative feedback before releasing the survey results. Deputy Directors mE 
what the survey means for their programs." Attention was directed to the ailing Service· 

again, HSA's Innovation Office was mustered to "break out ideas for improvement." Dub 

lmprovement Plan 2.0, it aimed at "helping each other rather than blaming" - a positive 

mute legitimate criticism while herding workers down designated paths. Indeed, in 201· 

defined itself "to meet the vision of our HSA Executive Director Trent Rhorer. .. and ... to ad 

values." 

Rhorer heeded the survey's recommendations, particularly the call to "develop a comm1 

agency's messaging is consistent and is reaching employees while also valuing their in 

promised more "leading and managing by walking around." To his Executive CommitteE 

need to focus on "communication, employee morale, physical space and hiring and pro· 

to start this year on communication ... because it relates to all other areas." 

True, but poor co1nmunication had surfaced in every Staff Survey, Strategic Review, anc 

tenure. lmportantly, it doesn't explain the recent outcry against cronyism, or the chasm 

P1882 
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trust as a core value. The casualties are employee morale, loyalty, and productivity_ 

HSA executives should ponder whether discretionary hiring and "flexible staffing" are S< 

competition. Why are dedicated employees outraged over nepotism, crony1srn, and favi 

practices devaluing the very workers who are expected to serve challenging clients witl 

Building trust requires introspection - then, honest communication. The recommendec 

enhance trust if used as a mechanism to preserve privileges and push agendas. lnstea, 

to-top communication - like performance appraisals of managers by employees, and st 

unfair hiring and promotion. Meanwhile, communication is precarious. Cornplainants a 

concerns aren't aired before HSA's own Commission. HSA executives haven't talked to 1 

Mayor Ed Lee's Civil Service Commission assesses whether its mission is being subver 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact i.vatchdogs@westsideobserver 

June 2016 
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Discretionary Hiring Fuels Mistrr 

The Human Services Agency 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
r_~:;~-

1
-1] he human instinct to favor one's friends and relatives can undermine govern me 

:-.-. cronyism and nepotism split workforces into insiders and outsiders - an impor 

i~-~ management. Cronyism begets more cronies who protect each other by excusi 

ethical lapses. Plagued by patronage, in 1900 San Francisco created a Civil Service Car 

competitive, merit-based hiring . 

... some 30 disheartened City employees - most from the Kuman S< 
put their jobs on the line to denounce "favoritism, nepotism and er< 
promotion:' 

A century later, the Civil Service system was widely assailed as being too cumbersome 

service delivery. Enter Civil Service Reform; the Newsom administration's 2005 plan to' 

system_ Hiring was deregulated to "improve the quality of the candidate pool''. Promoti1 

appraisals" Managers were einpowered to use their "expertise" and "business needs" 1 

J¥.d.Yia~"",r.,2~~-~!}:ian,,t~Jxtrf-i 9\J./'-f.if}_i(;~ te~t -0C?f'.'.!S •. ffl][l_lry:ll'm auzliflQ-'3 ~jOg__§,i: epcj:_ ~-Q_i; 
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Irregularities that seem to favor or deter certain candidates are covert, or cloaked in "cc 
(unnamed to avoid retribution) assert that some new hires are "pre-selected" and fast-t 

executive decision" while qualified applicants without patrons trudge through a dead-er 

theme is the "back-door hiring" of friends, relatives, even lovers, often as "temporary ex· 

require the civil service screenings that ensure qualifications and experience. 

Temporary exempt (TEX) positions were designed to quickly hire workers for time-limit• 

as subs for civil service workers on leave. Without civil service benefits and safeguards 
allow managers to hire and fire at will. However, some workers insist that discretion in· 

violation of equal opportunity employment. They say that after a year of paid, on-the-jol 

favored TEX recruits are deemed elfgible to take civil service exams. Allegedly, they are 

benefited civil service positions, handed dubious "added duties" then granted undue pn 

leapfrog, and even supervise, more experienced civil service err1ployees. Reportedly, so 

and service delivery authority without demonstrated experience. Among HSA line staff, 
favored employees or the managers who install them. 

Along with mistrust, distraught HSA workers describe degraded service delivery, breakc 
workplace ethics and competence, negative rumors, as well as departures of demorali"i 
fear; those who ask questions or complain say they face bullying, isolation, non-promot 

CalWORKS, a welfare to work program for families with children, is pointedly criticized i 

marked by favoritism, intimidation and a mass exodus of eligibility workers. Complaint! 
their intensity is. HSA's own 2008 Strategic Review raised "serious concerns" about sta· 

the basis for allegations of favoritism in hiring and promotion? What can be done to ad 

perception of favoritism?" Apparently, those questions went unanswered. Civil Service I 

"Inspection Requests" alleging unfair hiring at HSA rose from 1 in 2013 to 16 in 2014. C 

corrective action. Comparing the years 2010-2012 versus 2013-2015, the average numl 

1 0-fold while HSA job recruitments merely tripled. What's going on? 

HSA Backstory: The Human Services Agency (HSA) is the City's central resource for pu 
employees who believe in social justice and helping others. Starting as a bureau to heir 

last year its $871 million budget and 2, 111 employees provided a spectrum of social SE 

training, health care, food stamps, and in-home support for over 200,000 clients. Today 

merger of the Department of Human Services and the Department of Aging and Adult~ 

architect of Mayor NewSom's 10-Year Plan to End Chronic Homelessness. Like Civil Se1 

promised efficiencies. But by mid-2008, HSA's budget had risen 20'Ya, with a 47o/c increa: 
jump in new hires and promotions. 
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Newly-funded employment initiatives impacted CalWORKS which was already strugglin 

double its client employment rate to 50°/o. To ease these transformations, the term "Ser 

to the targeted programs. Soon, HSA needed a "Service Center Improvement Plan". Rec 

its Innovation Office with repurposed "ernployee engagement" tools to manage the stra 

Could the stress associated with new mandates and initiatives, major program change~ 

cause of staff discontent? Protesting workers say no, because such stressors have al\<\ 

workforce adapted to them. Similarly, Union-Management tensions aren't new. What th1 

serving, underhanded practices that break trust with conscientious Civil Service emploi 

Observer, we will analyze HSA's 2015 All Staff Survey and management's response tog 

Agency. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Depart1nent of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

May2016 

i _--- ,-./' SFPD Body-Worn Cameras - Who's Waite! 
. ' 
;by1Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 

[(1 ·.:(~-,J he_ publicized purpo_se of b~dy-wo_r~ ~ameras (bodycams) is to 
":-,,:· bring transparency into police act1v1t1es - especially when 

[____:.:_: police misconduct ls suspected. Like two-way mirrors, 

bodycams can be used to watch law-abiding Individuals who are 

deemed "suspicious". Policies alone cannot prevent bodycams from 

impinging on privacy rights and First Amendment protections. Their 

use must be transparent and accountable. That means public 

oversight - and access to recordings, 

Privacy Protections: To protect privacy, the SFPD boQy_cam ROI icy_ prohibits filming law· 

legitimate investigations or beyond what officers "could lawfully hear or record". Officer 

for personal use - only for "a legitimate law enforcement purpose". That way, victims o 

fear calling the police because a camera-bearing cop may enter their homes. The polic~ 

that they are being filmed "when feasible", though civilians cannot direct a cop to stop f 
appear when the camera is activated. Officers are required to turn on cameras for spec 

force incidents, arrests, pursuits, searches and traffic stops. However, filming strip sear 

or child abuse, and confidential informants is prohibited, except in "exigent circumstan( 

-;"'· .~121\eJ:t\Jr.;~~~,~-9-_,;;i;,ay_:g,;_~_?,~-~.~-~~,~>!~?-~--~~~e· -~:~~-~~~~:~~.~,1~~-.:t~'.~-~-~~-~7;t? .. ~-e-~~,~:~~'~'~, 
~ ·"' "• . - .. -~'- ~·,'fr;~;,: :r!·-~;;.".'.~"#~~.:~;,~ihS~~"'~~~~~~-!~~~~·~'~-'_'l•J~~~~-IT·.~i 
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watching communities rather than police." 

First Amendment Rights: SFPD. policy prohibits the filming of citizens engaged in First. 

activities such as peaceful demonstrations. However, the bodycam policy allows fllmin 
may become hostile" or anytime it "would be valuable for evidentiary purposes". Looph1 

an undercover SFPD "infiltrator" could provoke a "citizen encounter that becomes hostil 

law-abiding protesters, and assembling dossiers on civil rights activists and social mo\ 

purposes." Capturing "evidentiary" footage is also problematic. The Police Executive Re 

"evidentiary" as data that "could prove useful for investigative purposes". That could m{ 

More troubling is how counter-terrorism policies are merging with domestic policing. Tl 

Centers has expanded from terrorism to crimes to "all hazards" including "suspicious a1 

Department of Homeland Security and the FBI viewed the Occu~ Wall Street and Blac~ 

"domestic terrorism" or "criminal activity" and coordinated with local police department 

participants. These intrusions were justified as "providing situational awareness of acti 

action". Sim liar rationales drove the FBl "Cointelpro" abuses during the Civil Rights era. 

Each year, the SFPD reports its collaboration with the FBl's Joint Terrorism Task Force l 

Yet, SFPD may be violating lts First Amendment obligations by interrogating, for the FB 

Freedom of Information Act request regarding his air-travel issues. Recall how the Oakl 
"Domain Awareness Center", a $10 million anti-terrorism surveillance project, marketed 

primarily deployed to track 12olitical protests. Public outrage halted the city-wide spying 
Commission to check police overreach. 

Public Access: Who watches whom depends upon access to bodycam footage. The Sf 

will control access to the data and release recordings "to the greatest extent possible": 

privacy rights, endanger witnesses, or "jeopardize the successful completion of an inve 

Complaints, o_perating under the Pollce Commission, will also have access to bodycam 

police misconduct. Since the bodycam recordings will likely be stored in TASER lnterna 

SFPD should ensure that neither the vendor nor hackers can access them. 

Bodycarn videos will be public records under the California Public Records Act and the 

practice however, police dash-cam and body-cam videos are withheld unless a dogged 

Typically, police withhold evidence of misconduct by citing "an ongoing investigation", v 

that exonerate them. Time will tell how the SFPD determines which video disclosures Vi 

completion of an investigation". 

Related to public access is the integrity of video data. SFPD of~cers are prohibited frorr 

bodycam recordings. Disciplinary actions follow violations of SFPD policy, but it's uncl _ 
··"----,·_,,-t;:_ -.!··~,,~ "-at1'- , .. 

P1886 
l(\/ltf/1('()(\ 1')·(\(\l)l\tf 



lr_ f)crt:k l(err bttps://v,•estsidcob~crvcr.co1n/ne\vs/watchdng.bt1n\/loct20 

James Nlaclison Freedon1 of lnforn1atlon Av;arr. 
includes automatic license p l~flf fe'ii.l:lef~/l41t26e'ff ~lt'!6R·1c~·M~fi3'Sf~-fdn~~,-i~st1r{~ff~y~v.2&n11 
capture nearby calls, "TrapWire" facial recognition technology, and social media monito 

activities are already tracked and stored by hundreds of government agencies and prlv< 

of National Emergency, repeatedly re·enacted since 9/11 /2001, and the growing tender 

bodycams could end up watching communities rather than police. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
the Department of Public Health. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserver.com 

April 2016 
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Watching SFPD's Body Worn Camer; 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
1 ___ :--'\:J t

1
-/:i io\ent and mil_it.arlzed encounters between police 

-,_ -.lj and commun1t1es of color, largely recorded by 

''· bystanders and shared on social media, have 

raised nationwide alarms. "Copwatch" groups are now 

"policing the police" to expose the dark side of law 

enforcement. Such community alienation can paralyze 

crime-fighting. ln December 2014, the White House 

issued an edict titled "Strengthening Community Policing"-..__ .- -~:u; 

~~;~:~::;;~ ::~~~:~n~:t~c~~:g~~n~~~~~ i~~:erve" It . \ .\i~~~~t~-
departments to buy 50,000 body cameras. On 4/30/15 

Mayor Ed Lee grabbed the offer, allocating $6.6 million 

over 2 years to deploy 1 ,800 bodycams "for every police 

officer on the street." 

Police Chief Greg Suhr called for body cameras in May 2011 - after Public Defender Jef 

cops illegally searching and ripping-off hotel residents. ln 2013 Suhr cut a $250,000 no· 

International to pilot bodycams. The SFPD bodycam pilot went nowhere, boggled by lof 

institutional resistance to being watched. On 4/18/14 the Board of Supervisors' Neighb 

Committee urged the SFPD to formulate 8 bodycam policy, despite a projected 5-year c 

DA George Gascon demanded action instead of "playing games." 
- .-, 
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build trust, bodyca1ns must add to the transparency afforded by citizen videos, without 

intrusions on privacy, or mass surveillance. Bodycams should also be cost-effective. 01 

expire, expenses for maintenance, upgrades, video storage fees, personnel time and trc 

bodycams could cut litigation costs by deterring misbehavior by police and civilians alil 

citizen complaints by 88% and use-of-force incidents by 60o/c. Such savings could be wi 

violations of privacy or freedom of expression. To preserve public funds and trust, sour 

On 5/13/15 the Police Commission directed the SFPD to create a Body Camera Workin 

days. The Working Group met publicly 6 times between June and August 2015. Law en· 

represented. Also Included were the Office of Citizen Complalnts, ACLU, Public DefendE 

Human Rights Commission_ On 6/9/15 Supervisor Avalos introduced Ordinance 15062 

Policy with annual audits by the Controller's Office. When the Working Group's draft pol1 

one issue was unresolved: whether officers involved in shootings, In-custody deaths or 

view bodycam videos before or after writing their reports. 

In 5 hearings from 9/2/15 to 12/2/15, the Police Commission reviewed the draft policy, 
forth in Assembly Bill 69. Passed on 10/3/15, AB 69 grants ownership of bodycam recc 

with chain-of-custody rules, along with public access per the California Public Records 

could view videos of routine encounters, but disagreed over viewing footage of critical. 

Commission promised to "vote in recognition of the new normal that trust is a more im 

rate," it had to appease both cops and civilians. 

Police Perspectives: The SFPD maintains that officer-involved shootings are rare, less t 

Currently, involved officers are interviewed voluntarily and allowed to see videos to "trig· 

report. The Police Officers Association (POA) warned that cops wlll withhold voluntary 

view bodycam videos. Although cops can be compelled to make a statement, whatevel 

·disciplinary action cannot be used against them per the Peace Officer's Bill of Rights. S 

would better serve investigations and justice. 

Cops of all stripes emphasized that SFPD policy demands that "all evidence shall be in< 

adrenaline-fueled reaction to traumatic incidents causes memory lapses, "tunnel-vision 

Only by viewing videos beforehand could they deliver "the most accurate and complete 

cited similar practices in San Diego and Los Angeles. Entrusting officers to carry guns\ 
bodycam videos would show that "you don't trust me," one said. Another emphasized t~ 

suspect" would be more "divisive." Others faulted the logic of writing "a legal governme1 

the evidence." Plus, video ownership was claimed as "the officer's point of view." Writinf 

the video, and then writing a supplemental report would "set up officers to fail" said ChI 

the "gotcha" when their credibility is challenged for any discrepancies. 

P1888 
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report should be preserved ra1fl'e~;tr\tirf'£ Pe1rHte'rtirefEft/ok--bgse~rb~-WA~1ra~;:/e~~l?t;:16·f8C 
Jeff Adachi argued that viewing the video beforehand alters what officers rernember, t~ 

The ACLU warned that incriminating events that don't appear are forgotten while event: 

as if experienced, thus creating a "false level of accuracy," and potentially enabling covE 

view videos before interrogations, allowing police to do so confers an "unfair advantag( 

insisted that "investigatory best practices" require that witnesses, including police offic, 

viewing evidence. There is also a public safety interest in knowing how officers perceiv, 

between officer recall and videos are expected, but gross distortions or fabrications co 

Commissioners' Compromise: While holding that officers "shall not vie\ 

shootings, criminal investigations or in-custody deaths before writing a report, the Com 

"subject to the discretion of the Chief of Police." Chief Suhr already supports officers vi( 

reports. While ceding control to the SFPD, the Police Commission claimed to retain it si 

the Commission. This compromise calmed the opposing parties as the bo_d_yJ;;_Qm__QOlic1 

transparently created. But that same day, a dazed, knife-wielding 26-year old, Mario Wo 

5 police officers in the Bayview. Only bystander videos documented the killing. Chief Su 

justified. Then videos surfaced that countered his view and intensified distrust. Had bo1 

they might have revealed something about the mind-set driving such lethal force. The b 

Police Commission for final approval after negotiations between Human Resources an, 

policy is implemented, the Comtnission will conduct a review. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

March 2016 

• . ·1 
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Diversity Brings Controvers31 
Laguna Honda's Nursing Challenge 

By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
n 2002, the Health Commission adopted a Resolution for "Culturally and Linguistically / 

broadly inclusive of diverse racial, ethnic, sexual and other cultural ... groups."The Depart 

then formulated a Cultural Competency Policy whose principles include; "To Recruit, Re 

of the Organization, a Diverse Staff and Leadership ·rhat Are Representative of the Derr 

Service Area." Subsequently, DPH CJgencies like Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH), and DPl

annual Cultural Competency Reports showing their compliance or diversity initiatives. 1 
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r,-:-'J "workforce that reflects community characteristics." , 

J~,,·~ Not so, according to six LHH employees who testified before the Civil Service Cori 

1/4/16. They risked retaliation by joining 30 other Clty employees in claiming that: 

cronyism are sabotaging merit-based hiring and promotions. Here are excerpts; 

"Laguna Honda is plagued with isms - favoritism, cronyism, racism -you name it. Ever; 

somebody's child is being hired while people that come an.d apply can't get hired. Fort~ 

people being hired through the back door, despite Civil Service ... then they're pushed inti 

positions haven't been posted for people who have more experience and rnore seniorit) 

• ••• ooo o> • > >» oo • o oo '~" "~''" o o' •~"'•on•'·>;; o' o' "., o,' ,. """' oe •• • ooo ooo 

... six LHH employees ... risked retaliation by joining 30 other City e 
that favoritism, nepotism and cronyism are sabotaging merit~base1 
promotions." 

"The workforce is not diverse, it does not reflect San Francisco or the Bay Area. Whoev~ 

person who gets hired looks like them, speaks like them, and comes from the same pl8 

the minority. If we are asking questions, and if we are able and articulate to·say 'what's 

position, I can do this job', then you are called a troublemaker. So you are excluded fron 

your colleagues are told not to talk to you ... It's becoming somebody's living room, som: 

backyard." (LVN) 

"Hiring is based on friendships and family. Managerial positions are ... set aside for fami 

nt.to al! n ,thi:: job fpr. There'~,n 
,. -~-?·-·····' •,,,, __ ,,_,_ -
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Supervisor responsible for staff recruitment committed nepotism. She "resigned" and~ 

"released."Though relatively few DPH employees complain to the Civil Service Cominis: 

Report cited; "a notable increase in the number of complaints and/or questions" about 
minimum job qualifications, while 3 of 8 City departments "did not conduct verification 

for their appointees ... " The DPH's 2014 Work Experience Survey found that 43o/o of 3,22( 

stymied. While the surveyors merely urged more "professionalism and respect", it's tel Ii 

with "a manager training that reviews hiring and onboarding procedures."Laguna Hand< 

Survey identified the main causes of discontent as; "unprofessional" or inexperienced r 

retribution, bullying", and ignoring feedback. 

Concerns about diversity and hiring have long-simmered at LHH. Because hospital em~ 

related qualifications, their demographics won't exactly match the communities served 

competitive healthcare environments may require i1nported skills. But according to LH~ 

Report, and the Department of Human Resources (OHR) 2013 "Equal Employment Opp1 

Analysis", there's a striking imbalance; 
.. · ··m ·. '""'""" ~~~s !iluili'tt ,, l~f;i-"f' o~-· --'" ·'~- 1-:<c·o __ ~ ---;%<·~: li'?lJrifJ11f~l > J'it'l'~·'."·ik--~-"1" ~~VJllit:ittr?;: -- -,·~ '-*~- .J f, ' ··'>· .. ', ' •, ., ,;;:-,, - . ' _, ',f;_ -- '·-=-"" ~-- .,_,.---~-

CCSF(23,237) 34.58 12.75 14.51 24.54 13.10 0.49 

DPH (5.787) 24.78 11.79 14.69 23.86 24.59 0.29 

LHH (1,250) 13 10 9 20 47 --

Francisco's 5.2°/o Filipino population. It doubled the DPH's percentage, which itself topp 

Rather, it ref1ected LHH's Nursing Department that hired 60% of hospital employees. Al1 

indicators of cultural competency, there's no current data on the ethnic distribution am< 

numbering 1,678. LHH hasn't submitted any Cultural Competency Reports with employ. 

Both the DPH and the OHR denied having ethnicity data on Laguna Honda employees. 

Nonetheless, ethnicity had been the focus of an internal "Cultural Competency Assessr 

executives in 2007. lt reported; "Nursing is dominated by Filipinos who comprise 71°/o a 

80% of Registered Nurses, 81 o/o of Licensed Vocational Nurses, 67% of Certified Nursin! 

Managers. Among patients, 3% were FiliPino, creating "a great disparity between the etl 

glve and receive care_"Almost 10 years later, LHH nurses say little has changed. Here is 

Registered Nurses, Licensed Vocational Nurses and Certified Nursing Assistants withir 

2007, the most recent numbers available; 

LHH's 2007 "Cultural Competency Assessment" warned; "Disproportionate representat 

nursing staff causes tension and strife in some units, and makes it difficult for new sta1 

.····;kt.;;~:;·~E,'.!:"J?]:~~-~ri~i&i~~~~--iiii 
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nurses say that lapses in merit-based hiring are perpetuated .by workforce disparities - : 

As Civil Service Commissioner Favetti emphasized; "The integrity of the system is di rec 

administer the system."Beyond LHH's control are colonial. political and socio-economic 

"Empire of Care: Nursing and Migration in Filipino American History", and Rodis' "Why a 

nurses in the US?" What's needed in 2016 is Laguna Honda's Cultural Competency Rep( 

demographics, an assessment and a plan. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospil'al wh1 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanN.ess@aol.com 

February 2016 

Expenses for Acute Care show marked increases. Not 

shown is the 48'1o reduction in services. 
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In 2009, LHH Rehabilitation Chief Dr. Lisa Pascual, and then-CEO John Kanaley, conjure 

budget proposal. In exchange for an extra $836,000 in taxpayer funds annually, they pre 

revenues of $1.35 million. They wanted more staffing to transform the existing 6-bed A 

building's showcase - with 15 beds, a choice location, therapeutic pool and state-of-the 

these costly enhancements needed in a safety-net hospital? Because they "will increas, 

services," they wrote. An "upsurge in acute rehabilitation admissions" would raise the a 

patients to "a realistic goal" of 4 patients/day. The new facility, its trappings and fanfarE 

was a field of dreams, untrampled by market research like scoping out the competition, 

what they wanted, and why they shunned LHH. 

They wanted more staffing to transform the existing 6-bed Acute ~ 
building's showcase - with 15 beds, a choice location, therapeutic I 
art fitness gym. Why were these costly enhancements needed in a 

Three months after the rebranded LHH opened, the 15 mostly-empty Acute Rehab bed~ 

just 5 remained. The other 1 0 were converted to lower-paying but fillable Skilled Nursin 

amenities and frantic recruitment efforts, private pay and Medicc:Jre patients chose to g 
worse. For 2013, the average daily census for Acute Rehab was 2.21 patients, in 2014 i· 

dropped to 0.89 patients per day. Rehab Director Pascual omitted this decline in her An 

Commission's Joint Conference Committee on 9/8/15. Instead of a root cause analysi~ 

variants of patient recruitment strategies that hc:Jdn't worked previously. The Commissi( 

didn't want to know. 

Another revenue tale was spun in 2010. The Medicine Department sought $950,000 in! 

boost its Acute Medical census from "1.5 - 2.0 patients/day" to 5 patients per day, thet 

annually. Instead, patients vaporized. Signs of fluster appeared in 2012 when LHH bras 

and Acute Rehab censuses together under "Acute" to camouflage the minuscule numb1 

When honest reporting resumed in 2013, the average daily census fell to 1. 1, then to O.~ 

mid-2015. On average, less than 1 patient per day has received treatment in the 7-bed t 
18 months. Month after month, the dwindling numbers are presented; without explanat 

Colleen Riley, and without inquiries from Health Commissioners. 

Yet, inquiries are due. The City's SFOpenBook data base shows LHH spending on "Acut 
sagging census. LHH spent about $2.4 million in 2012-13, almost $3.4 million in 2013-· 

Unfortunately, corresponding revenue data isn't provided. Given the missteps and evasi 

·:· ~}'~q(Jtl~-~f,J~~~,l~Q,S9.i:i]:1JiS_~i~~~-r~·--~-h_oyl_9-as~ ~~Y. <!' 73~o .r_Is~:,i~,~f:Ute Car~, s_p_e~ .. d,if,l_Q . 
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London Breed's Anti-Sunshine Litm 
Dr. Maria Rivero & Dr. Derek Kerr 
[;~~h] or those who are driven to govern, transparency doesn't come naturally. Nudgin( 

,J _·-~ ~hadow_s often rel'.es on op~n government advocates. For exampl~, the 2013-1 ~ 
l..:.o_,_~ 1n the City - Promise, Practice or Pretense, recommended amending the Sunsh1 

Supervisors' business calendars be publicly disclosable. Since 1999, the Ordinance hac 

Attorney and department heads to disclose who they met, and where. Although the Jur 

Supervisors voluntarily provided their meeting calendars, some officials "failed to list th 

attendee's names" making it difficult to track lobbying activities and influence peddling. 

London Breed, who clenched the Board presidency in January 2015, has viewed reques 

intrusions. When sunshine activist Michael Petrel is requested them this April, he was ir 
records would take time to assemble. Instead of delivering the calendars, Breed's legisl 

e-mail: "Supervisor Breed has not maintained a calendar since February 1st, 2015. Per 1 

Breed is 1710t required to keep a calendar." 
--·.-0 ,•-.• " 
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Jan1es ivladison Freedorn of lnforrnation AvJarc 
"concerns about my persona(!s"?if~if~:c arf cl.1restab'1i£K¥nij ~·-·patter~; 'of·"m'V·:wh~~~atJ'dUf~. 1'' F 
days to separate my public and private calendar." Breed made a motion to withhold the 

meetings and to wait for the Departrnent of Technology to organize their calendars. He 

second. The Board voted 10-1 in favor of disclosing its calendars. Breed voiced the soh 

finally, and unanimously, passed the amendment. The Mayor signed it into law on July· 

smoldered. 

'' ·'' •'' ,, ' ' 0 ' '' '•'. ''' _.' •,"'; .. _, "'' '". ''' 

Public interest in Breed's engagements peaked this August when h 
the FBI probe of political corruption that en-snared Senator Leland 

Though not a member of the Rules Co1nmittee (Avalos, Tang, Cohen), Breed m8terializ( 

"in place of Supervisor Cohen." The agenda included the approval of a journalist and a I 

Sunshine Ordinance Task Force (SOTF), the 11-member body that adjudicates sunshin1 

were nominated by the Society of Professional Journalists (SPJ) that is mandated 2 se 

the City, both nominees had recently moved to Oakland so they needed residency waiv1 

After Hoodline editor Eric Eldon gave his presentation, Breed launched a meandering in 
interest" when journalists serve on the SOTF_ Note: voters approved assigning 3 journal 

New America Media, and local press. Breed wondered if Eldon's "professional opinion" 

records, might conflict with "making the right decision." Unappeased by Eldon's ethical 

potential bias, Breed declared, "Let me be more specific; I have a different opinion abou 

a thin line between public information and being nosey ... I don't think it's appropriate for 

whereabouts 24 hours a day." Then, the litmus test: "Do you think that public officials st 

calendars if requested?" Since her question had been affirmatively and legally answere1 

render applicants into supplicants. Eldon maneuvered out of Breed's trap by crafting th1 

responses, including, "I would listen to the advice of the City Attorney" and "I can't say I' 
Incidentally, Breed had been wrangling with the SOTF since June, when she was found 

Ordinance for dodging a hearing on her calendar hoarding. 

The other SPJ nominee was Mark Rumold, an Electronic Frontier Foundation attorney VI 

surveillance issues in the National Security arena. After serving on the SOTF for 9 mon1 

moving to Oakland. He presented his credentials and goals in a straight-forwa1·d way, w 
bother to ask him a single question, then groused; "I'm not completely familiar with Mr. 

kowtowed for her blessing before the hearing. To show who's boss, Breed "hesitantly" t 

waiver. 
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Exodus From Laguna Honda Hos1 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
~---1 n the year ending May 2015, 80 patients fled from Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH). 

,.:' ~ AWOL (Absent Without Official Leave) or left AMA (Against Medical Advice) comr:: 
· - -- "community discharges" - a record high. This exodus is rooted in the Health Depc 

Project that flushes non-paying patients out of San Francisco General Hospital and into 

.. .in 2014 LHH reported 46 staff injuries from "'resident aggression' 
medical treatment. LHH deploys additional staff as "coaches" tom• 
and drug-sniffing dogs to curtail drug use and dealing" 

Unlike the notorious 2004 Flow Project that generated an upsurge of violence and drug 

relies on private rooms, electronic monitoring, additional activities, substance abuse cc 

contain disruptive behaviors. Yet, in 2014 LHH reported 46 staff injuries from "resident· 

required medical treatment. LHH deploys additional staff as "coaches" to monitor rowd 

dogs to curtail drug use and dealing. Cigarettes and nicotine vaporizers are prohibited. 

must sign an imposing Agreement that stipulates rules of conduct. Such restrictions, a 

them, cramp the quality of life of some residents. Others simply don't want to be at LH r 
elopements this year signals that the Flow Project and LHH's containment policy are le. 

Why patients flee and what happens to them matters. Risks of harm multiply for patien 

before they are deemed ready for discharge. Beyond endangering themselves, those wl 

impaired also expose the hospital to potential liabilities. Elopements are disruptive, req 

Green" alerts, burdensome paperwork, missing person reports, plus detailed searches l 

deputies. In May, LHH projected "a deficit of $780,000 in salary expenses" for 2014-15' 
need for coaches ... to facilitate pati_ent flow". By July, this deficit dropped to $190,000 fc 

taxpayer funds. Further, neither Medi-Cal nor Medicare reimburse LHH for AWOL days,: 

by the City. Importantly, for an institution that values resident satisfaction, the rise in A~ 

rising dissatisfaction. There may be correctable lapses in patient care, staff training, or 

needs and LHH's offerings. The Health Commission should request - and make public, 

exodus. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: watchdogs@westsideobserve1 
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Change". In a feat of equivocation, the Commissioners 

agreed that all 6 CGJ recommendations to enhance whistleblower protections "may be 

the task would entail "heavy lifting" plus "the cooperation of at least 4 departments", Ex 

vowed that Ethics "would endeavor to do this in 2016" - long after his August 2015 de~ 
now Acting Executive Director, Jesse Mainardi - hired from the Sutton Law Firm - stay 

whistleblower rights. 

i ," ~ 0 0 0 0 ~ 0 ,, 0 > G 0 0' '<>-, '0 0 0" 0 '> 0 0 0 '0 ", C > 0 0 0 '> 0" '0 '0 0 0 •> 0' o "0 '•" 0 0 '> •• '' '~ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

When Ethics Chair Paul Renne called upon !he Commissioners for' 
Whistleblower Ordinance, dead silence filled the chamber. Eventua 
Hur uttered; "You're putting all of us on the spot here:' 

Public comments by Westside Observer reporters Derek Kerr and Patrick Monette-Sha\'\ 

failure to sustain any retallation claims in 20 years, and the City's coddling of retaliator~ 

out in settlements. A former CGJ Foreperson, Elena Schmid, warned that Ethics' "vaguE 

dodged the specificity required by California Penal Code section 933.05. Friends of Eth. 

suggested that Ethics appoint a "sub-committee of one" to work on revising the WhistlE 

whistleblower declined to speak out as it would be "asking the foxes to redesign securi· 

When Ethics Chair Paul Renne called upon the Commissioners for volunteers to revise· 

dead silence filled the chamber. Eventually, Commissioner Ben Hur uttered; "You're put1 

The Commissioners then hurried to the next agenda item. 

September 2015 
.; ~; O "O<•OQ' ><• ~ O ~'10 ~~ '.> O .>9 ~ .' ' '"" ·, • • •, '>; O O ;'.>q '• /0 '., o _, ·' )-l >; '-' O; O ~ () Q ., ~ '1" 
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activities like bus-trips were curtailed, yet impermissible expens 
surged" 

On 3/10/15, LHH Finance Chief, Chia Yu Ma, added this afterthought to her Gift Fund re 

Office recommendation, we have been working ... to slowly move our (Gift Fund) stocks 
control to ... Charles Schwab." At LHH, such afterthoughts and mumbled asides warrant 

buried something about the $2.4 million Gift Fund, most of which is in donated stocks. 

Treasurer's Office had advised her to sell the Gift Fund's $1.3 million stock portfolio. Afl 

recommendation on 4/3/15, Ma again withheld it from her 5/12/15 Gift Fund report. Al: 

donation received weeks before from retired LHH physician Milka Rois. 

These non-disclosures resembled those preceding the Gift Fund scandal of 2009-10. 81 

over $2 million, including stocks donated in the 1980s. Stocks were kept by the City Tre 

overseen by the Controller, while cash went for LHH patient activities. With the instalmt 

2004, then Mivic Hirose in 2009, Gift Fund policies were surreptitiously altered - in violi 

Code - to create an administrative slush fund. Piifering and mismanagement depleted 

late 2009. Another $835,000 was frozen in stocks and $543,000 was locked in the inter 
triggered warnings that the Gift Fund was bankrupt. Patient activities like bus-trips wen 

expenses for staff perquisites surged. 

Protests were ignored within LHH, but reported by KGO TV's I-Team and The Westside I 

Shaw in 2010. The resulting furor forced the Controller to issue a Gift Fund audit on 11 J 

$350,000, stop misappropriations, issue quarterly reports, and restore the Gift Fund Ma 

Unfortunately, the Controller dropped the promised follow-up audit to quell negative pul 

bequest from the Knight estate returned Gift Fund assets above $2 million in March 20· 

in July 2013, Bill Frazier, Director of LHH's Activity Therapy Department, was reassignec 
a newly created post. The move also freed him from justifying cuts in patient activities 

upstream. 

Ma's censored Joint Conference Committee presentations contained grains of truth. In 

Controller did urge LHH to "actively manage" Gift Fund stocks, but Ma said nothing abo 

role, selllng the stocks, or Rois' $400,000 donation. Instead, CEO Mivic Hirose took cen1 
to spin highlights before the full Health Commission, leaving crumbs for Ma to dispens 

had to dig for answers. 

A visit with Michelle Durgy, the Treasurer's Chief Investment Officer since September 2( 

"tremendously understaffed" team began organizing the stocks in mid-2011. A collabo1 
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want it all." 

Frazier and Treasury \nvestment Officer Hubert White powered through a mess of scatt 

$1.3 million portfolio was consolidated under Schwab in January 2015. However, there 

between stock values reported by LHH and the Treasurer. Ellsa Sullivan of the Control IE 

amount is not mlssing," just spread among various stock transfer agents. But 185 shan 

and Bethlehem Steel became worthless due to bankruptcies. The fact that LHH hadn't 1 

its 104 Delphi shares since 1999 didn't raise alarms. In 2009, LHH lost track of 2241 sh 

they landed in the State's Unclaimed Property Fund. When located two 2 years later, the 

which Frazier reclaimed. Another $14,099 had been stuck in a Schwab dividend accour 

November 2014. In January 2015, LHH learned that 234 Chevron stock certificates war 

although dividends were coming in. Exxon certificates were also lost. Replacing them c 

Despite these losses and the 4-year slog to sort out the Gift Fund portfolio, most of the 

value. An analysis by Durgy's team prompted the "sell" recommendation since the mar~ 

and a downturn was expected. Durgy explained that selling the 25 remaining stocks we 

merely $325. On 5/19/15 the full Health Commission approved the sale, without review 

Conference Committee. To date, stock sales have garnered $1,163,630, with more to c< 

proceeds at 0.65'Yo interest to generate $7,564 annually. 

Chia Yu Ma's Gift Fund reports concealed decades of neglect, uncovered during a long 

selling the stocks was reasonable, given LHH's inability to manage them, the Treasurer' 

outlook. And ethically, LHH shouldn't hold shares in war profiteers like Halliburton, Boei 

BP, and Chevron, and obesity purveyors like Coca-Cola. Still, the stock proceeds need tE 
furtive practices of LHH executives. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

July/August 2015 
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( 1 ·.; When Sunshine Casts a Shada 
I , 

--~ ',._J 

- David lee's Ballot Proposal 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derelr Kerr 
n 4/23/15, long-time Sunshine activists were surprised when "San Franciscans for 0Re: 

, ... · •... · '·• . B.allot lnltiative t0 .ame. cj the City's Sunshine Ordinance, It calls for; 1) C]ty public meel 
-·~~-_,,-~,.~ -: ,, __ .. ~--~ ''"~·:·~~~~~:~"~-:~~---·:·:~--:·~:·'~=~:~;!~;,f~~~~~~it~~~~~~">-
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David E. Lee 

£~ them. The proposal is sp_earhe_aded by David E. Lee, whose_political ~onsul:an,~ 
1.(:l!;-) measure. Former Supervisor Fiona Ma, who attended the City f·!all filing, said; 

"-."~-:.- the same people during meetings, and this will open that up." 

One day before, a supportive Chronicle article merely identified David E. Lee, who head~ 

Government, as "a political science instructor" at SF State University. But since 1993 Le 

Director of the non-profit Chinese American Voters Education Committee (CAVEC) - the 

CAVEC's mission is to register voters, provide polling serv(ces, research voting trends, c 
4-person Board includes Lee and his wife Jing Lee, who is Vice-President. Its Chair is A 

attorney assigned to Laguna Honda Hospital, and its Secretary is Sandy Close, Director 

Lees own a State Farm Insurance business and a 4-unlt rental building ln the Richmond 

recent Chronicle piece was Lee's controversial run for District 1 Supervisor in 2012 . 

• > o~o• o o o o Oo >O o o o' o o~<> ''" o oo Oo O o > o o<>' >o o o--. o o o" o >O o O o Ott n '' • o '"' ., '• o o 

Most of Lee's contributions came from real estate, construction, in! 
corporate interests. Notable Lee backers included attorneys Jim S1 
tech investor Ron Conway, "broker" Mel Murphy, banker Dick Kovai 
magnate Doug Shorenstein, and philanthropists Nancy Bechtle, De1 
Swig. In 2012, the Chronicle endorsed Lee, although his cause was 
independent expenditure campaign" funded by the SF Association · 

In 2005 Mayor Newsom appointed Lee to the Recreation_& Park Commission as it adva 

Lee resigned in 2012 to run against Eric Mar for Supervisor in District 1, pointing to forr 

his role model. Lee got 11,019 votes or 38.6°/o to Mar's 53.5°/o. In this costly clash, $90 v 

vote. According to Ethics Commission data, Lee spent $320,589 in individual donation:; 

compared to Mar's $360,100. The shocker was the cash tsunami from independent ex~ 

spent $673,960 for Lee versus $164,625 for Mar. All told, 68% of the $994,549 supporti 

shadowy special interests compared to 31 °lo of Mar's $524,725. Most of Lee's contribut 

construction, insurance, banking and corporate interests. Notable Lee backers includec 

Haas, tech investor Ron Conway, ''broker" Mel Murphy, banker Dick Kovacevich, real est 

and philanthropists Nancy Bechtle, Dede Wilsey, and Roselyne Swig. In 2012, the Chron 

·!I;,, .•qf 
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Between 2008 and 2011, Lee's salary at CAVEC averaged $90,211 annually (range $86,' 

2012, Friends of Ethics filed a comQlain1 against Lee for failing to disclose this outside 

& Park Commissioner. Later that month, UC Berkeley Prof. Ling-chi Wang and Henry De 

and of Chinese for Affirmative Action, publicly Q_enounced Lee's exorbitant $91,980 sale 

CAVEC expenses - despite its revenue shortfalls. They also challenged the role of Lee': 

exaggerated voter registration claims, the mingling of his business and CAVEC pursuit~ 

and "downtown and out-of-town" money pouring into his campaign. They asked "who VI 

2013, Lee's salary was cut to $46,828, though it remained CAVEC's biggest line-item ex1 

activists say that CAVEC has been losing touch with the community, becoming more pc 

Despite Lee's ties to business and moneyed interests, who already have influence at Cii 

on the boards of the California First Amendment Coalitlon and the minority-based New 

public access to government activities. Plus, he has long advocated for immigrant part 

Lee's pushing this Sunshine measure rnakes sense. 

In appeals for a "generous donation" Lee claims that his ballot proposal arose from "we 

that "students don't have the resources to fund a ca1npaign." However, the campaign's I 

Center on 5/14/15 barely drew a handful of students to collect 14,000 signatures by Ju 

would take on a ballot initiative with such sparse front-line support, and while CAVEC is 

Of strict 1 will need a new Supervisor. Will an appealing Sunshine measure enhance Lee 

CAVEC's viability? 

Lee's Sunshine amendment emphasizes that "professional activists and lobbyists are ti 
the time at City Hall to Influence decisions" and that it will empower "working people, st 

and caregivers who have set schedules." There's no mention of the costs and contract 1 

the proposed technology. Tracking the funding for this ballot measure will show whet hr 

be the same donors who rallied behind him in 2012. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh• 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

June 2015 
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lagyna 1Honda'1> fFalling StOllr 
'by'Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
barely audible Mivic Hirose, CEO of Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH), duped the Health Cc 

P1901 



)r. Derck Kc1T https://v,'cstsidcobscrvcr.cu1n/ncws/vratchdug.hl111llloct20 

BSEB 
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Staffing, Quality Measures an'iH4ii'afih'nf,fpidii'an~;1plU~~H1!iV'elAfllt1, l·/!'!.!i!'<"..,. 
star rating based on the others. Medicare warns that; "All of these 

data are reported by the nursing homes themselves. Nursing home 

inspectors ... don't formally check it to ensure accuracy ... The 

information should be interpreted cautiously ... along with information 

from the Long Term Care Ombudsman's Office, the State Survey 

Agency, or other sources." Nursing homes like LHH flaunt their stars, 

without noting Medicare's caveat. Mivic Hirose, 

Moreover, Medicare does not report violations of California nursing home standards, Si 
complaints filed with State agencies. That's because licensing requirements for State ii 
California) differ from those 1nandated by Medicare. Only federal-level violations affect 

2013 LHH received 30 State deficiencies but only 19 were recorded in Medicare's feder. 

$1,000 State fines for patient injuries in 2011 and 2012 didn't impact LHH's Medicares· 

www.nursinghomeguide.org for this data from California Advocates for Nursing Home 

• , •• 0 ·~ '~~·." •. , ' '' 0 000' ''"" •• , '" 0 ._." ... , •.. , """ .,. "" '''." •0.''. ,, _," •• "'. 

Although these deficiencies were considered minor, causing "mini1 
"few" residents, they exceeded the averages for California and US 1 

Therefore, LHH's 2014 Health Inspection score plunged "below av• 
triggered LHH's fall from 5 lo 4 stars overall." 

The star-rating system provides an incentive for nursing homes to improve their care. 11 

stars without earning them. As per an 8/24/14 New York Times article, Medicare Star i:; 

Game the System, facilities plagued by· serious deficiencies can garner 5-star ratings. S 

clients, revenue, and prestige, some facilities inflate their scores. 

In 2009, just 35% of nursing homes were granted 4 or 5 stars overall. By 2013, it rose to 
overall rating of 3 stars is considered average, but by 2014 the average score for US fac 
majority of facilities are above average, the system is unreliable. As a result, Medicare i 

US nursing homes lost Overall stars this year, with more to follow in 2016. 

Laguna Honda's star-quest started in 2010, when its Overall rating was 2 stars - below· 

new building, 3 stars. A 4th star was captured in 2012. CEO Hirose, who collected $290 
pushed until LHH wrangled a 5th star in 2013, only to lose it in 2014. To detect how LHI 

top tier in 4 years, we examined its Nursing Staffing, Quality Measures, and Health lnsp• 

Nursing Staffing 
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These are indicators of quality care such as the percent of patients with injury falls, bee 

aspects of care are assessed, so their scope isn't comprehensive. Further1 such measu 

are self-reported by nursing homes. To wit, State inspectors faulted LHH for failing tori 

an injury last year. Besides such under-reporting, adverse events can be minimized by L 

Department before they are transmitted to Medicare. A former LHH <lnalyst, V\1ho reque: 

"Laguna administrators, charged vvith f11lng self-reports that should have been forthcon 

regretful, were indeed adept at gaming the system." By clasping 5-stars for self-reporte 

LHH was granted an extra Overall star. 

Massaging Quality Measures is widespread. In 2009, 37o/o of Nursing Homes held 4-5 s·. 

By 2014, a preposterous BOo/o were all-stars, including LHH which had ju1nped from 3 to 
to changes in its calculations, forced Medicare to recalibrate. So, two-thirds of nursing I 

ratings, and 30% lost Overall stars. This year, Medicare audits will inhibit deceptive repc 

Health Inspections 
This is the backbone of the ratings system, the only domain scored independently by S1 

occur almost annually, nursing homes anticipate them. At LHH, preparatory "mock insp 

minimize deficiency findings. During surveys, LHH's "Command Center" tracks inspectc 

fixes to undiscovered violations. From 2010 through 2012, inspectors found relatively f1 

Health Inspection ratings are derived from the 3 most recent surveys, LHH rose to "abo 

its jump in Quality Measures, contributed to its trumpeted 5th Overall star in 2013. 

Untrumpeted was LHH's fall to 4 Overall stars after surveyors found 19 federal def1cien, 

deficiencies in 2014. The 2014 lapses included: failure to monitor an amputee's p hanto 

to adjust a Care Plan for a patient with rapidly worsening dementia; not monitoring the 

psychotic medications; keeping spoiled/outdated food in refrigerators; not washing ha1 
equipment; speaking ''a non-English language" around patients; causing a resident to s1 

minutes to answer his calls; over-filling the stomach of a tube-fed patient and causing~ 

patient-to-patient physical abuse to the State, and not knowing that such reports are le\ 

Although these deficiencies were considered minor, causing "minimal harm" and affect 

exceeded the averages for California and US nursing homes. Therefore, LHH's 2014 He 

"below average" - to 2 stars. That triggered LHH's fall from 5 to 4 stars overall. It could 

Safety lnspection found 7 deficiencies. Since such lapses aren't logged in the star-ratin 
in being down-graded to "above average". 
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1
;::-.1 hen Eugene Jeandevi!le "Gene" di~d at Laguna H_ond~ Hospital (LHH) last 

\.·.~j; \ ·, .. ·"· December, a part of old San Francisco passed with him. He was 85. Gene 
\.;.. \", had come of age in the 1940s within a pack of kids whose friendships 

spanned 70 years 

Some 17 years before, a fire blackened Gene's kitchen. Then he fell and broke his arm. 
Unable to care for himself, LHH took him in. Bereft of immediate family and decision

making capacity, he was assigned a Public Guardian to manage his affairs. He got 

around with a walker or wheelchair and loved field trips to ball games, casinos and 

race tracks. His requests to "go home" subsided, but he always wanted to "see the 

guys." For years, Gene's old friends; Larry the retired school teacher, Art the former 

insurance executive and cartoonist, and later Bob the Laguna Honda volunteer, 
brought gifts, news and memories on birthdays and holidays. 

Gene's death, after a fall during a movie outing, left them mystified. Another old friend 

gone, then evasive responses to their inqulries. Though grateful for LHH's good-heartec 

fingers that appropriated their gifts, the conversational drift from English to Tagalog an 

they felt something was being hushed-up. They asked The Westside Observer to peer ti 

Growing Up in the City 
Born in 1930, Gene was raised by his Mom in Glen Park- 64 Chenery Street near Fairmc 

was a nurse. Gene said his longshoreman father died during the 1934 Waterfront Strike 

more inclined toward community than to self. A sharing economy emerged from the pri 

the War, marked by bartering of ration stamps and produce from Victory Gardens. Few 

everywhere or hopped streetcars for a nickel. Kids met up to trudge to school. In a worl 

computers, playground directors handed out balls and bats for after-school activities u1 
Gene was a star playground athlete, the type of kid who made fast friends despite a de1 

__,.., ·~-

i·"·r' i'J" 
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Gene's death, after a fall during a movie outing, left them mystified 
responses to their inquiries ... lhey felt something was being hushe1 

Pearl Harbor brought black-outs, when mothers covered windows as families huddled\ 
fell silent.' Soldiers packed the Presidio and sailors flooded the streets when the fleets'. 

brothers went away, never to return. One afternoon, all the sirens went off, horns blared 

over." Some cried. Hopes soared when the United Nations Peace Conference met at thi 
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In September 2014, LHH's / 

began a transition from "pri 

--'services that would augme 

ithout increased staffing. 

ene went on an outing as 

and of patients supervise( 

While waiting for an elevate 

ackwards down a ramp ar 

omeone had forgotten to I 

erhaps Gene unlocked the 

paramedics bandaged hist 

o Seton Hospital_ 

On 11 /30/14 Seton notified 

withheld details pending an "investigation". Upon returning to LHH, Gene's condition de· 

transferred to UCSF. He developed pneumonia, caused in part by a swallowing disorder 

to LHH. 

On 12/4/14 someone called Larry: "Gene wasn't eating and we should visit ASAP." GenE 

Then, Gene's Public Guardian reported he had died on 12/10/14, cause of death undisc 

His body went to Cypress Lawn for burial on 1 /7 /15. When his friends went to pay their 

unmarked. Another unanswered question. 

We brought $21 to the Department of Public Health's Office of Vital Records for a copy 

wasn't ready. A week later, same story. Turns out his case had been referred to the City 

that's done whenever someone dies of unnatural causes. This referral argued against a 

must also report injury-falls to the State, and we knew LHH had a history of down-playir 

the State Licensing and Certification Division on 1 /20/15, just to be sure. An investigati 

LHH had reported the accident. 

Gene's Public Guardian was notified about the missing gravestone. Records show that• 

Cypress Lawn plot in 1998. In 2005, the Public Guardian collected $760,000 from the S< 

Capistrano. assuring that his funeral expenses would be paid, including an engraved he 

Ourf1rst call to the Medical Examiner went unanswered. On 1 /15/15 we were told that t 

Certificate would take at least 3 months. Toxicology tests had to be completed, med ice 

~d,"y,.n ~~1z~nr,9v~~,~J,~sf_t1J:r~~Y'1as a bac!-l"og, of f!OO c~~,es, s_~,IJl~ dating ba~~,,t' 
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DerekOnVanNess@aof.com 

Acknowledgement: Thanks to Larry, Art Ness, Bob Coffey and Ken Sproul for inspiration ; 

April 2015 

City Attorney's Whistleblower Battle Lai 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 

8&p~~ o City agency admits to retaliating against whistleblowers. Dennis Herrera insi 
(;]~\:;.:~:.· Trial Deputy, Joanne Hoeper, "was in the works long before she claimed ... that r 

C . .:J ·~' scheme in the City Attorney's Office." Hoeper charges Herrera with "after-the-f< 

removal for exposing shady sewer replacement deals. Legally, she must show that whi: 
factor in her firing, Herrera must provide clear and convincing evidence that she was sc 

entered Superior Court on 1 /7 /15. 

"O 0 0 000 •• ·~· D 0 Do O •• 00 •• 0 0000 ·~ "'" 00 > 0 »? 00 00~' O O O 00" 0<>"' 0 0 0 0 0 O~ 0 >D ., 0 

Once again, taxpayers are footing the bill for a plausible retaliation 
firm, a Herrera campaign donor, is collecting $850/hourto defend h 
"Expected to exceed $50,000." Ethical concerns are rising alongsid 
received a cOnflict waiver to represent Herrera, while representing 
suing the City." 

After publicly praising Hoeper's aggressive fraud litigation in 2003, Herrera says he beg 

escalating expenses and underestimating liabilities. He focuses on 2 out of hundreds c 

team. In the $7 million Lopez settlement against the School District, the judge rebuked 

fought each stage of litigation and caused delay throughout discovery, which substanti 

costs." Hoeper responds that the litigation strategy was directed by the client and that I 

staff the case ... seriously hampered the defense." In the $27 million Dominguez verdict 1 
Herrera claims Hoeper called it a "no liability case." This she flatly denies, as she recorr 

settlement. 

Herrera asserts that in 2005 several Magistrate Judges complained about Hoeper's "in1 

discussions and her fallure to evaluate the cost-effectiveness of litigation." Hoeper exp 

policy r.easons to oppose payouts in frivolous lawsuits against police officers. Further, I 
magistrates that her approach was sound - and told her to keep it up. In 2006, an unwr 

-Ii . . ~ 
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Therese Stewart wrote a private appraisal - solely for Herrera. It lauded Hoeper: "She g 

Off1ce ... tremendously dedicated. She is very loyal. She is extremely confident in herself. 

litigation." In counterpoint: "Cultivates a pugilistic style of litigating, tending to polarize 1 

making settlement more difficult and possibly resulting in underestimation of ... risk and 

she was never told her performance was unsatisfactory. Rather, Herrera repeatedly ass 

work and wanted her to continue ... as Chief Trial Attorney." 

Though certified as "very loyal", Herrera claims that, "With her subordinates, Ms. Hoepe 

of Mr. Herrera and Ms. Stewart, encouraging an 'us versus them' mentality." One allege( 

Team "the real lawyers" and the Executive Team "the front office." Hoeper calls such all 

noting how she lobbied Herrera to "address the morale issues ... that plagued the City At 

deputies who did a good job - "something the City Attorney was not in the habit of doin1 

In 2008, Herrera restructured the Trial Team, thereby reducing Hoeper's duties. Herrera 

"rebuffing" his guidance and "stoking divisions." However, Hoeper recalls that Herrera a 

reflected shifting priorities, rather than performance problems. Despite what Herrera ar 
that the reorganization related to her work, as she was undergoing chemotherapy_ So sl 

quotes his reply, "You're invaluable to the Office. Do not rnisunderstand what I'm doing. 

job performance." 

Contending that he remained "dissatisfied with Ms. Hoeper's performance," Herrera rep 

late 2010 with a partner from Keker & Van Nest, the law firm now defending him. Overt 

other attorneys were reportedly approached, but none wanted or fit the job. Ironically, ir 

recruited for a high-level State position. Since Herrera was running for Mayor, she aske< 

She recalls that Herrera pronounced her position secure and encouraged her to stay. S( 

offer. She concludes that Herrera either lied while secretly devising her ouster, or axed I 

scheme. 

In late 2011, Herrera's Executive Team met without Ms. Hoeper to prepare a report tltle1 

2012. It's undated, except for 12/21/11 scribbled in a corner. The actual date is import< 

investigation also began in late December 2011. The 2-page memo is entirely redacted 

in charge of Trial Team (for 2 years)" and "Maybe you could get Gascon to hire Jo to be 

DA's Office." Matt Dorsey told us that the date on this memo, and on Hoeper's 2007 per 

after they were written "to reflect the documents' actual dates." Notably, "Danny" was n· 

proposed. 

It took more than 18 months of "actively searching" to find Hoeper's successor. Suppa~ 

the process was finding the right person.'' Strangely, the search was covert - with no jo 

;.;..,,/-'i,.-_),---~~1~-d~fj~J;;i.eJ\i=f:th.at th_e_ City .. Attorney.Y.1<;1s .unable to fin.d highly, quq!ified c_aridi~,ates.,.w~ 

I .. --:_-:~~ -~ ::::;~· :~::.~:~~-~~:C~;~::;:~~~~~'.~.§t,~?~~.£i~~~?-t~~. 
P1907 



)r. Derek T< err https://v..·cslsidcobserver.co1n/news/watchdog.hlml#oct20 

James Madison Freedom of Information Av1an 
is collecting $BSD/hour to defe?faiKim 'rl~r°a' d6'iitY~c~'''tipe~ieGl{61e,S~etl$tid,(foer'''~1f 
alongside legal fees. Keker also received a conflict waiver to represent Herrera, while rE 

suing the City. This conflict has churned Herrera's staff, per an anonymous tip_sill. A Ke 

chairs our Ethics Commission that unfailingly denies whistleblower retaliation claims. f 

venues for whistleblower complaints, along with the Ethics Commission, the Controller 

Because these agencies reflexively shield City departments, Jo Hoeper had to seek red 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh• 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aof.com 

' 
r i\1tside Job: 
} : 

""' , __ j 

February 2015 

OUSTINC LACUNA HONDA'S C.Cl 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 

[{i-:::-
1

.:.J he June ~014 oust~r of Laguna ~onda Hospital's 
r·. (LHH) Chief Operating Officer Mike Llewellyn so 

[_,J rattled the Department of Public Health (DPH) 

that the scandal was buried. As detailed in the September 

Westside Observer, Llewellyn was chummy with Rachel 

Decker, owner of the DPH-favored painting contractor 

William Decker Company. Cordial rapport between City 

officials and contractors often enhances public services 

- unless favoritism ensues. 

In October 2013, the Controller's Whistleblower Program 

• 

was investigating complaints about the "over-utilization" of a DPH painting contractor. i 

Decker's dominance over the other 6 DPH painting contractors during Llewellyn's tenun 

2009 and 2014, Decker pocketed $783,211, or 41% of DPH's painting expenditures - al 

nearest competitor, RAS Engineering. The bottom 3 contractors, M&A, Monticelli, and A 

0% of the" pie, respectively. 

DPH records confirm the disparity. Between 11/1/10 <Jnd 10/31/13, Decker was gr<Jnte1 

(BPO) authorizing $400,000 in DPH contracts. The other 6 DPH painting contactors we1 

. . .SJ 00.000.to $~5Q,.OOO, ~nd .tQt?liDg,§1 :_?_ rn.[ll)_or: -:iu~~ .17 months .lnto_ its. 3-year B.P_O,_ Qe 
' · ,-; • .,. · ,,,;;;{- N..:-i.t~· <.cl"'·,.,:,~,'(-.. : • ~ .,'.:<A·-. - . '- .' .. <' ,,.: i , ... ,;.' -.· .. : -, "'· ·'.· - .. ' .~-· "{.c ,.-.. -<' -~.i' . ··;.,. "1.;···-~~ ,,. ·: ''f: ~ -- : . ..,.' .- ~.'. ,-.";;" .... 
111-,- - -- - .•. 1 •. 

P1908 



lr. J )erek Kerr J1ttps://i.1'estsidi:obsi:rver.colnh1e\1's/v<atchdog.htn1llloct20 

WESTSIDE.~~s"~~ '[}~~,@~~'~!;1 
_ ~~~~·.: ~ ' .~J ~ r~~-:.,fj d~!ll ~ 

4-;z_~ 

Jarnes iVladison Freedo1n of lnforn1ation Avian 
'Joc.i·.'l}1 (if rr(>Fi:ssj(_1t1r1! J1"Jt1rr:,1if-..t\, 1\l(1tt-,11 {-f1.-7r)ter 

Perhaps Decker Co. did excellent work at lower rates than their 6 competitors. Still, the 

Llewellyn and Rachel Decker should have sparked concerns, especially after DPH Direc 

Llewellyn in charge of all DPH facilities in late 2011. With such authority over contracts 

indulge preferred parties. 

According to the City's Office of Contract Administration, "For general services, com pet 

$10,000." Such small jobs need not be advertised because City departments have "corr 

vendor selection process." Records show that in the first 3 years of Llewellyn's tenure a 

through November 2012, Laguna Honda processed 54 invoices from Decker Co. totalin 

for jobs costing less than $10,000. They included a $1,010 contract to paint "Mike's saf 

"Mike's wood table refinishing." These small contracts, awarded under Llewellyn's watcl 

51 % of Decker's Laguna Honda revenues over 3 years. 

Though disapproved, big jobs can evade competitive bidding rules if broken down into 1 

costing under $10,000. On 11/14/12 Decker Co. submitted 3 invoices at $9,996 each fc 
projects. Had this window project been treated as a single $29,988 contract it would he 

and approval-by the Office of Contract Administration. 

A favored contractor could be told in advance about upcoming DPH projects, or inform, 

proposals. Hefty contracts can be won with tiny under-bids. On 1/25/11 Decker Co. sec 

$30,250. Its closest competitor, RAS Engineering, had bid $30,500. When the bid result: 

he notified his staff; "I will take care of that." 

Or, a painting company could be steered to work as a subcontractor under a bigger DPl

larger firm that then pays its painting sub-contactor. On 4/1 /12 Turner Construction pai 
$11 ,585 for 4 windows. The following month, Llewellyn received a proposal from Rossi 

construction contractor. On 10/22/12 Llewellyn sent Rossi's proposal to Decker's Off1c€ 
responded, "Thank You Mike! Hope you are well!" ln May 2013, Rossi Builders hired Dec 

contractor. 

When funds aren't available, money can be pulled from other pots. For example, LHH b1 

pay for their jobs and vice versa. Given its enormous budget and major hospital rebuild 

money streams that can be siphoned when needed. For example, on 9/30/10, a $3,130 

revised because LHH's CFO wanted to switch from "operating funds" to "project funds" 

services. Similarly, creative accounting may explain why Decker's BPO balance increas~ 

between 3/1 /12 and 10/17 /13. 

When DPH Director Barbara Garcia wanted to "expedite" the renovation of DPl-1 Clinics i 

balance was depleted, despite the mysterious boost to $14,269. Nevertheless, on 10/2. 

,-l;:stimates to "Joh_n L_ee_A-Hole" .to ref.urbish 4 Clinics __ for $235,062. Technically, any bid' 

~~~::~,-i~-~::~
0

~-~~,,-.'. ~~ ----··-~~~- ~·::
0

·': ;,:. -~::"·:··_i'"~~~;·;&~~';;::;;t~1~~~·~@tt~~~' 
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Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aof.com 

December 2014 

1 I j 
City Attorney's Sewer Stand-Off Needs 

· -' by'Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 

Joanne Hoeper 

/··.:-(: '.] ity Attorney Dennis Herrera is facing a whistleblower retaliation lawsuit from hi~ 

'· ·. Joanne Hoeper. After the September Westside Observer went to press, Herrera 1 
-: __ .=1 she was reassigned and fired for exposing a multi-million dollar scheme to repli 

expense. Now Hoeper has refuted Herrera's rebuttal, thus escalating the conflicting pre 

Dennis 1-lerrera 

Pursuing a 2011 FBI tip about shady sewer claims, Hoeper had Herrera's blessing - unti 

heads of his Claims Bureau; Michael Haase and Matthew Rothschild. In May 2012, Hoe 

investigation was headed. One month later, the Claims Bureau ceased paying for privat 

no-bicl contracts. Yet, Hoeper kept delving into thousands of claims that had already be 

P1 91 0 



>r. ])cnok I(crr https:/1v.·cstsidcoh<;crvcr.cun1/ncv.·s/watchclog.htn1!iioct20 

- - - -----·--- - --- -·- - ---~"-o-:,.,,,_,_ . .,j•)rJ.,1f l,--z-i..-,ri---,1'-f o-rr17·)/.i-- ·,- {,/, l/f.·(// 11- 7r)' ''} _t,(.1-iyL ''·'-·'-'·'·'•(1._l,_(1. l ,>I,,,. ~ .• 1Ltll. 

Hoeper briefed Stewart about a plumbing company that had filed 84 claims for $850,0C 

inflated by $3,000. These $3,000 premiums reportedly ended after a citizen complainec 

fraud and threatened to call the press. Moreover, that plutnbing company abruptly stop1 

after Hoeper alerted the Claims Bureau about the FBl's warning. This sequence of even 

insiders ''had colluded with the plumbing company to submit fraudulent and inflated cl< 
likely warned the plumbing company and tried to cover their tracks_" She then surmised 

served as kickbacks to the Claims Bureau. Whoa! 

The next morning, Herrera replaced her as Chief Trial Attorney. In August 2012, he tran~ 

Attorney's Office but continued her $202,000/year salary. Hoeper states that Herrera th, 

allegations and failed to seek an independent audit of the Claims Bureau. In November 

elected, Herrera told Hoeper that she would be terminated. In January 2014, he kept hi~ 

A contrasting narrative emerges from a 35-page rebuttal by lawyers representing Herre 

Hoeper is not a whistleblower and that she was fired for "sub-par performance" related 
"refusal to be a team player" - not in reprisal for her investigation. Admittedly, he ''refus 

continue her scorched-earth investigation against Mr. Haase ... because she had uncove 

investigation." 

To receive whlstleblower protections, Hoeper must show reasonable cause to believe ti 

wrongdoing occurred. Herrera rejects her whistleblower status by declaring that her O'lll 

evidence of a fraudulent scheme." He quotes this snippet from her Report: "The prelimi 
has not revealed the sort of obvious patterns that could be expected if there was a sch1 

particular plumbing contractors in return for kickbacks." Another excerpt emphasizes tl 

conscientious, hard-working and competent employee." 

Hoeper responds that Herrera selectively "misrepresents" her findings and is "deliberati 

cover up (his) true motivations for terminating Ms. Hoeper." She challenges Herrera to 1 

"replete with detailed examples of wrongdoing by the Claims Bureau." She adds that HE 

lifted from a section titled Additional Investigation is Needed that segued into "specific. 
engaged in unlawful acts." 

While Hoeper viewed the City Attorney's handling of sewer claims as unjustified, Herrer 

been City policy to accept liability for residential sewers damaged by City trees. Contra! 

was unique in paying for tree-damaged sewers, Herrera identifies other California cities 

homeowners for sewer repairs. Hoeper retorts that, "Under the San Francisco chJrter o 

may set policy and only through written ordinances and resolutions." Unlike the cities ci 

p 1 911 
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Hoeper responds that her investigators "documented many instances in which there w1 

despite the DPW inspections and approvals. Plus, she was not allowed to examine the' 

Haase as: misleading when interviewed, concealing citizen complaints, taking 16 disco 

contractor for whom he initiated a $12,000 City sewer deal, and approving no-bld jobs f 
his son. Herrera is portrayed as: "willing to make untrue statements about these easily 

bolster hfs false narrative ... " 

Unfortunately, the City Attorney's Office twice declin_eci to release Hoeper's investigativE 

product and other confidentiality exemptions. So, we are bedeviled by contrasting inteq 

secret document. Herrera does admit that; "The sewer investigation prompted the City· 

that "outdated policies were reformed and allegations against City employees were inv1 

Hoeper's attorney, Stephen Murphy, told us, "Jo's investigation was shut down and her ( 

she had uncovered huge, illegal outlays of taxpayer funds. There's no question she was 

Next, we'll explore Herrera's claim that Hoeper's firing "was in the works long before sh~ 
kick-back scheme" 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Dept. Public Health_ Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

November 2014 

.c-·) ,.,.-•:t • • 

}.weetheart Deals Revealed 1n Construction c 
- - ·. 
' i _J Rebuild 

Benivid tne Perp lAJalk 
he mysterious June 20 expulsion of Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH) Chief Operating Offl 

long roots. According to 780 pages of Llewellyn e-mails, his termination seems connec 

William Decker Company/RM D Enterprise (Decker). The firm, now owned by the late fo1 
Decker, was being investigated by the Office of Labor Standards Enforcement (OLSE) ir 

complained that Decker wasn't paying fair wages. 

OLSE enforces prevailing wage requirements in City contracts. Unlike most other City VI 

OLSE gets results. It substantiates 65o/o of complaints and recovers lost wages from 9C 
By combating wage theft, OLSE protects vulnerable workers from exploitation, reduces: 

services, and allows honest employers to compete fairly. 
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by the Westside Observer under the Sunshine ordinanc 

Decker sent him a FAX detailing $2,324 in repairs to her 2004 Silverado. Llewellyn respc 

Llewellyn sent Decker an Internal bulletin issued to DPH finance officers. Two months Ii 
financial report listing fund balances available for 8 vendors, without sending it to the o 
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... the OSLE reached a Settlement Agreement with Decker on 2/21/ 
any wrongdoing but agreed to pay $28,000, including $19,704 in b; 
employees and $8,296 in penalties for violating the City's prevailin' 

Over the next 8 months, OLSE struggled to round up records of Decker's work, particula 

at DPH headquarters that included a $13,000 renovation of Health Director Barbara Ga1 

occurred between OLSE and Llewellyn and his deputies; Diana Kenyon, LHH Facilities t\ 

Buildings & Grounds Supervisor. Wherever OLSE probed, Llewellyn was made aware. W 

employee sign-in sheets, John Lee forwarded them to Llewellyn noting, "thought you W< 

cc'd Llewellyn on hls responses to trivial inquiries about Decker. 

There were other signs of Llewellyn's pervasive interest in Decker's affairs. On 1 /12/12, 
about work done by Decker before a contract was signed. Kenyon forwarded the inquir; 

P1913 
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We believe the second complaint is about LLewelyn b1 

the first one on the page may be about Llewelyn as wt 

raised by the City Attorney. Frustrated by OSLE's persistence, Kenyon e-mailed Llewelly1 
barking up now." Six minutes later, Llewellyn forwarded the e-mail train to Rachel Decke 

On 2/7 /12 Llewellyn sent his deputy John Lee a quote for a window project submitted t 
message, "Here's your quote, let's get it processed" - and blind cc'd Rachel Decker. OnE 

Diana Kenyon, notified 3 painting contractors, including the Decker Co., of a bid walk-th 

was rescheduled, Kenyon notified the 3 bidders. Llewellyn then forwarded that notice tC 

she got it personally. When the walk-through was delayed, Llewellyn instructed Kenyon 

date for bids, then cc'd Decker - not the others. 

After receiving assurances from Llewellyn that Decker's jobs were "won through comp€ 

reached a Settlement Agreement with Decker on 2/21/12. She did not admit to any wro 

$28,000, including $19,704 in back wages to 6 employees and $8,296 in penalties for vi 

wage law. 

One week after the OLSE Settlement, Decker was awarded a $44,725 contract to paint l 
Grove Street. However, the Accounting Office lacked the funds to cover Decker's bid. Sc 

from a Mental Health facilities account to pay for the job. After a lengthy set of maneu\ 

Llewellyn was a party, funding was granted on 3/19/12. One minute later, Llewellyn for~ 
Office e-mails to Rachel Decker with the emoticon, "Funded:)". However, it took anothe1 

funded contract released. One minute after getting the OK, Llewellyn forwarded that se1 

Decker, writing, "Now you can schedule." 

On 4/18/12, Llewellyn's Assistant, Jessica Kennedy, was trying to tie a name to a relati< 
Llewellyn's deputy, John Lee, Kennedy copied an invoice with Rachel Decker's name on. 

Name on invoice." Lee rushed Kennedy's discovery to Llewellyn, adding; "OOOOOOOOP 

t 
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Besides Llewellyn's close associates, other LHH staffers knew of the Llewellyn-Decker 

for partiality. Given the hospital's repression of dissent, insiders stood mum as Llewelly 

Next month, we'll explore why outsiders exposed the rot at the top of Laguna Honda He 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh. 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

October 2014 
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Clogged Sewers Erupt In Whistlel:l 

Retaliation Claim at City Attorney's 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 

Joanne Hoeper 

~~

1
1 t's hard to ignore a cal\ from the FBI. In December 2011, Joanne Hoeper, City Attar 

; · Deputy, got that call. Homeowners were complaining about a handful of plumbing 
r~~'-1 replace sewer lines - at City expense - because they were supposedly clogged b) 

their sewers were working fine. ln some cases, there were no trees in sight. 

A 20-year veteran of the City Attorney's Office, Hoeper launched an investigation. Unhar 

inner circle. Seven months later, in July 2012, her investigation was quashed, she was r: 
banished to the District Attorney's Office for 17 months_ On January 7, 2014, after turni1 

While acknowledging publicly that "Whistleblowers do not fare well in this world," Hoep 

myself if I didn't speak up." So she filed a whistle blower retaliation claim with the Contr, 

re-instatement, lost wages and other damages. True to form, the Controller referred the 

- the City Attorney's Office . 
... -, 

,T ' 
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No word about an rndependen -1hvest1gat1on. Hi:1eµers a torney, Stephen Murphy,- b!u u 

claim is unnecessarily hostile; the defense that the claim was untimely is also meritles~ 

retaliation claim. We're preparing a lawsuit." 

A Hastings Law School graduate, Hoeper started out with Morrison & Foerster, a corpo1 

Francisco. Though rising to become a partner, she was drawn to community service. H1 
on civil rights abuses in Guatemala and Argentina. In 1994 she joined the City Attorney' 

After Dennis Herrera was elected City Attorney ln 2001, Hoeper rose to become his Chi1 

was recognized as one of the "Top 50 Women Litigators in Californla" for prosecuting a 

defrauded $4.4 mlllion from the Unified School District. Herrera lauded her in a 2003 Pr 

skills, energy and dedication have made an enormous contribution to the public integri1 

enormous price from those who've sought to cheat and defraud San Francisco taxpaye 

Hoeper prosecuted other high-profile frauds and served as an advisor to City officials.~ 

California Super Lawyer" in 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008, based on peer nominations an( 

professional achievement - an honor accorded to 5% of California lawyers. She becam 

advisers, a member of his 4-person Executive Team, until her 2012 investigation. 

Two years later, Herrera's Press Release disparaged her as "a disgruntled former emplo 

to grind against some of her former colleagues, who is expressly seeking a payout ... by 

unsupported charges of serious crimes in a bid to shake-down taxpayers." What happe 

Upon receiving the FBI tip about fraudulent sewer claims, Hoeper alerted the City Attorr 

handles claims against the City. The Claims Bureau Chief, Matthew Rothschlld, ls a Ion! 

fund-raiser for the Democratic County Central Committee and the Alice B. Toklas LGBT 

asset for Herrera's political campaigns. The Claims Bureau Assistant Chief, Michael Ha 

dubious claims were weeded out and that there was no cause for further inquiry. Given 

allegations and a pattern of anomalies in the claims, Hoeper also contacted the Chief c 
Cothran, who provided an investigator. Years before, as an investigative journalist, Coth 

bid for a Municipal Court judgeship. (SF Weekly; 2/28/1996) 

According to her claim, Hoeper informed Herrera that from 2002-2011, the Clty had pai1 

thousand claims, mostly to replace private sewers allegedly damaged by City tree root~ 

the higher cost of replacing rather than simply repairing the sewers_ Importantly, no oth 

replace private sewers clogged by roots. The consensus of arborists and sewer engine 

cause sewer breaks. Rather, roots Infiltrate already broken sewer lines. Further, the rep< 

responsibility of property owners - not the City. 

After persuading homeowners that the City would restore their aging, supposedly dam.:: 

standards,-plumbing company salesmen fiUed out the claims, had the owners sign then 
: _· .:!-·,;(• ,_, -,,.__· g:-' ~ . ~.·--':•ffil ~- > '- " ,, . 
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Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh, 

DPH wrongdoing. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aof.com or www.SFWhist/eb/owers.corn 

September 2014 
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Perp-Walk At Laguna Honda 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 

\ 

. i\ . 

Mike Llewellyn 

:-i -;.: \ flurry of anxious-joyful 

-,i.-, \ messages frorn Laguna 

F 1 Honda Hospital (LHH) 
insiders pinged our cell-phones 

last month. On Friday May 30th, 

Laguna Honda's Chief Operating 

Officer (COO) Mike Llewellyn 

was escorted out of his office 
by Human Resources officials 

and CEO Mivic Hirose. We were 

told that his computer hard-

drive was seized - perhaps by "the Feds", and that the institutional police 

perp-walked him out of the building. Sources who insist on anonymity for 

fear of retaliation whispered that the computers of his deputies were also 

seized. However, these two were temporarily assigned his duties. A week later, LHH blo 

every door of the buildings he had overseen. Another Laguna Honda scandal? 

Our e-mail to Llewellyn on 6/4/14 received an automatic "out of office for an unspecifie 

contacted CEO Hirose, whose representative confirmed that Llewellyn had been placed 

6/2/14, but denied a raid by the Feds. We then requested any notice sent by Hirose to h 

departure. LHH replied "no responsive records" and wouldn't provide answers about a~ 

referred further inquiries to the Department of Public Health information Officer. Taking 

hands of LHH's bumbling CEO is a sure sign of an erupting scandal. 

. ' 
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DPH responded on 6/11 /14, "'iioyiS~Vrerftii'rel~bh~f'fal:\;/,\\~W6Uiil18eld6'1ihii~~ti~f''Af(I 
any interventions at LHH. Finally on 6/20/14, Human Resources confirmed that was "LI 

employment," while the DPH divulged that CEO Hirose was "currently assu1ning the COi 

were no documents announcing this important development until 6/25/14. 

Although LHH is abuzz with gossip and rumors about Llewellyn's downfall, informants· 

managers have been tight-lipped, evasive, misleading or feigning ignorance. They seerT 

pugnacious Communications Director Marc Slavin in June 2013, and the mysterious le; 

Klain, a former Project Homeless Connect director, hospital communications have dete 

example, Laguna Honda's website stagnates with bogus photos, portraits of long-gone 

Community Events from 2011-12. The hospital's Grapevine newsletter is gone. Even thE 

is silent. Inarticulate in person, furtive and prone to flee when questioned by journalists 

scripted confections. Questions about her management are viewed as threats. That's Vi 

clamped under a cone of silence. It prompts questions about how much Hirose knew, a 

-why not? 

Absent a coherent explanation for the departure of Laguna's COO, rumors are running a 

hear that contract bids had been leaked to a favored contractor beginning in 201 O_ In 0 

Office investigated complaints about contracting procedures at SFGH and LHH. As of E 

restrictions have been imposed on vendors doing business at Laguna Honda" per Depu 

Llewellyn's forced resignation on 6/20/14 may be a first step. 

Subordinates who describe Llewellyn as a bully, devious, and arrogant view his downfal 

ignominious finale for Laguna's #2 official who earned $173,742 in 2012-13. Llewellyn i 

SFGH where he had toiled as an undistinguished but bossy engineer since 1991. He rec 

career as Maintenance Supervisor in 2006. In 2008, he was hauled into LHH as Facilitie 

CEO, John Kanaley, and former Health Director Mitch Katz, who wanted to stuff LHH wi· 

Katz had previously dispatched Kanaley, another lackluster SFGH engineer, to "kick son 

revolt against the 2004 Flow Project. Predictably, CEO Kanaley found himself over his h 

related heart attack in March 2009 at age 51. K_atz then fingered an obeisant Mivic Hiro 

with the requisite SFGH pedigree, to fill Kanaley's boots. That would enable Katz to plar 

Kanaley's Big Daddy demeanor - within Laguna Honda's inner circle. 

In November 2009, an under-qualified Mike Llewellyn snagged the COO position "becau 

according to former LHH managers. The job qualifications were reportedly shrunk ta fi1 
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Hirose's tenure. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital whr 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

'"Integrating" Obamacare at the 
. . July 2014 

EIY IJ!.Mi'fl~ fliv~r,p,~gi:Jp,r, IJ~r~l<J<llff .• .....••.•••... 
~- 1 -1 ·_ 1-~] he Department of Pubic Health (DPH), exhorted by favored 

t : contractor Health Management Associates (HMA), is using 
:_J Obamacare to transform itself into a conglomerate via 

"integration." 

Records show that HMA promotes "integration" by breaking down 

"micro-cultures that have their own vision and goals." These "need to be 

taken on by leadership and held accountable as a component of a 

unified approach to care .. ." HMA sees .no room for organizational 

ecosystems and no pitfalls with mergers. "Integration" is HMA's 

panacea. 

This dream of "seamless integration" flopped in 1999 when the DPH set 
up its "Community Health Network" to entice privately-insured patients 

into its safety-net system. Similarly, the 2004 Flow Project imploded 

- \ ·' 

after San Francisco General Hospital (SFGH) tossed younger, troubled and sometimes· 

elderly at Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH). A 4-year take-over of LHH finances by the SFG 

2009. Another dud was Laguna Honda's inulti-million dollar Acute Rehabilitation Unit. C 

SFGH patients - each for $4,527/day- it struggles to serve two per day because eligibl~ 

elsewhere. Nevertheless, "integration" is prescribed for cost overruns throughout the DI 

•>• 000 ;, 0 O O O->O 0 00 O,>OO • •1 0 O ;O '~ 10 O O >" 'O ,, o ',. -.o < 0'" ,> ->O' 0', o; > •-)-, _,' > O 'O 

Reimbursement means that SF General Hospital can charge the 
$6,716/day ... Laguna Honda Hospital charges an average of $968; 

pressure to unload non-paying SFGH patients into LHH regardle~ 
benefit from the transfer." 

SFGH, LHH and 14 City Clinics all spend more than they earn. Therefore, they rely on Ci· 

center of fiscal hemorrhaging is SFGH whose operating costs comprise "more than 50'. 

Controller's Office. Historically, SFGH has lost millions due to sloppy billing practices. H 

speclalty clinics like Dermatology and Psychiatry collect no revenue as they "find it t°iJ 

~~,· .,.,,_, ->·:_":.:~t~~;,:::·-~=~~:-~~~-~;~~~~-;:;:it::~:0}!$!~~1~1~f ~-~-i~-~~~2~~1:~~~ 
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To grow the Network, DPH m~S~~<ip'~r~Gt ~narseeGre1ffiakagera(t/~'rb~c~hrr~di~'<~tt-H1<8~ 
though none had materialized as of late 2013. For Laguna Honda, the plan is to increas 

kidney dialysis. To manage all this, the DPH will "expedite leadership hiring" into a new 

consulting contracts will be issued, more staff will be hired and more technology purch 

Budget Proposal for 2013-14, allocations for SFGH will rise by $225 million plus $17 mi 

HMA admits that all this growth and integration "will be reducing the number of face-to 
adding that staff "must convince (patients) that changes are for them." HMA's "Com mu 

"generate a groundswell of DPH staff support." Its effectiveness will be gauged by staf1 
to measure "employee engagement" with the integration agenda. Unions will be persua 

"better than layoffs." 

"Integration" struck Laguna Honda a decade ago when top LHH executives were replac 

after a.staff revolt against the 2004 Flow Project. The next step, per HMA, is to merge L 

SFGH. Then, SFGH can pour chaos and costs into Laguna Honda without resistance. In 

Executive Council'' is set to "facilitate integration" and "client flow." HMA emphasizes tr 

needs are the integration of Rehabilitation and Psychiatry services with SFGH." Amazln 

population feature" of SFGH is a "high incidence of behavioral issues." No problem; "Mc 

Behavioral Health Skilled Nursing Facility to Laguna Honda is a significant improvemen 

perspective." 

Reimbursement means that SFGH can charge the average patient $6,716/day until thei 

stops. When patients cannot be quickly discharged home or to a nursing facility, they o, 

shortage of nursing home beds in the City. Since LHH charges an average of $968/day, 

unload non-paying SFGH patients into LHH regardless of whether they benefit from the 

One HMA report declares that: "Admission and continued stay at LHH is predicated on 

restorative care; LHH not intended as an option for permanent housing." In other words 
Paradoxically, an HMA marketing analysis envisions: "Laguna Honda will become anotl 

if seniors believe that access to Laguna Honda and other long-term care programs are 

To increase flow from SFGH, Laguna Honda is cutting patient lengths of stay by 12"/o to 

referrals this year. So, the DPH is looking to "subcontract to private long-term care partr 

Although LHH was rebuilt as a sanctuary for "Old Friends," it's becoming a colony for ye 

paying SFGH patients. Elders in need of long-term care are burdens in the corporatized 

Obamacare promotes patient choice, but Laguna Honda will only be a choice for patien 

term care. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aof.com 
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Controller's Office report titled Summary of Health Reform Readiness. 

Enacted by Congress in 2010 and implemented this year, the ACA will provide health in: 

Americans - and billions of public dollars for the commercial insurance industry. Rei1Tib 

homes, home care and hospice agencies will drop by $716 billion over 10 years. lnstea1 

Medicare, the ACA promises more-for-less in a corporate marketplace. While expandin~ 

mandates that individuals buy health insurance or pay tax penalties, provides subsldie'° 
businesses to cover thelr employees. 

O oo oo~'>O 00 ooo no Oe O oo o o o <• '' ,, '' o.o•' '' 0 0 On o.o <• n ooo o o o >no e > c> '' > '• ;o o '" '' '> '• ., e o • 

... DPH's operating budget is expected to rise by 8% next year. To s1 
need 50% more than the $337 million General Fund bail-out provid1 
alarming projections could be used to prop up SFGH at the expense 
elders ... " 

In order to control costs, Obamacare uses a "capitation systerTI": a fixed sum of money 

patient, regardless of the frequency or intensity of services. Currently, reimbursement i: 
whereby payment is made for each service provided, with little incentive to reduce cost 

can choose where they want to receive their health care, thereby introducing competitic 

As of January 2014, 56,000 of 84,000 uninsured San Franciscans have signed up. The t 
persuade these newly insured persons to choose DPH instead of private or non-profit p 

that DPH must transform itself fro1TI the "provider of last resort" to a "provider of choict 

elsewhere, the DPH will lose money. Another challenge ls to stem losses from serving< 

multiple medical and psycho-social ailments, once fee-for-service payments stop. To d1 

more healthy and therefore low-cost patients. Also, it must better manage the rest - likE 

of urgent/emergent care costs at San Francisco General Hospital (SFGH). 

San Francisco anticipated Obamacare with its 2006 Health Care Security Ordinance the 

aside $1.9 billion to cover health care expenses for 265,000 workers. And since 2007, ~ 
care access program, has covered 116,000 persons who didn't qualify for insurance pre 

and its sizable resources, the DPH has outsourced expertise to adapt to Obamacare. H 

(HMA), a for-profit Michigan-based corporation, is getting $2.5 million to tutor DPH ma1 

of original HMA reports upon which the Controller's 51 page Summary is based. 

HMA principals have been embedded in DPH policy circles since being hired to salvage 

A.a \lme4~~· $ · ~RRR~§rJ~ Q,1?lti_iJL~!~~~.,,:fJW;~;fu~~ .~~~,\/,~2~J2g_-yJ~i~A~ ~~l7D~ 
,." .. ~-· .·~ .'.,':_: _. ,,.· ·_.,~-;1:1.: .. ~,,~~·~--~~~~1~~~~ 

p 19 21 



lr. Derck Kc1T 

170of236 

ht1ps://westsidcobscrvcr.coni/news/watchdog.!Jtrnl#oct20 

WESTSIDE~'1 BSEE 
James Madison Freedorn of Information Av1arc 

largely driven by San Francisc'tPGgl1eta1·~1d'~a'tf~g:eokt4f?U.H1Cfligbbtf1k ¥iP-6hfu-:.fKitrcli 6f 
subsidy, and more than 50% of DPH's expenses. HMA warns: "SFGH's ability to managE 

overall financial sustainability of the Network." SFGH is too big to fail. 

There's more. Although DPH is considered a revenue-generating enterprise fund, lt has 

under Obamacare, DPH projects losing $131 million or 16"/o of its State and Federal saf 

years. While revenues from the MediCal expansion may partially offset this loss, DPH's 

to rise by S"lo next year. To stay afloat, DPH would need 50% more than the $337 million 

in 2012-13. That's "an unsustainable scenario" per the Controller's Report. Such alarmir 

prop up SFGH at the expense of long-term care for elders - as we will explore next mar 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh• 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

May2014 

SiV1kilf19 Sources 
The Controller's Whistleblower Pri 

By Dr. Maria Rivero & Dr. Derek Kerr 

~i'~'~,J n 2003, voters funded the Controller's Whistleblower Program (WB_P), expecting th 
f ,·: whistleblowers to root out fraud, waste and abuse. In response to criticism for sh1 

r·. - WBP's 2012-13 Annual Report laid it out; "The Whistleblower Program does not ac 

complainants in their disputes with city departments ... " 

Tips sent to the Whistleblower Program have fallen from 465 to 29 
WBP Manager Steve Flaherty ... was "unable to determine any cau• 
Program should look within, at how it treats whistleblowers." 

Unfortunately, reporting fraud invariably provokes "disputes" - and denials. And how de 

are solid or figments of disputes? They check with implicated departments. If whistlebl 

"disputes" unworthy of engagement, the WBP risks acting as an advocate for responde 

While shunning whistleblowers because "the program must conduct its investigations ( 

collaborates with targeted City departments. Most complaints are referred back to ther 

instances. when the WBP independently conducts an investigation, department heads~ 

P1922 
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has ever been sustained. 

The Annual Report also announced an "updated" on line Complaint Fann. The form is n( 

tips. No complaint can be submitted without checking off: "I certify that all of the state1 

are true, complete and correct to the best of my knowledge. l understand that ... the Con· 

persons ... swear to the truth of their statements by taking an oath administered by the C 

perjury" ... Oblivious to whistleblower fears and their limited access to evidence, the WB 

scammers. Dozens of potential sources will be turned off by this bristling language. 

Compare this hectoring with the way our Police Department (SFPD) engages tipsters. l 
Anonymous Tip Line states: "Crime prevention cannot be achieved by the police alone. 

officers must work hand-in-hand with the public ... we depend heavily on your assistance 

use and convenience." Using this Tip Line is a breeze. To foster comrnunication, there's 

to text back and forth with the tipster. The SFPD also offers an Online Reporting Systen 

entries. But unlike the Controller's Office, the SFPD doesn't force sources to swear they 

their tips. Although false reports to the police can have serious consequences, the SFP 

the fire and brimstone. 

Why is the WBP complaint process so adversarial compared to the SFPD's, if both werE 

Well, complaints to the Controller point to government misconduct whereas tips to the 

misconduct. When tips about government wrongdoing are unwelcome, whistleblowers 

Complaints to the WBP have fallen below 300 for the first time since 2006_ 

This decline prompted WBP Director, Tonia Lediju, to agree to a Complainant Satisfacti1 

meeting of the Citizens' General Obligation Bond Oversight Committee (CGOBOC). Alsc 

a Fraud Hotline Webinar Series to review best practices in the field. The one-sidedness 

revealed when a webinar lecturer opined about Satisfaction Surveys for hotline users, "1 

why they don't like the Sheriff's treatment?" Programs that vlew whistleblowers as disg1 

their tips to sink. 

Tips sent to the Whistleblower Program have fallen from 465 to 291 in the past 5 years 

examined external events, but was "unable to determine any causality .. " Perhaps the Pr 

how it treats whistleblowers. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

April 2014 
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persons over 65 exceed the City avetage, and most will eventua ly need . 

supportive services. 

Although women comprise 49.3% of the City's residents, the majority of our_ .,,~1 
seniors are women. As they age, women increasingly outnumber their male\. 
peers. In San Francisco, there were 63,000 women over age 65 compared 

to 48,000 men. Of these, 22,000 lived alone, twice the number of solo '\ 

males. Among those 85 and older, women outnumber men by 2 to 1. 

These demographics explain why, for decades, the majority of Laguna 
Honda Hospital residents have been elderly- and female. Although LHH 

served more young patients than other nursing homes, caring for elderly, 

disabled San Franciscans had long been its core mission. Accordingly, "Old 

Friends" became the emotional theme of the 1999 Proposition A campaign 

to rebuild the hospital. At the time, hospital records show that two-thirds of· 

LHH residents were over 65, 52°/o were over 75 years of age - and 56o/o 

were women. 

That changed abruptly with the notorious Flow Project of 2004-05. Laguna Honda was. 
non-paying SFGH patients, as well as a way-station in the Care not Cash "housing conti 

Department of Public Health (DPH) introduced a new paradigm - the City's "neediest" V 

"psycho-social rehabilitation". Admissions from San Francisco General Hospital (SFGH;_ 

flooding LHH with "hard-to-place" patients. For the first time in memory, women - and el 
minorities at LHH. The percent of female residents plunged from 53% to 47% in 2 years 

:.) i:'.~{; 

_J _J 
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Given the dramatic drop in elders and women served by Laguna Ho 
"Old Friends" who can no longer care for themselves? Where do the 
whether the care they receive elsewhere is comparable to what the 
Laguna Honda provides?" 

The new population included younger, able-bodied men with aggressive behaviors and 

endangered others and required specialized services. They needed a highly-structured, 

LHH's elderly, physically disabled residents fared best in a home-like setting with more 

Although Mayor Gavin Newsom was forced to abort the Flow Project in 2005, the hos pi 

didn't return to its prior levels. Before the new building opened in December 2010, a revi 

launched. 
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shipped to out-of-County nursing homes. Since SFGH serves a mucn 

lower percentage of elders than the 13.7o/o living in the City, the new LHH will likely serv-

The infirmities of old age, including poverty, persist_ The number of City nursing home t 
own 2012 "Co1nmunity Health Status Assessment" warns that; " ... the population over a! 

11%by2030. The projected growth in San Francisco's aging population has implication 

term care options ... " 

No matter. As Patrick Monette-Shaw reported in the June 2013 Westside Observer, LHf

San Francisco General's Mental Health Rehabilitation Facility. And in August 2013, LHH 
safety measure from its Medical Staff Bylaws: 24-hour Sheriff's security services are nc 

with a police-hold are admitted. 

Given the dramatic drop in elders and women served by Laguna Honda, what happens I 

longer care for themselves? Where do they go? Who checks whether the care they rece 

what the new $585 million Laguna Honda provides? 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

'
( ,;:: . ,

; ' -

March 2014 

FEAR and FAILINCiS at. LACUNA HONDA 
· __ j~J 

: r_ :.1 mployee morale is a key driver of quality of care in hospitals. In April 2010, one) 

-~_. _ L.-J into the tenure of CEO Mivic Hirose, Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH) commisslon1 
'---·- ··-·· an Employee Satisfaction Survey. The results were dismal. Out of 1,350 surveys 

distributed, only 258 were returned. A response rate of 19'7'o indicates apathy, mistrust, 1 

fear of management reprisals. 

One month before that survey, City employees had been rocked by mass layoff notices. 

Few LHH staffers were willing to convey criticism when their livelihoods were threatenE 

Having scrambled through administrative shake-ups, mission changes and altered plan 

many felt unsettled before the December 2010 move into the new building. 

The survey asked a series of questions to which staff could respond "Excellent", "Good' 

Good indicate satisfactory, while Fair and Poor show dissatisfaction. 
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" Communication by Supervisor 

Appreciation of Supervisor 

15% 

12o/o 

31% 

27% 

32% 

28% 

22% ~ 
s 

! 
a 
n 

presented to the Health Commission. No remedial plan was announced and no follow-t 

did not renew its contract with the surveyor. 

However, in July 2013, LHH hired the market research firm Corey, Canapary & Galanis (( 

survey. In his contract proposal, VP Jon Canapary slyly promised, "We respond to the a1 

public agencies must operate under with real-world solutions." CEO Hirose values spin, 

something more than straight data analysis. Unlike Laguna Honda's prior survey ccintra 

in healthcare surveys. lt does, however, have political polling experience, having assist€ 

Mayor" campaign. Its motto is; "Ask the right questions, and you get the real answer." 

··~····~·······················~····••>••····~h···················· 
... this Employee Satisfaction Survey, obtained via a public records 1 

made public nor presented to the Health Commission. No remedial 
and no follow-up survey was conducted." 

Four years after its first Employee Satisfaction Survey, LHH has had enough time to.per 

threats no longer depress hospital workers. They've had 3 years to settle into the new f. 
changes, plus new, savvy surveyors who "ask the right questions," satisfaction scores a 

regardless of who's in charge. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital. Co 

~ Df,,,rekonyanf'fess@aol.com 
?ij Pt! Maria Rivero & Dr. Derek Kerr 
'-" I -,: 

J .J BLOWING OFF WHISTLEBLOWE 
THE ETHICS COMMISSION 

t:i''f)~~"'\j he scandal encircling the Georgia State Ethics Commission is a wake-up call fa 
t~"'-'"· Ethics investigators were removed after inspecting Governor Nathan Deal's can 

[:'..:.:-- were told to alter documents about the case, and met retaliation when they refl 

can be as perilous as reportfng it. Dodging tips about governmental wrongdoing can ex 

Commissioners alike. 
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complaints only - "in writing and submitted on a form specitrcally provided by the Corr 

their How to File a Complaint guidelines. Further, formal complaints must identify "the~ 

vlolated." Few tipsters have this legal knowledge. All other complaints, whether deliverE 
e-mail are declared informal. And, we are warned, Ethics has "no obligation ... to process 

They can be tossed. Even if complaints do reach the Factual Investigation stage, prosp, 

requirement to interview complainants - the gold standard for investigations. Instead, 

"interview of the respondent and any witnesses." The reason for this bias, as Director Si 

respondents are more likely to provide "exculpatory information." 

Empowering staffers at the expense of whistleblowers was a weird outcome of deman 

oversight by Commissioners Eileen Hansen and Joe Lynn in 2005. Because of confiden 

public has no assurances that staff is carrying out its mandate." ln his July 2005 respor 
disclose dismissed and settled cases in Enforcement Summaries, and to categorize in( 

monthly Director's Report. However, St. Croix's July 2006 follow-up report, Investigation 

course. \t lobbied for "streamlining the process" via more staff autonomy and less tran~ 

workload! The Commission approved the plan 4 to 1 in August 2006, with Hansen diss( 

Ethics Regulations Include goal #6; "Delegating to the Commission staffthe maximum< 

resolut\on of complaints at staff level, while retaining oversight of staff activities." Ase: 
Westside Observer, that oversight is illusory. 

Given maximum discretion, staff explain How to Fife a Complaint on the Ethics website: 

aware that the Ethics Commission's Regulations ... provide that a person accused of a vi 

be provided with a copy of the complaint."Reassuring? Not for whistleblowers. Plus it's c 

Regulations, Sec. Xll.B.3, state that the Director "1nay provide a copy of the complaint tc 
to the conduct of the investigation." Importantly, the City Charter Appendix C3. 699- 7 3 re~ 

respondents with "a summary of the evidence" - not a "copy of the complaint." Big diffe 

can identify whistleblowers by the details given and the grammar used. Although the 01 
offered, it comes with the off-putting proviso that Ethics staff are "not required to proce 

complaints." 

Equally inhospitable from the current Ethics brochure: Ethics "investigates complaints< 

complaints filed with the Ethics Commission."Not so. When the Whistleblower Protectio 

February 2002 - as recommended by the Commission itself - Ethics took responsibili· 
against whistleblowers who filed complaints within their own departments, as well as t 

Attorney, the DA and the Ethics Commission. By wrongly shrinking Ethic's jurisdiction, ti 

complaints_ Worse, Ethics staffers may be dismissing valid retaliation clai1ns based on 

duties. Maybe that's why Ethics averages just 18 investigations a year. For example, thE 

tells us that "staff resolved 20 cases" a~q, "This number does not include the myriad ofi 

~--"-~= ;··;·-,~.:~::,')~~~:~~~t::~:~~~::;~:·"~~;~~;~1~@-~~~~::• 
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"duplicate law enforcement Investigations." However, the passage of Proposition E in 21 

"investigate complaints before investigations by the City Attorney or District Attorney a1 

by the DA or City Attorney does not prevent Ethics from investigating concurrently; poli1 

In sum, the Ethics Commission deters reporters of government wrongdoing. Until reforr 

best served if Whistleblowers obtain legal counsel, then expose misconduct publicly. 

*Georgia's Ethics Scandal 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

December 2013 
.;; <> o J> o o q" ~ ~ n" D & .) ~ O ~ ? o n" ~ n 0 <>" o" o O O ~ " ~ ~ ~ ~ '<> e ~ o ~ .) O ~ ~ ~ O c> ., o o o o ~ <' ~ <" ~ oi 

Deterring Whistleblowers 
r~.~'b\ i'JJ. rq1 e pr~vi~usly revie~ed how the ~thic_s Com~ission (Ethics). "dismiss~d" whi 
\~·-)t~lj retaliation compla1n~s. _But getting rid of wh1stl~blower claims doesn t stop 

•··• ~ deterrents serve to l1m1t exposures of wrongdoing. · 

Commissioners are the first line of deterrence. Llke a skilled courtier, Positive ResourcE 

gained an Ethics seat this June after promising the Board's Rules Committee "to build c 
Andrews' adulation of said legacy was based on schmaltz rather than his own observa1 

Though viewed as a phantom by Ethics watchdogs, Andrews portrayed himself as eng< 

2 years, a fawning Commissioner Dorothy Liu had showered thanks and praise on her E 

responses credited her with more virtues than she possessed. By reframing this fiatter~ 

"go along.to get along" ethos for proximity to power. 

• o •~•~• o •• •~ •~• o ••• • •• o o •~• •• •<> '" 0000 o o •• o >• o oo • o&o •• ~" • o o •o' 

Renne labored like an elephant, and brought forth a mouse. After 6 
interviews, she issued a 5-part, 112-page "limited, preliminary rev 
evidence" and could "offer no conclusions" about tainted contracts 

When asked by Supervisor Malia Cohen to showcase his aptitude for managing contra\ 

how he led his agency to move downtown despite staff concerns. No mention of the 3-. 

Legal Director - and whistleblower - Jane Gelfand (SF W~ek/y May 22, '13)_. Since Ethic 

whistleblower retaliation claims, Andrews cast a pall over his candidacy by hiding his o 
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Gascon. Renne's initial Statement of Economic Interests (SEI) showed millions investee 

income exceeding $200,000 from law firms - including the one his wife founded - plus~ 

property that sold for $2.2 million in October. One year later, Renn e's SEI portfolio has b 

with 82 invest1nents valued between $1 and $9 million. This world is far removed from 

an occasional populist stance, Renne identifies with the few who really know. He ended 

Ethics meeting by dismissing public critlcism of Ethics Director John St. Croix as "al/ ur 

way any of us feel who know what you're really doing." 

Relevant too is Louise Renne's analysis of the 2012 SF Housing Authority (SFHA) whist 

alleged contract-rigging, harassment and retaliation. After protesting mismanagement, 

Tim Larsen, Roger Crawford and Bill Ford were laid off. Two of them sued. In Novembe1 

commissioned by the SFHA to conduct an "independent investigation" as part of a 2-ye 

Legal Services" for up to $195,000 yearly. According to the SFHA, as of late May 2013, I 

totaling $174,560. For this payout, Renne labored like an elephant, and brought forth a r 

interviews, she issued a 5-part, 112-page "limited, preliminary review" that "did not find 

conclusions" about tainted contracts. How much would a full, final review cost? In cont 

Budget Analyst cost $162,000 and found that contracts "were handled so poorly as tog 

favoritism." Renne also chose to "express no opinion about. .. unlawful discrimination, har 

Just like Ethics investigations, hers found "Insufficient evidence of retaliation." Instead, 

and unprofessional conduct" and a single instance of "discriminatory conduct" by form 

Having been black-balled by Louise Renne, the SFHA whistleblowers bypassed Cammi: 

took their retaliation claims directly to Superior Court. 

Priorities also serve as deterrents. Initially, Ethics handled complaints on a first-come, f 
Whistleb\owers had a chance, even though campaign finances garnered more attentior 

ever-increasing mandates. That's why its resources steadily grew, frorn an operational t 
staffers in 1994, to $2.45 million and 18 positions in 2013. But all along, Ethics lamentE 

Under-resourcing was nettlesome between 2003 and 2008 when Ben Rosenfield wast~ 

2008, Rosenfield was appointed Controller and promptly cut 41 % from his Whistleblow1 

Commissioners had lobbied for more funds, to no avail. lt took a 2004-05 Civil Grand Jl 

Ethics Commission Budgeting and Staffing Issues, to wrangle an extra $326,000 from F 

whistleblower cases were being buried. When whistleblowers arose among their staff, I 

Mabel Ng and St. Crolx took it as insubordination. Fortunately, the Society of Professio! 

of Information awards to Ethics whistleblowers: Joe Lynn in 2003, then Oliver Luby and 

Potential whistleblowers had gotten the message: stay away from Ethics_ 

{Jr. Maria Rivero a_nd Dr._ Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh· 
.'.,;\" 
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LJic_",I 
The City Charter requires that Ethics forward to the City and District Attorneys 

complaints that appear to show a violatlon of Ethics laws. Similarly, Ethics can't even is 

letters of advice without vetting by the DA and City Attorney. We can infer why whistleb 
complaints are doomed by looking at the legal machinations that undermine Sunshine 

complaints. 

In a 3/18/11 Bay Citizen story, Ethics Executive Director John St. Croix admitted that 14 
Sunshine complaints "were dismissed based on advice from the City Attorney's Office ... " 
Attorney has a duty to defend City officials. Since Sunshine complaints are all directed; 
complainants find themselves opposed by City Attorneys who coach Ethics staff. Fortu 
require the Director to send; "a monthly summary to the Commission of each complain1 
reason for dismissal." Unfortunately, the Director and City Attorney calculate how little t 
information shall comply with the confidentiality provisions of the Charter." Blunders an 
disguised· in confidential summaries - especially bungled whistleb\ower investigations 
oversight is illusory. A July 2006 Staff Report revealed that Commissioners rubber-stan 
dismissals. In September 2006, the Commission agreed to forego monthly reviews, anc 
St. Croix's dismissals. In 2011, a Commissioner confided to the Grand Jury that, "the Cc 
Executive Director in his decision to dismiss a case." Llke Sunshine complaints, Whistle 
City officials. That's why they're always dismissed. !n government misconduct cases, E· 
City Attorney's wangling. 

• oO• 00 0 0 >ft 00 >~•. OOQO O• 0 0 • 0 ··~·· >O• 0 0 000 o 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 OQ OOQ 0 D > •"'' 

Ethics Executive Director John St. Croix admitted that 14 of 27 Sun 
dismissed based on advice from the City Attorney's Office .. :• The Ci 
to defend City officials. Since Sunshine complaints are all directed 
complainants find themselves opposed by City Attorneys who coac 

Ethics referrals to the District Attorney's Office offer little hope for whistleblowers. Our: 
Department of public Health contracts sat in the DA's Office for 9 months. After we con 
interrogated former Health Director Mitch Katz, then referred our case back to Ethics. A 

10/14/2020, 12:00 PM 



>r. LJerek Kerr https://v-·estsideobscrveLcon1/ne\\'SilYatchdog.ht1nllioct20 

_._;:-:7").'G~ 

WESTSIDE f.it · \t.,'rC~lt'l'!f1'~'~:~ 
~,d t»..;,) '<i.;,.~- 'i('' t'~" c..\fiJj/l 'Lf.!~', .~'} ,tJ,P '«'I;· .~. •···-··"" "it~ .. ~---· ;~ - - ~1 

:-~-- r 

Jan1es Madison Freedon1 of lnforn1atlo11 P.v;an 
"1a11 '-'·' . "'· v v ""'" vv i:: a"'""'u '-·_fi-0!Coft•~;;,l1'F ~~}{'Jg ~Y~)HB~•-Jl7l')'P,~·'i'J /i '1 (-.Z, 1 U;'l;;;\11R_Urfl('~'/-\ L\'f.'"i'P'i' 

SF Staff Report adds that "since 201'1 staff has conducted a much more extensive pre/fr; 

system - to ensure that only credible formal complaints are "brought forward." However, 

"the last year or so" (9/12/11to9/24/12) still showed a 74o/o dismissal rate. 

Our Ethics Regulations state that the Director "may dismiss the complaint if the allegati 

action." Most complaints - including retaliation complaints - are euthanized under this 

Implementing L.A.'s "much more extensive preliminary review" - prior to investigations -

because fewer complaints will be investigated, and only investigated cases are publicly 
complaints be buried? There's no provision for discarding complaints, though it's been 1 

45 complaints in 2004, St. Croix tossed an undisclosed number of "non-viable" cases. 1 

portrayed the maneuver as "closing investigations that are unlikely to be resolved." 

Occasionally, the Director opens a "formal investigation." This route usually ends in disr 

"not probable cause to believe" that any violation occurred. Then, the dismissal recomn 

Commissioners. Before 2011, dismissals were automatically endorsed - unless two C< 

Session review. After the Grand Jury's lashing report, Ethics lowered the review thresho 
request. Alarmed by an "abdication of oversight responsibilities," the Jury also urged Cc 

investigations recommended for dismissal." They refused_ By staying a course that null 

devolved from favoring respondents, to suppressing complainants, to abetting repr\sab 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
DpH wrongdoing. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

October 2013 

ETHICS COMMISSION TO WHISTLEBLOWI 
~i}'.~:f:] he City Charter directs the Ethics Commission (EC) to investigate WhistleblowE 

\ · ~ 1995, al! have been Dead On Arrival. Diagnosing why they are dismissed is harr 
;~-"- however, the notion that 100% are invalid is implausible. Like others, our retalia· 

dismissed, and then validated in litigation, resulting in a $750,000 settlement and mane 

Rights for Laguna Honda Hospital executives. Most likely, Ethics rejects Whistleblower 

automatically or lntentionally. We can infer how it's done by dissecting other complaint 

;~oo~ o • o, 0 o oo oO, oo•o o '", .,, o, o o o o >,,, ,,. o,"' ,_, ., ' ' '• 'o '.," ·' _, o', o,' c,, "' o ,, o 

____ _; - . .J Such was the "culture of failure" described by the late Joe Lynn, a 5 
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were convicted of illegal diversion of $150,000 in public funds, Luby was forced out of I 

article; Ethics Case Study in Scandal: City College Money Laundering details the cover-l 

Another way to bury complaints is to copy them to those accused. That's how Ethics he 

1995 until perhaps mid-2008. In a July 2006 memo, St. Croix admitted: "Prior to a few y 

was filed, staff would send a copy of the complaint to the Respondent." Two years later 

officially halted when the Board of Supervisors amended the Whistleblower Protection• 

disclosures of source identities. Until then, as CitiReport editor Larry Bush told the Boa1 

who blew the whistle ... immediately had their name turned over to their Department by· 

Historically, 43o/o of all Ethics complaints were referred back to implicated departments 

Civil Service Commission and Human Resources. Nowadays, the numbers are withheld 

considered dismissed. And, if Ethics doesn't investigate them, their outcomes aren't se1 

Summaries. Such invisible, untracked referrals multiply opportunities for white-washes 

A sure-fire way to neutralize retaliation complaints is to refer them to Human Resource! 

Supervisors drafted the Expanded Protections for Whistle blowers Ordinance in 2002, it 

follows; "The Ethics Commission may refer matters to the Department of Human Resat 

concerning reinstatement, restitution and discipline." Ominously, those crucial last 5 we 
Ordinance 29-02 passed. Instead of an independent Ethics review, cases are slipped to 

managerial reprisals. 

Inept investigations cannot substantiate wrongdoing, so complaints get dismissed by c 
failure" described by the late Joe Lynn, a 5-year Ethics Officer who then served as Comr 

an August 2007 Fog City Journal series titled; They're Back - Ethics Resumes Meltdow 

"overpowering evidence of professional incompetence" among senior staff, and ends v.. 
who "get spoon-fed by staff." Complaint denials resulted from staff's lack of investigati1 

training offers, salaries that didn't draw good investigators, and a City Hall that Was OK 

Guardian piece, Watchdog Calls for Major Reform of Ethics Commission, Lynn saw no i 

changed. Without capable sleuths, reporting retaliation is futile. 

Sham investigations also ensure dismissals. For example, willful violations of the Suns 

the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force (SOTF) to Ethics for enforcement. These have beer 

when St. Croix was hired. In a 5/7/09 Fog City Journal expose, Ethics Commission Airs 

announced, "We now understand why the Ethics Commission has dismissed each of th 

provides a video wherein St. Croix admits to ignoring complainants during investigatior 

exculpatory information that's involved in talking to complainants ... it's generally the res 

information ... " Interviews were reserved for accused officials and City Attorneys represE 

SOTF members and their audio-taped Hearings were disregarded. Warranted investlga 

P1932 
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complaints, the 2010-11 Civll Grand Jury investigated. In San Francisco's Ethics Com mi 

Watchdog, it reported; "The Ethics Commissioners have relinquished their authority tot 

concerning his recommendations for dismissal." Notoriously, Ethics dismissed 33 of 3L 

October 2004 and October 2012, a record exceeded only by the 1 OO'Yo denial of retaliati( 

Next month, we'll examine other ways whistleblower complaints are dismissed by Ethic 

and District Attorneys. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr, as senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital expo~ 

Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

September 2013 

WHISTLEBLOWERS 

By Dr. Maria Rivero & Dr. Derek Kerr 

The First American Whistleblo\11 
_1--:-:0 n July 30, 1778, while at war against imperial 
; __ ,_:l)-_) Tyranny, the Continental Congress empowered 

'"-•-·"___ whistleblowers to protect the new Republic; 

"Resolved, That it is the duty of all persons in the service 
of the United States, as well as all other the inhabitants 

thereof, to give the earliest information to Congress or 

other proper authority of any misconduct, frauds or 

misdemeanors committed by any officers or persons in 

the service of these states, which may come to their 

knowledge." 

The genesis of our first Whistleblower Protection Act was 

a Revolutionary War battle in Rhode Island, aboard the US 

Navy warship Warren. There, ten whistleblowers - Navy 

and Marine officers - planned to expose the Incompetence, misconduct and war crime 

Commodore Esek Hopkins. Their mission was as perilous as Hopkins was formidable. 

occupation, the Continental Congress had recruited Hopkins to relieve General George: 
trouble and vexation" of unruly naval crews. Owner of a large merchant fleet, Hopkins h 

privateering during the French and Indian War. His brother Stephen governed Rhode Isl< 

of Independence. His.son John was captain of the Warren. His flagship flew his perso · 
,_.fy, '";i_ '.\£•_.,-"\ii"'"'""-. ,· 
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Virginia" and attack the BritisH'lre~l!-~e1f£ir~lfilit~l!71i~i1aIBa~11i~lb~d':!'l'h~IM. i;-~'slfc'c¥, 
depot, but later allowed enemy frigates to escape unchallenged from U.S. waters. Rarin 

being anchored "in a total state of inactivity for Several Months ... therein they could not 

defence". Hopkins struggled to recruit sailors, who made better money with privateers 1 

British prisoners, glving them a choice to man his fleet - or be "placed in irons" and star 

he "treated prisoners in the most inhuman & barbarous manner." 

On February 19, 1777, just seven months after the Declaration of Independence, the ter 

Whistleblower Complaint: "We are ready to hazard everything that is dearest, and if nee 

the welfare of our country ... We are personally well acquainted with the real chciracter ar 

commodore Hopkins ... we (are) ... sincerely and humbly petitioning the honorable MarinE 

enquire into his character and conduct for we suppose ... he has been guilty of such crirr 

the pub!ick department he now occupies ... " Marine Captain John Grannis was picked tc 

petition from Rhode Island to Congress in Philadelphia. 

At the time, there was no First Amendment to uphold freedom of speech. Whistleblowe 

country at war, insubordination was threatening. Yet. complainant Grannis was treated. 

interviewed, not arrested. A Congressional investigation was conducted without secrec 

"Have you a personal Acquaintance with Esek Hopkins, Esq?" 

A:"Yes, I have had a personal Acquaintance with him since I came on board the Ship." 

Q: "Did you ever hear him say any Thing disrespectful of the Congress of the United StatE 

A:"! have heard him at different Times ... speak disrespectfully of the Congress ... that the) 

who _did not understand their Business ... that they were a Parcel of Lawyers Clerks, that 

the Country would be ruined ... " 

Q:"Do you know any Thing about his Treatment of Prisoners?" 

A:"I was on board the Frigate Providence when ... Twenty Prisoners ... were ... asked ... wheth 

They answered No .... Orders from the Commodore (were) to put them in !rans, to keep ti 
some prisoners ... were forced to do Ship's Duty by Commodore Hopkins Orders, and he 

when a Cartel was settled and other prisoners were exchanged, but don't know that lt VI 

assigned for not exchanging them was, that he wanted to have them enlist on board th1 

Q:"Commodore Hopkins is charged with being a Hindrance to the proper Manning of the 

you know relative to this Charge?" 

A:"I think him unfit for cornmand ... his Conversation is at Times so wild and orders so u1 
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suspended from his command in the American Navy." 

Outraged by the "unjust and false complaintsu filed by his subordinates, Hopkins retalia 

petition's "prime mover," a Lieutenant Marven, an associate of Thomas Paine, who him,<: 

leaking that France was supporting the Revolution. Interrogated by both Hopkins, fathe 

guilty of signing "scurrilous papers against his Commander-in-Chief." Expelled from the 

first casualty in a 235-year epidemic of retaliatory firings. Still thirsting for revenge, upo 

January 1778, Hopkins sued all ten whistleblowers for "criminal libel," demanding 1 0,0( 

Marven and midshipman Shaw were jailed without means for legal representation. The 

intervention of Congress" after being "arrested for doing what they then believed and st 

duty." Their appeal was read before Congress on July 23rd and another investigation er 

On July 30, 1778, the Continental Congress passed America's first Whistle blower Prate· 

Founding Fathers in Congress understood the dangers of retaliation, and criminalizing, 

wartime budget crisis, and National Security concerns, they noted that the whistleblow1 

service of the United States." Therefore, Congress "Resolved, That the reasonable expe 

be defrayed by the United States." Further, the whistleblowers were furnished, without h 

personnel file, and all records of "the proceedings of Congress upon the complaint oftt 

Hopkins, Esq." Armed with funds for attorneys and depositions, plus investigative files i 
President John Hancock and others," they were vindicated by a Jury. Hopkins was orde 

1779, Congress disbursed $1,418 for the whistleblowers' legal fees, "to be paid to Mr. S 

granted his Navy pension, despite his court-martial for being a detractor. A decade late1 

Speech" and the "Right to Petition" would protect the people, the Founders enshrined th 
Amendtnent of our Constitution. 

Acknowledgement: Research by Stephen M. Kohn, Esq., Director of the National Whist/et 

(www.whistlebfowers.org) inspired this article. see: whistleb/owers.org/index.php?optior. 

id"1251 

Dr Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

July-August 2013 
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whistleblowers are desaparecidos and the retaliation rate is always zero. The 

failure to enforce the Whistleblower Ordinance makes it meaningless. It also 
makes it deceptive - a trap for trusting tipsters. Worse, non-enforcement forces 

whistleblowers to sue the City. 

The roots of deception reach back to 1993 when the EC was sold to voters as a 
means to clean up our City government, but its architects inserted controls to 

protect the interests of politicians, lobbyists and City officials. For example, the 

original "Regulations for Investigations and Enforcement" restrained the Executive Dire1 

prosecutions. Instead of receiving designated funding, Ethics must plead with City Hall 

Commissioners are appointed by th~ Mayor, Board of Supervisors, District and City Att< 

Assessor. Fawning candidates prevail. In April 2011, the Board had to fill the EC seat th 

general public." Dorothy Liu, an employment attorney with a large firm that represents C 
appointment by promising; "I would respect the integrity of the Board, for certain. I wou 

all of you about issues that need to be addressed." Predictably, complaints that touch a 

Commissioners and approve its_ budget go nowhere. 
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The failure to enforce the Whistleblower Ordinance makes it meani 
deceptive - a trap for trusting tipsters. Worse, non-enforcement fc 
sue the City." 

In a world of complainants and respondents, Ethics empathizes with the latter. Goal #3 

"Protecting the privacy rights of those accused of ethics violations ... " There's no goal to 
service. At an April 2005 meeting, Executive Director John St. Croix emphasized; "conf11 

because investigations and enforcement matters impact the lives and livelihoods of re: 

lauds the City Attorney, whose duty is to defend City officials, as the "higher authority" ii 

Citizeris who criticize his habitual dismissal of ethics complaints are labeled "believers 

Ethics adjudicated a Sunshine complaint against St. Croix in October 2012, citizens wa1 

conflicts of interests. Unaware that bias is ubiquitous and often sub-conscious, Cammi 

City Attorney's appointee, claimed immunity because; "we act with regard to City off1cia 
situation is sensitive." Studley explained that she examines both sides of any issue, anc 

Attorney says so - and "as long as ... we feel that we have an open mind." This responder 

whistleblower claims. That's one reason retaliation persists. 

Building upon re_spondent bias, Ethics has rendered whistleblowers, and retaliation, invi 
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The opacity spread even farther, in defiance of Article IV that requires Ethics to annual!~ 

complaints received", (b)" the type of conduct complained about", and (c) "the number 

the number of referrals to other agencies disappeared, though they had amounted to al 

as a "type of conduct" had been quashed. By 2005, Annual Reports deleted the count o 

still appeared in the Director's Monthly Reports until August 2011, when the number of 

by the sum of pending investigations. 

Once invisible, whistleblower retaliation complaints are easily buried. Rarely has Ethics 

don't add up. Meeting minutes for December 2001 show that 7 whistleblower retaliatio1 

reviewed since June 1995. That's about one a year. Ten years later, in September 2011, 

CGOBOC (the oversight body for the Controller's Whistleblower Program) that Ethics ha 

16 years we've been in business." Again, one a year. He added, "When investigated, soil 

Others could not be proven." Jn other words, all were rejected. lt's intriguing, however, th 

investigations listed in Ethics "Enforcement Summaries" between October 2004 and Ar 

retaliation. That's just 2 in 8.5 years - a lot less than one-a-year as St. Croix implied. Wf 

Clues rolled in after we protested the City's failure to monitor whistle blower retaliation. 

to report outcomes of retaliation cases to the Controller's Whistleblower Program. Sud1 

upward. The Whist\eblower Program's 2011-12 Annual Report shows that Ethics review 

months. None were sustained. Amazingly, however, Ethics was now reporting 2 retaliat 

of one per year. No explanation for this startling 20-fold increase - despite our inquirie~ 

investigated and noted in Ethics Enforcement Summaries for 2011-12. The other 16 WE 

review." 

At the November 2012 CGOBOC meeting, Rebecca Rhine strained to downplay this sur\ 

being;" ... retaliation for any number of other activities, but not claims of retaliation for bt 

EC's jurisdiction covers whistleblower retaliation complaints, and since the 17 retaliatio 

Whistleblower Program, why would they be anything other than whistleblower claims? I 
as adverse employment actions for engaging in legally protected activities - most of VY 

about misconduct. The spike in retaliation claims, and their relentless dismissals, must 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

June 2013 
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reports about City services, plus those from Bond Projects. Still, 

they stuck to quarterly meetings, squeezing in an extra one 
yearly to plough through the work. Only after an August 2011 
scolding by civic activist Nancy Wuerfel did they vote for 6 

meetings annually. 

Lapses in oversight of the Whistleblower Program came to light during May 2010 medi; 

tips, and retaliation, related to Laguna Honda's Patient Gift Fund scandal. So in July 20· 
3-member "Standing Committee on Audit Review" to better oversee the Whistleblower I 

the 2010-11 Civil Grand Jury report; Whistling in the Dark - the San Francisco Whistlebl 

dawdling 7 years before getting it organized. The Grand Jury characterized their oversi( 

was dependent upon the agency it monitored, then concluded; "Clearly, CGOBOC is not 

Further,. it can be a stepping-stone to political office. Political ambitions can skew over~ 

campaigned for Supervisor while serving the Committee . 

•• • ·~ ·~· ••••••• ·~· •• ,, ••• ,, ·~· •• ".' ••••• '" f. 0 0 '· •• 0.'.' •• , ••••••• , •••• 

In the past 6 months, taxpayers forfeited over $1, 76 million to settl 
retaliation lawsuits, Why pay, when we have a Whistleblower Progr< 
Protection Ordinance, and an Ethics Commission that dismisses e\I 
complaint?" 

Disinterest in whistle-blowing also impaired the Committee's oversight. This is apparen 

Reports. In the five Reports between 2003 and 2007, their role with the SFWP is covere1 

2007, they forgot to assign a liaison to work wlth the program. The Annual Reports fron 

work with the SFWP in one short paragraph, amounting to 2% of the text. Meeting minu 

In the 8 years between July 2004 and June 2012, it met 36 times. Ten of those meetinQ 

SFWP Director. But in only 3 did Committee members make comments worthy of enter 

discussions came after we criticized the Whistleblower Program. 

Like Yin and Yang; CGOBOC's disregard of the Whistleblower Program dove-tailed with· 

information from it. A tolerance for data-hoarding is most obvious in a 3-year period frC 

Committee accepted just two formal presentations by SFWP Directors. Without explan< 

SFWP cut public reports from two to one a year ln 2009, thereby reducing oversight op~ 
a rare show of engagement in January 2009, Committee member Robert Muscat challE 

SFWP Annual Report, compared to " ... all the kinds of activities in the City worthy of rep( 

Committee then ordered a "more cornprehensive and substantive list of complaints - 2 
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In his July 2011 response to the Grand Jury, Controller Ben Rosenfield wrote: "an off1cia 

Audit Review Board ... regularly receives updates and provides feedback on overall progr 

program's policies and procedures, and provides feedback to program staff on individu 

of this recorded in Committee minutes or Annual Reports? Notably, Rosenfleld's claim ( 

announcement by then-Chair, Abraham Simmons: "As you know, the Liaison has never l 

the Program itself. This is the first time we undertook to do that." 

In her October 2011 reply to the Grand Jury, past-Chair Thea Selby defended the Comm 

discussed the Whistleblower Program at over half the meetings I have attended in the I 
Selby had been a member since July 2009 -for 2 years and 3 months - not one and a~ 

during her first year show just one item about the Whistleblower Program - in July 201 

subcommittee to facilitate review of whistleblower complaints." That decision came af 

Laguna Honda's Gift Fund abuse. Subsequently, every discussion about the SFWP was 

media coverage, or Grand Jury criticisms. 

CGOBOC members have generally been open to public comments, but hesitant to act E 

2002, the Committee has amassed $1,080,865 to audit bond expenditures. This pile of 

years, according to its 2011-12 Annual Report. No independent auditors were hired. Sin 
were asked to assess the Whistleblower Program, although there are ways to get pro b1 

Bylaws allow for a "Special Subcommittee" composed of: "members of the Committee 

years, no public experts have been recruited. 

The Charter empowers the Committee to "recommend departments in need of compre 

even recommended a whistleblower satisfaction survey. In the past 6 months, taxpayer 

settle 3 whistleblower retaliation lawsuits. Why pay, when we have a Whistleblower Pro 

Protection Ordinance, and an Ethics Commission that dismisses every retaliation com~ 

its mission and recommend an audit. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

May 2013 
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political interference. Still, oversight succeeds wllen it is KnowleOgeab e, inaependent,' 

service. Surprisingly, oversight of the SF Controller's Whistleblower Program (SFWP) W< 

General Obligation Bond Oversight Committee (CGOBOC). This happened when Propes 

authorized the Controller to act as City Services Auditor -and to run the Whistleblower 

,";:1 ('·!" 
' '1 ' '1 
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... these new oversight tasks were bewildering and unwelcome. And 
training, no budget and no enforcement powers. Although CGOBOC 
million budget ... this money must be used to audit bonds, not the~ 
Program." 

CGOBOC itself had arisen from Proposition Fin March 2002 in reaction to Laguna Hon( 

under-scope and over-time replacement bond project. The City wanted independent citi 

expenses. and to make sure money was spent as voters intended. But these bond-rel at 

from City services and whistleblowers. Nevertheless, the Charter amendment had CGO 

independent Citizens' Audit Review Board to advise the Controller/City Services Audito1 

in need of comprehensive audit; and (c) review citizen and employee complaints receiv 
/complaint hotline ... and the Controller's disposition of those complaints. 

Judging from CGOBOC meeting minutes, these new oversight tasks were bewildering a 

with no training, no budget and no enforcement powers. Although CGOBOC has amass 

garnered from 0.1% of bond proceeds, this money must be used to audit bands, not thE 

While Prop F dictated that the Board of Supervisors would provide "administrative assi~ 

all of its aid came from the Controller. Far example, its Committee Assistant is the Can· 

secretary. Though CGOBOC can recruit outside experts, the vetting and funding comes 

of the SFWP is limited to asking questions and hearing public comments. 

At the September 2003 CGOBOC meeting, then-Controller Ed Harrington explained how 

Committee members; "one major difference in work-load between the current band-relc 

advisory role to the Controller would be that all reports would be coming from one sour 

added; "The purpose of an advisory committee is to have civilian oversight without taki 

the Controller." This jumbling of "oversight" and "advisory" functions allows the Whistle 

has oversight, while CGOBOC ducks oversight by pointing to its advisory status. 

Claiming he was not consulted when CGOBOC was picked to oversee the WhistleblowE 

explained; "the Board did not want to create another advisory committee, and this Com· 

that the Board wanted." Apparently, the Board wanted "representation'' rather than expe 
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Whistleblower Program further limited CGOBOC's oversight, and advice. 

Meeting minutes from 2004 through 2012 show CGOBOC members passively receiving 

Directors. Focused on City bonds, and meeting quarterly for two-year terms, 1nembers I 

the SFWP was withheld. In January 2005, over a year after the passage of Prop C, CGOI 

to serve as "Liaisons" to the Whistleblower Program. But minutes of the April 2006 me~ 

mechanism was hobbled; " ... the City Attorney's Office noted that two members of the C 

meet with staff of the Whistleblower Program, monitor its progress and report back to 1 

Attorney's Office suggests that only one member interface with staff rather than two m 

Liaison couldn't confer with anyone, other than the SFWP Director, for the next 5 years. 

presented only one substantive report about the SFWP, in April 2005. CGOBOC's ,constr; 

meddling lasted until late 2010. That's when the Laguna Honda Gift Fund scandal and t 

investigation spurred a show of diligence and responsiveness. After we protested the s 

CGOBOC restored a second Liaison, Regina Callan, in August 2011. 

By then it was too late. John Madden had already been sworn In as Controller Rosenfie 

January 2011. He was immediately hustled to volunteer as the sole Liaison to the SFWI 

unprecedented review of the Whistleblower Program. No one objected to Madden asse 
Rosenfield. It would have been gauche because CGOBOC's then-Chair Abraham Si1nmo 

Supervisor, had publicly endorsed Rosenfield to fill Mayor Newsom's unfinished term. C 

the City's Assistant Controller in the late 1990s. 

So at the April 2011 meeting, Madden reviewed just three investigations, each hand-pie 

Lediju. Oblivious to selection bias, Madden praised Lediju for her help. He skipped the i 

Laguna Honda Patient Gift Fund case; "I did look at the Audit Report in that particular c 

back on it. I did some review." Madden likened whistleblowers to folks who "fink on thei 

retaliation to "putting sand in your sandwich" or being "moved to a smaller cubicle." Tht 

no problems with the Controller's Whistleblower Program. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital Cai 

DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

April 2013 
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punted to the Ethics Commission, the City and District Attorneys, ti 
26 months, even though the Controller is charged with overseeing ' 

SFWP Manager Steve Flaherty jolted the 11 /29/12 meeting of the Citizens' General Obi 

Committee (CGOBOC), the oversight body for the SFWP; all 18 long-stalled investigatio1 

week scramble. For the first time, no complaints were over 6 months old! No reason w~ 

around, just a slew of excuses for past delays. Stone-walling, a common delaying tactic 
one message-point was emphasized, and echoed by Controller Rosenfield and CGOBOI 

were not within the control of the Controller's staff." Reality got twisted in this denial of 

can subpoena records, prod department heads, ·hire outside investigators, audit depart1 

compliant managers to the Board of Supervisors. Plus, the Controller must have orche~ 

those 18 frozen cases. 

Burled complaints are predictable because the SFWP outsources most investigations t 

in the complaint. That was a key finding in the 2010-11 Civil Grand Jury report: "Whistlli 
Francisco Whistleblower Program". Though the City Charter requires the SFWP to "tracl 

what really happens: "(A complaint) goes to another department to investigate. The otr 

Human Resources involved, etc., etc., etc. Sometimes, the departments don't assign th1 

llke ... but that's the world as lt is." Thus spoke John Madden, the Controller's appointee 1 

the Controller's Whistleblower Program. 

The SFWP is also required to refer about a dozen tips annually to City agencies that ha\ 

again, the SFWP avidly ships cases out, seemingly indifferent to the outcomes. Some VI 

lost for years. For example, our tips about tainted Health Department contracts that ev< 

taxpayers were punted to the Ethics Commission, the City and District Attorneys, then t 
even though the Contro!ler ls charged wlth overseeing City contracts. Further, the Char~ 

concurrently investigate such referred c6mplaints. In practice, the SFWP bars concurre1 
cut costs, despite abundant voter-approved funding. 

Given this tendency to dispatch tips, the energetic unearthing of 18 cold-cases was am. 
two part-time auditors, is part of the Controller's City Services Auditor (CSA) division. 8, 

CSA duties because staffing had dropped below the usual 50 full-time jobs. CGOBOC's 

CSA had just 44 staff when 63 positions were covered by its $12.5 million budget. Rost 

the number of staff required to provide a meaningful body of work, rather than spend al 

it's available,'' then promised to ramp up hiring. But overall staffing had fallen, while SFV 

last year- to 344. How did the SFWP close 70% more cases - plus 18 mummified com1 
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perceptions of quality, and the extent a service meets the needs for which it was create 

City services - except its own Whistleblower Program. 

The 2010-11 Grand Jury dellvered information that never appeared in SFWP reports, na 

perceptions of quality. Yet, Controller Rosenfield chided the Jury's "interviewing a small 

without trying to "randomly sample feedback." Ironically, the SFWP has never sampled: 

CGOBOC Chair Thea Selby pointedly asked if the SFWP had surveyed any whistleblowe 

satisfied with the process, if not the outcome." Rosenfield answered; "We have not. Fig\ 

challenge - and what to do with the data that is reported back." Well, the Controller's C: 

improve performance and customer service. Why won't the SFWP? By shunning whistlE 

Program has become a Procrustean agency, arbitrarily forcing informants to adjust to ii 

Thwarted by City channels, some employees will seek legal redress. Data from the City 

shows the City approved nearly $11 million in payouts for workplace harassment, discr 

between January 2007 and January 2013. That's about $1.8 million in taxpayer money 
due to City Attorney fees, mediation, sick leave, worker's compensation, unemployment 

rehabilitation, pension payments, training new hires, negative publicity, depressed work 

distracted customer service. The Whlstleblower Program could abate some of these cc 

satisfaction surveys ofwhistleblowers, and quality reviews of investigations. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Dept. of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@ao/.com 

March 2013 
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. t Rewards for Whistlebiowers< 

·_lbyJDr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
" ... San Francisco has a paramount interest in protecting the integrity of its government ir 

interest, individuals should be encouraged to report. .. possible violations of laws, regu/ath 

conduct of City officers and employees." 

So states the City's Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code. Yet, the SF Controller'~ 

(SFWP) discourages whistleblowers. 

Whistleblowers are the last lirie of defense against fraud, waste and corruption. But the 
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The fraud-driven collapse of the U.S. financial system 1n 2 08 pushe lawmakers t5 rev 

just protect them. Accordingly, the 2010 Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 

mandatory rewards for securities fraud whistleblowers. The Department of Justice, Int! 

Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC) provide bounties to eligible informants. On 8. 

"We are seeing high-quality tips that are saving our Investigators substantial time and r, 

Office of Special Counsel, the agency charged with protecting federal whist!eblowers, g 

awards to three Air Force whist!eblowers, proclaiming: "Whistleblowers are patriots. Th 

They come forward because they are driven by conscience." 

Statistics published by the US Department of Justice show that rewarding informants~ 

the DOJ Civil Fraud Division recovered $9.03 billion without informants. But recoveries, 

help from whistleblowers. A 2010 econometric study of corporate fraud by the Universi 

monetary rewards were the key "poSltive incentive" for employee whistleblowers. Rewa 

by 23o/o - without increasing frivolous claims. 

While the SFWP rejects whistleblower incentives, other City agencies reward tipsters. T 

"Real Estate Watchdog Program" offers bounties up to 1 Oo/o of unpaid property taxes. !n 

a "watchdog" whose tip brought in $1.07 million. The Department of Public Works has' 

Graffiti Reward Fund" and publicly gives $250 to "Good Samaritans" who report taggers 

may get $500. Likewise, the Police Department offers $100,000 for solid leads in homi'. 
gun can bring $1,000. Turning in someone who sounds a false fire alarm nets $500. Thi 

offers $250 rewards for tips about dog-fight trainers. The Civil Service Commission revi 

month's salary for "heroic or meritorious conduct." Why not whistleblowers? 

Well, the 2010-2011 Civil Grand Jury did recommend "a reward system for validated hfQ 

complaints with a $500 minimum or 10% of funds recovered ... " This notion, that public I 

drawbacks come with rewards, roused a chorus of City Hall naysayers. 

Controller Ben Rosenfield rightly asserted that City employees should report wrong-doi1 

most will not, to keep their jobs. Rosenfield warned about a "moral hazard," that emplo) 

in order to collect a larger reward. There's no evidence of such scamming by CitY whistl 

hazard comes from encouraging employees to not blow the whlstle by denying incenti~ 

retaliation. 

The formal responses to the Grand Jury were gems of bureaucratic resistance: "The C( 

believe that rewards wlll enhance the effectiveness of the program ... rewards are not a !; 

practice for local government whistleblower programs." Mayor Lee responded, "the Civi 

any evidence where other jurisdictions have a reward system and where that reward sy: 
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What went unsaid is that whistleblowers present a threat to unethical officials - and an 

control systems. That's why the City rewards tips about citizen misconduct- never abo1 

Rewarding whistleblowers is taboo in circles where retaliation is more often orchestrat1 

obedient employees are preferred over honest ones, City whistleblowers won't be rewa1 

Fortunately, most whistleblowers aren't driven by monetary rewards. But they do need c 

The SFWP offers neither, much less incentives. One option is to offer "Public Service A\ 

deliver high-value tips - and who desire such recognition. Such awards would reduce th 

and show that the Whistleblower Program values those who justify its existence. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital. Th 

wrongdoing. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

February 2013 

High-Jacking the Whistleblower P1 
Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
The SF Controller's Whistleblower Program (SFWP) emerged after voters passed Propc 

Prop C authorized the Controller to function as the City Services Auditor (CSA). In turn, 

SFWP. Instead, the Whistleblower Program has been high-jacked and crippled. 

The CSA grabs two-tenths of one percent of the City's annual budget - about $12.5 mil 

amounts to 32'Ya of the Controller's Office budget and is misleadingly called the "Cantre 

show that since 2005, CSA spent $567,210 on 21 contracts for staff training and techn1 

Only $19,360 (3.4o/o) went to the Whistleblower Program. While the CSA grew from 4 to 

SFWP Division dwindled from $312,816 in 2004, to a measly $139,192 in 2012. 
,,..,,, ,-:''. 
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This change re-framed the Programs purpose from rooting out wrc 
and liability. Within this paradigm, whistleblowers bring risk, City o 
and confidentiality can limit risk by hiding misgovernment and sha 
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The turning point was 2008. That year, the SFWP budget was slashed from $218,010 tc 

there a cash shortage in the Controller's Audit Fund? Nope. Records show that $12.9 m 

in 2008-09, compared to $12 million the year before. And of that $12.9 million, only $9.: 

$3.1 million was returned to City departments and the General Fund. So, the SFWP bud· 

$900,000 boost to the Controller's Audit Fund - with millions to spare. Also in 2008-09, 1 

handled by the Program soared from 347 to 465 - a 34% jump. Why did the SFWP lose 

despite an increased workload? 

In March 2008, Mayor Gavin Newsom replaced 17-year veteran Controller Ed Harringtor 

Willie Brown's Budget Director - Ben Rosenfield. Within three months, the SFWP budge· 

Rosenfield's four years, the SFWP budget collapsed to 48% below the norm in Harringtc 

Rosenfield's spending on CSA contracts rocketed to $542,835 versus just $24,375 sper 

Harrington, the SFWP handled an average of 278 complaints annually compared to 391 

sum, during Rosenfield's four years, the SFWP lost 48o/c of its funding and gained 41% n 

tax revenues had increased, along with spending on outside contracts_ How could this I 

One reason is that Prop C gave the Controller carte blanche to neuter the SFWP under t 

lax oversight. Oversight of the SFWP was assigned to the Citizens' General Obligation E 

(CGOBOC). But CGOBOC was given no budget and no enforcement powers over the SF' 

is dependent upon the Controller's Office for information, funds and staff. As the 201 O-: 

"CGOBOC depends exclusively on selected information prepared by the Controller and 1 

- the very department that it is charged with overseeing." 

When CGOBOC met in April 2009, newly-appointed SFWP Director Tonia Lediju announ< 

mentioning the 41 % .budget cut then imposed. Deceptively, the CS A's 2009-10 Work Pia· 

SFWP. But records show that only $133,707 - less than half-was actually spent. "Reva 

SFWP's allocation. 

In December 2010, the SFWP quietly revised its original 2005 Policy & Procedure Manu. 

2005, a dozen pages were devoted to engaging and responding to whistleblowers. By 2 

approach had expired. Instead, the focus shifted to managing complaints, staff develo~ 

processes. Both Manuals use "Complaint Flow Charts" to show how tips are processec 

different. The 2005 version placed the whistleblower at the center of the chart. By 201 C 

only removed from the center, but off the chart entirely! 

The 2010 Manual adopted a corporate tone. A self-promoting Mission/Vision/Values si 

We focus on our customers' needs. There is even a set of "strategic planks" like Markei 

Mission and Engaging the Public. Apart from the fact that the SFWP does not engage i 
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Since 2008, the SFWP has been sapped and rendered into a clearinghouse for "risks." B 

the SFWP side steps looting, self-dealing and retaliation_ 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Di: Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
DPH wrongdoing. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

December 2012 

Veiled in Secrecy - The Whistleblowe1 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
Between 2004 and 2009, the SF Controller's Whistleblower Program (SFWP) issued put 

Though brief, they gave examples of investigated complaints, substantiated or not. Rec 

complaints were not substantiated. Starting in 2006, investigated City departments we1 

involving Commissioners, CEOs and even Supervisors were noted. Whistleblowers wen 

and encouraged to identify themselves. SFWP staff would "ask follow-up questions an( 

investigations." By 2008, 57% of tipsters were providing contact information. There wa~ 

Q~ 00 O•> O~ ,>O' •>0 > ono 0 0 00 00 0 0 0 > O• '" 0 >; > '0 '0' C 0 ' ' o 0" 0 0 0 oo,;Q 0 •o 0 0 '" 

State Senator Leland Vee asserts that whistleblower complaints an 
"swept under the rug." Yee proposed Senate Bill 1336 in February' 
of substantiated complaints, the action taken, and the outcomes o1 
allegations. Since then, SB 1336 has been eroded in committee am 
auditors and Unions, among others. The clause requiring disclosur· 
complaints was the first casualty. Disclosure of unsubstantiated co 
remains discretionary State-wide, and unobtainable in San Francis1 

Something changed in 2009. Public reports were cut from two to one a year, and loade( 

"confidentiality." Names of implicated City departments were replaced by generic term~ 
department manager." Such generalizations can hide mismanagement in a City with so 

employees. "Unsubstantiated" case reports were deleted, though they outnumbered su· 

may have harbored scandals. For the first tlme, the SFWP disclosed that it had "facilita1 

all complaints. But the number of investigations independently conducted by the SFWF 

Right after Ben Rosenfield became Controller, the 2008-09 budget for SFWP salaries, bt 

surreptitiously cut by 41 'Yo. At an April 2009 meeting, the newly-appointed SFWP Directc 
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benefits. Fiscal starving could explain the cloddish customer service, why investigation 

City departments, and why most complaints were "unsubstantiated." 

The secrecy of the SFWP, and the alienation of its informants, were unveiled in a May 21 

"San Francisco Whistleblower Program Comes Under Fire"; and the July 2011 Civil Grar 
Dark - The San Francisco Whistleblower Program." 

In September 2011, Sunshine activist Mel Shapiro won a Superior Court ruling that San 
"must disclose any report of an investigation that has been substantiated." These even· 

its 2010-2011 Annual Report on 11 /22/11. Finally, all substantiated complaints were re 

implicated City departments were not. Quarterly reports were issued and a FAQ section 

previous practice, anonymous rather than Identified tips were encouraged. Anonymity C 

follow-up contact, and lower the odds of full investigations. The number of anonymouS: 

Nothing about the 43% of complaints deemed "unsubstantiated" was disclosed. 

This level of secrecy exceeds the confidentiality granted to Whistleblower Hot-Lines by: 

While the identities of whistleblowers, witnesses and subjects are protected, State law: 
report of an investigation that has been substantiated, or to release any findings resulti: 

investigation that are deemed necessary to serve the interests of the public." Since 200 
public interest in knowing why so many complaints are unsubstantiated. In comparisor 

Whistleblower Program" does a better job. There, the Board of Supervisors gets twlce-y 
complaint received - including unsubstantiated ones - along with investigative finding 

State Senator Leland Yee asserts that whistleblower complaints are often settled and", 

proposed Senate Bil! 1336 in February 2012 to identify subjects of substantiated comp. 
outcomes of unsubstantiated allegations. Since then, SB 1336 has been eroded in com 

auditors and Unions, among others. The clause requiring disclosure of unsubstantiateC 

casualty. Disclosure of unsubstantiated complaint findings remains discretionary State 

Francisco. 

By October 2007, the SFWP had partnered with the City's Customer Service Center and: 
311. The sixty call-takers at the 311 Service Center receive over 7,000 calls daily. Thou~ 

forward whistleblower tips to the SFWP website, they also forward minor complaints al 

After the transition to 311, the average number of sr:wP complaints zoomed from 263 i 
increase. Was this dramatic rise due to service complaints or whistleblower tips? 

10/liJ/2020_ 12:00PM 
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Retaliation 
By Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr 
In 2012, the AssOciation of Certified Fraud Examiners issued a "Report to the Nations 01 

Abuse." They found that So/a of a typical organization's revenue is lost to fraud. Governrr 

rating second among 23 industries surveyed. Whistleblowers catch three times as man 

detection. Most whistleblowers are employees. 

Meanwhile, the Government Accountability Project, an advocacy group providing legal< 

35 years warns: 

"You will surely suffer some level of harassment or retribution for blowing the whistle b 
instinctively tend to eliminate anything perceived as a threat Academic studies conf1rrr 

whistleblowers report subsequent retaliation." 

. I , 
~ -~· 

o a o n , o " o o o o o o ; o o o ~ o o o , o ~ _, o o o ; o -, ' • " , o " ' ·' ' ' ' , ; " o o o o > , _, o '' '· -, ' , ' " ,. ~ • o o , 

You will surely suffer some level of harassment or retribution for bl 
because bureaucracies instinctively tend to eliminate anything per1 
Academic studies confirm that more than 90% of whistleblowers rE 
retaliation." 

Other surveys in various settings show retaliation rates between 22°/o and 38'1o, but exp( 

increased despite laws prohibiting them. Studies show that retaliation is more likely wh 

involves losses over $100,000 and when the misconduct is routine. Although San Franc 

Governmental Conduct Code includes "Protection of Whistleblowers," City whistleblow( 

punished in practice. 

On 7/24/2012 the City agreed to pay over $1 million to settle two whistleblower retaliat 

May 2012 Westside Observer, 911 Call-Center supervisor Maura Moylan, and dispatche 

supervisory misconduct within the Department of Emergency Services in 2009. Reprise 

Unaware of the City's Whistleblower Program (SFWP), they consulted a lawyer. They su. 

2010 (Case# C10-04700-TEH). The City Attorney fought them every step of the way. Al 

awarded them $262,000 for retaliation and harassment. The post-verdict settlement, in' 

$762,000. Not included is the cost of City Attorney hours in this 2-year legal battle. 
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had reviewed 7 retaliation complaints over 6.5 years. As of July 2012, Ethics has dis mi~ 

whistleblower retaliation claims it received. 

Retaliation, a primitive form of damage control. is directed at whistleblowers by their be 

most complaints right back to the department named in the complaint. Until May 2012, 
track retaliation complaints. Instead, the SFWP washed its hands of retaliation by maki 

Ethics Commission. While monitoring retaliation would help, "reported cases of retaliat 

actual reprisals" says Mat Stephenson, partner in the Employment Law firm of Kochan 

retaliation pushes most informants to give up and move on without protesting. Therefo 

consider retaliation "cost-effective" according to Stephenson. The few who seek red res 

"disgruntled." Until they sue. Although potential costs for the City are significant, the Co 

conduct a whist,leblower retaliation survey. 

Exposing wrongdoing and retaliation by a City department often points to systemic fail1 

Wrongdoing may be entrenched in the work-place culture, or serve a hidden political ag 

that tackle such problems threaten powerful entities and become vulnerable to retaliati 

smears, bullying, funding cuts, staffing changes, or having their mandate clipped. ln oth 
like whistleblowers. The Board of Supervisors' purge of the City's Sunshine Task Force. 

addressing misgovernment can be. However, Programs have ways to dodge political re 

Setting up ·a sham Whistleblower Program avoids the risks of exposing corruption. Fak1 

informants so they don't air complaints publicly. The 2011 Civil Grand Jury alluded to S! 
investigation of the SFWP: "A poor or mediocre Whistleblower Program - one that seer 

is perhaps worse than none at all." It's noteworthy that in the four fiscal years between: 

annual budget for the SFWP was $256,300. In the 4 years from 2008 to 2012, under Co1 

average annual budget plunged to $134,079, a 48% drop. That's enough to prop up a fa, 

notch Program. 

Colluding with other City agencies to dismiss whistleblower claims also reduces the ris 

Both the Controller's Whistleblower Program and the Ethics Commission refer serious< 

The City Attorney has dual loyalties - and a conflict of interests. Along with reviewing~ 
wrongdoing, the City Attorney has a duty to defend City officials accused of misconduc 

"ethical walls," the likelihood of mutual back-scratching is high. Instead of protecting wl 

is the main adversary, the reason retaliation persists. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
DPW wrongdoing. Contact: Derek Kerr 
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"From a policy perspective, there are several issues. Most glaringly, once a complaint i.s 

that point forward, essentially shut out of the entire process and left to navigate a "blac 

the investigation is denied.'' 
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Other Whistleblower Programs are more open about the work they 
Oakland Fraud, Waste and Abuse Prevention Hotline "independentl 
investigations:· The Los Angeles Program claims it investigates 36 
independently. In San Francisco, the percent may be too small to m 

City whist\eblowers should know that most complaints to the Controller's WhistleblowE 

back to involved departments for investigation. The SFWP has masked the number of~ 

complaints were "investigated or referred for investigation." However, the 2010-2011 Ci 

"majority of the investigations were performed by the departments listed in the compla 

Whistleblower Program investigators." Belatedly on 11 /22/11, the SFWP admitted to a ' 

referred - without giving the number. The Jury concluded; "The investigation of whistle 

independent when performed by the turgeted agency or department." 

Other Whistleblower Programs are more open about the work they do. For example, thE 
Abuse Prevention Hotline "independently conducted 34°/o of the investigations." The Lo: 

investigates 36% of complaints independently_ In San Francisco, the percent may be to1 

Referring investigations to departments is reasonable for minor complaints. Indeed, m( 

SFWP are gripes about City services. SFWP reports from 2006 and 2007 show that ban 

were true whistleblower reports about fraud, waste and abuse of City resources. The Ci 

just 36% were true whistleblower tips in 2009 and 2010. Nevertheless, some of the mo1 

back to the targeted departments. In fact, even "Medium-Risk" complaints involving su1 

and/or mid-level managers were sent back to the named department. The SFWP asser· 

leverages investigative resources, and that they oversee results. But conflicts of interes 

departments probe their own misconduct. 

It was the Civil Grand Jury that revealed the Department of Public Health received then 

complaints. Since 2009, the SFWP ceased naming implicated departments, perhaps hit 

mismanagement. Had the SFWP conducted a Best-Practices survey, it would know tha1 

identifies each department in a substantiated cornplalnt. Further, when the LA Program 

targeted department the outcornes are recorded as "Substantiated" or "Not Substantia1 

every department. The public has a right to know these department-specific findings. 

conc0•1s qutcom~~o:,d:e:~nme~•l.in'v:;::t~:~~~~:!:+:;;at 
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other words, there is no confidentiality within the City network. 

Conversely, records requests by whistleblowers whose complaint investigations are "cl· 

denied because, "Whistleblower Program practices do not permit a complainant to wai• 

for the disclosure of investigation work-product." The SFWP has also refused to return 1 

submitted in support of their complaint. The reason given is "to protect whistleblowers 
inaction and lost-records may be disguised as "work-product." Further, the SFWB has rE 

Performance Audits, since the City's Director of Audits, Tonia Lediju, also runs the Whis 

Leaks in the investigative pipeline are likely to spring up during the Preliminary Review. 

That's when the SFWP screens tips for jurisdiction, "risk of loss to the City," and level of 

five days, informants supposedly receive an acknowledgement from the SFWP. But whE 

misappropriations from the Laguna Honda Hospital Patient Gift Fund in March 2010, it 

response - and then only because we followed-up. We were told that the SFWP was sti 

What kind of discussions - and with whom - would take three weeks? Even with "High' 

SFWP review process may include contacting the Director of the implicated departmen 

"Medium-Risk" complaints loop back.to the involved department, informants should be 

retaliatlon. But that doesn't happen. 

The SFWP has yet to conduct a Best Practices Survey. The Government Accountabillty 

(www.whistleblower.org), a national whistleblower advocacy group, compiled a set of ii 
standard is a ''Credible Corrective Action Process.'' Th ls principle allows whistleblower~ 

that merited an investigation, and on whether there has been a good-faith resolution. \JIJ 

most knowledgeable and concerned witnesses. The failure of the SFWP to engage its i 

investigations. Whlstleblowers should not be silenced in the resolution of the alleged rr 
careers to challenge. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh1 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health. Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

July-Aug 2012 

,-, '2 Can We Trust the Controller's Whistleblo\ 
! ~ i 

· ·
1 by' Derek Kerr, MD and Maria Rivero, MD 
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other high-profile whistleblower cas~s, it was invisible in the . 

SFWP annual report. Hernandez-Bran explained: 

"/reported the Chief Probation Officer for collusion and corruption, 

and I was laid off as a result. But not before being harassed and 

investigated ... There are so many cases of City employees who 

hav.e filed whistfeblower complaints and then were targeted for layoffs. No one trusts thi. 

protects officials first, then acts against the inforrnant." 

Another half-a-dozen cases of retaliation were described in the July 2011 Civil Grand Jl 

- The San Francisco Whistleblower Program." Controller Ben Rosenfield was not move1 

retaliation surveys - or even satisfaction surveys - have been conducted, though the ( 

auditors and analysts. 

3. , .... ,.lj_• • ., '" ,~~,'' ,~., ·• •• ., ·~""' ,, "" ,, ·' "" ·'·'' ''"' '' " •.• ·~ •• , ........ •3•• 
SFWP revised its 2010-2011 annual report and showed that only 11 
were substantiated. During this period, the Los Angeles program s1 
complaints, while San Diego sustained 33%. Notably, both program 
greater share of complaints; 72% for LA and 100% for San Diego, c, 

Short of conducting a survey, whistleblower trust can be estimated from the number of 
City employees. The SFWP withholds this information. However, Oakland's Fraud, Wast 

Program reported that in 2011, "City employees generated 44o/o of the reports ... the first 

from the public exceeded those tips from employees." A decline tn employee tips shoul 

the SFWP has a reason to overlook employee participation. 

Over the past three years, complaints to the SFWP fell from 465 to 386 to 365, a 22o/o dr 

only 252 complaints came in. At this rate the fiscal year could end with another signific 

complaints are falling, too. This steady decline in participation has yet to be addressed 

A trustworthy program that focuses on serious wrongdoing will attract serious tips. Frc 

to do that. True whistleblower tlps, about fraud, waste and abuse of City resources, wer 

shoddy City services. Consistently, however, true whistleblower complaints stayed arou 

Starting in 2007, whistleblower tips were merged a larger group of minor complaints pc 

This mix created the illusion that the SFWP was doubly-busy responding to "whistleblo1 

malfeasance. Further, dispersing whistleblower tips in a sea of service complaints obs( 

whistleblowers when they lose faith. 
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Program that acts on high-value complaints will be trusted with more of them. That's a1 
should immediately contact whistleblowers who submit High-Risk and Medium-Risk co 
months -to check if they saw results or retallation. 

A program that protects tipsters will get more who identify themselves. A major providi 
services, The Network, Inc., found that requests for anonymity dropped from 78% to 48 

became comfortable with reporting. The San Diego Fraud Hotline reported that only 46 
anonymity. In fact, the SFWP's own 2008-2009 mid-year report disclosed that just 43%' 
rise in anonymous complaints signals mistrust. Since 2009, the SFWP has withheld the 

More important, substantiated complaints show that something is being done. This nu1 
until 11 /22/11 - after the public uproar over the Civil Grand Jury investigation. That's Vi 

2010-2011 annual report and showed that only 16°/o of all complaints were substantiat\ 
Angeles program substantiated 23°/o of all complaints, while San Diego sustained 33'Yo. 

investigated a greater share of complaints; 72% for LA and 100% for San Diego, compa 

In the last half of 2011, the SFWP substantiation rate climbed to 21 % of all complaints. 
surge of investigations into 71 % of all complaints, compared to an average of 51 'Yo fort' 
being done - but by whom? In our next column we will explore how most complaints s1 
referred back to the same City departments named in the complaints. 

Dr. Maria Rivero and Dr. Derek Kerr were senior physicians at Laguna Honda Hospital wh! 
wrongdoing by the Department of Public Health Contact: DerekOnVanNess@aol.com 

June 2012 
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... Davis Ja & Associates received a ~1.2 million contract on be all 
Behavioral Health Services. That contract was revoked and the CitJ 
$430,000 after whistleblowers reported a conflict of interest." 

ln a scathing report titled "Whistling in the Dark - The San Francisco Whistleblov-1er Pre 

Grand Jury (CGJ) noted that exposure to "bad press" and "liability from costly lawsuits'· 

complaints are ignored or dismissed." Although the CGJ was unable to determine the a 

of confidentiality conditions of the settlements, lt determined: "A program that properly 

allegations of malfeasance 'in house' can significantly reduce the City's exposure." The 

was failing. (2) 

Mayor Art Agnos started the Whistleblower Program in 1989. It fell under the Ethics Co 

where it withered. After a Port corruption scandal, 71 o/o of voters approved Proposition, 

Auditor (CSA) function to the Controller's duties, including a reinforced Whistleblower F 

the CSA 0.2'Yo of the City budget, now $12 million annually, to audit departments, monit1 

contracts and manage the Whistleblower Program. A selling point was the claim that tr 
politically "independent." 

Despite new management, the Controller's Whistleblower Program has been hobbled b: 

investigators, bureaucratic secrecy, fealty to power, disregard for whistleblowers, and le 

Ironically, although the Controller's CSA conducts innumerable audits and reviews, the I 

was never assessed - until the CGJ report in July 2011. Predict8bly, Controller Ben Ro~ 

findings. Those who exposed misgovernment - professional journalists, whistleblower 

praised the report. Of the 14 recommendations issued by the CGJ, most were rejected I 

to transparency, the 2010-2011 Annual Whistleblower Program report was revised. It nc 

complaints, rather than a trivial "sample." The time taken to resolve investigations was. 

The "Controller's Whistleblower Complaints Program" is a misnomer. Barely one-third o 

whlstleblower complaints involving fraud, waste and abuse. The program primarily ser\ 

whistleblowers or the public. It was designed by high-level officials to address low-level 

on whistleblowers and City hot-spots, embarrassing events are contained. With compla 

officials, the program falters. These are some of the reasons why no performance au di· 

why a Best-Practices survey has yet to be done. Although an informal survey was sent 1 

Satisfaction Survey has been performed. Despite the clear connection between whistle 

the Whistleblower Program nor the Ethics Commission bothered to track retaliation. Wl 

ignored, or treated like burdens and threats. 

_ has_the mon~y to do a better jo~, if public service is the goal. Jn · 
"' ·«-,o[·C·-~-- .. - -. ___ ,. __ . ,,., ----_·,.:, .. - - ·-- .• ··-:~- - " 
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365 complaints last year, the majority were referred back to the targeted departments f 

the Civil Grand Jury. 

Oversight of the Whistleblower Program was also faulted by the Civil Grand Jury. The C 

Oversight Committee (CGOBOC) has no staff or resources to monitor the Whistleblowe 

"Committee Assistant" is the Controller's Executive Secretary who is paid by, and repor1 

comments critical of the Whistleblower Program are censored from its Minutes. E-mail 

_g_gobo.committee~gov.org are triaged byt 
whistleblower issues, and get all their Inform 

upon the agency it oversees. 

"Confidentiality" keeps a veil of secrecy over 

Whistleblower Program reports provide scan 

impartial, or even trusted, by complainants. 

In this column we plan to explore the perfori-r 

public action to correct misgovernment. lnpu 

greatly appreciated. 

Dr Maria Rivero and Dr Derek Kerr were senio 

wrongdoing by the Department of Public Heal_ 
PLAY 

1. Case 3:10-cv-04700-TEH 

2. www_sfsugeriorcourt.org/Modules/ShowDocument.as12x?docum 

J 

Laguna Hone; 
By Derek Kerr, MD and Aft;" 
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·Violation of CA Govt Code §53298 that prohibits reprisals against employees who file 
~ "rtr:-Srnar.·a"'Q~IT1Er1t ·or "a"sigr1if1 cant<waste D·{ ·(11r1C:-s; Bl"' an abl'!se of· <:i.LJt:101 ily;· " ,, ~ '· · 

·Violation of CA Health and Safety Code §1432 that prohibits discrirnination or retaliat 
initiating or participating in proceedings relating to care, services, or conditions of a Ion 

·Violation of CA Labor Code §1102.51\lil.1..£r.>:hi~~t!fl~~~~i"!J.li:~u.mployee fc 
government or law enforcement agenc~~ ~~~a~~'ause to bE 

regulation. 

Kerr filed two whistle~b]0\11:.',,~;
Kerr and Rivero filed'* 

Hirose as a respr 

Three days latf _ 
terminated ef 

On March 15, 
his terminatio 

Kerr is being represent 
Honda Hospital employees, 

A case management conference re~f~'I·~·:.: _· 

~~, 

' r 

'! 

' . ·~. 
:.,··1 l:l, 20 
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precautions. 

Ovi th.e WoJch.list 
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Laguna Honda: Inappropriate for Housing 

Patrick Monette-Shaw 
If LHH was too small for 160 units, how is it now suddenly big enough for up to 375 units 

P1958 
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Trecherous Toxics at Treasure Island 
by Glenn Rogers 

" ... the cleanup reports need to be available to the public. Skipping these steps will resul 

will be ultimately held accountable, inaking the taxpuyers liable" 

'' ' 0 ., ,· 

Vote for Kids 

Parcel Tax for San Francisco Unified 
School District 

$h.ill 1hll City fjloplac:e ll::i <i!01B PatcillTB)( fer ll10 San Ftanei:;~<l U1lifietl 
Schoot Dlstri~ wiU1 ti JlC',v t:tii: that dl1u1g1~s th1~ :tnnual t~x. r•1tu !rorn 832-0 
·~01 parcel lo S2Hll pe:r parc11I. 11itiju~tcd fur inltatlun 01i.:-h ya.ar, anJ with an 

...,otlon for p1Jophi ag" 65 or old•?r, until .Junr, JO, 20'.38, for :in c~tlm11!cd 
-"$48.1milli1::1n11 ya;;ir? 

by Carol Kocivar 

Prop J replaces the 2018 School Parcel Tax with a new tax that lowers the unnual tax rat: 

per parcel. Read that sentence again." 

P1959 
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Running Against the Grain 

Lou Barberini 
Two 07 candidates, Vilaska Nguyen and Myrna Melgar ... are running ... with agendas th( 

careers advancing for districts other than 07. 

' 
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San Francisco Sees Itself as a 'Green' City - But is I 

by Kathy Howard 
The developer is proposing a six-unit condo development an the site of a former auto re 

benzene and other pollutants at levels 900 times above residential standards ... 

(Af~ttifur0 
. - ·-----"-----·_ .. , .. · 

----~-~-- -·-
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Twelve Ballot Propositions Confront Voters 

From massive recovery bonds, to the questions the Supervisors can't or won't resolve. 

A~<-~
/ JC).· .· 

"'' '.•,·;'I ;._ ,_ ., "11,. 

Tony Hall's Ballot Recommendations 

Former Supervisor Tony Hall 
More than ever, we need a Supervisor who will not succumb to the self-promoting antic~ 
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State Ballot Measure Recommendations 

Quentin Kapp 
Props 14 to 25 Quentin wades through with his usual aplomb 

c(~~i~~:~) 
-. . - ' ' - ' ' -- . ' . .__ •'' 

YES Prop. 15: More Money for our Schools and Comm1 

P1963 
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BSEB 
i 

James Madison Freedom of Information Awar( 
. ·:.,t.i:::, f·Jc.)rCr1! {ha/J ci 

by Carol Kocivar 
Prop. 15 ... relatively straightforward .. requiring commercial and industrial real property 
be taxed on the basis of its current fair market value .. " 

P1964 
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Audit's Unanswered Questions: 

Does the Ethics Commission Fight Corruption? 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 
The audit fails to mention that no retaliation claims have ever been sustained by the Eth 

fact has been hidden by reporting only that cases are "disrnissed" or "closed." 

(@~~fu~) 
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Society of 1'1ofp3Ji176l<7M8h'e'ffl!Us1lal);11Ca/ Chop IN 

Candidates were asked - given the work-from-home and telecommuting trends ... whet[ 

Balboa ReserVoir development, Parkmerced expansion, and housing development on Lag 

~) 

Taraval Crime Report 

Multiple Arrests: Illegal Firearms and Narcotics. 

Police officers from the Tactical Unit, Specialist Team, and Taraval Neighborhood Team: 

on the 1500 block of 4Bth Ave." 
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BSEB 
Jan1es Madison Freedom of Information Awar< 

Society of P10{,Uf!!J'col chop I er 

San Francisco 
Pitblic Library 

by Carol Kocivar 
Any time someone mentions a good book, l llterally just go to my phone and reserve it on 

A Subpoena for SFPUC Skullduggery 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 

P1967 
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07 Supervisor Candidates Answer the Tough Questi. 

Six contenders respond to the questions that will guide the next 4 years in the district. 
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Ballot Measure Recommendations 

Quentin Kopp 
I provide no wisdom on the presidential candidates because California's a one-party stat 

City and County ballot measures, Propositions A to L .. 
--------

1:©:t@i~t1J(~1ili) 
:· ----· , - -

Stand Up for Arts in Schools 

by Carol Kocivar 
The arts touch our emotional core, whether it is song or dance or drama or drawing. The 
the spirit and help guide children from crisis to confidence . 

P1969 
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Balboa: Supervisers Get It All Wrong 
by Glenn Rogers 

"The giveaway,. linked to corrupt leadership, saCriflces precious public land for private pro. 

vulnerable and is a significant reversal in our goal of income equality" 

City Managers Reject Breed's Budget Plea 

Patrick Monette-Shaw 
That's not a balanced budget; it's a gaping hole she plans to solve by kicking pay-raises b 

the road." 

P1970 
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EB 

Teachers to Vote on COVID 19 Plan 

by K. Rolph Morales, 3rd Grade Teacher 
"Assuming teachers agree to these and additional detailed conditions, school begins Aug 

P1971 

Free Government Money. 

Need Help I 
Your Bill Dll 
COVID-19? 1 
Here To Hel 
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James Madison Freedom of Information Av1ar< 
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walKmg west Por a 

A photographer goes in search of life on the Avenue ... dining and browsing are available 

and in some stores inside within strict limitations. 

P1972 
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Bay Area Plan to Mitigate Climate Change 

by Glenn Rogers 
"The authors of the San Francisco Plan Bay Area 2050 are asking for public feedback on 1 

solutions ... " 

"., ? ~ ·o.; ~,, ,, n ".," o o"""" ,, o ,, ., " ~ o ~ " ·, ;. , ',, ,, 0 •• , o ,, " " ~ o '-' ., · o . ·· . ' '~ ., "· o ; o ._, ,., , , ,. 

How to Stop the San Francisco Exodus 

John Farrell 
Our city is in big trouble. And it is not just because of Covid-19 It is because of a contin1 

decisions by City Hall over the past 1 O years. 

(@.~Ki~') 
- ' - -'' -

·~ - , . .:----- ' 

Teaching Civics Never Mattered More 
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BSEE 

by Carol Kocivar 
Whether it's protests about police violence and racism or defiance of government order~ 

fundamental issues of our democracy are being played out every day in front of millions c 

City Attorney Fees 
$570,045 Litigation Expenses 
{2,124.75 hours) $100;829 

Keker& Van 

$1. . . 

..... ' .• i , 

City Attorney's Retaliation Fiasco Blows $12.2 Milli 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 
Dennis Herrera's retaliatory sewer-gate debacle, alongside the FBJ's recent arrest ... jab a 

P1974 
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Irreparable Damage to City College - Legal Violations at Balboa Re• 

City College Stakeholders File CEQA Appeal"This is NOT the time for any Project to go fci 
the access for 70,000 college students, most of them from working class, immigrant, bla< 

<~Ii~ ~-·~-1~ 

Defund and other public debacles 

1rill ,Jl'1f\'1f\ 1'1.nf\ Dl\A 
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Why Black Lives Matter 

by Glenn Rogers 
" ... the issue of Black Lives Matter is on everyone's lips. Unfortunately, many Americans 1 

racism. But consider the numerous steps that led to the problem and two alternative poli( 

P1976 
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Students Want Schools Open 

by an 8th Grade Student 
"If schools do not open this fall, it is likely to induce students to interact with one anothe 

it is easier to enforce facemask and social distancing ... " 

1:@~;~i~~-) 
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James Madison Freedom of lnforn1atlon Aware 
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CID 

Loading Our Utility Costs on Our Children's Back• 

by Brian Browne 
" ... your water, wastewater, and garbage rates are special taxes ... Your great-grandchildr• 

service provided in 2020." 
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COVID-19's Cruel Visit to LHH 

Patrick Monette-Shaw 
... whether the discrepancy is due to President Trump wanting CMS to "slow down" the te 
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James Madison Freedom of Information Av;1arc 
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... the attitude of professional sports team-owning billionaires that local taxpayers must 
professional sport businesses ... 

- <;um up this year's budget with o .. -

City's Budget Shortfall - Taxpayers Beware 

John Farrell 
a $1.7 billion deficit over the next two fiscal years which could reach over $2.5 billion per 
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Lou Barberini 

SFPD officers spend 99% of their day responding to where 9-1-1 customers direct then 

who determine the location and quantity of encounters. 

<@~[(~~ .•. . - - '_, 

New Normal: Decline in Urbanization 

Glenn Rogers 
Development is in trouble. If Parkmerced, which is the largest multifamily property in S.ar 

future of development in San Francisco, it is in very real trouble. 

(@:~2fil~JD -- ' ·- - -
~- ~~-·-

Homeless Encampments in GG Park? 

P1 981 
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by Kathy Howard 
Board of Supervisors seek solutions ... raising concerns among the public about the pas! 
parkland to address social and economic problems. 

Big Balboa Giveaway Bad Break for City College 

by Jean Barish 
The SF PUC will sell over 17 acres, for approxlmately $11.2 million - about $640,000 per 
a privateer for more than 90% below market rate ... 

P1982 
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Dr. Derek Kerr 
Hopes were that recovering from COVID-19 would generate antibodies, thus conferring ir 

Plus, survivors could help treat newly-infected COVID-19 patients by donating their conva; 

simple. 

. . . 

Our Inefficient Water, Sewer and Power Provider 

• 

by Steve Lawrence 
While water and sewer bills are not taxes, they are worse. They hit ordinary people harde1 

cost. When costs rise, so do rates. 
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James Madison Freedom of Information Awan 
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Life returns slowly to West Portal People are beginning to return to West Portal - and ott 

ready to make sales ... 

Nursing Home "Invisibles" 
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Prelude to a Police Shooting 

Lou Barberini 
Tommy refused to social distance ...... Upon arrival, the two officers immediately observe1 

mouth ... 

Pandemic Clobbers School Budgets 

l:r. I 
. ' . ... .;i;#f-.:~.<: 
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An Emphatic Letter to City Hall 

John Farrell 
We've been here before ... after the assassinations of Mayor George Moscone and Supervi. 

incomprehensible murders in Guyana .. AIDS and the 1989 Loma Prieta earthquake 

City Hall's End Run Around Environmental Revie~ 

P1986 
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SF's Covid Response 

Dr. Teresa Palmer 
Where Are Our Priorities? Nursing homes are like cruise ships, and the outbreak at Centr< 

1:&t~t,~triei~v 
- ",-

Nuru, Breed and Willie Brown 

George Wooding 
Nuru was not the FBl's main target of the Investigation-he was the bait to lure someone l 

~--~ 

(@~~.ffi~·.::> 

Earthday & Coyotes 

Environmentalk: Kathy Howard 
... a coyote attack raises the question ... How do we coexist with wildlife? 

(~;;,:;__;v'\ 
- - __ ,,. -- ·-

Breed's Secrecy 

Patrick Monette-Shaw 
.suspending access to public records - even temporarily, is clearly dangerous to open g 
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Court Upholds $5 Million Whistleblower Judgment against City I 

by Dr. Derek Kerr 
Taxpayer costs will exceed $5 million since the City has been paying the Keker & Van Nest J 

Herrera. They already billed the City $2,267,75, in September 2016 .. 

Hold up on "insurance" for your water and sewer Ii~ 

by Steve Lawrence 
Don't be fooled: you're being sold insurance. Do you have a choice? Yes you do ... 

Is City Hall Getting Nervous? 

London Breed is Falling Down 

by George Wooding 
... City Officials are worried that Nuru is about to negotiate a plea bargain deal naming nami 

prison. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Steinberg, David (DPW) 
Friday, June 21, 2019 ?.:12 PM 
SOTF, (BOS); Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) 

Attachments: 
RE: SOTF - Co1nplaint Filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force - File No. 19062 
Response - Complaint ·#19062.docx 

Hi Cheryl, 

Attached is our response to the complaint. 

Regards, 

David A. Steinberg 

• 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San ~rancisco 
City Hall, Room 343 -1 IJr. C~rlton B. Goodlett f'I. i San Francisco, CA 94102 I (415) 554-6950 

sfpuQ)_icworks.org -twi:tter.com/sfpublicwq_r_~ 

For public records reguests, pl<~ase go to sfpublicworks.org/recorc!~-

From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 

Sent: Friday, June 14, 2019 10:24 AM 
To: Steinberg, David (DPW} <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW) <jonathan.goldberg@sfdpw.org> 

Cc: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Subject: SOTF- Complaint Filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force - Fiie No. 19062 

Good Morni11g: 

Public Work:s has bee11 named as a Respondent in the attached complaint filed with tl1e Sunshine Ordinance 
Task f'orce. Please res11ond to the following complai11t/request within five business days. 

File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John llooper against Public Works for allegedly violati11g Administrative 
Code (Stn1shine Ordinance), Section 67.2 l, by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or 
complete manner. 

The Respondent is required to submit a written response to the allegations including any and all 
supporting documents, recordings, electronic media, etc., to the Task }'orce within five (5) busi11ess days 
of receipt of this notice. This is your opportunity to provide a full explanation to allow the Task: Force to be 
fully infonned in considering yot1r response prior its meeting. 

Please i11clude the following infor1nation i11 your response if applicable: 

I. List all relevant records witl1 descriptio11s that have been provided pursuant to the Complai11ant 
rcc1uest. 

2. ))ate the relevant records were provided to the Co1nplainant. 
J. Description oftl1e method used, along witl1 a11y relevant search terms used, to search for the releva11t 

records. 

P1990 



4. State111ent/declaratio11 tl1at all relevant <loct1n1ents 11avc been provided, does 11ot exist, or l1as bee11 
excluded. 

5. Copy of"tl1e origi11al reqltest for records (if applicable). 

Please refer to tl1c }'ile .'.\lun1bcr \Vl1cn sub111illi11g any nc\.V infor111ation a11d/or supporting doeu1nents 
pertaining to this con1plai11t. 

The Complaina11t alleges: 
C'o111plt1int ,.j ttached. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of5upervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

" ,g'f) Click here to curnplete a Boarr: of S\J pervisors Cus to 1ne r Service Sotisfaction fonn. 

The ~gi,ililtive R.,s~rcQ_r entPr prov1d es 24-hou r occess to ~oard of Supervisor< legislotion, and archived matter> smce Augu't 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal inforrrwtio11 that is provided in 'ommunications to the Boord of Supcrviso1s is subje't to disclosure •Jnder !he California 
Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Pec;orrol inforrnation provided will nol be redoctPd. Mem/Jers of the public ore 
rrot required to provide personal identifying information v1hen they communicate with the Roa rd of Supervisors and It.> committees. All written 
"'oral co1nmuni,ations that members of the public subn1it to tht" Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation ar hearing> \Viii he made avwlable 
to al! mcrnbers of the public for in>pcction and copying. The Clerk'.< Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means 
that personal informot1on-mrl1iding names, phonP numbe1s, add1esse.< arrd similar information that a mernber of the public elec15 to submit to 
the Board and its cornmittePs··-may appear on the Board of Supervisors websitp or in other public docvrnents that members of the public may 
inspPct or copy. 
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June 21, 2019 

Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 

c/o Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 

San Francisco, CA 94102 

Re: SOTF Complaint No. 19062 

We are in receipt of the above-referenced complaint and are submitting this written response as 

required. 

On Feb. 11, 2019, John Hooper sent an email to several San Francisco department heads as well as to a 

number of private individuals requesting copies of public records. Public Works Director Mohammed 

Nuru forwarded the email to me. That same day, I entered the request as Public Records Request #19-

517 in NextRequest, the online platform used by Public Works to respond to records requests, and sent 

Mr. Hooper an email acknowledging receipt and explaining that we would be releasing responsive 

records through NextRequest. 

This was the third request from Mr. Hooper related to Green Benefit Districts ("GBDs"). In addition to his 

own requests, two associates of his, Mark Sullivan and Daniel Tomasevich, have submitted a combined 

30 similar requests. 

On Feb. 20, we released 43 documents to Mr. Hooper, totaling approximately 240 pages. In addition, we 

refer-red him to two previous requests that contained responsive records - Public Records Request #19-
73 from Mr. Tomasevich with two documents and Public Records Request #18-1857 from Mr. Hooper 

with 30 documents totaling approximately 600 pages. Our communication closing the request included 

the following information: 

Please note that Son Francisco Public Works holds neither contracts nor grants with the Greater 
Buena Vista GBD or the Mission Dolores GBD or their formation committees. For this reason, we 

are only able to produce records that are under our control and possession. 

On May 29, Mr. Hooper sent another email to a number of City employees, including Public Works 

Director Mohammed Nuru and Public Works employee Jonathan Goldberg. Unfortunately, the request 

he attached was in a format that wasn't readable by our computers. That day, I sent him an email that 

contained the following information: 

As we wrote to you on Feb. 20, 2019, in our response to Public Records Request 1119-517, we 
re/eased to you the records responsive to your request. We also noted that San Francisco Public 

Works holds neither contracts nor grants with the Greater Buena Vista GBD or the Mission 
Dolores GBD or their formation cornmittees. For this reason, we were only able ta produce 

records that are under our control and possession. If you still believe there are responsive records 

outstanding, please submit a new request at sfpublicworks.org/records, which as you know is the 

on/ine platform we use to answer public records requests, or send rne a copy of the attachment 
from today's letter in PDF or another common format. 
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He mailed me a copy of the attach1nent, which I received June 3 and which contained a request that 

additional docun1ents responsive to his Feb. 11 request be delivered. The mailed letter contained no 

new requests and we had already informed Mr. Hooper that we had provided all of the responsive 

records in our possession and control, so no further action was taken. 

San Francisco Public Works has no contracts or agreements with San Francisco Parks Alliance, which Mr. 

Hooper knows because he spoke May 21, 2019, in support of Mr·. Sullivan at a SOTF committee meeting 

in which a similar matter was heard. Mr. Hooper also notes in his Feb. 11 letter that "the City- through 

OEWD - has provided extensive fu11ding to San Francisco Parks Alliance." 

We have provided all of the docunients responsive to the February 2019 request that are held by this 

department. Mr. Hooper's argument that there is an obligation to obtain records from a third party does 

not apply in this case because the San Francisco Parks Alliance has not received a grant from Public 

Works. For these two reasons, we ask th'1t this complaint against Public Works be dismissed. 

Regards, 

David A. Steinberg 

Custodian of Records 

San Francisco Public Works 
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Jan. 8, 2020 

Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 

c/o Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Goard of Supervisors 

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 

San Francisco, CA 94102 

Re: SOTF Complaint No. 19062 

Our initial written response to this complaint, dated June 21, 2019, is attached. In addition, we would 

like the following material included in the packet for SOTF me1nbers. 

This complaint is substantially similar to one filed by Mark Sullivan (File #19062} seeking documents 

related to Green Benefit Districts ("GBDs"). In both cases, Public Works res'ponded in a timely manner to 

requests for records, but complaints were file for failure to produce records that were neither in the 

possession nor under the control of Public Works. 

The Task Force found that Public Works did not violate the Sunshine Ordinance in the complaint filed by 
Mr. Sullivan (see attached Order of Determination}, and we ask that you similarly find against Mr. 

Hooper in this complaint. 

In response to his records request, the department on Feb. 20 released 43 documents to Mr. Hooper, 

totaling approximately 240 pages. In addition, we referred him to two previous requests that contained 

responsive records with 30 documents totaling approximately 600 pages. 

Like Mr. Sullivan, Mr. Hooper, is arguing that San Francisco Public Works has an obligation to retrieve 

records from San Francisco Parks Alliance, an organization with which it has no contracts or agreements. 

Mr. Hooper is aware that a different City agency holds the contract with Parks Alliance and even noted 

in his Feb. 11 letterto the SOTF that "the City-through OEWO- has provided extensive funding to San 

Francisco Parks Alliance." 

According to the meeting minutes of the Aug. 20, 2019, Complaints Committee, Mr. Hooper "stated that 

he requested the raw data from the 'survey monkey.'" While Public Works did not have access to this 

data, Marianne Mazzucco"Thompson of OEWD told the committee that day that the data had already 

been supplied to Mr. Hooper by her in spreadsheet format. 

In sum mar-{, we have provided all of the documents responsive to the February 2019 request that are 

held by this department. Mr. Hooper's argument that there is an obligation to obtain records from a 

third party does not apply in this case because the San Francisco Parks Alliance.has not received a grant 

from Public Works. For these two reasons, we ask that the Task Force follow its precedent in Mr. 

Sullivan's com plaint File #19062 and find no violation of the Sunshine Ordinance. 

Regards, 
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David A. Steinberg 

Custodian of Records 

San Francisco Public Works 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) 

Sent: Thursday, September 24, 2020 12:14 PM 
SOTF, (BOS) To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Thompson, Marianne (ECN); JOHN HOOPER 

RE: SOTF - rescheduling GBD hearing 

Hi Cheryl, 

In response to Mr. Hooper's request that a most knowledgeable employee appear at the hearing, please note the 

following: 
• Jonathan Goldberg is on a Disaster Service Worker assignment, is not reporting to Public Works and is 

unavailable for the foreseeable future. 
• The sole purpose of this committee meeting was to review the "new" materials that Mr. Hooper belatedly tried 

to present at the January 21, 2020, hearing. None of those materials has any bearing on his request to or the 

response from Public Works. Further, as I've said at several meetings now, we have provided all responsive 

records in our possession and having Mr. Goldberg on hand to confirm that isn't necessat)'. 

Regards, 

David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Fr;inc1sco Public Works I City and County of S<in Fr·ancisco 
49 South Van-Ness Avenue, Suite 1547 I San Frar1cisco, CA 94103 I (628) 271-2888 

~fpublicworks.org · twit_ter.com/~fpublicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublit;:works.org/records. 

Note: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Sent: Thursday, September 24, 2020 11:54 AM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 

Cc: Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) 

<david .steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
. Subject: Re: SOTF- rescheduling GBD hearing 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: I'm now in my SF office with my files at hand. 

I was most recently scheduled to appear before the SOTF Complaint Committee on February 18, 2020 but SDTF 

cancelled that meetin_g. -~o you are now seeking to reschedule that meeting, as I understand it. 
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I prepared and sent to SOTF the statement I had expected to make on February 18, so It looks like you've got what you 
need. Please let 1ne know if I can provide more info. 

It would be helpful if the Cornmittee would require City e1nployees from 
Public Works and OEWD who are knowledgable about GBD programs to appear rather than custodians of records who 
are - by their own admissions - not familiar with the details of these programs. 

Please let me know when you plan to schedule the next hearing. 

Thanks, as always. 

John Hooper 

On Sep 21, 2020, at 12:18 PM, SOTF, {BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Mr. Hooper: Attached are the materials you submitted to n1e at the January Sunshine Ordinance Task 
Force hearing. Are these the only materials you wish to submit or do you have other documents? I 
would like to schedule your file nos. 19061and19062 to be heard by the SOTF Complaint 
Committee. The decision of the SOTF is below. Please respond. Thank you. 

January 21, 2020 SOTF hearing, SOTF referred the matter back to the Complaint Committee and have 
new materials provided to SOTF be included in the file for review to determine which documents are 
applicable to which respondent and provide a recommendation to the SOTF. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
.Cheryl .Leger@sfgov.org 
Tel: 415-554··7724 
Fax: 415-5S4-5163 
www.sfbos.org 
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From: Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.Q.!1:> 
Sent: Monday, September 21, 2020 10:56 AM 
To: Steinberg, David (DPW} <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Cc: Heckel, Hank (MYR) <hank.heckel@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Good Morning Cheryl, 

I read the document that was sent, and I sincerely do not understand it. I do not see the need to 
proceed forward. 

M. 

<image003.png> 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sf.dpw.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:20 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Thanks, Cheryl. 

-d. 

<imageOOS.jpg> 
David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & Executive Assistant to the Director 
San Francisco Public Works I City and County of San Francisco 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, S1Jite 1647 I Son Francisco, CA 94103 I (628) 271-2888 
sfpub licwprJ;~_,g_rg · twitte[.of.12.[]1/sfpu blicworks 

For public records requests, please go to sfpublicvvorks.org/recorrj.2_. 

Note: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 2:34 PM 
To: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 
<marian ne.thornpson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 

Hello Marianne and Dcivid: Attached are the materials submitted by Mr. Hooper at the January 21, 2020 
S.OTF hearing. let me know if you need anything further. I will be at the office tomorrow if you need 
me to get other records to you. 

Cheryl Leger 
415-425-6918- my cell 

From: Steinberg, David (DPW) <david.steinberg@sfdpw.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 3:12 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: SOTF - file nos. 19061 and 19062 
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Hi Cheryl, 

I don't see the additional records that Mr. Hooper provided at the in-person meeting as part of the 

minutes you provided. My notes from previous emails show that you said you had them in your office 

and you would send us copies when the stay-at-home order was li~ed. Do you have access to them? The 
whole reason to schedule the committee meeting was to consider these new records, so there isn't 

much point holding a meeting until we have copies. 

Thanks much and stay safe. 

·d. 

<image006.jpg> 

David A. Steinberg 
Custodian of Records & Execut:ve Assistan: to the D;rector 
San Francisco Public. Vv'orks I City and County of San Francisco 

49 South Vari Ness Avenue, Suite 1647 I San Francisco, CA 94103 i (528) 271-·2888 
_s.f~blicworks.Q_[g · twitte.r.corn/sfpyblicwor_ks. 

For pubiic records requests, please go to sfoubl1cvvorks.org/record_?:. 

Note: The new contact information above is effective July 6, 2020. 

From: SOTF, (80S) <sotf@sfgov.org> 

Sent: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 2:11 PM 
To: Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson(Wsfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) 

<d avid .steinbe rg@sfd pw .org> 

Subject: SOTF - file nos. 19061and19062 

Hello Marianne and David: Attached are the minutes from the January 21, 2020, Sunshine Ordinance 

Task Force hearing. Reflected in the minutes is the inclusion of records that were provided to Mr. 
Hooper. I would like to schedule these two matters to be heard next month before the Complaint 

Committee. Please review the minutes and let me know if you need anything further from rne or if I 
need to do something. Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Cheryl. Leger@sfgov.org 

Tel: 415-554-7724 
Fax: 415-554-5163 
www.sfbos.org 
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Oct. 13, 2020 

Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 

c/o Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 

San Francisco, CA 94102 

Re: SOTF Complaint No. 19062 

Our two previous written responses to this complaint, dated June 21, 2019, and Jan. 8, 2020, are 

attached. In addition, we would like the following material included in the packet for SOTF me1nbers: 

The sole purpose of this comrnittee meetin15 was to review the "new" materials that Mr. Hooper 

belatedly tried to present at the January 21, 2020, hearing. None of those materials has any bearing on 

his request to or the response from Public Works. Further, as I've said at several meetings now, we have 

provided all responsive records in our possession. We ask that this complaint be dismissed. 

Regards, 

David A. Steinberg 

Custodian of Records 

San Francisco Public Works 
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SUNSHINE ORDINANCE 
TASK FORCE 

DATE DECISION ISSUED 
August 7, 2019 

City Hall 
1 Dr Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 

San Francisco, CA 94102-4689 
Tel. No. (415) 554-7724 

ORDER OF DETERMINATION 
October 24, 2019 

Fax No. (415) 554-7854 
TTD/TTYNo. (415) 554-5227 

CASE TITLE - Mark Sullivan v. Jonathan Goldberg, David Steinberg and the 
Department of Public Works. 
File No. 19032 

FACTS OF THE CASE 

The following petition/complaint was filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
(SOTF): 

File No. 19032: Complaint filed by Mark Sullivan against Jonathan Goldberg, David 
Steinberg and Public Works for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine 
Ordinance), Section 67.21 (a)(c)(d)(g), by failing to respond to a public records request 
in a timely and/or complete manner; 67.5 requiring that meetings be open and public 
and 67.32·provision of services to other agencies. 

HEARING ON THE COMPLAINT 

On May 21, 2019, the Education, Outreach and Training Committee acting in its 
capacity to hear petitions/complaints heard the matter. 

Mark Sullivan (Petitioner) provided a summary of the complaint and requested 
the Committee to find a violation. Mr. Sullivan stated that in the Respondent's 
claims that Public Works has not entered into.a contract with SF Park Alliance 
and that the contract is with OEWD. Mr. Sullivan stated that Public Works should 
have either provided the contract or obtained the contract on behalf of the 
Petitioner. Mr. Sullivan stated that DPW has a green benefits manager who 
regularly interacts with the green benefit~ formation committees. Mr. Sullivan 
stated that the documents submitted show that Mr. Goldberg attended five 
separate Mission Dolores green benefit district planning meetings to answer 
questions. 

John Hooper provided comments regarding the Petitioner's complaint. 
Rick Correll provided comments regarding the proposed green benefit district 
and that possibly Mr. Sullivan could get documents from Place Lab aka SFPark 
Alliance. 
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David Steinberg, Public Works (Respondent), provided a summary of the 
department's position. Mr. Steinberg stated that DPW has received 33 separate 
records requests from Mr. Sullivan regarding green benefits districts and has 
produced al\ requested documents in their possession. Mr. Steinberg described 
the process for retaining emails and documents. Mr. Steinberg stated that Public 
Works has no additional documents to turn over to Mr. Sullivan and further stated 
that all requested records were provided to multiple parties on multiple 
occasions. Mr. Steinberg stated that they do not have the P\ace Lab contract in 
question as it was not administered by Public Works but by OEWD. 

Marianne Thompson provided a suminary of how green benefits districts work 
and their relationships with contractors. Ms. Thompson also provided information 
on how OEWD contracts are managed and work. 

The Committee noted that the complaint is against the city department and that 
the SOTF previously found that the SOTF does not have jurisdiction over green 
benefit district (File No. 18086.) Upon discussion the Committee opined that 
that issue of contention is the provision of the contract with OEWD. 

Due to the related issues in File Nos. 19031 and 19032 and with the agreement 
of the Petitioner and the Committee requested that the matters be scheduled and 
heard together before the SOTF. 

The Committee found that the SOTF has jurisdiction and that the requested 
records are public and referred the matter to the SOTF for hearing. 

On August 7, 2019, the SOTF held a hearing to review the.recommendation from 
Committee and/or to review the merits of the petition/complaint. 

Mark Sullivan (Petitioner) provided a summary of the complaint and requested 
the Committee to find a violation. Mr. Sullivan stated he receive documentation 
that indicates the existence of contracts that Public Works is withholding. Mr. 
Sullivan stated that Public Works (PW) has given out two contracts for a GBD 
formation which he has not received. 

David Steinberg (Public Works) (Respondent), provided a summary of the 
department's position. Mr. Steinberg stated that Mr. Sullivan asked for records 
that detail the GBD Formation Committee. Mr. Steinberg stated that he closed 
the requests on March 21, 2019 and told Mr. Sullivan that all records have been 
provided and no contracts have been withheld. Mr. Stenberg stated that the 
Place Lab, SFParks Alliance contract is not administered by Public Works but by 
OEWD. 

Marianne Mazzucco-Thompson (Respondent), provided an additional summary 
of the OEWD's position. Ms. Mazzucco-Thompson stated that she has provided 
the contract with SFParks Alliance to Mr. Sullivan and that there were 
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deliverables. Ms. Mazzucco-Thompson stated that she went back to SFParks 
Alliance and they provided a spreadsheet which she forwarded to Mrr Sullivan. 
Ms. Mazzucco-Thompson stated that all documents have been provided to Mr. 
Sullivan. 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSION OF LAW 

Based on the testimony and evidence presented, the SOTF found that Jonathan 
Goldberg, David Steinberg and the Department of Public Works DID NOT VIOLATE 
Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.1, 67.5 and 67.32. 

DECISION AND ORDER OF DETERMINATIONS 

Action: Moved by Member Cannata, seconded by Member Cate, to find that the 
Department of Public Works did not violate Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), 
Sections 67 .1, 67 .5 and 67.32. 

The motion PASSED by the following vote: 

Ayes: 9 - Cannata, Cate, Yankee, Martin, J. Wolf, Tesfai, LaHood, Hinze 
B. Wolfe 
Noes: 0 - .None 
Absent 1 - Chopra 
Excused: 1- Hyland 

Bruce olfe,, 
Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 

cc. Mark Sullivan (Petitioner/Complainant) 
Jonathan Goldberg, David Steinberg and the Department of Public Works 
(Respondents) 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

I (BOS) 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.corn> 

Wednesday, October 1'1, 2020 1:01 P!\11 

SOTF, (BOS) 
Re: Parks Alliance/Public Works/OEWD and corruption: "benefit" districts lay groundwo1·k for private 
firms to take over City services 

This message is frorn outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: This letter to Tim Redmond is a further attempt on my part to explain the central role that "benefit" districts 
have played In the corruption scandals that have swept the City. 

Please include this note including the full letter(s)below in the files #19061 and #19062 so this information is available to 
SOTF members to read prior to the October 20 Complaint Committee hearing. 

Thanks as always! 

John Hooper 

On Oct 14, 2020, at 12:44 PM, JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> wrote: 

Hi Tim: Parks Alliance Board now includes real estate developer OZ Erickson. Another big developer, 
former Parks Alliance Board member Michael Yarne, first introduced the idea that Parks Alliance get 
paid 

by OEWD to promote special elections to set up "benefit" districts, thereby accelerating privatization of 
basic government services. 

Below is an adaptation of a recent letter I wrote trying to explain this issue as being central to our 
corruption crisis in SF gov't. 

Stay well\-

John Hooper 

Subject: Re: Parks Alliance/Public Works/OEWD and corruption: "benefit" districts lay 
groundwork for private firms to take over City services 

Another aspect of this complex subject, which has not yet received much 
attention, are City-funded efforts to establish Commercial Benefit Districts 
(CBDs) and Green Benefit Districts (GBDs), both of which encourage 
basic City services to be privatized with (historically) Mohammed Nuru 
making the decisions about what private companies or cronies then get 
the contracts for "extra" police, street cleaning and park maintenance. 
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More recently, multi-millionaire Chris Larsen has used CBDs as his vehicle to distribute 
hundreds of surveillance cameras via six CBDs in disregard of City ordinance and any 
public process. 

For several years, DPW has had a full time employee - Jonathan 
Goldberg - promoting Green Benefit Districts (GBDs) which promise to 
provide "additional services" for residential neighborhoods which agree to 
assess themselves. 

The funding to promote GBDs comes through Public Works and the 
Mayor's Office of Economic and Workforce Development (OEWD). Real 
estate developer Michael Yaerne gained City approval to set up GBDs 
while he worked at OEWD when Gavin Newsom was Mayor. 

In effect, the City is funding lobbying campaigns to influence special 
elections and thus reduce its own responsibilities for cleaning up the City 
and setting up frameworks to hand off basic services to private firms. 

Tecnnica11y, City employees are forbidden by law from becoming involved 
in elections, but establishing CBDs and GBDs both require special 
elections, and, in rea!ity, City agencies place their thumbs heavily on the 
scale, using taxpayer dollars to fund City staffers to promote benefit 
districts and through non-profits to influence the process while hiding the 
City's role. The City Attorney has been alerted to this problem on a 
number of occasions. 

GBDs have been defeated in several neighborhoods, including the Inner 
Sunset and Haight (where I Jive), and most recently in the Dolores Park 
neighborhood where a divisive two year effort has just been called off. 
Property owners in these areas have generally responded to these City
funded lobbying efforts to convince property owners to tax themselves, by 
asking "don't we already pay property taxes to provide for policing, street 
cleaning and park maintenance?" 

Once again, Parks Alliance has been at the center of these illegal 
efforts and has been paid by the City to be the foot-soldier in these 
campaigns to privatize City services. The contract between the City 
and Parks Alliance for the failed effort in the Haight, for example, came to 
$221,000. The total cost of the effort in the Dolores Park area is still 
unknown but similar. Parks Alliance routinely used taxpayer dollars to set 
up websites, to run highly biased public meetings, pay for promotional 
mailers, run Petition Drives to the Board of Supervisors and was prepared 
to influence special elections by having all City-owned properties in 
targetted neighborhoods vote in favor of assessing neighbors. 

2 
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A number of neighbors from different areas of the City have testified for 
the past two or three years before the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
(SOTF) to try to reveal the relationship between DPW, OEWD and Parks 
Alliance in promoting new residential assessment districts using taxpayer 
dollars. 

You can obtain detailed information about this effort by asking SOTF for 
files #19061 and #19062. l expect to testify once again before the SOTF 
on October 20. SOTF has shown little interest in this issue to date. Now 
that Parks Alliance finds itself at the center of a City government 
corruption scandal, there may be some reason to hope that SOTF will help 
concerned citizens get to the bottom of this matter. 

Anyhow, this whole effort to use public funds to set up special assessment 
districts to privatize services has not been fully exposed and I thought it 
would interest you. 

John Hooper 
Haight-Ash bury 
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Leger, Cher I (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 

To: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Friday, June 14, 2019 12:38 PM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Subject: Re: SOTF- Complaint Filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force - File No. 19062 

This message is from outside the City email syste1n. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Dear SOTF: 

Just want to verify that OEWD is required to respond to the complaint as well as DPW. 

Thank you. 

John Hooper 

On Jun 14, 2019, at 10:24 AM, SDTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

(Jood Momi11g: 

Public Works has bee1111amed as a Respo11de11t in the attacl1ed com1Jlai11t filed with the Sunshine 
Ordina11cc Tasl( Force. Please respond to the following complaint/request within five business 
days. 

File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John llooper against Public Works for allegedly violating 
Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordina11ce), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public 
records rcql1est in a timely and/or complete manner. 

'l'he 'Respondent is required to submit a written response to the allegations including any 
and all supporting docume1rts, recordings, electronic mc<lia, etc., to the 'J'asl{ Force within 
five (5) business days of receipt of this notice. This is your opportunity to provide a full 
explanation to allow the Task Force to be fully infom1ed i11 considering your response prior its 
meeting. 

Please include the following information in your response if applicable: 

1. List all relevant records with descriptions tl1at have been provided pursuant to the 
Complainant request. 

2. Date the relevant records were provided to tl1c Complainant. 
3. Description of the method used, along with any relevant search ter111s used, to search 

for the relevant records. 
4. Statement/declaration that all relevant tlocu1nents 11avc been provided, does not exist, 

or has been excluded. 
S. Copy of the origi11al reqltest for records (if applicable). 

Please refer to the l~ile Number when submitting any new infotmation and/or supporting 
documents pertai11ing to this coinplaint. 
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cl'he Complainant alleges: 
Co1nplaint Atttrched. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Tel: 41S-SS4-7724 

<image001. png> Cl1ck _h__e_c~ to complete o Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfor.tion form. 

The ~gi5lolive __ Reseo rch CenlfJ provides 24-hou r access to Board of S LI pc rvisors legislation, and archived miltters s;nce 
f\ugust J998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that 15 p1ovided in commutucations to the Boord of Supervisors i' 'ubp:!Ct to disclosure 
under the Co!iforn10 Public Records Act and tile Son Francisco Sun1/1ine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not 
be redacted. Members of !Ile pub/Jc are not requ!fcd to provrde personal identif'Jing information wh1:n !hey commimicate 
with the Board of Supervisoo· and its committees./\/} written or oral communications th al member< of the publir submi! 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pendinn /egislalian or hearings will be made available to oll rnernbers of tile public jar 
inspection and copy1hg. T/w Clerk'.< Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This n1ea11s that 
per5onal informat1011-includmg names, plrone numbers, addresses and similar infonnotion that a member of the public 
el eels ta submit to the aoaril and its comrnittees-may appear on the Board of Supervisors web.<ite or in other public 
documents that members of tile public n1oy inspect or copy_ 

<SOTF - Complaint Procedure 2018-12-05 FINAL.pdf> 

<19062.pdf> 
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Le er, Cheryl (BOS} 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.corn> 
Thursday, June 20, 2019 2:57 PM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Subject: Re: SOTF - Complaint Filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force - File No. 19062 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: It was my intent to include both DPW and OEWD in my complaint. 

Is that your understanding or do I need to take any additional steps? 

Thanks for your guidance. 

John Hooper 

On Jun 14, 2019, at 10:24 AM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Good Morning: 

Public Works has been named as a Respondent in the attached C(llnplaint filed with the Sunshine 
Ordinnt1ce Tasl( Force. Please res11or1d to the following complaint/request within five business 
days. 

File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper against Public Works for allegedly violating 
Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public 
records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

The l~cs11onde11t is required to submit a written response to the allegatio11s including any 
a11d all supporting doc11ments, recordings, electronic media, etc., to the Task Jl~orce within 
five (5) business days of receipt of this notice. 'rhis is your opporiunity to provide a full 
explanation to allow the Task Force to be fully i11formed in considering yo11r response prior its 
meeting. 

Please include the following infonnation in your response if applicable: 

1. List all relevant records with descriptions 1.hat have been provided pu;rsuant to the 
Complainant request. 

2. Date the relevant records were provided to the Complainm1t. 
3. l)escription oftl1e rnethod used, along with any relevant searcl1 terms used, to search 

for 1.he relevant records. 
4. Statcmcntldcclaration tl1at all relevant documents 11ave been provided, does not exist, 

or has been excluded. 
s. Copy of the origi11al request for records (if applicable). 
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Please refer to the l~ile Number \\'hen sub1nitting any 11ew info1111atior1 and/or Sllpporting 
docun1ents pertaini11g to this complaint. 

CI'he Com11laina11t alleges: 
Co1n1;laint Attached. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image001. png> Clickb_~_ct to complete a Board of Supervisors Cu_,tomer Service Sotisfaction form. 

Th~ kgislativc Re_se.arch (,:enter provide> 24-hour access lo Board of Supervisors legislation, Jnd archived matters since 
August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in comn1unicotions to the Boord of Supervisors is subject to disc!osure 
under the California Public Records /\ct and the Son Francisco Sunshine Ordinanr:f>_ Personal mformotion provio'ed will not 
bf rtdocted. Members of the public are not required to provide persona! identifying informo!ion when they com1nunicate 
with the Boord of Supervisors ond its committees. Ail wri!ten or oral commumcotions that members of the public subn1it 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings w1JI be mode ovw1oble to oil mpmbers of the public for 
insppction and copying The Clerk's Office does nat redact any information from these submissions. This 1neans that 
persona! rnfonnotio11-including names, phone nu1nber.>, addresses and similar information tho! o member of the public 
elects to submi! to the Boord and its committees-may appear on the Boord ofSupervrsors website or in other public 
documents that members of the public may inspect or copy. 

<SOTF- Complaint Procedure 2018-12-05 FINAL.pdf> 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 

Thursday, July 25, 2019 5:38 PM 

SOTF, {BOS) 

rnark@innersunsetsf.org; dtomasevich@gmail.corn; bosco22@hotmail.com; 

stevebartoletti@gmail.com; rjcarell@grnail.com 
Subject: Re: SOTF - confirming 8/20 hearing #19063 

No problem, Cheryl. I'm marking August 20. 

John Hooper 

On Jul 25, 2019, at 4:56 PM, SOTF, {BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

I am in receipt of and thank you for your email. MY MISTAKE!! You only need to appear on 

August 20 before the Complaint Committee for the matters outlined below. I apologize if this 

caused you any trouble. I will be sending out a Notice of Appearance soon. 

File No. 19061: Complaint filed by John Hooper against the Office of Economic and Workforce 

Development for allegedly violating Administrative Code {Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, 

by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or complete 

manner. (attachment) 

File No.19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper against Public Works for allegedly violating 

Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public 

records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<imageOOl. png> Cl1ck_he.r~ to complete a Board of Superuisors Customer Seruice Satisfaction form 

The LeKishitive Research Center provide.> 24-hour access to Bo;i rd of Su perv;sors legislation, and archived matters since 
August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in commun1cations to the Boord of Supfrvisor.1 is _,ubject to disclosure 
under the Californ1a Public Record.< /let and the Son rrancisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal inforrnation provided wi/! not 
be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying inforn1otian when they communicate 
with the Board of Supervisors and its comrnittees. /\If wnttcn or oral communications that members of the public submit 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pending !egislaUon or hearings will be made available ta all members oft he public for 
inspec!ian and copying. The Clerk's Offke does not redacl any infor111otion from these submisS1ons. This means that 
personal information-including names, phone number<, addresses and similar information that a member of the pub/Jc 
elects ta subrnit to the Board and its committees-may appear on the Board of Supervisors website or ir1 other public 
documents that member.< nf the public may inspect or copy. · 
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From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Thursday, July 25, 2019 4:16 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF - confirming 7 /29 hearing #19063 

Confirming my appearance requested for Monday 7 /29 per your email of 7 /12 below. 

Can you let me know agenda, place and ti1ne?Thanks! 

John Hooper 

On Jul 12, 2019, at 12:34 PM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

You have a total of four complciints (DPW (File No. 19062), OEWD (File No. 19061), Rec 
& Park (File No. 19064) and SFParks Alliance (File No. 19063)). I have separated those 
complaints into four because you are alleging noncompliance with three of the 
departments and we need to keep each complaint separate. In addition, we can only 
schedule two complaints per Petitioner per comn1ittee hearing. So I scheduled your 
19063, SF_Parks Alliance, to be heard on July 29. Your other two complaints will be 
heard in the near future. Let me know if you have other questions. 

Cheryl l.eger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image001. png> Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service S~tisfaction 
form. 

The legislative Research Centi;r provides 24-hour acce1s to Board of Supervisors legislation, ~nd 

archLVed matters si nee August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is prov,ded in communications to the Board of Supervisors 1s 
subject to disclosure under the California Pu/J/ic !lf'cDrds Act and the San Fru11d1co Sunshine 
Ordinance. Persona! information provided will not bf' redacted. Mernbers of the public ore not 
required to provide personal identifying info1mation wiien they comn1unicate with the Board of 
Supervisors and its commiltee>. All written or oral communications that mcmbl'rs of !he public 
submit to the Clerk's Office reqarding pending /egi.slotion or hearings will be rnade ova1lable to al! 
members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact any 
information from t,11,,se submis<ions. This means that personal information-including name<. 
phone numbers, addresses ond similar information that o member of the pi!blic eiect5 ta submit to 
the Boord and its committees-may op pear on the Board of Supervisors website or 1n other public 
documents that membff.> of the public moy inspect or copy. 

From: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Friday1 July 12, 2019 11:10 AM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF -question re- Complaint Committee agenda; July 23, 2019 5:30 p.m. 

Dear Cheryl: 

A question about my May 29,2019 complaint (which you have kindly 
agreed to postpone): 
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In your July 9 hearing notice, the complaint is desribed as being only 
against SF Parks Alliance. However, as I have tried to make clear in 
several clarifying emails since my original complaint, I am expecting 
addtional information from OEWD and DPW and have not realeased thos 
agencies from my complaint. 

I have only released Rec/Park Dept from the complaint as that department 
has apparently sent me all requested information. 

Please let me know that you understand that the complaint as described 
below incorrectly omits OEWD and DPW. 

Thanks, 

John Hooper 

-----Original Message-----
From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Cc: drew@sfparksalliance.org <drew@sfparksalliance.org>; 
broo ke rav@sfparksa llian ce. orq < b roo ke ray@sfpa rksal lian ce. org> 
Sent: Wed, Jul 10, 2019 9:07 am 
Subject: Re: SOTF - Updated Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee; July 23, 
2019 5:30 p.m. 

Hi Cheryl: thanks so much! 

John Hooper 

On Jul 10, 2019. at 8:38 AM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfqov.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

I am in receipt of your request for postponement and accept it Since this is your first 
request, we will note it as such in our records. After that any postponements requested 
must be approved by the Committee. By way of this email, I am notifying the respondent 
of your request. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image001 png> Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service 
Satisfact1011 form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors 
legislation, and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information Illa/ 1s provided in communications lo fhe Board of 
Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and /he San 
Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Persona/ information provided will not be 
redacted. Members of the public are nof required to provide personal identifying 
information when //Joy communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its cornmittees. All 
v1ritten or oral communicafions that rnembers of the public su/Jmit lo the Clerk's Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings will be 1nadc available lo a/I 1nen1bers of the 
public for inspection and copying The Clerk's Office does not redacf any information from 
these submissions. This means that personal informa/ion-1ncluding names, phone 
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numbers, <Jddresses end sinii/ar inforrnafion that a 1nornber of t/1e public elects to subrnit to 
//10 Board and its co1n111itrees-1noy appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in other 
public docu1nonts that rne1J1be1s of rile public may inspC!cl or copy. 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 9, 2019 7·03 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov_org> 
Subject: Re: SOTF - Updated Notice of Appearance- Complaint Committee; July 23, 
2019 5:30 p.rn. 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Dear SOTF: 
Re: File# 19063 - request to postpone 

I have a conflict the afternoon of July 23. May I ask you to reschedule tl1at agenda item at 
another meeting. Please excuse the inconvenience. 

John Hooper 

On Jul 9, 2019, at 3:32 PM, SOTF, (BOS) <.sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Good Afternoon: 
You are receiving this notice because you are named as a 
Complainant or Respondent in one of the following 
complaints scheduled before the Complaint Committee to: 1) 
hear the merits of the complaint; 2) issue a determination; 
and/or 3) consider referrals from a Task Force Committee. 
Date: July 23, 2019 
Location: City Hall, Room 408 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Complainants: Your attendance is required for this 
meeting/hearing. 
Respondents/Departments: Pursuant to Section 67.21 (e) of 
the Ordinance, the custodian of records or a representative 
of your department, who can speak to the matter, is required 
at the meeting/hearing. 
Complaints: 
File No. 19060: Complaint filed by Ash!ey Rhodes against 
the Arts Commission for allegedly violating Administrative 
Code, Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a request for 
public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19025: Complaint filed by Jamie Whitaker against 
the Homelessness and Su_pportive Housing for allegedly 
violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 
67.21, by failing to respond to a public records request in a 
timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19058: Complaint filed by Robert M. Smith against 
the Fine Arts Museum of San Francisco for allegedly 
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violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 
67.25, by failing to respond to an Immediate Disclosure 
Request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19063: Complaint filed by John Hooper against 
SF Parks Alliance for al!egedly violating Administrative Code 
(Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond 
to a public records request in a timely and/or complete 
manner. 

File No. 19068: Complaint filed by Sophia De Anda against 
the Human Services Agency for allegedly violating 
Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, 
by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely 
and/or complete manner. 
Documentation (evidence supporting/disputing 
complaint) 
For a document to be considered, it must be received at 
least five (5) working days before the hearing (see attached 
Public Complaint Procedure). For inclusion into the 
agenda packet, supplementa//supparling documents 
must be received by 5:00 pm, July 16, 2019. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image001.png> Click here to complete a 
Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction 
form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-
hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and 
archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is 
provided in communications to the Board of 
Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the 
California Public Records Act and the San 
Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Persona/ 
information provided will not be 
redacted. Members of the public are not 
required to provide persorial identifying 
information when they communicate with the 
Board of Supervisors and its committees. Alf 
written or oral communications that members 
of the public submit to the Clerk's Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings will 
be made available to a!! members of the public 
for inspection a11d copying. The Clerk's Office 
does not redact any information from these 
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s11bmissions_ This means that personal 
inforrnation-incfuding r1ames, pl1one numbers, 
addresses and similar information that a 
member of the public efects to submit to the 
Board and its committees-may appear on the 
Board of Supervisors website or in other public 
docun1ents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy_ 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 

To: 

JOHN HOOPER -<hooparb@aol.com>

Wednesday, August 7, 2019 9:55 AM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

Subject: Re: SOTF - Complaint Committee; August 20, 2019 5:30 p.m: submitting info for the 

record? 

Good to know; thank you! 

John Hooper 

On Aug 7, 2019, at 8:21 AM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Hooper: 

Yes, you can submit materials as long as you do so on or before August 13. Everything else that I have 

been given will be included.in the packet. Once the Agenda packet has been uploaded, you will be able 

to see everything that I have received in your file. 

Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<image001. png> Click here to complete~ Board of Supervisors Customer Service Sotisfac\ion form. 

The L,;gislativ_f_Resea rch Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legi1lation, ~nd archjved matte rs since 
August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personol informotion that is provided in communicotions to the Boord of Supervisors is subject to disclosure 
under the California Publk RPcords Act and the San Frannsco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not 
be redacted Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when !hey communicate 
with the Boord of Supervisors and its committee_,_ All written or orol communications that members of the public subrnit 
to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hPorings will be made avoilable to oil members of the publ•cfor 
inspection and copy mg. The Clerk's Office does not redact ony informot1on from these submissions. This means that 
personal mformotion-includmg names, plione numbers, addresses andsimilor informaOon that a mPmberof the public 
elects to submit to the Boord and its committees-may opp ear on the Boord of Supervisors website or in other public 
documenrs that members of the public moy inspect or copy. 

From: JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2019 8:19 AM 

To: SOTF, (BOS} <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Cc: Juan De Anda <deanda sophia@comcast.net>; Rudakov, Vladimir (HSA) 

<Vladimir.Rudakov@sfgov.org>; Pang, Ken (HSA} <Ken.Pang@sfgov.org>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) 

<christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) <marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Nuru, 

Mohammed {DPW) <mohammed.nuru@sfdpw.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) 
<david.steinberg@sfdpw.Q[g>; Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW} <jonathan.goldberg@sfdpw.org>; 72056-

97339218@requests.muckrock.com; COTE, JOHN (CAT) <John.Cote@sfcityatty.Q_[g>; 72902-
46637773@requests.muckrock.com; Heckel, Hank (MYR) <hank.heckel@sfgov.org> 

Subject: Re: SOTF - Complaint Committee; August 20, 2019 5:30 p.m: submitting info for the record? 

P2018 



This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachrnents from untrusted sources. 

Re: Files: 19061and19062 

Hi Cheryl: May I submit written materials ahead of time for SOTF to read? If so, when would you like to 
receive materials? 

May I assume information previously submitted by myself or others is already part of the SOTF record 
and may be referenced without resubmitting? 

Thank you. 

John Hooper 

On Jul 29, 2019, at 2:05 PM, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Good After110011: 

You arc receivi11g this notice because you arc na1ncd as a Co111plainant or 
lZespondent in one of the followi11g complaints scl1eduled before the c:onrplaint 
Committee to: 1) bear the merits oftl1e co1n1Jlaint; 2) issue a dcter1ni11atio11; 
ai1d/or 3) consider referrals fro111 a ·rask Force Committee. 

I)ate: August 20, 2019 

City 1-Iall, Room 408 

'fime: 5:30 J).m. 

Con1plainants: Your attenda11ce is required for this 1neeting/heari11g. 

Respondents/Depart1nents: Pursuant to Section 67 .21 (e) of the ()rdina11ce, the 
custodia11 of records or a representative of your dcpart1nent, vvho can speak to tl1c 
niatter, is required at the meeting/l1earing. 

Complaints: 

File No. 19068: Com11laint 1ilcd by Sophia De Anda again~t the 1-Iltman Services 
Agency for allegedly violati11g Administrative (~ode (Sunshine Ordi11ance), 
Section 67.21, by t'aili11g to rcspo11d to a pt1blic records request in a timely and/or 
eo111plete manner. 

}!'ile No. 19061: Co1nplai11t (iled by Jolm Hooper against the Office ofEco11omic 
and Workforce 1)evelop1nent for allegedly violating Adn1i11istr<:1live Code 
(Su11shine Ordi11ance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public records 
request i11 a ti111ely a11d/or complete n1a1mer. 
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File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John 1Iooper against ))ublic Worlcs for 
allegedly violati11g Adn1inistrative Code (Sunsl1ine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by 
failing to respo11d to a public records request in a timely a11d/or complete mru1nc'f. 

File No. 19044: Complai11t filed by A11onymous against Dennis Herrera and tl1e 
Office ofthc City Attorney for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Stmshi11c 
Ordinance), Sections 67.21, by f'ailing to respo11d to a public records request in a 
timely m1d/or complete inanncr. 

lfile No. 19047: Co1nplaint filed by Ai1onymous against Mayor London Breed, 
Ii:ank Heckel and the Office of the Mayor fOr allegedly violating Administrative 
Code, (Sunshine Ordi11ance) Sections 67.25 and 67.29-5, by failing to respond to 
a request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 

Documentation (evidence Sllpporting/disputing 'complaint) 

For a document to be considered, it m11st be received at least. five (5) worlcing 
days before tl1e hearing (sec attached Public Complaint Procedure). For inclusion 
into tlze agcncla packet, suppleniental/supporting documents must be received by 
5:00 pm, August 13, 2019. 

Cheryl Leger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

<imageOOl.png> Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors 
Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legi~lative lZesearch Center provides 24-hour access to Board 
of Supervisors legislation, and archived 111atters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal injbr1nation that is provided in 
comn1unict1tions to the Board oj',_"lupervisors 1:~ subject to 
disclosure under tl1e California F'ublic Records Act and the ,"Jan 
Francisco ,)unshi11e Ordinance. Personal in}Orn1ation provided 
will not be redt1cted. Men1bers o_fthe public are not required to 
]Jrovide personal identifYing inforn1ation 1vhen they co1nmunict1te 
rvith tl1e }Joard of Supervisors and its com1nittees. All }!1ritten or 
oral co1nn1unications that niembers qfthe public s1,1bmit to the 
C'lerk's Office regarding pending legislatio11 or hearings H1ill be 
nJade available to all men1bers of' the public.for inspection and 
copyi11g. The Clerk's QIJice does not redact an.Y infor1nationfron1 
these sub1nissions. This 111eans that personal infornu1tion
including na1nes, ]Jhone nun1bers, addresses ctnd sin1ilar 
infor1nation that a me1nber o.f'the public elects to subn1it to the 
Board and its co1n1nittees--n~ay G]Jpear on the Board of' 
,S'upervisors ivebsite or in other jJublic docu111enfs that 1nen1bers of 
the public rnay inSJJect or copy. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Wednesday, August 28, 2019 12:31 PM 
SOTF, (BOS) 

SOTF hearing schedule 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hi Cheryl: 

Wanted to let you know that I will be out of town from Sept 16 ti! Oct 12. 

I don't know the SOTF hearing schedule for the foreseeable future, but 1 won't be available during that 
time. 

This pertains to my two complaints heard before the Complaints Commitee on August 20, 2019 and 
an outstanding complaint concerning SF Parks A\laince. 

As always, thanks for your help. 

John Hooper 
415-626-8880 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Good Afternoon: 

SOTF, (BOS) 

Tuesday, January 7, 2020 4:29 PM 
'libraryusers2004@yahoo.com'; Buckley, Theresa (TTX); Cisneros, Jose (TTX); Gard, Susan 
{HRD); Callahan, Micki (HRD); 'terence kerrisk'; 'JOHN HOOPER'; Corgas, Christopher 

(ECN); Thompson, Marianne {ECN); Nuru, Mohammed (DPW); Goldberg, Jonathan 

(DPW); Steinberg, David (DPW); '72056-97339218@requests.rnuckrock.com'; COTE, 
JOHN (CAT); 'Justin Barker'; 'vitusl@sfzoo.org'; tanyap@sfzoo.org; 'MICHAEL PETRELIS'; 

Breed, Mayor London {MYR); Heckel. Hank {MYR); '76434-70600365 

@requests.muckrock.com' 
SOTF - Notice of Appearance, January 21, 2020 - Sunshine Ordinance Task Force; 4:00 

PM 

You are receivi11g this notice because you arc na1ncd as a Co1nplai11ant or Respondent in one of the following 
conlplaints scheduled before tl1e Sunshine Ordinance Taslc Force to: 1) hear the merits of the complaint; 2) issue 
a determi11ation; ai1d/or 3) consider referrals from a 1'ask force Co1nn1ittee. 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Location: City I-Iall, Room 408 

4:00 p.m. 

Con1plainants: Your attendance is required for this n1ceting/hearing. 

Respondents/Depaii1nents: Pursuant to Se_ction 67.21 (e) of the Ordinance, the custodian of records or a 
represe11tative of)'Our depa1iment, wl10 can speak to the matter, is required at tl1e meeting/hearing. 

Complaints: 

File No. 19011: Complaint filed by the Library Users Association against Theresa Buckley, Jose Cisneros, Christa 
Brown, Anne Stuhldreher and the Office of the Treasurer and Tax Collector for allegedly violating 
Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.21(a)(b){c), by faitlng to respond to a request for public 
records in a timely and/or complete manner and by failing to provide the requestor with assistance by 
directing the requestor to the proper office or staff person. 

File No. 19015: Complaint filed by Terrence J. Kerrisk against the Department of Human Resources for 
allegedly violating Administrati.ve Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public 
records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19061: Complaint filed by John Hooper against the Office of Economic and Workforce Development 
for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67 .21, by failing to respond to a 
public records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 
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File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper against Public Works for allegedly violating Administrative 

Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing·to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or 

complete manner. 

File No.19044: Complaint filed by Anonymous agi)inst Dennis Herrera and the Office of the City· Attorney for 

allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.21, 61.26, 61.27, Government Code 

Sections 6253, 6253.9 and 6255, by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or complete 

manner. 

File No. 19092: Complaint filed by Justin Barker against the San Francisco Zoo for allegedly violating 

Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67 .25, by failing to respond to an Immediate Disclosure 

Request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19093: Complaint filed by Michael Petrelis against Sean Elsbernd and the Office of the Mayor for 

allegedly violating Administrative Code, (Sunshine Ordinance) Sections 67 .21 by failing to respond to a request 

for public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19091: Comp taint filed by Anonymous against Mayor London Breed, the Office of the Mayor, Hank 

Hecke\, Tryone Jue, Sean Elsbernd, Andres Power, Andrea Bruss, Marjan Philhour1 Jeff Cretan, Sophia Kittler 

for allegedly violating Administrative Code, (Sunshine Ordinance) Sections 67.21, 67.26, 67.27 and 67.29-7, by 

failing to respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 

Documentatio11 (evidence snp1lorti11g/dis1Juting complaint) 

For a doct1ment to be co11sidered, it mttst be received at least five (5) working days before tl1e hearing (see 
attached l)ublic Cotnplaint Procedure). 

For inclusio11 in the agenda paclcet, supplemental/supporting docun1e11ts 1nt1st be rccei\rcd by .'i:OO pm, ]a11uary 
13, 2020. 

Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Tel: 415-554-7724 

Cheryl Leger 

" l!O Click ~r_~ to complete a Board of Sup~rvisors Cu>tomer Service Satisfaction form. 

The .~eg1slatjy_g_Rs>search Ce_rter provjdcs 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and a re hived matters si nee August 1998. 

Di5c/05ures: Personal information that i< provided in communicat1011s to the Boord of Supervisors" subject to disclosure under the Co/Jfornia 
Public Records Act ond the San Fronusco Sunshine Ordinonce. Personol Jnformation provided will not be redacted. Members of the p[!b/il: ore 
not required to provide personal •dentifying i11fonnotion when they communicate with the Board of Supervison mid its commirteps_ 1111 wnrren 
01 orol communicotions !hat members of the public subn1it to !he Clerk's Office rPgardrng pending legislation or hearings will be madP ovaihible 
to all members of the public for inspf.'ction ond copying. The Clerk's Office docs not redact onv information from the,-e submis:;ion;. Thi:; mean; 
t/Jot pe"onal informovon-includrilg 110.71es, phone numbers, addresses and .1im1/ar information that a member of the pubhc elects to submit to 
the Boord and its co1n1ni!tee:;- -nioy appear on the Boord of Supervisors ·.vebs1te or In other public document:; th al members of !he public may 
inspect or copy. 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Tel: 415-554-7724 
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. Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Good Afternoon: 

SOTF, {BOS) 

Thursday, February 6, 2020 2:12 PM 

79999-25916958@requests.muckrockcorn; Megan Bourne; 80695-54486849 

@requests.muckrock.com; Cityattorney; Cote, John (CAT}; Coolbrith, Elizabeth (CAT); 
JOHN HOOPER; Corgas, Christopher (ECN); Thompson, Marianne (ECN); Goldberg, 

Jonathan (DPW); Steinberg, David (DPW); S; l/1cHale, Maggie {HRD); Voong, Henry 

(HRD); Callahan, Micki (HRO) 

SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: February 18, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

You are recei\1ing this notice because you are named as a Complainant or Ile~pondcnt in 011e of the followi11g 
complaints scheduled before the Co1nplaint Committee of the Sunshi11e Ordinance Task_ Force to: 1) l1ear the 
merits of the con1plaint; 2) issue a determination; and/or 3) consider referrals from a Task: Force Committee. 

Date: Febntary 18, 2020 

Location: City 1-Iall, l\oom 408 

Time: 5:30 p.1n. 

File No. 19113: Co1nplaint filed by Anonymous against Jason Moment, Thomas Campbell md the Fine Arts 
Museu1n fOr allegedly violating Admi11istrative Code (Sunshi11c Ordinance), Sectio11s 67.21(b)(c)(l(), 67.29-
7(a)(c), 67.25, 67.26, 67.27, CPRA Gove1nme11t Code 6270.5-5, by failing to respond to a11 Immediate 
Disclosure Request in a timely and/or complete manner, failing to assist, failure to retain records, faili11g to 
record third party transactions, withholding and failure to justify withholding, failure to respond to a public 
records request in a ti1nely and/or complete maimer. 

~'ilc No. 19120: Complai11t filed by Anony1nous against the Office of the City Attorney for allegedly violating 
Adn1inistrative Code (Sunshine Ordi11ance), Sections 67.2l(b)(c), 67.26, 67.27, by failing to respond to a 
request for public records i11 a timely and/or complete manner; failing to justify withholding of records and 
failing to provide assistance. 

File No. 19061: Complaint filed by John Hooper against the Office of Economic m1d Workforce Development 
for allegedly violating Administrati\1e Code (Sunshine Ordinai1ce), Section 67.21, by failing to rcs11011d to a_ 
public records request in a timely m1d/or complete 1nanner. 

File No. l 9062: Complaint filed by John F-Iooper against Public Worl(s for allegedly violating Administrative 
Code (Sunshi11e Ordinance), Section 67.21, by faili11g to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or 
co111plete mauncr. 

File No. 19140: Co1nplaint filed by Stepl1c11 Malloy against the Department ofI-lurnan Resources for allegedly 
violating Adn1inistrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sectio11s 67.21and 67.25, by failing to respond to a 
rcql1cst for p11blic records in a timely and/or complete manner. 

Documentation (evidence supporting/dis11uting COIDJllaint) 
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For a document to be considered, it 1nust be received at least five (5) worki11g days before the l1earing (seD 
at1acl1ed I)ublic C:on1plaint Procedllre). 

}<'or incl11sio11 in the agenda packet, Sllpple1nc11tal/supporti11g doeun1ents n1ust be received by .5:00 1>m, Februar;1 
12, 2020. 

l~hcryl Leger 
Assistant C:ierk, Bo<trd of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

0 
@:t> (:lick_ here to eo111111etc a Board of Supervisors Custon1er Service Satisfaction for1n. 

'fhe Legislative Researel1 Center i1rovidcs 24-botir access to Board of Supervisors legislation, 
a11d archived 1natters since Al1gt1st 1998. 

Disclos11res: J>ersonal inforn1L1fio11 thc1t is providell in co1n1n11nications to the Board of· 
.)1qJervisors is s·ubject lo disclosure i111lfer the (J'alifornia Public Recorcf.\· "4ct and the San 
F'rancisco ,)unshi ne Orlli nonce_ Jlersonol infor111afion provilled y1 1ill not he redactec!. Men1bers 
<>f'the public are 1101 required lo ]Jrovide personctl identifying i11;for111L1tion -.,vhen tl1ey 
co111111unica1e li!ilh 1he Board (~f,'Jupervisors and its co111n1ittees. All-.,Fritten or oral 
co111111unicc1tions that n1en1hers o.fthe pitblic sub1nit to the ('!erk'.s· Qffice regarcling jJendi11g 
leiislcttion or hearings i-11ill he n1allc available to all 1ne111bers of' the ]Jublicfor inspection ancl 
copJ1ing. The (~!erk's Office cloes not redo ct an)1 infOr111ation fro111 the.s·e sub111issio11s. [his 111ec1ns 
!hat jJersonal infbr1nc1tion---inclucling 11a111es, jJhone 11u111bers, atidresses ctnd sin1ilar in.forn1c1tion 
that a 111e1nber o_flhe fJllblic elects to subn1it lo the Bourd llnll its conunittees-1110)1 appel1r on tl1e 
Boarcf o_fS1.11Jcrvisors vvehsite or in 01her 1Jublic tfocun1ents that 111e111bers qf'the public 11101 
ins11ect or cop)1. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

Froril: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Mr. Hooper: 

SOTF, (BOS) 

Monday, March 9, 2020 1 :39 PM 
John C. Hooper 
Leger, Cheryl (BOS); co·rgas, Christopher (ECN); Thompson, Marianne (ECN); Steinberg, 

David (DPW); Goldberg, Jonathan (DPW); Calvillo, Angela (BOS) 

SOTF - Request for Postponement 19061and19062 - Granted 

Pursuant to the SOTF Complaint procedures your request to postpone your hearings (File Nos. 19061and19062) 
scheduled before the Complaint Committee on 3/17 has been granted. 

Cheryl will be in touch with you to reschedule the matter (most likely on April 21, 2020.) 

Thank you. 

Victor Young 
Assistant Clerk 

Board of Supervisors 
phone 415-554-7723 fax 415-554-5163 
victor.voung@sfgov.org I www.sfbos.org 

From: John C. Hooper <hooparb@aol.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 5, 2020 12:43 PM 

To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Canipbell, Thomas (FAM) <tcampbell@famsf.org>; 79999-

25916958@requests.muckrock.com; 80695-54486849@requests.muckrock.com; Cityattorney 
<Cityattorney@sfcityatty.org>; COTE, JOHN (CAT) <John.Cote@sfcityatty.org>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 

<marianne.thompson@sfgov.org>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) <christopher.corgas@sfgov.org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) 

<david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>; grovestand2012@gmail.com; McHale, Maggie (HRD) <maggie.mchale@sfgov.org>; 
Voong, Henry (HRD) <henry.voong@sfgov.org> 

Subject: Re: SOTF- Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Re#19061 and #19062: 

! apologize, but I will not be able to atttend the 3/17 meeting. For the record,! was prepared to speak 
at the Feb 18 meeting which was cancelled for lack of a quorum. Please let me know when the next 
Complaint Commmittee meeting ls expected. 
John Hooper 

-----Original Message-----
From: S6TF, (BOS} <sotf@sfqov.org> 
To: Campbell, Thomas (FAM) <tcampbell@famsf.org>: 79999-25916958@requests muckrock com <79999-
259169Q8@requests.muckrock.con:!>; 80695-54486849@requests.muckrock.con:! <80695-
54486849@requests.muckrock.com>; Cityattorney <Cityattorney@sfcityatty.org>; COTE, JOHN (CAT) 
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<John.Cote.@sfcityatk.Q[g_>; JOHN HOOPER <hooparb@9ol.com>; Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 
<111aria11ne.thompso~ov.orq>; Corgas, Christopher (ECN) <s;;_tiristopher.corqas@sfgov org>; Steinberg, David (DPW) 
<david.steinberg@sfdpw.org>: Stephen <qrovestand2012@gn1ail.com>; McHale, Maggie (HRD) 
<maqgie.mchale@sfqov.org>; Voong, Henry (HRD) <henrv.voong@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thu, Mar 5, 2020 1O:11 am 
Subject: SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: March 17, 2020; 5:30 p.m. 

Good Morning: 

You are receiving this notice because you are named as a Complainant or Respondent in one of the following 

complaints scheduled before the Complaint Committee of the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force to: 1) hear the 

merits of the complaint; 2) issue a determination; and/or 3) consider referrals from a Task Force Committee. 

Date: March 17, 2020 

Location: 

Time: 

City HCJ.ll, Room 408 

5:30 p.m. 

File No. 19113: Complaint filed by Anonymous against Jason Moment, Thomas Campbell and the Fine Arts 

Museum for allegedly violating Administrative Code {Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.21{b)(c)(k), 67.29-

7(a)(c), 67 .25, 67.26, 67 .27, CPRA Government Code 6270.5-5, by failing to respond to an Immediate 

Disclosure Request in a timely and/or complete manner, failing to assist, failure to retain records, failing to 

record third party transactions, withholding and failure to justify withholding, failure to respond to a public 

records request in a ti111ely and/or complete manner. 
File No. 19120: Complaint filed by Anonymous against the Office of the City Attorney for allegedly violating 

Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67 .21(b)(c), 67 .26, 67 .27, by failing to respond to a 

request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner; failing to justify withholding of records and 

failing to provide assistance. 

File No. 19061: Complaint filed by .John Hooper against the Office of Economic and Workforce Development 

for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67 .21, by failing to respond to a 

public records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John Hooper against Public Works for <ll\egedly violating Administrative 

Code {Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely and/or 

complete manner. 
File No. 19140: Complaint filed by Stephen Malloy against the Department of Human Resources for allegedly 

violating Administrative Code {Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67 .21and 67.25, by failing to respond to a 

request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 

Documentation (evidence supporting/disputing complaint) 
For a document to be considered, it must be received at least five {5) working days before the hearing (see 

attached Public Complaint Procedure). 

For inclusion in the agenda packet, supplemental/supporting documents must be received by 5:00 pm, 

February 12, 2020. 

Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Tel: 415-554-7724 

0 
lf{) Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and 

archived matters since August 1998. 
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Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of 
Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco 
Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public 
are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the 
Board of Supervisors and its committees. Alf written or oral communications that members of 
the public submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not 
redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information
including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the 
public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may appear on the Board of 
Supervisors website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or 
copy. 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Good Afte1noon: 

SOTF, (BOS) 

Monday, October 12, 2020 5:28 PM 
79356-·20639593@requests.muckrock.corn; Steinberg, David (DPW); 84031-44127205 
@requests.muckrock.com; Scott William (POL); Rodriguez, Brian (POL); Andraychak, 

Michael (POL); Cox, Andrew (POL); JOHN HOOPER; Corgas, Christopher (ECN); 

Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 
SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: October 20, 2020, 5:30 p.m. 

Notice is hereby given that the Complaint Committee (Committee) of the Su11shi11c Ordinance Task Force (Tas]( 
}'orce) shall hold 11carings on complai11ts listed below to: 1) detcr1nine if the Task }'orcc 11as jurisdiction; 2) 
rc\1iew the 111erits of the co1nplai11ts; and/or 3) issl1e a report and/or recon1mendatio11 to the 'I'asl( .Force. 

Date: October 20, 2020 

f,ocation: Remote Meeting 

1'ime: 5:30 p.n1. 

Complainants: Your attendance is required for this meeting/heari11g. 

Respondents/De11art1ncnts: Pursua11t to Sectio11 67 .21 ( e) of the Ordina11ce, tl1e custodian of records or a 
representative of your J.epartment, who can SJJCak to tl1e matter, is required at tl1e meeting/heari11g. 

Complaints: 

File No. 19097: Complaint filed b:y Anony1nous against Pul1lic Works for allegedly violating Administrative 
Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67 .21, 67.26 and 67 .27, by faili11g to respo11d to a pul1lic records request 
in a ti1nely and/or complete rnan11er. 

}~ilc No. 19128: Complaint filed by Anony1nous against Chief Williarn Scott, Sgt. Drian Rodriguez, Michael 
Andraychak. and the Police Department for allegedly violating Adn1inis1.rativc Code (Sunslllne Or<lina11cc), 
Sections 67.21, 67 .25, 67.26, 67.27 and 67.29-7(a) by failing 1o respond to an Itmnediate f)isc\osure l'eque..<;t in 
a timely and/or complete nianner. 

File No.19061: Con1plaint filed by John Hooper against the Office ofl~conomic ai1d Workforce f)evelopment 
for allegedly viola1.ing Administrative c:ode (Sunshine ()rdina11cc), Section 67.21, by faili11g to respond to a 
public records request in a timely and/or co1nplcte n1anncr. 

~'ilc No.19062: Co1nplai11t filed by John Hooper agai11st Public \Vorks for allegedly violati11g Administrative 
Code (Su11shine Ordinance), Sectio1167.21, by failing to respond to a public records request in a limely and/or 
complete n1a1u1er. 

Documentatio11 (evidence SUJlporting/disputing complaint) 
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f'or a document to be considered, it must be received at least five ( 4) working days before the heari11g. For 
inclusion i1ito the agentla packet, supplernental/supporting documents must be received by 5:00 pm, October 
15, 2020. 

Cheryl J_,eger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

" l!I.b Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Cl1stomer Service Satisfaction fonn. 

The Legislative Res_earch Center 1)rovides 24-bour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, 
and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclost1res: Personal inforn1utio11 that is }Jtovided in con111111nicc1tions to the Boarlf a_f· 
,)ujJervisors is sub;"ect to disclosure under the C'al!fOl"nic1 Public ]?ecords Act ond the S'an 
F'rancisco Sunshine Ordinunce. Personal inforn1ution proviclec! }~ill not be redactecl. Men1bers 
of' the public c1re no/ required to ]Jtovide ]Jersonal identifying i1ifor111ation i11hen theJ1 
co1nn1u11icate 111ith the Bol1rd of Supervisors c1nd its co111n1ittees. A 1l 1·f'l"itten or orol 
con1111unications that 1nen1bers of the public s11b111if to I he Cl er k's <J[fice regording pencling 
le,gislatio11 or hearings 111ill be niade ovc1ilc1ble to all 1nen1bers o_f the public j(Jr inspection and 
CO]Jying. The C'lerk's <Jffice does not recluct any infbr111ation.fro111 these submissions. This 1neans 
thctl personal infor1nation--incli1di11g nan1es, phone 11un1bers, c1dclresses and si111ilar inj(Jrmotion 
!hat a 111e1nber of' the ]Jublic elects to sub1nit to lhe Boarcl and its co1nn1ittees-111c1J1 appear on tl1e 
Board qf",)upervisors e11ebsite or in other ]Jublic docu111ents thc1t 1ne1nbers of' the ]Jublic n1a)1 
inspect or COJJ.Y· 
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Leger. Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Crood Afternoon: 

SOTF, (BOS} 

Monday, October 12, 2020 5:28 PM 

79356-20639593@requests.muckrock.com; Steinberg, David {DPW); 84031 -44127205 
@requests.muckrock.com; Scott, William (POL); Rodriguez, Brian (POL); Andraych<lk, 

Michael (POL); Cox, Andr·evv (POL); JOHN HOOPER; Corgas, Christopher (ECN); 

Thompson, Marianne (ECN) 

SOTF - Notice of Appearance - Complaint Committee: October 20, 2020, 5:30 p.m. 

Notice is 11crcby given that the Complaint Conunittee (Cot11111ittec) of the Slmsl1inc Ordi11ance '[aslc :Force (Taslc 
Force) shall hold heari11gs on co1nplaints listed l1clo\'v' to: I) determine if the Taslc :Force has jurisdiction; 2) 
review the merits of the co1nplaints; and/or 3) issl1e a repoti and/or recon1111endation to t11e rf'aslc Force. 

Date: ()ctobcr 20, 2020 

Location: Re1notc Meeting 

'fime: 5:30 p.m. 

Con1plainants: Your attendance is required for this 1neetlng/l1earing. 

Responder1ts/I)epart1ncnts: Pursua11t to Section 67.21 (c) of the Ordir1ai1ce, the custodian of records or a 
representative of your depa1imcnt, \Vl10 can speak to the 1nstter, is required at the rnecting/l1earing. 

Complai11ts: 

}<'ilc :r\o. 19097: Complaint filed l1y Anonymous against Public Worlcs for allegedly violating Administrative 
Code (Sut1sl1ine Ordinance), Sections 67.21, 67.26 and 67.27, by failing to respo11d to a public records request 
in a timely and/or co1n11lete ma1111cr. 

File No.19128: Cornplaint filed b)r Anonymous against Chicf\\'illiarn Scott, Sgt. Brian lZodriguez, Michael 
Andraychak ai1d the Police Dcpartn1c11t for allcgGdly 'liolating Administrative Code (Sw1shine Ordinance), 
Sections 67.21, 67.25, 67.26, 67.27 and 67.29-7(a) by failing to respond to an I1nn1ediate J)isclosure lZequest in 
a timely ai1d/or complete 1nanner . 

.l'~ile No. 19061: (~omplai11t filed by John Hooper against tl1c Office of}~conomic and Workforce Development 
for allegedly violating 1\dn1inistrative Code (Sunshine CJrdinancG), Section 67 .21, by failing to respond to a 
public records request i11 a ti1ncly and/or complete n1an11er. 

F'ile No.19062: C:omplaint filed by John Ilooper against Publ'ic \Vorks for alleged!)' v·iolating Acl111inistrativc 
c:ode (Stinshinc Ordinance), Section 67 .21, hy failing to res1)011d to a public records request in a timely anci/or 
complete nlatmer. 

J)ocumentation (evidence supporti11g/disputing co1uplai11t) 
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17or a document to be eo11sidcred, it n1ust be received at least five (4) working days before the hearing. For 
inclusion into tlze agenda packet, supp/e1nenta!/supporting documents mttst be received by .5:00 pm, October 
15, 2020. 

Cl1eryl Leger 
Assistant Clerl(, Board of Supervisors 
TeL 415-554-7724 

" av Clielc here to co1nplete a Board of Sl1pervisors Customer Service Satisfactio11 form. 

'rl1e l~cgislative Rcsearcl1 Center provides 24-hour access to l3oard of Supervisors legislation, 
and archived matters since Al1gt1st 1998. 

Disc/o.\·11res: Personal irifiJrtnation that is providecl in con1n1u11ications to the Boord of 
SujJervisors is subject to disclosure under tl1e ('aliforniu Public Records Act onll the ,)Ltn 
FrL1ncisco S'unshine Orclinance. Personal infor1nation JJrovidec! H1ill not be redocted. lvfe111bers 
of the jJub!ic ore not required to provic{e JJersonal f L{ent(fj1i11g infor1nllfion i11/1en theJ1 
co1n111unicote lFith the Boctrd of'S'i1pervisors ond its co111111ittees. All Yl'ritten or orctl 
con1111u11ications I hat 1ne1nbers of the pub/ ic subn1if to I he Clerk's (!/]ice regarding jJending 
legislation or heorings ,,l'ill be 1nade ovoilcrble to c1ll 111en1bers of the jJublicfor inspection and 
copying. The C'lcrk's (!//ice does not rec/act any h?/or111ation_fi-0111 these subn1issions. This n1eans 
thc1t personal irljorn1atio11-inc!i1ding nc1n1es, pho11e nun1bers, ctddresses and siinilar infor1nation 
that ll 1ne1nber of'the jJUb!ic elects to subn1it to the Board anlf its con1111ittees-n1c1J1 appear 011 the 
Board oj",)upervisors i-11ebsite or in otherpi1blic docu111ents thot 111e111bers of the jJublic mO)i 

inspect or COJJY. 
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Leger, Cher I (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Attachments: 

(food Afternoo11: 

SOTF, (BOS) 
Friday, November 13, 2020 4:59 PM 

'rs'; Bourne, Megan (FAM); Heckel, Hank (MYR); '81242-04060798 

@requests.rnuckrock.corn'; Breed, London (MYR); Breed, Mayor· London (MYR); 

'Anonymous'; Gerull, Linda (TIS); Makstman, Michael (TIS); Licudine-Barker, Arlene (TIS); 

'JOHN HOOPER'; Thompson, Marianne (ECN); Steinberg, David (DPW); 'S'; McHale, 

Maggie (HRD); Voong, Henry (HRD) 

Young, Victor (BOS); Somera, Alisa (BOS); Calvillo, Angela (BOS) 

SOTF - Remote Meeting of the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force - Notice of Appearance, 
December 2, 2020; 4:00 PM 

SOTF - Complaint Procedure 2019-10-02 FINAL.pdf 

You arc rcceivi11g tl1is notice because you arc named as a Con1plalna11t or Respondent in 011e of the following 
co111plaints sched1tled before the Su11shine ()rdi11a11cc Task 1:(Jrcc to: 1) hear 111c merits of the cornplaint; 2) issue 
a dete1minatio11; snd/or 3)-co11sidcr referrals fron1 a Tasl( Poree Co1n1nittee. 

l)ate: l)ecc1nber 2, 2020 

Location: lZemote Meeting 

'fime: 4:00 j).ffi. 

Co1nplainants: Your attendance is required for this n1eeting/heari11g. 

Respondents/Departments: l)ursuant to Section 67 .21 ( e) of the Ordinai1ce, tl1e custodian of records or a 
represe11tative of your department, who can speak to tl1e inatter, is req11ired at the meeting/hearing. 

Co111plaints: 

File No.19058: Complai11t filed by Roberi M. Smitl1 against the Fine /\rts Museum ofSa11 Frar1cisco for 
violati11g Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section 67.25, b)' failing to respond to an ltnmediate 
Disclosure Request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

11ile No. 19103: Con1plaint filed by Ano11y111ous against Mayor J.,ondon Bree<l, IIanl( Heckel and the Mayor's 
Offices for allegedly violating Achninistrative Code (Sunshi11c Ordina11ce), Sections 67.21, 67.25 and 67.26, by 
failing to respond to an Tm1nediatc -Disclosure Request i11 a 1.imel;' and/or co1nplete manner. 

File No. t 9119: Co1nplaint filed by Ano11y1nous agai11st the Depa1i1nent ofTeehnology for allegedly violating 
Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.21(b), 67.26 and 67.27, by failing to respond to a 
_public records rcql1est in a ti1nely and/or eon1plete 111a11ner. 

Jfilc No. 19061: Complai11t filed by Joh11 l-Iooper agai11st the Office of Econo1nic and Viorkforce Dcvelopn1enl 
for allegedly violating Administrative c:ode (Sunshine Ordi11ance), Section 67.21, by failing to respond to a 
public records request i11 a timely a11d/or co111plete manner. 
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File No. 19062: Complaint filed by John I-Iooper against Public Works ror allegedly violating Administrative 
Code (St1nshine Orc1ir1ance), Scetio1167.21, by failing to respond to a public records request in a timely arid/or 
complete manner. 

File No. 19140: Con1plaint filed lJy Stephen Malloy against the l)epa11n1ent of Human Resources for allegedly 
violating Admi11istrativc Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Sections 67.2land 67.25, by-failing to respond to a 
request for public records in a titnely and/or complete n1an11er. 

Docume11tation (evidence supporti11g/disputing co1nplaint) 

For a document to be considered, it n1ust be recei\rcd at least five (5) working days before the hearing (see 
attached Public Complaint Procedure). 

_F'or inclusion in the agenda packet, supplen1ental/s11p11orting documents tnust be recei·ved by 5:_00 pn1, 
November 19, 2020. 

Cheryl J_,eger 
Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
Tel: 415-554-7724 

" fZt) Click. here to co111plete a Board of S11pervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislati1/e Rcse_~I~h Ce11ter pro\'ides 24-ho11r access to Board of St1pervisors legislation, 
ai1d archived matters since August 1998. 

Discfos11res: })ersonal inforn1ation thc1t is Jlrovilieli i11 co111111u11ications lo the Board of' 
S'u1Jervisors is subject to disclosure 11nder the Calffornic1 Public Jlecords Act and the s~an 
Francisco ,(;11nshine Orliinltnce. Personal inj(Jrn1ation provided 1'111'// not be redocted. Me1nbers 
qf'the jJublic are nol requirecl to ]Jrovide personal itientifying inj(;r111c1tion \·11f1en theJ' 
con1n1u11icc1te 1vith the }]o(lrd of,"i'u1;ervisors rind its con11niftees. All H'ritten or oral 
co111111unicatio11s that 111e1nhers of the ]Jublic sub111it to the C'lerk's ()Jjice regarding ]Jending 
legislalion or her1rings 111il! be 111c1de available to c1ll 111e1nbers o.fthe }JublicjOr inspection and 
COjJying. The Clerk's Qffice cioes not redact an;' infor111ationfi·o1n these s11h111issions. This 1nea11s 
!hot jJersonal irljorn1afion- -incliJcling narnes, pho11e 1111n1bers, rtdrlresses and si1nilar infor111ation 
that r1111e111her qfthc public elects to sub111it to tl1e 13oarcl ond its co1r11nitlees-1noJ1 G]Jpear on the 
Board o_f S'upervisors i-11ebsilc or in other ]Jublic cloc1une11ts tl1c1t n1embers of the j"JUblic n1CIJi 
inspect or COJJ)'. 
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